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ERRATA.

Page 36: foot note, ‘1919 A.C. 293"’ should read “1909 A.C. 293.”

Pages 279 and 287: fdotnote, “Ontario Mining Co. vs. Province of
Ontario (1910) A.C. 637"’ should read *“The Ontario Mining
Company and the Attorney-General for Canada vs. Seybold
et al. and the Attorney-General for Ontario, 1903, A.C. 73.”
And the case of “The Dominion of Canada »s. Province of
Ontario (1910) A.C. 637" should be added:

Page 117: foot note, “Manmatha North Mitler” should read
“Manmatha Nath Mitter.” - ‘ '



MEMORANDA.

* During the period of these reports, namely, on the 27th June,

1920, the Honourable Mr. Justice Sir Adolphe Routhier, .Local
Judgefin Admiralty, for the Quebec Admiralty District, departed
this life. ' ‘ : —

Appeals have been taken to the Supreme Court in the following

cases reported in this volume and are still pending:—

1.
2.

e

o N>

Halifax Graving Dock Company v. The Keng, p. 67.

Bauer Chemical Company, Inc., v. The Sanatogen. Company of
Canada, p. 123. o

The King v. The Ontario and Minnesota Power Company, p. 279.
Locomotive Stoker Corporation v. Commaissioner of Patents, p. 191.

Neitzke v. Secretary of State; Wiehmayer v. Secretary of State; p.
219,

Wolfe Company v. The King, p. 306.
Dominion Iron and Steel Co. v. The King, p. 245.

City Safe Deposit and Agency Co. v. Central Railway Company and
C. N. Armstrong, claimant, ete., p. 346.

In re Jessie Mac, The v. The tug Sea Lion. Judgmeut of Local Judge

in Admiralty (19 Ex. C. R. 78) reversed by Exchequer Court
(20 Ex. C.R. 137). '

Fraser v. Aztec—Appeal from judgment of Deputy Local
Judge in Admiralty, (19 Ex. C.R. 454; 20 Ex. C.R. 39), con-
firmed by the Exchequer Court; (20 Ex." C.R. 450).
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ULRIC TREMBLAY et al........ PLAINTIFFS;
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HYMAN e etal......... e DEFENDANTS.

-

Shipping—Collision—*‘Inevitable Accideﬁt”-——Burden of Proof—Act of
God. .

During the night between the 14th and 15th November, 1918, the
plaintiff’'s steam barge the A.T. and defendant’s schooner
‘B.S.M. were moored on the lee side of Fox River wharf, on the
Gaspe coast, lying stern to stern, the former near the shore, and
latter between her and the outer end of the wharf. The schooner
had been moored in the usual way, ordinary care and caution in
this regard being observed. Towards evening, there being indica-
tions of bad weather ahead, the master borrowed a half-inch
cable and two large manila hawsers, which were put out as “‘springs,”’
making in all five hawsers, with the anchor leading forward and
four lines leading aft. These additional moorings were more
than sufficient under ordinary circumstances to have held her.
She was a small vessel of only 99 tons, with an anchor weighing
1,200 lbs., and having a chain suitable for a 250 ton ship. The
breaking strain of the larger lines (1 forward and 1 aft) was about
20 tons each, and the smaller. 10 tons each. There was another
hawser and a second anchor on board, and as the wind increased
the master attempted to make fast the hawger to the wharf but was \
unable to do s0, and it was impracticable to make effective use of
the anchor, when the lines broke.

About 2 a.m. in the course of a severe storm, a tidal wave swept over
the wharf and vessel, tore the latter from her moorings and she
began to drift astern colliding with plaintifi’s barge causing her
gsome injury. When the forward moorings parted, she dragged
her anchor, and it being impossible to put to sea, the master let
go the anchor allowing the vessel to drift ashore, in the hope of

" saving the crew.
4507—1
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Held, on the facts, that the master had taken all the precautions that a
man of ordinary prudence and skill exercising reasonable foresight
would have taken, and the owners cannot be held responsible for
the damage resulting from the collision.

2. Where a vessel collides with another lying at anchor, the burden
of proof is on defendant to show that it was due to inevitable
accident.

3. To constitute inevitable accident, it is necessary that the occur-
rence take place in such a manner as not to have been capable of
being prevented by ordinary caution, prudence and maritime skill.
Utmost caution, or extraordinary skill need not be shown, but it is
sufficient if such is reasonable and as is usual in similar cases.

4. In such a case as the present, not only must the defence prove that
the breaking of the moorings was due to the irresistible force of
the wind and waves, but also that all ordinary care, caution and
maritime skill was exercised in mooring the vessel and in the
handling thereof.

AN ACTION in personam by the owners of the steam
barge A. Tremblay claiming the sum of $5,819.36 for
damages occasioned by the defendant’s schooner
Beatrice S. Mack colliding with the Tremblay whilst
moored at Fox River wharf, in the Province of Quebec.

The case was tried at Quebec on the 28th day of
January, 1920, and the 16th, 25th and 31st days of
March, 1920, before The Honourable Mr., Justice
Maclennan.

Messrs. F. E. Meredith, K.C., and A. R. Holden,
K.C., counsel for plaintiffs..

Mr. E. Languedoc, K.C., counsel for defendants.

The facts are stated in the reasons for judgment.

MacrLeEnNaN, D. L. J. A,, this (21st May, 1920) .
delivered judgment.

This is an action in personam by the owners of the
steam barge A. Tremblay claiming the sum of $5,819.36-
for damages occasioned by a collision with the Defend-
ants’ schooner Beatrice S. Mack at Fox River wharf, in
the Province of Quebec, on 15th November, 1918, and.
for costs
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The plaintifis allege in their statement of claim

substantially: that between one and two o’clock on

the morning of 15th November, 1918, their steam
barge A. Tremblay, whilst on a voyage from Quebec
to Gaspe and way ports, was lying moored dlongdide
Fox River wharf where she had been all the day pre-
vious, that the Defendants’ sailing vessel Beatrice
S. Mack was also moored to the wharf between the 4.
Tremblay and the outer end of the wharf, when sud-
denly, about 1.30 A.M. those on board the A. Tremblay
heard the Master of the schooner call out that his
moorings had been carried away, and shortly afterwards
the schooner collided with the barge causing the latter
great loss and damage; that those on board the schooner
improperly neglected to take in due time proper

measures for avoiding the collision which was entirely

due to the defective and improper mooring and want of
due care and skill on the part of the schooner’s Master
and crew, and plaintifis’ claim for a declaration that
they are entitled to damages and costs and such further
relief as the nature of the case may requlre

The defendants by their statement of defence admit
that they were the owners of the schooner Beatrice S.
. Mack which, on 14th November, 1918, was.lying
moored to the wharf at Fox River, her stern being
towards the shore, and on the morning of that day
plaintiffs’ steam barge arrived at Fox River and
moored at the same wharf close astern of the schooner
with her bows towards the_shore, the two vessels
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being stern to stern in close proximity to one another,

and during the afternoon and e%emng of that. day

the wind and sea gradually arose until 9 P.M., when’

they reached the height of a heavy gale from the

northeast, which further continued to increase in

4597--1%
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1920 . . o e .
==  violence making it impossible for the schooner to
Uraic

Teesay l€ave her berth or put to sea; that every possible
Heman, Precaution was taken to make the schooner absolutely
fast both by hawsers and ground tackle; that she was
heawily anchored and attached to the wharf as securely
as could possibly be done; in addition to her usual
hawsers a wire cable and heavy manila hawsers were
borrowed to secure her; that by two o’clock on the
morning of 15th November the wind had reached
hurricane force and the sea was running at such a
height that it reached half way up the masts of the
schooner and was continuously breaking over the
wharf and the schooner, the storm being the worst
within the memory of the inhabitants of the locality;
that those on board the schooner used every possible
effort which good seamanship and determination could
devise or apply to see that the hawsers strained evenly
and that the schooner kept her berth, but shortly after
2 A.M. the wharf moorings parted and the schooner
started to drift towards the shore and in doing so her
main boom came into contact with the stern of the 4.
Tremblay, injured the planking thereof and carried
away part of the railing surrounding the superstructure;
that at the time the schooner had received and was
receiving very severe injuries and was pounding heavily
against the wharf and bottom apd it was then resolved
that the only chance for the safety of those on board
was to slip her anchor chain and let her go ashore,
which was done; after the collision, the A. Tremblay
was found to be aground at her bows at low tide but
got off under her own steam and proceeded to sea and
was navigated without repairs, subsequently went
ashore at Ile Rouge, and later on was in collision at or

near Quebec, and the only damages caused by the

Reasons for
Judgment
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contact between the f_échobner and the A Tremblay

is of little or no pecuniary consequence, .and the
damages resulting from the said contact or collision is
due to vis major and the act of God and is in no respect
or manner imputable to the defendants;

The plaintiffs by their reply deny thé statement
contained in the defence, except the admission that
defendants were the owners of the schooner and that,
early in the morning of 15th November, 1918, she
parted her wharf moorings and started to drift towards
the shore. '

The schooner Beatrice S. Mack, 100 feet long, 24
feet wide, drawing 13 feet aft and 8 feet forward and
having a crew of six all told and of 99 tons net register,
arrived at Fox River wharf, in the Province of Quebec,
on the morning of 13th November, 1918, ' As she
approached the wharf a large anchor weighing about
1,200 pounds on a chain suitable for a 250 ton ship
was put out and the schooner moored on the southwest
side and near the outer end of the wharf running out
about 900 feet from the shore. .The anchor was leading
forward with 45 or 50 fathoms of chain. The schooner
‘was moored to the wharf by two manila lines leading
forward and one aft. Cargo was discharged during
that and the following day. On the following morning,
14th November, the plaintiffs’ steam barge, 111 feet
long, 28 feet wide, and having a registered tonnage of
147 tomns, arrived and tied up to the same side of the
wharf facing the shore and a short distance astern of the

5
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schooner. Between 4 and 5 P.M. on November14th

there were indications of bad weather ahead; the
moorings of the plaintiffs’ barge were doubled and the
Master of the defendants’ schooner borrowed a half
inch wire cable and two large manila hawsers two and
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three quarters in diameter and having a circumference
of seven and three quarter inches. These two large
hawsers were put out as “springs,” one being attached
from the foremast forward to the wharf, the other
from the aftmast and attached to the wharf leading
astern. When these and other additional lines were
put out the defendants’ schooner had five lines and the
anchor leading forward and four lines leading aft.
These lines were considered by the Master of the
Schooner, who had over twenty years’ experience as a
seaman, to be sufficient to securely hold the schooner
in safety. The weather during the evening became
very bad; there was another hawser on board one and
a quarter inches in diameter and five inches in circum-
ference which the Master tried to put out later, but
was unable to do so owing to the sea coming over the
wharf and the wind which was blowing hard from the
northeast. As the night advanced.the wind increased
and the sea became more tempestuous until the storm
reached its height near midnight. The wharf ran
out to the northwest, the wind was from the northeast
and the sea came against the wharf practically at right
angles, went over it to a depth of eight or ten feet and
then over the schooner, carrying away barrels on the
wharf and anything that was loose on the schooner;
some skylights on the schooner also were broken.
During the night all possible attention was given to
the lines on the schooner, slacking them when it was
necessary, in order that they might all work together.
About 2 A.M. on the morning of 15th November, when
the wind was blowing, what several of the witnesses
called a gale, a heavy sea, which some of the witnesses
called a tidal wave and others un raz de marée, came over
the wharf and schooner and the lines leading forward
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from the schooner- to the wharf parted, the anchor
dragged and the schooner began to drift astern, its main
boom came into collision with the barge and began to
beat violently against it. As the anchor was drag-
ging and it was impossible to put to sea, the Master
of the schooner thought it more prudent to let the
anchor go and drift ashore in the hope of saving the
lives of his crew. The schooner went ashore and
became a total loss. The evidence shows that the
‘storm was one of the worst which had occurred within

the memory of the witnesses on the Gaspe coast :

‘Several fishing boats and barges at Fox River and in
'the vicinity were driven ashore durmg the night.

~ In this case the plaintiffs’ barge was moored to the
wharf when the defendants’ schooner broke loose from

its moorings and collided with the .barge. These

facts are established by witnesses called on Plaintiffs’
.behalf and constituted a prima facie case against
defendants, and the onus of proof was then shifted
and the defendants were called upon to explain the
cause of the collision and that it was due to inevitable
accident. The defence of inevitable accident is well
known in Maritime Law and the principles upon
which it is applied are stated in the following cases:—

In the Europa, (1) Dr. Lushington said, page 629:—
“Inevitable accident is where one vessel, doing a
lawful act, without any intention of harm, and using
proper. precaution to prevent danger," unfortunately
happens to run into another "vessel...... But it
should be observed, that the caution which the law
" requires is not the utmost caution that can be used.
" -The law is not so extravagant as to require that a man
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~should possess that mind, and understanding, and .

(1) 14 Jurist 627, .



1920

St

ULsic
TREMBLAY

0.
Hyman

Reasons for
Judgment

EXCHEQUER COURT REPORTS. [ Vou. XX.

firmness of purpose, as alwairs to do what is right to

the very letter. If it were so, it is obvious that the

demands of the law would be seldom satisfied. It is

sufficient that a reasonable precaution be taken, such

as is usual and ordinary in similar cases—such as has -
been found, by long experience, in the ordinary course

of things, to answer the end—the end being the safety

of life and property.”

In The Thomas Powell vs. The Cuba, (2) Dr. Lushing-
ton said:—

““To constitute an inevitable accident it was neces-
sary that the occurrence should have taken place in
such a manner as not to have been capable of being
prevented by ordinary skill and ordinary diligence.
We were not to expect extraordinary skill or extra-
ordinary diligence, but that degree of skill and that
degree of diligence which is generally to be found in
persons who discharge their duty.”

In The Uhla, (3) Dr. Lushington said:—

“Inevitable accident is that which a party charged
with an offence could not possibly prevent by the
exercise of ordinary care, caution and maritime skill.
It is not enough to show that the accident could not be
prevented by the party at the very moment it occurred,
but the question is, what previous measures have been
adopted to render the ocecurrence of it less probable.

The caution which the law requires is not the utmost
that can be used, it is sufficient that it be reasonable,
such as is usual in ordinary and similar cases, such as
has been found by long experience in the ordinary -
course of things to answer the end, that end being the
safety of life and property. I bring your attention

@) 14 L. T. (N.S.) 603. (3) 19 L.T. (N.8.) 80(See 90).

B “
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particularly to that, because Wé must not éxpect in
vessels of this kind, that the master and crew should be
possessed “of such ordinary nautical skill that they

would be quite certain to discover that which is the-

~ best to be done, and quite certain to do it; but we look
at the general degree of intelligence, care, and caution
which we find in people of the same description.”

In the Marpesia, (4) Sir James Covile, in rendering
the judgment of the Privy Council, said at page
219:—

“In the case of the Boling (5) Dr. Lushington
says:—With regard to inevitable accident, the onus
lies on those who bring a complaint against a Vessel,
. an(_l whg) seek to be indemnified,—on them is the onus of
proving that the blame does attach upon the Vessel
proceeded against; the onus of proving inevitable
accident does not necessarily attach to that Vessel;
it is only necessary when you show a prima facie case of
negligence and want of due seamanship. _

“Again in the case of The Virgil,. (6) the same
learned Judge gives the definition of inevitable acci-
 dent:—“In my apprehension, an inevitable accident
in point of law is this: viz., that which the party
charged with the offence could not possibly prevent by
the exercise of ordinary care, caution and maritime
skil. If a’ Vessel charged with having occasioned a
collision should be sailing at the rate of eight or nine
, miles an hour, when she ought to have proceeded only
at the speed of three or four, it will be no valid excuse
for the Master to aver that he could not prevent the
accident at the moment it occurred, if he could have
used measures of precaution that would have rendered
the accident less probable.” '

(4) L.R. 4, P.C. 212, (5) 3 Note of Cases, p. 208, at p. 210.
(6) 2 Wm. Rob., p. 201, at p. 205.

1020
—

ULric
TREMBLAY
2.
Hyumaw

Reasons fsr
Judgment




10

1920
—_—

ULrtc
TREMBLAY

v.
Hyman

Reasons for
Judgment

EXCHEQUER COURT REPORTS. [VoL. XX.

‘“Here we have to satisfy ourselves that something
was done or omitted to be done, which a person exer-
cising ordinary care, caution and maritime gkill, in the
circumstances, either would not have done or would

. not have left undone, as the case may be.”

In The William Lindsay (7) Sir Montague E. Smith,

"in delivering the judgment of the Judicial Commlttee,

said at page 343.—

““The master is bound to take all reasonable pre-
cautions to prevent his ship doing damage to others.
It would be going too far to hold his owners to be re-
sponsible, because he may have omitted some possible
precaution which the event suggests he might have
resorted to. The true rule is that he must take all
such precautions as a man of ordinary prudence and
skill, exercising reasonable foresight, would use to.
avert danger in the circumstances in Whlch he may
happen to be placed.”

In The Merchant Prince (8) in the Court of Appeal,
Lord Esher, M.R., at page 187 said:—

“The great object of the judges in Aamiralty cases
has been to lay down a plain rule to govern the acts of
sallors, and not to have niceties of argument about
what they are to do; and the plain rule which they have
laid down is this:—Unless you can get rid of it, it is
negligence proved against you that you have run into a
ship at anchor. The only way for a man to get rid of
that which circumstances prove against him as’
negligence is to show that it occurred by an accident
which was inevitable by him, that is an accident the
cause of which was such that he could not by any

.act of his have avoided its results. He can only get

(7) LR. 5, P.C. 338.
© (8) 1892, P.D. 179.
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rid of that proof against him by showing inevitable
accident, that is by showmg that the cause of the
collision was a cause not produced by him, but a cause
the result of which he could not avoid. Imevitable

means unavoidable. TUnavoidable means unavoidable

by him,"”

Fry, L. J., p. 189, said:—

“The burden rests on the defendants to show
inevitable accident. To. sustain that the defendants
must do one or other of two things. They must either
show what was the cause of the accident, and show
that the result. of that cause was inevitable; or they
must show all the possible causes, one or other of which
produced the effect, and must further.show with regard
to every one of these possible causes that the result
could not have been avoided. TUnless they do one or
. other of these two things, it does not appear to me that
they have shown inevitable accident.”

‘“An inevitable accident is, according to the law laid
down in the case of The Marpesia, Law Rep. 4, P.C.
212, that which cannot be avoided by the exercise of
ordinary care and caution and maritime skill.”

" The Merchant Prince is now regarded as the leading
English case on the defence of inevitable accident and
has been followed in a number of cases in the Canadian
Courts, some of which are referred to in Mayers
Admiralty Law and Practice, pp. 146-147.

The immediate cause of the collision in this case
was the irresistible force of the wind and waves, which
caused the moorings of the schooner to break, and the
‘question which the Court has to decide ts:—Did.the
Master of the schooner, on the evening preceding,
exercise ordinary care, caution and maritime skill
when he tied up his schooner for the night with five
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20 lines and an anchor leading forward and four lines
Uirle

Tamsay leading aft? Were these all the reasonable and ordinary
Hraan  Precautions, in the circumstances of the case, which a
Reasons for Master in his position and for a vessel of the size of the
Judgment  Jefendants’ schooner, should have taken to ensure her
safety? . As has been said by Dr. Lushington, the
caution which the law requires is not the utmost cau-

tion which can be used, and we are not to expect
extraordinary skill, but it is suffictent if the caution and

skill bs reasonable and such as is usual in ordinary and

similar cases. The schooner was a small vessel of 99

tons and we must not expect in vessels of that kind

that the Master and crew should be possessed of such
extraordinary nautical skill that they would be quite

certain to discover and apply what was the very best

thing to be done. The true rule as laid down by the

Privy Council is, that the Master must take all such
precautions as a man of ordinary prudence and skill
exercising reasonable foresight would use to avert

danger in the circumstances in which he may happen

to be placed, and his owners are not to be held respons-

ible for what cannot be avoided by the exercise of
ordinary care, caution and maritime skill. Until late

in the afternoon before the accident the schooner was
moored by the anchor and two lines leading forward

and one line leading aft. These lines were five inches

in circumference and about one inch and a half in
diameter. . When the additional lines were put out

there were five lines and the anchor leading forward

and four lines leading aft. The large lines, one forward

and one aft, had a circumference of seven and three-
quarter inches. A reference to standard Engineering

Works of authors of repute show that the breaking

strain of the large lines was about twenty tons each,
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and the small lines nine or ten tons each, Wluch shows
that there must have been a tremendous strain on the
forward lines before they broke. The schooner was
~moored on the lee side of the wharf and the moorings
only gave way when the tidal wave came over wharf
and schooner to a depth of eight or ten feet. It'is
established that the storm was one of the worst on the
Gaspé coast during the last twenty-five years. Other
shipping at Fox River was driven ashore by the force of
- thestorm. When the forward moorings of the schooner
parted, it is proved that it was quite impossible for the
schooner to have put to sea. The Master of the
plaintiffs’ barge had chosen the berth where he tied up

immediately astern of the schooner -and so close to the

schooner that as soon as the schooner broke loose its
boom came into contact with the barge. Plaintiffs’
Counsel suggested that another small anchor on board
the schooner should have been used. That anchor
was ready for use and had a chain attached to it, but
it was quite impracticable to make any effective use of
it when the moorings parted. The plaintifis also sug-
gested that another cable which the schooner had on
board should have been put out when the weather got
dirty, but it is proved that in the course of the mght
when the sea became boisterous and the wind high,
it was impossible for any one 'to go-on the wharf and

attach any addltlonal ropes or cables to the posts on the
wharf.

This case has to be considered in the light of the

situation on the evening before the accident, and I

_ have to decide if the Master of the schooner omitted

to do something which a person exercising ordinary

care, caution and maritime skill in the circumstances
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the tidal wave which came on some hours later could
not have been foreseen. The additional moorings
in the circumstances were more than sufficient under
ordinary circumstances, they were in fact extraordinary
precautions against the possibility of a bad night, but
unfortunately proved insufficient and, in my opinion,

~ 1t would be going too far to hold the owners responsible

because the Master had not the extraordinary foresight
to take some additional measures which would have
withstood the force of the wind and sea in one of the
worst storms ever known on the coast.

Evidence was adduced at the trial as to the extent of
the damages to the plaintiffs’ barge and the cost of the
repairs, but I refrain from expressing any opinion in
this phase of the case, as I have come to the conclusion
that reasonable care, caution and maritime skill were
exercised and did not and could not prevent the
accident, and that the defence of 1nev1table accident
has been fully established.

In these circumstances, the loss must rest where it
has fallen, and there will be judgment dismissing the

action with costs.
Judgment accordingly.

Solicitors for plaintiffs: Pentland, Gravel & Thomson.
Solicitors for defendants: Greenshields, Greenshields,
Languedoc & Parkins.
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In T.HE Marrer oF AN APPLICA-|
TION OF THE POINTE AUX
TREMBLES TERMINAL RAIL--

No. 3474 - AND

THE CANADIAN NORTHERN |
QUEBEC RAILWAY CO., AND
THE CANADIAN NATIONAL
RAILWAYS. ...ooveiiieennns j

IN THE MATTER OF AN APPLICA- |
TION OF THE POINTE AUX
TREMBLES TERMINAL RAIL-

No. 3493 . AND

THE CANADIAN NORTHERN
QUEBEC RAILWAY CO., AND
THE CANADIAN NATIONAL
RAILWAYS................... .

Railway Act, 9-10 GQeo. V, ch, 68, s. 49—Board of Railway «Commis-

PLAINTIFF;

L DEFENDANTS.

| PLAINTIFF;

DEFENDANTS.

15

May 11th °
1920 -

St
No. 3474
No. 3493

sioners, Orders of—Exchequer Court—Sequestratwn—Servwe of
Order—Rule 70 Exchequer Court Rules—Drastic Process.

1, Where an order of the Boa.rd of Railway Comumissioners has been -
made an order of this Court under section 49 of the Railway Act, .
the Judge of the Court has no power to modify, vary, review or-

supplement the same.

2. Before a writ of Seciuéstratioil can issue in'ﬁroceedings in contempt

for disobedience of an order of the Board of Railway Commis-
pioners which has been made an order of this Court, it should
appear that the disobedience of the same has been wilful and'

_ mtentlonal
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1920 3, Where any such order authorizes one railway to operate its trains

POINTE AUX across the tracks of another, and where the train which is refused
%'i:ﬁ&hﬁs a crossing is not a train of the said company (in the present case it

consisted of an engine and crew of the Harbour Commissioners of

Ramwway .

o~ Montreal drawing cars of another company) such refusal cannot be
c Anf:: AN said to be a refusal to comply with the above mentioned order so
N(cénmmnN a8 to render them liable to contempt.

UEBEC

RanwayCo.) 4, The Order for a Writ of Sequestration against & corporation will

6?; Am only be granted when the requirements of the practice have been
N ATIONAL strictly observed.
RamLwavys,

(Nos.3474  THIS is an application by the Pointe aux Trembles

and 3483).  Terminal Railway Company for a writ of Sequestration

S e ™ against the defendants for an alleged contempt of
" court by them.

On the 3rd day of April, 1914, the plaintiff company
obtained an order from the Board of Railway Com-
missioners for Canada authorizing them to construct
its lines and tracks aecross the lines and tracks of the
defendant companies at a certain point on a plan filed,
subject to certain conditions as to control by deféndant

" companies and as to costs of maintenance, etc.

On the 1st day of April, 1920, the plaintiff obtained
a further order reading as follows: “IT 1s ORDERED
that the Pointe aux Trembles Terminal Railway Com-
pany and the Canadian National Railways be, and
they are hereby authorized to operate their trains over
the said crossing without their first being brought to
a stop.”

These orders were filed with the Registrar of the
Exchequer Court of Canada under article 49 of the
Railway. Act and being entered of record thereby
became an order of the court.

On the 7th May, application was made by the plain-
tiff company before this court asking for the issue of a
writ of Sequestration against the defendant companies
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on the ground tha.t they had refused to allow the 1920°
Pointe AUx

plaintiff to cross its tracks and this in contempt of the “Thpmores
-orders of the Railway Commissioners, above referred TERMINAL

to. .This was enlarged to' 11th May at request of " ‘rnp.

~ defendants. - N ﬁg::;;;i
The matter then came up for hearlng on’the 11th Rﬁﬁfﬁ"& )"
. May before the Honourable Mr. Justice Audette.  4imomn -
Mr. Arthur Holden, K.C., an,d E. F. Newcombe for Aaziomsy
plaintiff. ’ _ ' (Nos, 3474
and 3493). |

George F. M acdonnell for the defendants o
. Statement of

The affidavits filed, in substance state—inter CooR*
alia—that on the 17th day of April, 1920, an éngine of .
.the Harbour Commissioners in. charge of an engineer
and crew of the Harbour Commissioners and drawing
" three empty cars belongmg to the Canadlan Pacific
Railway Company had proceeded from the Harbour
. Commissioners’ tracks along the tracks of the Company
plaintiff, as far as the crossing above referred to, where
the man in charge of the diamond refused to set the
derail so as to allow the train to proceed along pla.mtlff’ '
track, and they were forced to return. -

~ Arthur Holden, K.C., after reciting the. orders above - *
 referred to, asked for the issue of the writ of Sequestra- .
~ tion on the ground that the defendants had - made:
themselves liable for contempt of court in refusing to
~obey said orders. He admitted that the train referred
~ to in the affidavits and which was refused passage,
consisted of an engine of the Harbour Commissioners "
manned by the employees of the Harbour Commis-
sioners _and three cars belonging to the Canadian
Pacific Railway.- That the plaintiff had no enginés,
and as far as he knew, no rolhng stock of its own, but-
had an agreement with the Harbour Commissioners ]

whereby they leased engmes and. crew. from the Har- |
4597—2,
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1920 . . )
—~~" bour Commissioners to bring cars of the other railways
PoiNTE AUX

Taguaws over their tracks, to the Cement Company’s works.
ERMINAL

Rawar  The plaintiff company was incorporated practically

.

CatmE by the Cement Company for its benefit, to connect

I‘{OQRTHEBN their works with the Harbour.
TUEBEC

RanwavCo)  Are Macdonnell: The defendants have never wilfully

CANADIAN

Mamoesy - refused to comply with the order of the Board of Rail-

Rawwavs. way Commissioners. The order at best only autho-

(Now. 347 rizes the plaintiff Railway Company to cross, and the
Statement of TS and the train in question in this case were not
Gounsel  the property of the plaintiff nor operated by it. More-
over, the order is not specific, but merely permissive,

and there is nothing therein to show the plamtlff’

right to use a leased train.

The facts are stated in the reasons for judgment.

_AupETTE J. this (11th May, 1920,) delivered judg-
ment.

I find, after hearing Counsel and taking cognizance
of the affidavits filed of record, it is unnecessary for me
to ask for further evidence in order to arrive at a con-
clusion, as to how the matter should be disposed of.
It will serve no purpose to delay my decision.

As appears by the notice filed of record, this is an

- application by the Pointe aux Trembles Terminal Ry.
" Co., for the issue of a writ of Sequestration against the
Caandian Northern Quebec Railway Company, and (as
mentioned in the notice of such application) in so far
as may be necessary to that end, against also the
Canadian National Railways, in as much as the said
two last mentioned railway Companies are alleged
to have refused, failed and neglected to obey the orders
of the Board of Railway Commissioners for Canada
Nos. 21592 and 29513 of the 3rd of April, 1914, and
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4

1st April, 1920, which liave been made orders of this 22
Court. The charge made against the said two rail- Pomvre aUx
ways, is that, on the 17th April, 1920, they refused to %ﬂ;‘j‘v‘;’f&"
permit the Pointe aux Trembles Terminal Railway g
Company and its officers and servants to use its crossing ANAPIAN

over the Canadian Northern Quebec Railway and pre-g ;9;23%0,,

vented them from doing so, in direct contempt and Jinasmw

contravention of the said orders of the Railway Board BATIONAL

The application is for the issue of a writ of.Seques- @;’;3474
tration, a very drastic process that can issue only and 3463)..
upon circumstances strictissimi juris, and when the Seygns for
disobedience of the judgment or order of the Court has '
been wilful and intentional. | _

In the case in question the service of these notices
and orders upon-the defendants has not been made
in the manner required- by the Rules of this Court.
The first order of the Railway Commissiohex; (3rd
April, 1914) has been made against the Canadian
Northern Quebec Railway Company while the second
order (1st April, 1920), has been made against the
Canadian Natlonal Railways, pursuant to 9-10 Geo
5, ch. 13.

Before any such writ can issue to enforce obedlence,‘
the order or judgment in question must be personally
served upon the director or such' other responsible
officer of the company, as requlred by the rules of this
Court Nos. 70 and 245 and as further set forth in The
Annual Practice, 1920, p. 738. (See McKeown v. Joint
Stock Institute, Ltd. (1). S '

There is before me no evidence of a wilful and
intentional disobedience of these orders, the conflict, to
. the contrary, seems to result from some local friction
that some common sense and business acumen could
easily overcome.

(1) (1899) 1 Ch. 671.
4507—24
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Sitting here and dispensing justice in this Court my
powers are limited by the Statute, The Railway Act
in respect of such orders which are made orders of this
Court. I am not in the position of a judge sitting in
proceeding in contempt where there has been disobe-
dience to his orders made under full knowledge of all
the circumstances of the case. I cannot go behind the
orders of the Railway Commission, cannot modify,
review, vary or supplement these orders. I am not
seized of the facts or evidence which determined the
making of the orders. It is obviously a question for
the Railway Commission to say how these orders are to be
understood. To say whether the Terminal Company
can, under its charter and under the orders made by
the Board, enter into contract with all the railways in
the land, a contract to which the Canadian National
Railways would not be a party—and allow them under
the leave given to go over the railway crossing in ques-
tion.

The best and only remedy the Terminal Railway
can now have is from the Railway Board under the
provisions of the Raillway Act, section 33, subsection
3 of section 34 and subsection 5 of section 49. The
Railway Board can make these orders clear and
supplement them, if necessary, by enforcing them by a
daily penalty or such other money penalty they see
fit and if the defendant companies set these orders at
defiance, a writ of Sequestration might then issue for
the payment of such moneys. I feel sure that when the
matter is brought again before the Railway Board
that some acceptable remedy, acceptable to all parties
concerned, will be arrived at. In the meantime I
am unable to issue a writ of Sequestration which would
have the effect of stopping service on the Government
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Railways, a public ut1l1ty of great importance, whereby lo2

the public at large would be the sufferers. This Fpuym sux

trouble, resulting from a trifling local friction must be TFRMINA

. RAI!-WAY
+ adjusted in another manmer. - Ton

« CANADIAN-

Moreover, the small train which is alleged to have N‘Eg‘?ﬁ%" _

been stopped appears to be a train belonging to and Rf;;"ef,fngo)

manned by the crew of a company other than the GQavsuw
Pointe aux Trembles Railway Company. - - Ramwavs,

(Nos. 3474
Under these circumstances, my order w111 be to take and 3403).

nothing by this application, which stands dismissed Beagens for
Wlth costs, Whlch are hereby fixed at the sum of $50.

Judgment accordmgly '.

Solicitors for plafntiﬂ : Meredith, Holden, Hague,
\ Shaughnessy & Heward.

Solicitor for defendant: Geo. F. Macdonnell.
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In THE MATTER OF THE PETITION OF
- RigeT or BESSIE M. ANDER- SUPPLIANT;

HIS MAJESTY THE KING........ RESPONDENT.

Railways—Breach of Statutory duly—Responsibility—Quantum of
Damages—Res ipsa loquitur. .

Held: that where there was no witness of the accident, but in going
over the crossing one of the crew of the locomotive felt the pilot
scraping over something, and going back, found an u ibrella
with ribs broken and near thereto, about four feet from the crossing,
the body of the deceased on the track, one arm and one leg on the
outside of the rails and the body between the rails, a few feet from
the crossing, towards which he was seen going, just a moment
before, with an umbrella; and having apparently been struck at
the crossing and dragged; and, moreover, where the witnesses
heard at trial took it for granted that he had been so killed by the
said locomotive, the court, considering the probabilities and draw-
ing necessary inference from the circumstances related in evidence,
will find the deceased-was killed at the crossing by the locomotive.
(Res ipsa logqurtur).

2. The crew of the locomotive, having failed to display either a head-
light or two white lights on the rear of the engine, in breach of
their statutory duties, and moreover having neglected to place a
man on each side of the tender with a light, to warn people, which
omissions were the proximate ecause of the accident, the respondent
will be held responsible for damages due to the death of & man so
killed at a crossing.

3. That the life of a man of 78 years of age, who had retired 29 years
before, but still attended to chores about the house, administered,
his home and land, attended to the garden and made all earpen-
ters’ and plumbers’ repairs in the house, was not without real
value to his family; and as according to mortality tables, the
victim had an expectation of life of from § to 7 years more, the
Court declared suppliant entitled to recover the sum of $2,000.

PETITION OF RIGHT to recover the sum of $10,000
damages alleged to have been suffered by reason of the
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premature death of her husband by being struck by a 2%

- shunting engine of the Intercolonial Railway, and Posem M.
killed at a railway crossing. : Tz Kivg.
Mr. J. Friel, K.C., counsel for. supphant . Statement of

Mr. R. Trites, counsel for the respondent

The facts are stated in the reasons for judgment.

A

AUDE'ITE J., now (thls 15th June, 1920) delivered
judgment. \

The suppliant, by her Petition of Right, seeks, both
for herself and on behalf of her two minor children, =’
to recover the sum of $10,000 damages, alleged to .
arise out of the death of her husband, the result. of an
accident on the Intercolonial Rallway

. At about 5.30 o'clock, p.m., on the night of the

,‘3lst October, 1918, Captain Anderson went over to
the freight shed office, at Sackville, to see Mr. Harris,

-an old friend, a witness heard in the case, with the
object of finding out what was the best time to go to
Moncton to get in touch with one of the railway
engineers, as related at trial by Mr. Harris. He
remained at the latter’s office for 15 to 20 minutes, "
‘and when leaving Mr. Harris accompanied him out in .
the alleyway, and afterwards saw him pick up, inside
the building, an umbrella and a small parcel of 8 or
9 inches long by 5 1nches in diameter.

This is the last ever heard of Captain Anderson
until he is found dead on the crossing within com-
paratively a short time after lea.vmg the freight shed
building.

- A few mihutes after Captam Anderson’s departure
Mr. Harris was standmg in the clerk’s office, in the
freight shed building, looking out of the window, and

[
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192 . . C .
Y0 saw a locomotive passing from the direction of the
Brssie M. '

Anpersony  Station to the freight shed crossing,—the location of
Tas Kme, Which is shown on plan, Exhibit No. 1, filed herein.

Reasons for Now, from all accounts, this was a shunting engine
—  doing work in the railway yard, at Sackville,—extend-
ing east and west of the station. It is in evidence

that before the engine went over the crossing, fireman
Carter had tried to light, with six matches, he says

the headlight of the locomotive, and having failed

to do so, the engineer had decided to back over the
crossing in question to some place of shelter to light.

It was a very stormy night, blowing and raining
heavily. The wind was blowing quite hard. How-

ever, no attempts were made to light the side or tail

lights, at the rear end, on both sides of the tender.

While the locomotive was thus moving reversely,
brakeman Keswick was on the step at the western
side of the far end of the tender, facing Lorne Street.
He was holding on with one hand, and had a lamp in
the other, which he moved for a while, and was unable
to tell us with what hand he was holding; however,
he says he did not signal all the time, because his
hand could not stand it. And on this point, Engineer
Ison says Keswick signalled within a few feet of the
crossing, but not at the crossing.

Brakeman Hicks who was at the rear, on the pilot
of . the locomotive, with a lamp in his hand, when at
the crossing or thereabout, felt the pilot scraping over
something. He was then facing Lorne Street, and
turning around saw something which, on jumping off
and going back, he ascertained to be an umbrella, with
two ribs sticking out, and close by it was the body of
Captain Anderson lying, one leg and one arm on one
side of the rail and the body between the two rails—
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at about four feet from the crossing, as if the engine -

had struck him at the crossing and had dragged him
that distance. He then advised the crew' of the
locomotlve of the accident. :

Some of the w1tnesses testify the bell was: rmgmg,
and engineer Ison ‘says he blew the whistle before
starting, and being inside of 60 rods of the two crossings
contends one whistle was sufficient. However, brake-
man Hicks says he does not know that they whlstled
" before the erossing.

The accident hapbened somewhere -around 'teu_

minutes to six o ’clock in the evening, on a very stormy
mght the wind blowing very hard and with heavy
rain. Under the evidence which is somewhat con-
flicting on the subject, it must be found it was also
quite dark at the time of the acc1dent as testified to
by witness Hicks.

There was no witness of the accldent, but it was
taken for granted by the witnesses who spoke upon
the subject, that Captain Anderson had been killed
at the crossing, by the locométive—Res ipsa logui-
tur—Considering the balance of probabilities and
drawing the necessary inference from the ecircum-
stances related in the evidence, the court must come
to the conclusion that the decedsed was so killed at
the crossing by the locomotive in question.

Now, the locomotive, which was travelling at a
low rate of speed, at the time of the accident, was
travelling without her headlight and her two side
lights or tail lights at the rear,—the tail lights being
missing entirely, and with proof establishing that no
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attempt had even been made that mght to light them -

before going over the crossing.
The Rules and Regulations in force at the time of
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1920 the accident, respecting trains on the Canadian
Brsam M.

Anpersonw rOvernment railways, approved by the Governor-in-
Tax Kma. Council, were filed as Exhibit “A” herein.

Reasons for At page 7 of the booklet containing these rules we
—  find that the definition of a train covers the case of
an engine without cars,—and under rule 9, that night
signals are to be displayed from sunset to sunrise.
That, under rule 17, a headlight must be displayed at
the front of every train by night. And, under rule
18, that yard engines, (as in the present case), must
display the headlight to the front and rear by night; and
that when not provided with a headlight at the rear,
two white lights must be displayed, and that yard
engines will not display markers. And under con-
ditions not requiring display of markers, road engines
without cars will digplay a white light on the rear of
the tender by night.
Then, under rule 102, whenever an engine is moving
reversely in any city, town or village, a man must take
a position on the lender to warn persons standing on or
crossing the track of the railway of the approach of
such train or engine.
These rules and regulations which are made under
the provisions of section 49 of the Government Railway
Act, have, under section 54 thereof, the same force and
effect as if made by the statute itself, since it is there
said that they shall be taken and read as part of the
Act. . ,
In starting to travel over the crossing without his
headlight and tail lights, the engineer became guilty
of a breach of rules 9, 17 and 18.
There can be no doubt that there is good reason to
assume that if the strong headlight had been lighted,
the glare of that light could have been seen by the
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deceased but it is -obvious the acc1dent would not
., have happened if the engine 1had had proper tail
lights burning when they went over the crossing.
Being a yard engine, the locomotive should have
displayed a rear light by night when unot provided
" with a headlight at the rear, two white lights should
have been displayed, as required by rule 18. | |

There was no attempt made to ligﬂt the tail lights,—
the most important lights under the circumstances.
These side lamps, with which the locomotive was
_provided, could, as testified to, have been taken out

of their sockets, and very likely lighted in the cab

of the locomotive or in the shelter of the locomotive.
One brakeman with a lamp was placed on the side
step of the tender facing Lorne street. No one was on
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the corresponding side step, on the side next to the

freight shed, upon which side Captain Anderson was
travel]mg .

" Under rule 106, in all cases of doubt or uncertamty,
the safe course must be taken and no risks run. Ob-
‘viously, the crew of the locomotive assumed a greaf
and unnecessary risk in travelling without lights.

They should have placed the other brakeman on the

other side of the tender with a lamp in hand. In that

position, he would either have been seen by the deceased
before taking the crossing, or the brakeman himself
would have seeh the Captain and warned him -and
thereby, in both hypothesis, the accident would have
“been avoided. : ‘

If the”hearing of the deceased was not the very
best, we are told his eyesight was good. And if the

wind was blowing with such violence, and the rain -

falling so heavily on that oceasion, is it unreasonable

to.assume. that a person of ordinary hearing could

/
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192 very well not hear a locomotive travelling at the slow

Ao speed of 4 to 5 miles an hour? Had the lights been on,
Tax Kmve, they would very likely have been seen.
Reasons for  Therefore, I find that the crew was under the eircum-
—  stances, guilty of a breach of their statutory duties as
above defined and set forth.

On the question of quantum, the evidence is con-
spicuously meagre. We have evidence showing that
the Captain was 78 years old, that he retired 29 years
ago. He had a nice home of about 3 acres with
buildings, valued at about $2,500. He kept five cows
and two horses, and had 48 acres of marsh land, and
$500 of stock in a paper box company; but there is no
evidence as to his yearly revenue or income. How-
ever, his services were not without real value. He
attended to the chores, administered his home and
lands, and he attended to his garden, and made all
carpenter’s, plumber’s and painter’s repairs to his
home.

All of his estate has passed to his wife and children
at his death. By the accelerated enjoyment of the-
estate by the suppliant and her children, it is a question
whether this share in the expenses of the deceased is
not made up by his work, management and services
generally. It would, however, be improper for the
purpose of ascertaining the pecuniary loss to treat the
widow and the children as benefiting by -the Captain’s
premature death. '

Under some of the tables of mortality, the expecta-~
tion of life, at the age of 78, is between 5 and 7 years.

Now in assessing damages in a case of this kind,
while it-is obviously impossible to arrive at any sum
with mathematical accuracy, several elements must be
taken into consideration and one must strive to com-
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pensa.te for the loss to make good the pecuniary beneﬁt
which might rea.sonably have been expected had the
accident not taken place. In domg 's0 one must
necessarily take into account the age of the deceased

at the time of the accident, his state of health, his
expectation of life, his income, not overlooking on the
other hand the several contingencies to which every
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person is subjected, such as being subject to illness, )

involving expense and care. All of these circum-
stances must be taken into account.

It is alleged by the statement in:defence the Crown
tendered $1,500 without admitting liability. How-
ever, the suppliant did not reply to that -allegation,
and under rule 114 that allegation is deemed denied
and put in issue. . No evidence was offered upon this
point. This fact is mentioned because it is with
great hesitation I have come to the conclusion that
$1,500 was not a reasonable offer under the circum-
stances. However, taking all the; circumstances into
consideration, I hereby fix the compensation at the
sum of two thousand dollars. :

" There will be judgment declaring that the suppliant
and her children are entitled to recover from the
respondent the sum of two thousand dollars—and
with costs. '

2

J udgznent accordingly.
Solicitors for suppliant: Messrs. Friel and Clark.

Solicitors for respondent: Messrs. Trites and Richards. .
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HIS MAJESTY THE KING........ PLAINTIFF;

AND

GEORGE W. BROWN anp JAMES

W. BROWN, BoTH OF REGINA, IN {DEFENDANTS.
THE PROVINCE OF SASKATCHEWAN . .

AND

By OrpER OF REVIVOR,
BETWEEN

HIS MAJESTY THE KING........ PLAINTIFF;

AND

TrE Samp JAMES W. BROWN Anp

THE NATIONAL TRUST COM-

PANY, LIMITED, EXECUTORS OF

THE LATE GEORGE W. BROWN, WHO | DEFENDANTS.
DErarTED THIS LiFE SINCE THE '
INSTITUTION OF THE PRESENT SUIT.

Ezpropriation—Leasehold—Damages due to abandonmeni—Mitigation

of damage&-—-Burden. of Proof.

On the 14th of October, 1918, the Crown expropﬁated a certain lease-

hold term of 18 months for the purpose of temporary military
barracks in Regina, and offered to pay $1,200 a month, plus taxes,
insurance, light and heat for the same. Subsequently, on the
31st of October, 1919, it filed an abandonment of the leasehoid in
question in the Land Titles office.

Held: That the offer of the Crown, $1,200 per month for the time up to

date of abandonment was sufficient; but in as' much as by the
abandonment the Crown practically took the position of one
repudiating a contract, the lessors would also be entitled to dama-
ges resulting from the loss of rent from date of cancellation to end
of term, either by reason of such repudiation of contract, or under
the provisions of sub-sec. 4 of sec. 23 of the Exchequer Court Act.

2, That the burden of proof, in respect of the mitigation of the damages

flowing from the abandonment by the Crown in expropriation
proceedings, is upon the Crown.
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INFORMATION by the Attorney General of Canada 1%
to have certain leasehold interest in land described T=®<™¢

expropmated and valued | . Elfggﬁzmgn
' James W,
Mr. F. W. Turnbull, counsel for plaintifi. Al S
Mr. G. H. Barr, K.C., and C. J. Johnston counsel 5. w.
for defendants ' - _ gt
. . NATIONAL
The facts are stated in the reasons for Judgment' - Co%;‘f;fz
PA :
AUDETTE, J now (this 5th July, 1920) dehvered {Exucurora
]udgment Gﬁ%ﬁfﬂ‘)’vul

This is an Information exhibited by the Attorney Reasons for
General of Canada, whereby a certain leasehold fudgment.
interest in the lands hereinafter deseribed and belong-
ing to the defendants were taken and exprbpriat_ed, by -
the Crown, for the purposes of a temporary military
barracks, at Regina, province of Saskatchewan, by
depositing a plan and description of such leasehold
term in the Land Titles Office for the Assiniboia Land -
Registration District, in the province of Saskatchewan.
This leasehold interest ‘is deseribed as follows: “A
leasehold term of eighteen months, commencing on
the 14th day of October, 1918, of, in and to the follow-
ing lands, namely :—Lots numbered five (5) to ten (10)
inclusive, in block three hundred and seventy-two
- (372) in the city of Regina, in the province of Sas-'
.katchewan, according to a plan of record in the Land -
Titles Office for Assiniboia Land Registration District
as Old No. 33, as well as of all butldings situate thereon.”

The Crown, by the Information, offers for said
leasehold interest in the said land and buildings, the’
sum of $1,200 per month net, paying taxes, insurance,
light and heat, and the defendants by their statement
of defence claim the sum of $2,500 per month net to
them, in addition to taxes, insurance, light and heat.’
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L Now, counsel at bar on behalf of the plaintiff, at the
Tae KNG hening of the case, filed an undertaking to abandon,
pronax W. under the provisions of section 23 of the Expropriation

poums W. . Act, the expropriation of the leasehold in question in

Tms KINa this case, and in ecompliance thereto, such an abandon-
Javes W. ment was filed in the Land and Titles Office for the
awp THE - Assiniboia Land Registration on the 3lst October,
TrusT
CoMPANY, 1919.
L.

(Execurors 'The controversy therefore becomes twofold. First,
OF THE LaATE

Groraz W. in respect to the fixing of the monthly rent payable by

RZ‘;::—:N; the Crown from the date of the expropriation to the
Judgment. 31st October, 1919, and secondly, the fixing of the
compensation for the damages resulting from the
abandonment under the provisions of sub-sec. 4 of

sec. 23, of the Expropriation Act.

In respect of the rent that should be paid for the
time that the Crown occupied the premises, a deal of
evidence has been adduced on both sides, with the
usual conflicting character as is met with in expro-
priation cases.

The evidence on behalf of the owners may be sum-
marized in the following manner: Witness Linton
values the property at $300,000, and the monthly
rental at $2,800. Witness McCarthy values the
property, in the fall of 1918, at $240,000 to $250,000,

- and contends he should get 8 per cent. net on that
amount for rent. He is of opinion that the parties
who built the Sherwood block were not justified in
building it; it is too expensive a building for that
locality, and it was a mistake. Witness Lecky, values
the property at $350,000, and says the owners should
get 8 per cent. net per month; but that there was no
market for that price in October. 1918, and that in
October, 1918, the property should command a rent of
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$2,200 to $2,300 per month. Witness Darke values 12 =
the property at $250,000 in October, 1918, and the =2 Xw¢

v.

rent at $1,700 per month—with respect to the a,b‘a,ndon- ]g',fg‘,‘:‘,ﬁf -

‘ment, the plaintiff should pay half the rent since the.gimes V.
cancellation of the lease, and take care of the carrying T=® K™
charges. Witness Delai fixes the rpntal at $2,810 Iaegs W. ¢

Brown

- ‘ AND TaHE
monthly \ ~ « NATIONAL

On behalf of the Crown, witness McAra places the cofﬁsgr

value of the rent at $1,200 net, monthly, in the fall of (Exncumns
1918. Witness Gibsone considers that a fair rental in Coomss W
~ the fall of 1918 would be $1,000 to $1,200, and values "™
the property at $225,000, which at 6 per cent. would Seatment,
give $1,350 net. Wituess Carmichael, an architect in
the employ of the plaintiff as Clerk of Works since

~ Jirie, 1919, and before that date assistant for a while,

says that he was asked to report on the Sherwood
Building in September, 1918. The Government was

offering $1,200. Mr. Brown did come down and was

asking $1,500. Mr. Mollard was at the head of the
Department when defendant Brown was asking $1,500.

He stated the Government would pay taxes from the

1st January to the 31st October, 1919.

The parties admitted that Mr. Mollard at one time
in the course of the negotiations, recommended a rent
of $1,475, but that was not accepted by the Depart—
ment at Ottawa.

However, the most cogent evidence and the most
* helping evidence in the circumstances is the fact that-
this property was previously occupied by the Crown
under a lease for a term of four moriths and eight days,
ending on the 30th April, 1918, and this lease, although
signed only by the owners of the Sherwood Stores,
contained the following provision: “That the lessor

will, on the request of the Minister, before the expira-
4597—3
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B2 tion of the term hereby created, grant to His Majesty

Tus K i '

HE NG g lease of the demised premises for the further term of
G w. irati i
BROWN AND « « « c« e vnnn- years from the expiration of the said

ax : .. :
praes W» term at the same rent, and containing the like coven-
Tee Kina

. ants, provisos and condition.” The monthly rent
Jaies W. payable under that lease was the sum of $1,346. The

anp THE o mount now offered by the Crown is the sum of $1,200

Conioer  per month net to the lessors, the Crown paying taxes,
(o ons insurance, light and heat. If it is considered, as

or o Lat= ostablished by the evidence, that the taxes for the year

BrowN.) 1919 amount to the sum of $4,374.65, and the insurance
R enommene without the sprinklers being kept in operation at
$2,000, these two amounts added together alone
represent the sum of $6,374.65, which added to the
$14,400 represented by the monthly rent for 12 monthsg
at $1,200, that will give a yearly rent of $20,774.65, as
compared with $16,152 for 12 months’ rent at $1,346,

under the lease above referred to.

It therefore results that the rent of $1,200 net per
month offered by the Crown, is a most fair and reason-
able one, under the circumstances. The owners of the
Sherwood Building having already during the same
year (191R), between the same parties, accepted a
rent of $1,346, looking after the carrying charges,
with the undertaking to continue the renting at the
same price for an unlimited number of years, I there-
fore, without any hesitation think that the amount
offered by the Crown of $1,200 per month net is most
reasonable, yielding to the owners of the building
placed at a value of $240,000, a net income of 6 per
cent. '

It appears from the evidence that the erection of
the building in the locality in question was a financial
mistake.
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‘Moreover, as appears by the affidavit of W. G. 192

Styles, the manager of the company, notwithstanding T‘m Kivg

his numerous and earnest efforts to rent the building g;::;;’,ﬂ,,

since the Crown has abandoned, he has been unable to zA¥ W. -

secure a tenant, as shown by the affidavit ﬁled herein Tue Kive

on the 14th day of May, 1920. - Ty
Coming now to the question of compensation arising ﬁﬁggfn

under the abandoument, the Crown practically takes cl(;ﬂgfrrm

the position of one repudiating a contract and there- (ExIézg?mns

OF THE Late . -

fore entitling the lessors to damages resulting from the "Grorer W.

loss of such rent from the date of cancellation, or under. *"°™""

‘the provisions of sub-sec. 4 of sec. 23 of the Expropna-’ 5‘:32‘;22&:’ :
tion Act, which reads as follows: -
“The fact of such abandonment or revesting shall be'
taken into account, in connection with all the other
- circumstances of the case, in” estimating or assessing
the amount to be paid to any person claiming com-

pensation for the land taken.”

Upon this branch of the case, the evidence is very
meagre, if any on the record that could satisfy one to
arrive at any just conclusion’ and none in that respect
was adduced on behalf of the Crown. o,

Is not the lessor, under the circumstances, entitled
to such damages as would have arisen from the non-
performance of the contract at the appointed time,
subject, however, to abatement in respect of any _
circumstances which may ha,ve had the effect of -
mitigating the loss? '

The onus probandi, in respect of mitigation of the
damages flowing from thé abandonment, is upon the
Crown - and not upon the defendants. Moreover,
under sub. sec. (¢) of sec. 26, of the Expropriation
Act, the plaintiff is bound by the Information to set

forth:
4507—34
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1620 ““(¢). The sums of money which the Crown is ready
Tae Kive ¢ pay to such persons respectively, in respect of any

2.

Smoram W. such estate, interest, charge, lien or encumbrance,”

prues W, and the Crown has made no offer in eounection with
Tre Kixé  the abandonment.
James W. With respect to the damages resulting from the

s Im8 - gbandonment, the Court at trial was unable to say

Trusr  whether the defendants would be able to rent their

CoMPANY

Lm.  premises before the expiration of the life of the lease.

(ExECUTORS

oe tae LA= Tt could not then comply with the provisions of sub-

Baow®).  gec. 4 of sec. 23 of the Expropriation Act which says
R s that: “The fact of such abandonment or revesting shall
" be taken into account, in connection with all the other
circumstances of the case, in estimating or assessing
the amount to be paid to any person claiming com-
penation for the land taken” and give judgment
fixing such compensation without proper evidence,
without being seized with all the facts and “all the,
circumstances of the case.”” By doing otherwise a

most egregious piece of justice would be done.

If such damages could be mitigated by circumstances
that would happen between the time of the trial and
the expiration of the 18 months, they would be
taken infto consideration before fixing the damages
and the Court would be justified in staying its hand.

The damages must be fixed once for all (). Further-
more, there is authority for the proposition that in-
fixing damages for loss of profits arising out of a
breach of contract, events which happened between
the date of the commission of the wrong and the time
of the trial must be taken into account in estimating
the loss for which one is entitled to compensation (%).

IDominion Coal Co., Limited, ». Dominion Iron and Steel Company,

Limited, (1919) A.C. 293,
2 Finlay v. Howard, 58, S.C.R., 516.
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Therefore, before -'proceeding to render. judgment, 1920
Tae KiNg

I called the parties before me and asked them whether ..

it would not be proper; under the circumstances, for Saomw s,
the Crown to undertake to pay to the defendant the phams o
amount of the rent offered by the Information at == 5we.
$1,200 per month net, up -to the 31st October, 1919, Jgg,;‘g’
the date of the abandonment, and ask the Court to 42,122
stay its hand until the expiration of the 18 months, - co2o"
when evidence by affidavit or viva voce might be g s e
adduced showing what has really taken place since the ¢ =8 LAt

31st October, 1919, the defendants, in the meantime, Brown).

———

showing diligence in their endeavour to rent or use Fuigment.

the premises in question. '"'"

This course having been accepted and an applica-
tion having been made, I refrained from giving judg-
ment at the time, allowing the matter to rest until the
.expiration of the lease, and proceeding now to render
judgment upon all the questions involved herein:

I hereby fix the compensation for the rent, up to the
31st October, 1919, at the sum of $1,200 per month,
the' Crown paying the carrying charges of ta,xes and
insurance. :
~ With respect to the unexplred portion of the rent
and the abandonment,—Counsel for the "defendants
~ having at bar declared his readiness to accept half of

the rent,—the Crown paying the carrying charges,—
stating that this course would be satisfactory, I shall
therefore direct that judgment be entered accordingly,
the defendant having in the meantime been paid and
accepted the sum of $3,000 in full settlement of all
repairs to the bulldmg during the time it was occupied .
by the Crown.

Therefore there will be judgment in favour of the
deferidants declaring them entitled to recover from the -
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1920 plaintiff the rental of $1,200 a month, together with all
Tem KNG charges mentioned in the Information such as taxes,

.

Soomar M. insurance and heat, between the 14th October, 1918,

Jaoms o 80d the 31st October, 1919,—and from the 3ist

BrowN AND

Trz Kive (hotober, 1919, to the end of the lease the sum of $600

Jauzs W. & month together with all cost of taxes and insurance.

Nom® The defendants being entitled to their full costs, after

NATIONAL

Conmier  taxation thereof.
Lo

Groner W, Solicitor for plaintiff: F. W. Turnbull.
Baow). Solicitors for defendants: Barr & Stewart.

Reasons for
Judgment
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QUEBEC ADMIRALTY DISTRICT.

BETWEEN ‘ - _
WILLIAM FRASER e i PLAINTIFF
..V
S8.AZTEC.......................DEFENDANT.

Adm'imlty La'w—Nd'u_tical Asseséors—E’xpert Evidence—Practice.

The case was appealed to the Exchequer Court from the decision of the

Deputy Local Judge in Admiralty. On the application of plain-:

tiff to have further witnesses heard, defendant ‘consenting, the
judgment was set aside and the case was sent back before the
Deputy Local Judge in Admiralty to allow plalnt.lff to put in such
evidence as he desired and as might be lega.l

On the re-hearing before a Judge, assisted by a Nautical Assessor’
photographs were filed to show the action of the water in the lock,
but no steamer was in the lock at the time and they do not show
what would have been the result had the Aztec or a similar steamer
been in the lock.

Held: That the evidence of experiments with water in the lock without
any steamer being in it is of the nature of expert evidence, and as
the Court had the assistance of a Nautical Assessor to advise upon
any matters requiring, nautical or other professional knowledge,
such expert evidence is inadmissible. “The Universe” (1) refer-
red to. :

2. That the new evidence, so far as it is expert evidence, being inad-
missible, and being advised by the Nautical Assessor that the
mooring ‘of the steamer was sufficient, there was nothing in the
evidence to make the court change its former judgment (2).

(1) 10 Can. Ex. E.R. 305; (2) See 19 Can. Ex. C.R. 454. -

THE CASE was tried in the first instance by the Hon-
ourable Mr. Justice Maclennan and was d1sm1ssed
the Judge finding that the accident was caused by

the gross negligence of the -lockmen and not of the
A ztec and her crew.

[}

This case haa been appealed to.the Exchequer Court. -

39
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July 6
Statement
of Fact.
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1920 The plaintiff then appealed from the Deputy Local
WirLiam

TFrasze  Judge to the Exchequer Court. At the opening
gs. azmc. Of the appeal, application was made by plaintiff to be
Statement of Permitted to examine further witnesses. The Hon-
Tac  ourable Mr. Justice Audette presiding, considered
that such evidence should be given before the Judge

who had heard the case in the first instance and there-

fore ordered that the case be remitted before the Local

Judge in Admiralty, and that the case be there re-

heard and the evidence which the parties desired to

adduce and which might be legal be there taken and

that judgment be rendered by the said judge upon

such new evidence as well as upon the evidence already

of record.

The new trial was held on the 22nd of J une, 1920, at
Montreal, before the Honourable Mr. Justice Mac-
lennan, assisted by a Nautical Assessor.

Mr. R. A. Pringle, K.C. and Mr. Aubrey H. Elder,
counsel for plaintiff;

Mr. A. R. Holden, K.C., counsel for defendant.

The facts -in connection with the “re-hearing are
stated in the reasons for judgment.

Maclennan, D. L. J. A., now (this 6th July, 1920)
delivered judgment.

This case was tried before me some time ago and,
on 16th March, 1920, (1) I dismissed the action with
costs, having come to the conclusion that the accident
was caused by the gross negligence of the lockmen,
and that the Aziec and her crew were not to blame. -

~ On a motion by plaintiff by way of appeal from that
judgment Mr. Justice Audette, of the Exchequer

(1) SBee 19 Can. Ex. C.R. 454,
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Court, on 26th May, 1920, ordered and adjudged that
said judgment be set aside and the case be re-heard
and thereafter determined by me upon the evidence
already adduced and upon such further evidence as
the parties might see fit to adduce, and that the costs
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Judgment.

of the ﬁrst trial or hearmg be reserved to be dealt w1th x

by ‘me.

The new trial was held on 22nd of June, 1920, when
I had the assistance of Captain Grey as Nautical
Assessor. The plaintiff adduced some new evidence
including a number of photographs of the lock where
the accident occurred. Among the photographs sev-
eral purport to show the water in the lock, some with
one, others with two valves in the upper gates open
and all valves in the lower gates open. No steamer
was in the lock at the time these photographs were
taken and they do not show what the result would
" have been had the steamer Aztec or a ship of similar
size been in the lock. The evidence of experiments
made with the water in the lock without any steamer
~ being in it is the nature of expert evidence, and as the
Court had the agsistance of a Nautical Assessor to

" advise upon any matters requiring- nautical or other -

- professional knowledge, such expert evidence is inad-
" missible. | | -
Two witnesses examined at the first trial, Albert
Durocher and Joseph H. McDonald, the two lockmen
in charge of the lock at the time of the accident, were
recalled by plaintiff and testified that after the Aziec
- entered the lock her bow was tied up to the-north wall
of the lock and her stern was to the south wall. The
Aztec had a right hand propeller and I am advised by

my assessor that its action as the steamer came to a

(2) The Universe, 10 Exchequer Court Reports, 305,
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standstill when it was tied up to the north wall would
be to cause the stern of the steamer to lie against the
north wall of the lock, and I am also advised that the
effect of water coming through one or more of the valves
in the upper gates and striking against the lower
gates would cause a back eddy, and the effect of such
eddy would be to keep the stern of the steamer against
the north wall. Neither Durocher nor Mec¢Donald,
at the first trial, said anything about the stern of the
steamer being against the south wall of the lock.
They were both examined at considerable length at
the first trial and neither of them suggested the steamer
was in the position in which they said she was when
examined at the new trial. I was not impressed at the
first trial with their credibility and I am not disposed
to accept their evidence at the new trial on this point.
At the first trial Heppel, a lockman, swore that the
steamer when i1t went astern hit the north gate. Leb-
eau, a witness called on behalf of the defendant, said it
hit the south leaf of the west gate. McDonald said

-she went into the centre of the upper gates, and

Durocher could not say if the steamer canted into the
middle of the lock or went straight astern. In my
opinion it is immaterial whether the steamer, when .
thrown astern, struck the centre, the north leaf or the
south leaf of the upper gates.

The new evidence, so far as it is expert evidence,
is inadmissible and I am advised by my Assessor that
the mooring of the steamer was sufficient. At the
first trial I came to the conclusion that the non-
observance of canal Rule 27 regarding the number of
lines to be used in making the steamer fast in the lock
did not contribute to the accident in any manner what-
soever, and there is nothing in the evidence adduced
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at the new trial to make me change my opinion on
that question.

Having regard therefore to the evidence adduced
at the first trial and the further evidence adduced by
plaintiff at the new frial, I have come to the coneclusion
that plaintifi’s action should be dismissed for the
reasons given in support of the first judgment.

The costs of the first judgment were given against
plaintiff and there is no reason why that order should
not be followed. Plaintiff’s action fails and there will
be judgment dismissing it with costs of both trials
against plaintiff. ~ |

Solicitors for plaintiff: Messrs. Davidson, Wainwright,
Alexander, Elder & Hackelt.

Sohcltors for S S. Asztec: Messrs. M eredzth Holden
H ague, Shaughnessy & Howard.
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BETWEEN

THE KING, oN THE INFORMATION OF|
THE ATTORNEY-GENERAL OF CAN-; PLAINTIFF;

AND

THE HALIFAX GRAVING DOCK :
COMPANY, LIMITED, a Boby
CORPORATE, THE RIGHT HONOUR-rDEFENDANTs.
ABLE THOMAS BARON DENMAN AND
SAMUEL MACKEW.

War Measures Act—Ezpropriation Act—Effect of Order in Council
amending same—Depreciation — Compensation — Statutory Dis-
cretion of Minister. :

By Order in Council of 27th May, 1918, the Minister was authorized to
offer defendants for their graving Dock, as it stood, the sum of
$1,100,000.00 and upon offer being refused, he was authorized
“pursuant to the powers conferred by the War Measures Act, 1914
and all other powers vested in your Excellency in Council,” to
take possession thereof and to expropriate the same, and have
compensation fixed by the Court.

By another Order in Council, the Expropriation Act was, during the war,
enlarged and amended under the provisions of the War Measures
Act permitting the expropriation of personal property ‘“as fully
and effectually to all intents and purposes as if the same were
specified as included in the definition of land under the said act.”
The lands herein were taken and expropriated by the Crown under
the authority of the Expropriation Act for reasons arising out of
the war, and pursuant to the powers conferred by the War Measures
Act. '

Held: That it is abundantly clear on the face of Order in Council enlarg-
ing and amending the Expropriation Act that the Governor in
Council only intended to augment the powers of the Crown in
respect of taking property for public purposes during the war,
under the War Measures Act, and had no intention to abridge
any of the powers of the Crown under the Expropriation Act.
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2. Where, in an Order in Counci! authorizing the expropriation of
property by the Crown, reference is made to the statute (War
Measures Act) in pursuance of which the same purports to be
made, and where the authority to act under said statute is ques-
tionable, but the same property could unquestionably be exprop-
riated and taken under the general Expropriation Act, the court
may treat the proceedings as taken under the latter act, notwith-
standmg the said reference in the Order in Council; especially, as

in this case, the Minister had, in the exercise of his statutory dis- -

cretion, decided to so expropriate and all the requlrements of the
_latter act have been complied with.”

Attorney General v3. De Keyser’s Royal Hotel, Ltd., (1920) 36 T.L.R.
600 referred to.
3. The Minister, under the statute, is the judge of the necessity or

propriety for the taking over of the property and the Court has
_no jurisdiction to sit on appeal from such decision.

4. That in assessing the compensation for property of a commerclal or
industrial company, due consideration must be given to the
history of the company from its origin, such as how orgahized, its
capital, how applied and financed, the business carried on, and ..
actual profits, and in the present case (a dock) its age and state of
repairs, and, while one must also examine the component parts of
the Dock, the good will of the industry as a going concern, the
compensation must be arrived at upon its commercial market
value as & whole at the date of the expropriation, without being

. obliged, in arriving at such value, to go into abstract calculations
with respect to each componeunt part, but taking all 6f them as a
whole after having weighed and considered each of ‘them. The

King. v. Kendall.(1); The King v. The Carslake Hotel (2); and’

King v. Manuel (3) referred to.

INFORMATION exhibited by the Attorney General
of Canada to have property expropriated by the Crown
valued and compensation fixed.

Mr. W. N. Tilley, K.C., T. 8. Rogers, K.C., and W.
L. Hall, K.C., Counsel for plaintiff.

- Mr. McInnes; K.C., L. A. Lovett, K.C‘., and J. S.
Roper, K.C., Counsel for defendants.

This case was tried before the Honourable Mr.
Justice Audette, at Halifax, on the 14th, T5th, 16th,

(1) 14 Can. Ex. CR. 71; " (1) 16 Can. Ex. C.R. 24;
(3) 15 Can. Ex. C.R. 381.
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120 17th, 18th, 19th, 20th, 22nd, 23rd and 24th days of
Toe Kive - June, 1920.
(1}1;%2:; Mr. Lovelt, K.C.—The Expropriation Act only
Dock  authorizes the taking of land and real property.

CoMPANY . :
Lonares  Under the War Measures Act an Order in Council was

Aréglaixexlt.of passed extending and enlarging the provisions of the
said act to cover and include personal property as
well; but this extension or enlargement was only
effective for the period during the war.

The authority for expropriation is set out in the
Information as follows:

(1) The lands herinafter described were taken, (a)
Under the provisions and authority of Section 3 of the
Expropriation Act, Cap. 143, R.S.C., 1906, by His
Majesty; (b) For reasons declared to arise out of the
present war; (c) Pursuant to powers conferred by
War Measures Act, 1914, and other powers vested in
His Majesty; (d) By depositing plan and description
under sections 8 and 9 of Expropriation Act of such

" lands in the Registry of Deeds.

It is further alleged that by the act of depositing
plan and description the said lands became and are
now vested in His Majesty. The lands described
and claimed to be so vested are only 7.5 acres.

Under Order in Council, March 17th, 1917, it is
provided that the Order in Council may contain a
description specifying or describing with. reasonable
certainty by reference or otherwise all the property
both real and personal intended to be taken and that
a certified copy if deposited in the Registry will vest
the lands in His Majesty or the description under the
Expropriation Act can describe the property real and
personal intended to be taken.

A certified copy of Order in Council P.C. 1291
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has not been deposited. No description of pg'opertj} 120
except land has been deposited in the Registry under ™= Kwe
Expropriation Act. , THE

HAmmx
IRAVING

The Exproprlatlon Act a,lone, or as extended by Dok
Order in Council, only suthorizes the taking of property -Luarep
real or personal subject to all the provisions thereof, ‘“%‘;{;;f;;{ of
one of which provisions is that the taking can only be ~——
for a public work. There has been no description of '
any public work for which the property is takén.
Consequently the Crown has not complied with the
provisions of the Expropriation Act and is driven to
- seek refuge under the War Measures Act and the Order
- in Council P.C. 1291 as the authority pursuant to
which the property is alleged to have been taken and

to have been vested in His Ma,]esty

Order in Council P.C. 1291 must therefore be shewn
to have been complied with by the Crown.- (See
Order in Council). .

The Crown claims it became vested with the lands
and property described in the information and
descriptions filed on June 7, 18 and on June 21st, 1918,
It produced as part. of 1ts case a tender of June 21-18
as follows:

“for the property of Deft. Company as descnbed
in amended plan and notice of expropriation filed
June 21 1918, in Registry, under provisions of the
Expropriation Act.”” The tender proceeds: “This
offer is made in accordance with the provisions of an
Order in Council of May 27th, 1918, and includes the
said property as it now stands (June 21st, 1918) with  _
repair- shops and plant connected therewith and all

work of reconstruction done up to the present (namely
June 21, 1918) ” :

-
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1920 The Crown was also permitted to reopen its case and
Tae K6 produced a letter dated May 25th, 1919, from Mr.
Tue  Carvell to defendant company stating he was autho-

Harrrax

Cravia  rized to expropriate Halifax Graving Dock and to offer

Gomrany  ¢1100,000.00. The Crown also put in a letter dated

Argument of May 28th, 1918, from S. M. Brookfield, Chairman

Counsel: - Defendant Company, to Mr. Carvell, declining the
offer.

It is submitted that no offer has been made in com-

pliance with the O. in C., P.C. 1921 :— :

(a) The tender was after deposit of expropriation

. plans and descriptions.

(b) Carvell’s letter was before any authority was
given, is manifestly incorrect in its statement as to his
authority, and it is not an offer for the property as it
stood at May 28, 1918, including all work of recon-
struction done up to that date.

(¢} No refusal by the Company of any offer has been
proved. There was never any offer as prescribed by
the Order in Council, made, and if there was such an
offer the Chairman of the Company -had no authority
to refuse or accept. The undertaking of a Company
cannot be disposed of without the resolutlon of its
shareholders.

There has therefore been no vesting of any property
of Defendant Company in His Majesty.

There is no allegation in the Information that the
property attempted to be taken was, in the judgment
of the Minister, necessary for the use, ete., of a public
work. On the contrary the Information is based
entirely on the taking of the property for reasons
declared to arise out of the present war,

It may be argued that the deposit of the plan and
description resulted in the land vesting in the Crown
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as mentmned in Section -8 of the Expropriation Act.
It is submitted that under the Expropriation Act it is
a matter going to jurisdiction that,—

(a) the taking of the property shall be for a
public work;

(b) the appropna,tlon of the property is in the judg-
ment of the Minister necessary for the use of a pubhc
Work and

(c) what is claimed to be the public work must. be
designated in clear terms.. The Information, if the

)
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taking of the land is contended to be under the Expro-
propriation Act, must be set out and the evidence . -

must prove these various facts before it can be held

~ that the plan and description deposn;ed vests any .,

property in His Ma;esty

In answer to any contention based on Section 11

of the Expropriation Aect, it is submitted that the

question of whether the plan and description have
been deposited by the direction and authority of the
Minister and the question as to whether the Minister
exercised his judgment in deciding that the lands
taken were necessary for the purpose of a particular
public work, the Crown must prove these facts as a
foundation for the jurisdiction exercised, and that the
acts mentioned are only prima facie presumed to have

the effect mentioned in Section 11 (See Sec. 21). If -

this were otherwise any surveyor could deposit a plan
and description and the property would then vest in
His Majesty, even though he had no authority and
the Minister may never kave known anything about
~it. In such a case it could not be held that the lands
vested in His Majesty when the plan and description

were deposited, and it would be quite competent to
4697—4
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prove the real facts and show there was no legal
expropriation.

As to the validity of the alleged expropriation under
the War Measures Act, it is submitted that same is
not valid for the following reasons: °

(1) Because the said Order in Council is void for
uncertainty in that same does not indicate to whom
authority is given to make the offer therein mentioned;
nor does it indicate to whom authority is granted for
the expropriation and direction and control of the
property of the Defendant Company; nor for whom
the property is to be expropriated; nor the purpose for
which it is to be expropriated.

(2) Because there is no jurisdiction under the War

" Measures Act to make Orders in Council which would

have any valid operation after the termination of the
war.

Reference is made to the case of Price Bros.
Limited, Supreme Court of Canada, and the references
therein contained to the scope of the War Measures
Act. The absolute expropriation of the Graving
Dock was, we submit, not possible for the Governor-in-
Council to order. This property could, of course,
have been taken under the War Measures Act for the
period of the war, and if the Order in Council is valid
at all it is only valid to that extent.

It is quite true that the use of this property during
the war might have been taken, that is the use for the
government. But it could not, under this act, take
for all time this property for another private concern
for a period beyond the duration of the war. The
War Measures Act reads ‘‘for the defence, security,
ete., and”’ and not “or’’ and anything done under that
act must be for all those things and for each one of them.
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There are no valid proceedings béfore the Court and 1920

no valid expropriation, and the properties alleged to TmzXwe
be expropriated are not now and never beca.me vested Hﬂ’fﬁx
" in the Crown, not even the lands. G“D"o‘?ﬁ“’
The balance of the argument deals W1th the valua- %ﬂm;
thIl. _ Ar%]l:)?::;leﬁ of

—

Mr. Tilley, K.C.

(a) The contestation of the validity of the pro-
ceedings was something never thought of by defendants,
until November, 1918, and the company had by that -
' time, even if there were irregularities, as distinct from -
. things being absolutely void and without any founda-~
tion at all, waived its right to insist on compliance with
the technical requirements and had accepted the
situation, and had voluntarily turned over its property
to the Government knowing that a company was to
take the same under Jease, and in fact dealt by prefer-
ence itself with that company rather than with the
government officers. In fact Mr. Brookfield was a
willing vendor desiring to have his property taken _ -
and only asking that.the compensation therefor be

fixed by the Exchequer Court (numerous references
“are made to the correspondence in support of this
view). -

(b) The requisite of the Order in Council Whlch re-
quired an offer of a million and quarter to be made
béfore proceeding to actual expropriation, was complied
 with because the letter refusing the proposition was
written on the 28th May, 1918, the day following the
passing of the Order in Council, he being advised that
the order in council was being passed. And the defend- '
- ants having refused the offer made them under the
Order in Council, the ground was clear for the Crown

to go on with the expropna,tmn proceedings. - -
4597—43 » )
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1920 (¢) That under this Order in Council on the 17th
Tue K@ March, 1917, Exhibit “B”, the Expropriation Act

Haom  is deemed to be amended so that land has a broader

GraviNg

poce  Significance. _
COMPANY .
Liurren (d) The Crown can proceed under those circum-

Reasons for stances either by the old procedure fixed by the Expro-
—  priation Aect, or by registering or depositing the Order
in Council itself.

The facts are stated in the reasons for judgment.

" AUDETTE, J. now (this 6th of July, 1920) delivered
judgment.

This is an Information exhibited by the Attorney
General of Canada, whereby it appears, inter alia,
that certain lands, belonging to the defendant com-
pany, were taken and expropriated by the Crown,
under the provisions and authority of The Expropria-
tion Act, (Ch. 143, R.S.C. 1906), for reasons declared
to arise out of the present war, and pursuant to the
powers conferred by The War Measures Act, 1914, and
other powers vested in the Crown,—by depositing of
record, under the provisions of sections 8 and 9 of The
Ezxpropriation Act, in the office of the Registrar of
Deeds for the County or Registration Division of
Halfiax, N.S., a plan and description of the said lands,
on the 7th June, 1918, together with a corrected plan
and description thereof, on the 21st June, 1918, .

The defendants, the Right Honourable Thomas
Baron Denman and Samuel Mackew, by their answer
to the Information, declared that “at the time of the
filing of the Information herein they were trustees of
certain indentures of trust whereby the lands and

_ property of The Halifax Graving Dock Company,
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Limited, described in the Information, were vested in
them by way of mortgage for the purpose of securing
debentures by the said defendants, the Halifax
Graving Dock Company, Limited.

" “That the said The Halifax Graving Dock Company,

1920
——

Tae KinG
9. .
THE
HaviFax
GRAVING
Dock
CoMPANY
LIMITED

Limited, on the 31st of December, 1918, paid, redeemed Reasons for

and retired the debentures issued under said mortgage,
and that these Defendants have executed a release of

the said mortgage, and since the said 31st of Decem-

ber, 1918, they have had no property, estate or interest
in the lands sought to be expropriated herein.”

This indenture of release or reconveyance is also®

filed of record as Exhibit No. 46.

These two defendants are thereby eliminated, and-

we have now to deal only with The Halifax Gi'a.ving_
Dock Company, Limited, as the defendants in the

" Ccase.

The area expropriated, as mentioned in the informa-
tion, is 326,200 square feet; the area claimed by the
- defendant is 328,294 square feet, and the area according
to the Crown’s evidence would be 325,100 square feet.

Judgment..

The defendant; s title to the land above mentioned is -

admitted, but its claim to the land covered by water
is denied. It further appears that the City of Halifax
has a certain right to carry sewers across the property,
at the head of the dock.

These two questions of area and title will be herem
after mentioned and disposed of. .

The Crown, by the amended information, offers the
sum of $1,100,000, and the defendant company by its
amended statement in defence clann the sum of
$5,000,000. :

The Expropriation Act above referred to, was durmg
the war enlarged and amended under and in virtue of

-

I
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the provisions of The War Measures Act, 1914, and
legislative effect thereto given by an Order-in-Council
filed as Exhibit “B,” and which may be found in the
Statutes of 1914, p. cviii, wherein, among other enact-
ments, the following is to be found, viz.:

“II). For the purpose of the compulsory taking,
during and for any reason arising out of, the present
war, of any property real or personal belonging or
appurtenant to, or acquired, had, used or possessed in
connection with any arms or munition factory, machin-

| ery or plant, or other factory, mills, machinery or

plant whatsoever which is being operated as a going
concern, The Expropriation Act shall, subect to all
the provisions thereof, extend and apply not only to
the taking and acquisition of the land, if any intended
to be taken, but also to all buildings, fixtures, machin-
ery, plant, tools, materials, appliances, supplies, goods,
chattels, contract rights, accrued or accruing, choses
in action and personal property of any description
whatsoever possessed, acquired, had, owned, used,
appropriated, or intended for use or consumption for,
or in connection with or for any of the purposes of any
such factory, mills, machinery or plant as aforesaid,
or the operations or business theretofore carried on or
intended to be carried on in or about or in connection
with the same, and as fully and effectually to all
intents and purposes as if the same were specified as
included in the definition of land under the said Act.”
It 1s also provided by the Order in Council that
there shall be no allowance for compulsory taking.

The expropriation proceedings are attacked by the
defendants, who contend they are null and void for
want of authority to expropriate, a contention with
which I am unable to agree; and the defendants on
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entering upon their case and adducing evidence, did

sa reserve all their rights in that vespect to hereafter

set up such contention in another court, if they see fit.

It i3 abundantly clear on the face of the Order in
Council, Exhibit “B,” that there was po intentionr on
the part of the Governor-in-Council in passing the
same to do anything but exercise their right under
The ‘War Measures ‘Act, 1914, to augment the powers

of the Crown in respect of taking property for public |

purposes during the war. Uuder this Order in Council
personal property 'beca,me subject to the right of
expropriation as well as real property. To do the
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other thing, i.e., to abridge any of the powers of the

“Crown under The Expropriation Act, would not be. to
their purpose, even if it ‘could be argued to be within
the powers of the Governor in Council under the War
Measures Act. So that there is no occasion here to
consider any question either of ouster of jurisdiction
under pre-existing legislation or the repeal by implica-

tion of any of the provisions of such legislation enab- -

ling the Crown to take property. See Maxwell on the
interpretation of Statutes, 5th Ed. Cap. vii.

Coming to this particular case, it was the undoubted-

intention. of the Dominion Government totake the

absolute right and title to the whole of this Graving

Dock, plant and premises, in other words to exprop- -
riate the same. That is explicit on the face of the .

Order in Council of the 27th May, 1918, and the
~ Attorney-General of Canada has taken the usual
steps under the Expropriation. Act, to effectuate that
intention, by filing an mforma.blon for expropnatmn in
this court. | : '
Some doubt may exist under the War Measures
~ Act, 1914, as to whether the Crown under its provisions
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could “expropriate’’ the property of the subject in the
plenary sense that it can be done under the first
mentioned Act, as was suggested at bar—but, I am
free to say that it is not unecessary here for me to
attempt to resolve that doubt. It is apparent that
expropriation can be made, and has been made, under
competent legislation that was in existence long before
the War Measures Act referred to.

I am therefore relieved from entering upon any
doubtful domain of statut/ory construction in order to
decide that the defendant’s property has been taken
by due process of law.

The remarks of Lord Moulton in the appeal to the
House of Lords of the case of The Attorney-General v.
De Keyser’s Royal Hotel, Limited, (1) are instructive
where complete and satisfactory statutory powers
can be relied on to govern a case before the court
as against another more uncertain and unsatisfac-
tory authority to do the act giving rise to the
litigation. Lord Moulton says: “In deciding the
issues between the Crown and the suppliants, the
first question to be settled might in the present case,
to his mind, be treated as a question of fact, viz.,
Was possession in fact taken under the Royal Pre-
rogative or under special statutory powers giving to the
Crown the requisite authority” Regarded as a question
of fact, that was a matter which did not admit of doubt..
Possession was expressly taken under statutory powers.
The letter of May 1st, 1916, from the representative
of the Army Council to Mr. Whitney said:—I am
instructed by the Army Council to take possession of
the above property under-the Defence of the Realm
Regulations. It was in response to that demand

(1) [1920] 36 T.L.R 600, at p. 609.
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that possession was given. It was not competent to
the Crown, who took and retained such possession, to
deny that their representative was acting under the -
powers given to it by these regulations, the validity
‘of which rested entirely on statute.

“It was not a matter of slight importance whether
the demand for possession purported to be made under
the statutory powers of the Crown or the Royal Prero-
gative. Even the most fervent believer in the scope
of the Royal Prerogative must admit that the powers

of the Crown were extended by. the Defence of the

Reahh_ Consolidation Act, 1914, and the Regulations
made thereunder. It was for that purpose that the
Act was passed and the Regulation made. .But even
_if that were.so there was a manifest advantage in
proceeding under the statutory power. It rendered
it impossible/for the subject to contest the right of the
Crown to take the premises by the exercise of ‘the

powers given by the statute. ‘ _
K * * * *

All such questions were put at rest by the Legislature.

giving express statutory authority by the Regulations.
There could thenceforward be no doubt that the Crown
possested the powers formulated by the Regulations,
and this was the object of the legislation. ~ But when
the Crown elected to act under the authority of; a
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statute, it, like any other person, must take the

powers that it thus used cum onere. It could not take

the powers without fulfilling the condition that the ,

statute imposed on the use of such powers.”
The expropriation ‘was made, as set forth in the
information, for reasons declared to arise out of the

“present war and pursuant to the powers conferred

by the War Measures Act, 1914.” The expropriation.
was made on account of the war when unrestricted
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submarine warfare was being carried on with alarming
results to the commerce of the Empire, and to cope
with the aftermath of the war in so far as it concerned
shipping. _

In expropriating this property, devoted to a
certain extent to public use and to a like extent affected
with a public interest, the Crown was endeavouring to
meet the emergency affecting the Empire at large
and to foster the building of vessels and the facilities
for repairing the same. - Wide powers were given the
Executive under the War Measures Act, aud in exer-
cising them the Crown resorted to the machinery
provided by the Expropriation Act, as enlarged by the
Order in Council of the 17th March, 1917, (Ex. ‘' B,”
and deposited plans and specifications as provided by
section 8 of the said Act. ,

The Minister, as provided by the said section 8,
having deemed it advisable to expropriate, has exer-
cised his statutory discretion and the Court has no
jurisdiction to sit on appeal or in review of such
decision. That it cannot go back of that decision is
a legal truism. These questions are political in their
nature and not judicial—Lewis on Eminent Domain,
sec. 239. The courts cannot enquire into the motives
which actuate the authorities or into the propriety of
their decision. Dunham v. Hyde Park (1); Gilbert v.
New Haven (2). See Beckman v. Saratoga and Shenectady
Rd. Co. (3); Jackson v. Winn’s Heirs (4); Brimner
v. Boston (5); Matton v. The Queen (6); Vautelet v.
The King (7); Wijejashear v. Festing (8). Atty. Gen.
v. de Keyser’s Royal Hotel, Limited (9).

(1) 75 1. Rep.; 371. {2) 39 Conn. 467.
(3) 3 Paige (N.Y.) 45. (4) 4 Littel], 322.
(5) 102 Mass., 19. (6) 5 Ex. C.R. 401.

- (7) Auddette’s -Practice, 115. (8) [1919] A.C. 646.
(9) 36 T.L. R. 604.
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" Moreover, is not the company estopped from
setting up such a plea, having waived any objection
. to the expropriation, if any reasonable ‘one might
have been set up, by voluntarily advising the Crown

" through its President, in several letters, that it would"

turn over the property and agsist in every way in
ha.ndmg over possession. Furthermore, accepting the
_ expropriation, as a fait accompli, they asked.and were
granted delays in delivering possession until the 24th
June, 1918, without at any time, reserving the right to
attack the exproprlatlon proceeding§,—a decision
arrived at afterwards. When the Government was
wavering as to whether or not they would expropriate,
on the 23rd J agnuary, 1918, the President of the comp-
“any wrote that if the Government wished to purchase
they would take the purchase money in Dominion
securities. 'This is absolutely inconsistent with the
allegation put forward on the trial that the property
was taken against the will of the company. So far
from taking the stand of an owner relieved of his
property in tnvitum, Mr. Brookfield’s attitude at this
time was that of a willing vendor, in fact,of a man
eager to sell, and, as fully set forth in the Order in
Council of the 15th January, 1918; the original propo-
sal to expropriate came from the company. Mr. Brook-
field was helpmg the Government as much as possible
by making it easier in finding the moneys to pay for it.
"However, on the 28th May, 1918, when the Govern-
‘ment had made extensive repairs at its own expense
' the company refused an offer of $1,100,000.

-Now, the property in question, a Graving Dock,
with all its compobent parts, viz., land, land under
water, buildings, wharves, machinery ‘and tools,
chattels, the-dock itself, etc., must be assessed at its
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commercial market value to the owner, in respect of the
best uses to which it can be put as a going concern,
with its good-will.

A mass of evidence has been adduced on behalf of the
proprietors with respect to the value of each of the
component parts, therefore the Crown has followed
‘the same course by offering statements in answer.

Estimates by several of the defendant’s witnesses

giving opinion evidence, have been prepared in con-
nection with the cost of reconstruction of the dock;
but such estimates are all much subject to serious
criticism, too long indeed to analyze here in detail on
account of the view I take of the case,—and, I must say,
I do not feel warranted in accepting these estimates
which appear on their face to be unduly unreasonably
large and which are manifestly largely speculative.
At the time of the expropriation, fully seventy per
cent of the inside facing of the Dock had to be repaired
and replaced at a cost estimated, by the parties actually
engaged in such repairs, of $151,000. These estimates
of reproduction did not allow a proper amount for
depreciation, assuming that such repairs will make
the dock as good as new,—an erroneous view taken by
them confusing efficiency with value. Depreciation

is the lessened utility value caused by physical deter-

ioration or lack of adaptation to function under
requirements. The replacement of parts, as they
need replacement, will not keep the property as
valuable as when new, unless the parts are all replaced
at once, which is practically impossible. There is
not only the physical depreciation to be taken into
account, but also the ‘‘supersession,” that is the
functional depreciation which may result from the
growth of the business which renders the structure
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inadequate, or to the development of the art which -
renders it “obsolete.. Supersession is the chscardlng
of a thing before it is worn out. = ~

As I remarked at trial, if the life of a street car be
20 years, and that it has run for 11 years, it will still
answer the purpose for which it was built for another
9 years, and it is still efficient in rendering such service ;
but its value is not the same as new, although its
efﬁc1ency for 9 more years is still good. The same
. principle applys to the dock, which is 29 years old.
And this is said in view of the contention of some wit~
nesses who said that the Dock was as good as new for
all working purposes.

This Dock was built partly with subsidies amounting
to $600,000, coming in severally from the Dominion
Government, the City of Halifax, and the Imperial

Admnjalty, the latter being entitled to place any

vessel in the Dock, and when such vessel is above
6,000 tons, they are not to be charged for any extra
tonnage beyond the 6,000 tons,

The capital of the company was $750 000, and the
greater part of the stock issued was handed over to
the contractor building the dock, as part payment of
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his. contract price. There was never any dividend -

paid upon the stock, a matter which must not be over-

looked when arriving at the value of its good-will.

The stock was obvmusly not very attracitve to the
public.

The Crown in paying for the value of the Dock and
its component parts, at the date of the eéxpropriation,
will pay for all the reinstatement and work done since

the explosion both by itself and the company, and.

moreover will also pay full value for the property

towards which it has already pa,jd a subsidy of $200,000.
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- Be that as it may, this is not said by way of weakening
the claim of the owners, because they are justly
entitled to it; but, only to show that no extravagant
price should be allowed and that only a fair and ]ust
compensation is all the owners are entitled to.

The Dock is not a large one, and the company has
ever and anon mooted the question of enlarging it
with a view, as said by the President, fo take any vessel
tn the Canadian trade, and has approached the Govern-
ment for help to that effect. ,

In assessing the compensation for the Dock due
consideration must be given to the history of the
company from its origin, how it was organized, what
was its capital, how it was applied and financed, the
business it was carrying on, its actual profits, the
returns to the shareholders, the age of the Dock and

.its state of repairs, and while one must also examine

the component parts of the Dock, the good-will of the
industry as a going concern, the compensation must be
arrived at upon its commercial market value as a
whole at the date of the expropriation, without being
obliged, in arriving at such value, to go into abstract
calculations with respect to each component part, but’
taking all of them as a whole after having weighed
and considered each of them. See upon this view,
The King v. Kendall (1), — confirmed on appeal to
the Supreme Court of Canada, 29th Oct., 1912; The
King v. The Carslake Hotel Co., (2),— confirmed on
appeal toSupreme Court of Canada, 13th June, 1916;
King v. Manuel (3), —confirmed on appeal to
Supreme Court of Canada, 29th December, 1915.
Now, the valuation of the property as a whole is the
method that would be resorted to and adopted by a

(1) 14 Ex C.R. 71-81. (2) 16 Ex. C.R. 24,33.
(3) 15 Ex. C.R. 387, 389.
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business fnan desiring to buy or sell. He would not
make an offer for each component part of the property,—
and indeed, this- is the method that the defendant
company itself has adopted when there was any
question of sale. On the 14th December, 1917, The
Halifax Graving. Dock Company sent to the Right
. Honourable Sir Robert Borden the following telegram:
“Hon. Mr. Carvell and Hon. Mr. Reid have approached
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me with a view of Government taking over our Dry -

. Dock plant and all connected with it as it now stands,
price to be fixed by the Exchequer Court with a maxi-
" mum clause that court will not exceed one and a

quarter million dollars.. On behalf of company, I

agree to this proposition if Government accept.”
Then at p. 19, Exhibit 58, one of the books of cor-
respondeuce, is a letter of the company to Mr. Carvell,
Miuister of Public Works, dated the 15th June, 1918,
where the following excerpt is found, viz:—‘After the
explosion, when the buildings were knocked down and
the whole place devastated, I offered you the dock,

never doubting but that the management would remain -

in my hands. Two weeks afterwards you declined to
purchase. You then agreed to reinstate buildings and

plant and I told you this would probably cost $400,000,

so this adds at least a value of $250,000 to the property
making $1,500,000, to which should be added an
amount for goodwill and a going business.”

It is well to note that when the company place a
price upon this property, they do so as a whole, and do
not resort to the speculative statement prepared by the
witnesses giving opinion evidence, and moreover, it
is well to note also that their offer does not suggest
any state of mind indicating an unwillingness to sell,

but rather to inflate the price to $5,000,000. That
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. 22 was an afterthought apparently. But the’ fixing of
H;,,I,{ING price, the fixing of compensation is a matter of judg-
HE

g*““x ment, and one cannot do more than indicate within
RAVING

Dock  perhaps fairly narrow limits the figure at which the

c
Luren. value should be placed.

Reasonsfor 10 allow the claim as estimated by the defendant’s:
Judgment. . ’ .
—  witnesses would be doing a most misconceived and
egregious piece of justice to which I cannot adhere.

I have had the advantage, accompanied by counsel
for both parties, of viewing the premises in question,
and to see with my own eyes the unsightly state of
the disintegrating cement of the facing of the interior
of the dock patched with brick, involving repairs to
an amount of about $151,000. However, the dock in
its present state of repair, 29 years old, with all its
apparent defects, has a real substantial value,’ and
if its defects have been brought out by the plaintiff,
it must not be forgotten that an extravagant and
inflated price of $5,000,000 has been asked by the
defendant in the pleadings. '

I have therefore come to the conclusion after making
all allowances, and weighing all proper legal elements
of compensation, to allow, for the Dock proﬁerty, as
it stood at the date of the expropriation, with all the
improvements made since the expropriation, both by
the Crown and the defendants, covering all its com-
ponent parts, and its good will as a going concern,

thesumof.......... .. ... .. ....... $1,400,000.00
from which should be deducted the
sum of......... ... ... .. ... ... ... 8,315.20
paid to the company, as shown by
Exhibit “X.” $ 1,391,684.80
To which should be added the sum of 2,395.37

the amount the Crown collected for
scrap as shown by Exhibit 56. $ 1394,080.17
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To this amount should be a{dded'inter'(ést at the rate of
five per cent per annum from the dat of delivery and
taking possession, namely on the 24th June, 1918, to
the date hereof. I have endeavoured to avoid delaying
the rendering of the judgment in view . of the heavy
interest accumulating upon s'uchb a large amount,

which up to date wotild amount to a sum a.pproxunat-
ing $141,000.

Then there will be Judgment as follows:—

1s't.‘ The land and property, including all buildings,
plant, machiunery, tools, wharves, and chattels expro-
priated herein, are declared vested in the Crown from
the date of the expropriation.

~ 2nd. The compensation for the: same is hereby
fixed at the total sum of $1,400,000, which after
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making proper adjustment as above mentioned, is

reduced to the sum of $1,394,080.17 with interest
thereon at the rate of five per cent per annum from the
24th June, 1918, to the daté hereof.

3rd. The defendant The Halifax ‘Graving Dock
Company, Limited, upon giving to the Crown a good
“and sufficient title- in respect. of the dry land, the
buildings, the plant, the machinery, tools, wharves,
and. chattels, ete., free from all encumbrances, mort~
gages,—save the right of the City of Halifax in respect
of its sewer,—and further upon giving a release of
whatever title the said company has with respeect to
the land covered by water, irrespective of its area, are

entitled to recover and be paid by the plaintiff the said . '

sum of $1, 394,080.17, with interest thereon as above
mentioned, to the date hereof; the whole in full satis-

faction for the land, property, and chattels taken as _

above mentioned, and for all da,ma,ges resulting from

the expropriation. -
45075
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g 4th. The defendant company is also entitled to

TozKaNe recover and be paid by the plaintiff the costs of the

TI-;E .
Haurax actlon.

GRAVING
Dock

Qourany  Solicitor for plaintiff: W. L. Hall, K.C.

LiMTTED
Reasons for Solicitor for defenda_nts: Meclnnis, Jenks, Lovelt, and

Judgment. Kenny
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In THE MATTER OF THE PETITION OF
Rigar or THE HALIFAX GRAV-
ING DOCK COMPANY, LTD,,
(A Bopy CORPORATE)..............

AND ) .
HIS MAJESTY THE KING....... RESPONDENT.

Petition of Right—War Measures Act-——Contmcts, essentzals of —Effect of
expropriation.

SUPPLIANTS;

On the 15th January, 1918 an Order in Council was passed statmg,
inter alia, that owing to the importance of Halifax as a naval base,
authority should be given under the War Measures Act, to proceed
with the repairing and reconstruction of the suppliants’ dock
which had beén seriously damaged by the explosion of a munition
ship, on condition, 1st, that the company contribute the sum of
$111,000.00 towards the cost thereof; 2nd, that the balance be
defrayed from the war appropriation; 3rd, the final decision as to
the exact nature and extent of repair, reconstruction, ete., be under
the inspection, supervision, and control of the representatlve of
the Minister of Public Works.

On the 20th of May another Order in Council was pa.ssed rescinding the
above and suspending the work on the dock, the preamble thereof
showing, inter alia, that arrangements ‘with the company in regard
to sub-letting contracts, did not prove satisfactory to the Minister

and the work was taken over by the Department, and had proceed-

ed to the extent that vessels were capable of being received and
repaired. A further Order in Council was" passed on the 27th
May authorizing the expropriation of the said dock, in which the
former Orders in Council were referred to, and it is stated, inter
alie, that the progress made in reconstruction by the Company
had not been satisfactory, and owing to the urgency of this work
being completed, 1t was necessary that the Crown should expro-
priate. .

The correspondence shows that the suppliants wished the Crown to
accept the proceeds of the insurance as their contribution to the
reconstruction, when collected and whatever was collected, whereas

. the Crown, adhering to the terms of Orders in Council, insisted on
the amount being paid, rega.rdless of whether policies were col-
lected or not.

Held, On the facts, that the parties were never in accord as: to the sup-
pliants suggestion regardmg the insurance meoneys and that
4597«-5&

1920
S
July 6th

’

67



68

192G
—_——

THE
HawLrrax
GRAVING
Dock
CoMPANY
L.

.
THE King.

Argument of
Cgounsel.

EXCHEQUER COURT REPORTS. © Vou. XX,

therefore there never existed any contract under which the sup-
pliants could recover.

2. That when the Crown came to the help of suppliants in the present
instance, it was under no legal obligation to do so, and what it has
done is referable to its grace and bounty and does not constitute
an acknowledgment, of any right of action or does not amount to
an act that might imply any contract upon which an action

_would lie.

ETITION OF RIGHT to recover the sum of
$195,638.18 estimated cost of the works of re-
construction of suppliants’ dock at Halifax at the
date of expropriation of the same by the Crown.
Mr. L. A. Lovett, K.C., Mr. J. S. Roper, counsel for

suppliants.
*Mr. W. N. Tilley, K.C., for respondent.

The case was tried before the Honourable Mr.
Justice Audette, at Halifax, on the 24th and 25th
days of June, 1920.

Mr. Lovett, K.C.—As regards the insurance money
two points are to be considered:—(a) whether uunder
the Order in Council it was intended that the insurance

~ money should be paid only on complete reinstatement,

that is, whether the intention was that the work was
to be done, that we were to pay $111,000 on account
of that whole work, and that the government was to
pay the balance—or whether by reason of ounly one
half of the reinstatement having been made, it can be
found that only one half of the insurance money should
be contributed, that is one half of the $111,000. (b)
whether i1t was the sum of $111,000 or whatever sum
might be realized from the insurance.

As to the question of liability I understand that
the contention is that because there was no agree-
ment drawn up and signed and sealed as provided

This case has been appealed to the Supreme Court.
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" by section 31 of the Publlc Works Act that we cannot
recover.

The Public Works Act has no apphcatmn This
was done under the War Measures Act, and it. super-
sedes all others, and any Order in Council could be
made under the War Measures Act. As to there being
no agreement, the Crown is precluded from raising
this point by_its own Order in Council of May 27,
1918. (See O.in C. and also O.in C. P.C. 56.) °

The work has been done admittedly. It was done
under an Order in Council passed under the War
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Measures Act, which is just as good as under the hand -

and seal of the Minister. The War Measures Act
was passed to permit such things being dom; without

being hampered by the necessity of statutes. Itwasa’

thing that was agreed upon and done to this extent.
It is not a matter of gratuity, because there was a con-
sideration expressed in the Order in Council itself.
We relieve the government of the alleged liability.

Under Order in Council P.C. 56 passed on the 15th
day of January 1918, the Crown undertook to rein-

state suppliants to the extent stated in Order in Coun-

cil. The work was begun and carried on, and wheun the
Crown. took possession and expropriated, certain
amount had been expended, and the supphants are
entitled to recover this amount so spent, less ‘a pro-
portion of the money recovered from the insurance
.conipany. '

The company does not claim for unexecuted recon-
struction; but only for what was actually put on the
property by it, under the Order i in Councﬂ

His LorpsHIr:—Would not the Crown by paying
you the value of your property at the date of expro-
priation, be paymg you for everything?
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. Mgr. LoverTr:—That would not be giving us reinstate-
ment at all.

At the date of expropriation, the Crown owed us a
debt, for moneys advanced by us for the reinstate-

Taz Ko, ment. Let us assume that the Crown had placed
Argument of the work in the hands of a contractor instead of our

Counsel.

doing it ourselves, it would have been bound to pay
the contractor; and the property would have re-
mained ours, and on subsequent expropriating, the
Crown would have had to pay us for the property
as it then stood including the reinstatement.

Mr. Tilley, K.C.—The claimant now says, you
agreed to reinstate this property, and you must pay
for the reinstatement work done; and if you had
pald for the reinstatement work, the buildings would
have been paid for. But then, you chose to expropriate
my property, you pay me again for the property expro-
priated. So that, his claim is, that the Crown must
first pay all the cost of the reinstatement work actually
done by the company, and then the property thus creat-
ed becomes the company’s property—and when the
Crown expropriates the company’s property, it pays
on the basis of the value of the property treating that
property as the company’s property. We are paying
the full value of the property, but now he says, the °
Crown must not only pay for the full value under the
expropriation, but it must pay the cost in addition
of doing that reinstatement work, and doing it the
second time. _

My submission is that no liability to a third party
can be éreated merely by the terms of an Order in
Council. An Order in Council may authorize agree-
ments to be entered into or be made. They can autho-
rize something to be done, but we must find it done.
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- $111,000, Mr. Brookfield wrote back, I am to give
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~ Contractual relationship cannot be made by Order in- 2
_Council. : HATxfifax :

Secondly, even if 1t could be, there must be some GRaving
evidence outside of the Orderin Council showing the C°}‘,‘;‘,§“ ‘
agreement. That is, there must be something to show gs’kixe

. Mr. Brookfield’s eoncurrence with the terms of the argument of

Couinsel.

intended contract. - ‘ o , —
- It takes two to make a contract, and far from there
being any contract here, or any concurrence by Mr.
Brookfield, the evidence shows that Mr. Brookfield
never agreed to what the Crown agreed .to, assuming
there was a contractual bargain. (Reference is made
to' correspondence.)

On the question of insurance money they Were never
agreed down to the time of the Petition of Right. They
were never.ad tdem. (Love ». Instone (1) referred to.

Mr. Brookfield now says, I will let the court say

~ whether it is $111,000 or something different, but he

cannot make his contracts'in court. He must make
his contracts outside of the court and then come
in and show what the terms were.

In this case there never was a contract at all be-
tween these parties, because the moment the Order in,
Council was seut stating they were to contribute

over Iy insurance—I am to assign my insurance to
the government. . ' :

He in effect says, I have your order in council, but
it does not show the true arrangement with you. The
moment he said that he disclaimed the agreement.

I submit he is left to the benevolence of the Crown.’
He has no agreement which has been agreed to by the
Crown. It is not-as if the Crown had taken his pro-

(1) [1917] 33 T.L:R. 475,
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1920 perty and kept it. It is not a matter in which the
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Lro.  Iating him for it, but it is not in the position of taking
Tz Kmve DIS property and refusing to return it. It is an expeu-
Reasons for diture by him on his own property, and the Crown
Judgment. . . . . . “ e

—  1is compensating him for it in the expropriation pro-

ceedings, and there is no question of having deprived
him of anything that he had under any contract that

is partly executed.

Mr. Lovett, K.C.—As to the estoppel against the
Crown, see Attorney-General v. Collom. (1).

The case cited by Mr. Tilley does not apply. In
that case the contract had not been executed, in this
case the work was done and in presence of the agent of
the Crown. It i1s only a matter of interpretation of
the Order in Council.

The facts are stated in the reasons for judgment.

AUDETTE, J., now (this 6th July, 1920) delivered
judgment.

The Suppliants, by their Petition of Right, seek to
recover the sum of $195,638.20, that is $217,850.40
less the $22,222.20 hereinafter mentioned, being the
amount claimed as representing what they are en-
titled to, under the provisions of the Order in
Council dated the 15th January, 1918, for the ex-

- penditure upon the works of repair and reconstruc-
tion of the dock and shops, ete., at Halifax.

As the result of a disastrous explosion which occur-
red at Halifax, on the 6th December, 1917, creating
a great upheaval inflicting considerable damages upon
the property in the city, the Dominion Government,

(1) 1916, 2 Q.B.D. 193 et p. 204.
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- of 1ts grace and bounty, came to the rescue of the
sufferers.

The suppliants’ dry dock, with its usual repair
shops and plant, were considerabl:); damaged thereby
and the Crown, wishiug to extend a helping hand, dealt

with them in the manner that will clearly appear from

the following Orders in-Council. The Order in Council
of the 15th January, 1918, reads as follows:— ‘

“The Committee of the Privy Council haye had

3 .
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before them a report, dated 5th January, 1918, from °

the Minister of Public Works, submitting as follows:—

“That a Dry Dock, with necessary repair shops and
plant, was constructed in the Harbour of Halifax,
N.S., by the Halifax Graving Dock Company, Lumted
-of England and completed in 1889, “the dock in ‘ques-
tion being 570 feet long, 88 feet wide at entrance and
30 feet deep over sill at high water, spring tides.
This dock was subsidized by the Dominion Govern-
ment under Act 45, Vietoria, Chapter 17, and also by
the Imperial Government and the city of Halifax.

The subsidies were each for $10,000 per. annum for a

period of twenty years. Payment of the Dominion
Government subsidy was completed in the fiscal
year ending 31st March, 1910, and it is assumed that
full payment has also been made of the two other
subsidies; . :

“That, in the recent disastrous explosmn of‘ a
- munition ship in the harbour of Halifax, the dock was
badly damaged and the repair shops and plant con-
nected therewith. were practically destroyed; '

~ “That the port of Halifax is a naval base and is -

very largely used by warships and warcraft of all
kinds of His Majesty and of his allies. It is also
used as a rendezvous for ships needing convoy. =For
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these reasons it is urgently necessary for the purposes
of the war that all facilities for the repairing of ships
of war and other ships should be effectively davailable
with the least possible delay. That the owners of the
dock are not, at present, in a position, financially, to
enable them to undertake the necessary repairs to
same and the reconstruction of the shops and plant, as
this work will cost considerably more under present
winter conditions and the scarcity of labour than would
ordinarily be the case;

“That the owners originally proposed that the
Governmeunt expropriate the property and they offered
to sell their interest in same for a sum not to exceed
$1,250,000 to which would have to be added the full
cost of rebuilding the dock, ete. The acceptance of.
this proposition would, moreover, necessitate the
operation of the dock by the Government;

“That an alternative proposal has, however, been
made by the owners in which they offer to proceed
with the reconstruction of the dock and to furnish the
sum of $111,000, which is the amount of the insurance,
towards the cost, provided the Government supply the
balance of the cost of reconstruction by way of a
subsidy relieving the Government of any further
liability, as well as responsibility for the operation and
maintenance of the dock. It is understood that the
work of repair and reconstruction shall not consist of
anything beyond the replacement of the dock and
shops, etec., in the same condition in which they existed
at the time of the disaster. The final decision as to
the exact nature and extent of such repair, reconstruc-
tion and equipment, of the dock and plant to rest
entirely with the Minister of Public Works or his
delegated representative on the work; the actual
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work of reconstructlon _and purchase of material
THE

therefore to be under the inspection, supervision and Hiurax

control of the .representative of the Department of SBoom®

Public Works. - . - - Goperany
“The Minister, in view of the foregoing and of the Tug K.
imperative’ necessity that docking and repairing reasons for
facilities at Halifax be forthwith re-established and Tudgment.
" made available at once for ships awaiting repau‘s in
. that port, recommends that authority pe given, under
the War Measures Act, to proceed with the repairing,
~ reconstruction and re-equipment of the dock and
plant at that place under, the following conditions:—.
“1. The Halifax Graving Dock Company; Limited,
the owners of the dock damaged, do contribute towards
the cost thereof the sum of $111,000;: '
““92. The balance of the outlay required to be defrayed
by the Government from the .War Appropriétion;
“3. The final decision as to the exact nature and
extent of the repair, reconstruction and re-equipment
of the dock and plant as well as the actual work of
reconstruction and purchase of material therefor, to
be under the inspection, supervision and control of °
the representative of the Miuister of Public Works.”

The Order in Councﬂ of the 20th May, 1918, which
rescinded the Order in Councﬂ of the 15th of January,
1918, reads as follows:—

“The Committee of the Prlvy Council have had
before them a Report, dated 14th May, 1918, from the
~ Minister of Public Works, submitting as follows:—

' “That under the authority of an Order in Council,
dated 15th January, 1918, the work of repair and -
reconstruction of the Halifax Graving Dock and
Plant, which were badly wrecked in the disastrous
‘explosion of a munition ship in the Halifax harbour
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last fall, was entrusted to the Halifax Graving Dock
Company, Limited, on the following conditions:—

“1. The Halifax Graving Dock Company, Limit-
ed, the owners of the dock damaged, to contribute
towards the cost thereof, the sum of $111,000 (which

Reasons for is the amount of insurance).

Judgment.

“2. The balance of the outlay required to be
defrayed by the Government from the War Appro-
priation. . )

““3. The final decision as to the exact nature and
extent of the repair, reconstruction and re-equipment
of the dock and plant, as well as the actual work of
reconstruction and purchase of material therefor, to
be under the inspection, supervision and control of the
representative of the Minister of Public Works.”

“That the work was commenced in due course, but
the arrangements made with the company in regard
to sub-letting contracts having proved unsatisfactory
to the Minister of Public Works, actual building
operations were taken over by the Department direct
and work has proceeded to an extent that vessels are

) capable of being received and repaired in the dock;

“That it is considered advisable, therefore, that
further operations be suspended for the present, and
the Minister, therefore, recommends that authority
be given to rescind the Order in Council of January
15th, 1918, accordingly.

““The committee concur in the foregoing recommen-
dation, and submit the same for approval.”

The Order in Council of the 27th of May, 1918,

" which provides for the expropriation of the dock,

reads as follows, viz..—
“The committee of the Privy Council have had
before them a report, dated 24th May, 1918, from the
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Mlmster of Public Works, stating that in the dlsas—
trous explosion of a munition ship in the harbour of
Halifax on the 6th of December last, the dry dock,
with necessary repair shops and plant, which was
constructed in the harbour of Halifax, Nova Scotia
by the Halifax Graving Dock Company, Limited,
and completed in 1889, was badly damaged and the
repair shops and'plant connected therewith were
‘practically destroyed.
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“That in view of the great importance of the port -

of Halifax as a naval base and of the fact that it is
very largely used by war ships and war; craft of all
kinds and by transports of His Majesty and His allies
and also as a rendezvous for ships needing convoy, it
was urgently necessary for the purposes of the war
that all facilities for the repairing of ships of war and

“other ships should be effectively avallable with the

least: possible delay. .

“In order to attain this object- an agreement was
entered into with the owners of the dock in which'they
agreed to proceed with the reconstruction of the dock

and to furnish the sum of $111,000, which was the

amount of the insurance, towards the cost, provided

the Government.would supply the balance of the cost
of reconstruction by way of a subsidy, relieving the

- Government of any alleged liability, as well as respon-

sibility for the operation and maintenance of the dock,

““That the progress made by the company in the
reconstruction of the dock has not been satisfactory,

and in view of the urgency of restoring the port of

Halifax to its former status as a naval base and rendez-
vous during the war and of preparing it to meet the
greatly increased needs of shipping after the war, it is
necessary that the Government take immediate mea-
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sures to.enter into possession of the said dock at once
and to proceed with the reconstruction of the same.

“That from reliable information received it would
seem that the sum of one million, one hundred thou-
sand dollars is a fair estimate of the value of the dock
as it stands at the present time, and the Minister
recommends that authority be given to offer this sum
to the Halifax Graving Dock Company, Limited, for
the property as it stands at present, and that if this
offer is refused authority be granted pursuant to the
powers couferred by the War Measures Act, 1914,
and all other powers vested in Your Excellency in
Council, for reasons declared to arise out of the present
war, of the business, property and rights of, or con-
nected with the operations of the dry dock which was
constructed in the harbour of Halifax by the Halifax
Graving Dock, Limited, aforesaid, aud that the
question of compensation for the property, etc., as
aforesaid, be submitted to the Exchequer Court for
adjudication.

“The Committee concur in the foregoing recom-
mendation and submit the same for approval.”

The Crown therefore expropriated the said dry

dock, as will more fully appear from the case of No.

3239, The King v. The Halifax Graving Dock Company,
Limited, in which I this day delivered judgmeut and
wherein I have allowed the present suppliants com-
pensation to cover the value of the dock, as it stood on
the 24th June, 1918, inclusive of all works, buildings,
erections, etc., executed by the Crown and the sup-
pliants from the date of the explosion to the date of
the expropriation.

Now the suppliants’ contention, as set forth:in
paragraph 7 of the Petition of Right is founded on the
following method of reasoning, to wit:
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“The estimated - cost of éaid reconstruction “was =~ 1%2¢
$450,000. © The amount still to be done when Order in HTHE

ALIFAX

Counéil P.C. 1291 was passed to put the said dock in CHyNe

Dock:
the same condition as before the explosion would SoMFANY

LIMITED
amount to abouf $250,000, or about five-ninths of the TaE Kme
work. Your suppliant in accordance with said letter reacons for
more fully set out in paragraph 3 of this petition, '*E2™"
collected $50,000, the cash results of the insurance
monies on the said dry "dock. As the - respondent -
rendered it impossible for your suppliant to do any °
more than four-ninths of the work: of reconstruction
under said Order in Counecil, said respondént is only

entitled to four-nmths of the insurance monies, or ‘
$2222222”- R - -

They contend that the above Order in Council
constituted a contract and that as ‘the total work of
repairs and reconstruction, esfimated at $450,000.00,
were not entirely done, but only four-ninths thereof,
that the Crown is only entitled to four-ninths of
their insurance monies of $111 000, namely . $22,-
222.22. . : .- o

The question which in limine presents itself for
decision, as I understand it, is whether or not it can be

found that from the evidence a legal contract was ever
~ entered into between the said parties for. the recon-
struction of the dock, or whether what was done by the
‘Crown was not solely referable to its grace, bounty
and benevolence shown to the suppliants by .reason of
their loss through the explosion at Halifax in 1917,
~and therefore cannot be treated as giving rise-to a

contract with all its attendant consequences in case of
breach.

In respect of the English law of contract the Crown
is at least in no worse position than the subject.

i
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Tested by this parallel, how will the situation between
the Crown and the suppliants eventuate under the
authorities 7 It is an elementary question, but certi-
tude is sometimes only attained by going back to first
principles.

What is necessary to constitute a contract? “In
its legal sense, it is the union of two or more persous,
in a common expression of will affecting their legal
relations.

“An agreement implies the assent of two minds.
This idea is often expressed by the phrase ‘It takes
two to make a bargain.” Or, to state it in other
words, it must be understood between the parties
that one party has made an offer and the other has
accepted it.

“In construing an agreement ‘ the question is, what
by a fair and reasonable construction of the words and
acts of the parties, was the bargain between them, and
not what was the secret interest and understanding
of either of them.”” Benjamin, on Contract, pp. 7

and 8.
Among the essential elements to the validity and
enforcement of a contract are: ‘1. A communication

whereby the parties unite in a common expression of
will as to their legal relation, in other words, offer and

acceptance.

“2nd. A consideration.

“3rd. A writing, wherever 1t is required by the
Statute of Frauds.

“4th. Capacity of the parties to make a contract.

5th. Reality of the consent expressed. in offer and
acceptance.—Idem, p. 9.
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In the case of offer and acceptance, “‘the latter must |

be absolute and identical with the terms of the offer.”
Benjamin, p. 12; Anson, on Contracts, p. 61.

“The intention of the offeree to accept must be
expressed’ without leaving room for doubt as to the
fact of acceptance or as to the correspondence of the
terms of the acceptance with those of the offer.”
Anson, on Contracts, p. 61.
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“The acceptance of an offer may mtroduce terms

not comprised in the offer, and in such cases no con-
tract is made, for the offeree in effect refuses the offer,

and makes a counter-offer of his own.” Idem, p. 62.

The first Order in Council, of the 15th of January,
1918, clearly stated that:—

‘1. The Halifax Graving Dock Company, Limited, ,

the owners of the dock damaged, to contribute towards

- the cost thereof the sum of $111,000.”

—

It did not attach to the clause é,ny stiﬁula.tion :

that this amount must first be recovered from the
insurance companies, before it became payable. -

Now the suppliants never.complied with this require-

“ment,—they never did, up to the present day, pay the

sum of $111,000 or any part of it to the Crown or on

tracted correspondence was carried on, which estab-
lishes beyond controversy that the parties have

always failed to come to final terms or arrangement,
“upon the question. They were never ad tdem upon.
this point. ‘

From the correspondence filed of record as Exhibits
1 and 2, it clearly appears that both parties always
agreed to disagree from the very date of the first Order

in Council.
4597—6

_ its account. Upon this question a long and pro-
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However, the intention of the parties was clearly
set out by the suppliants before the date of the first
Order in Council. Indeed as far back as the 1st
January, 1918, (p. 2 of No. 1) we find a telegram of the
president of the company addressed to Mr. Carvell,
stating as follows: “As the dock is of such paramount
importance, will accept, on behalf of the company,
your proposal that we hand you the insurance, one
hundred and eleven thousand, and you do the rest.”

On the 15th June, 1918, (p. 19, Ex. No. 2) the
president, on behalf of the suppliants, was writing to
the Minister of Public Works, saying: ‘“The proceeds
of our insurance was to be handed to you and no
doubt this will be paid, but I cannot say when unless
the Government does something to force them. How-
ever, we will endorse our policies over to you so you
are perfectly secure.”

- On the 18th June, 1918, (p. 26, Exhibit No. 2) Mr.
Carvell writing to the president, says: ‘“I am sorry,
however, that 1 cannot agree with your contention
that we were to take the proceeds of the insurance
policy. While I think you may have opposed that,
yet it was distinctly understood that you were to collect
the policies and pay us $111,000 as your contribution
to reconstruction, regardless of whether the policies
were collected or not. We therefore cannot have any-
thing to do with the policies.”” And again, at page 35
of the same exhibit, we find another letter of Mr.
Carvell to the president saying: “In reply to your
letter of the 15th inst., I realize just as much as you do
the necessity of having our matters closed up at the
earliest possible moment, but I think I should say to
you frankly that before anything can be paid on the
re-instatement account, we must have a settlement
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with you as to the insurance.  You know the terms of
the Order in Council and my views as to the agree-
ment made between us. The moment you are ready
to pay the $111,000, or to recognize it as your contri-
bution, we are prepared to make a settlement of this
whole transaction.”

Then in Mr. Hunter’s letter, recited at paragraph 3

of the Petition of Right, it is stated ‘‘you are to collect
your own insurance policies, .and hand over the cash
results to the Government”’—refusing the assignment
of the policies. To which letter the president answers
~on the 2nd- February, 1918, (p. 27, Exhibit No. 1),
saying: “Both clauses in your letter are quite satis-
factory.” At pp. 65 and 66 of the same exhibit, on

the 5th and 8th April, 1918, the president again asks

Mr. Hunter what he is to do with the insurance, and
Mr. Hunter answers: ‘“Collect and hand over cash to
the Government.” ' ' '

At pp. 97 (2nd May,1918) and 110 (13th May, 1918)
Mr. . Hunter again refuses to pay out any moneys
until the sum of $111,000 reaches the Government.-

.Then after the expropriation on the 23rd August, .

1918, (p. 126 of the Exhibit) the president joins issue
with Mr. Carvell on the insurance moneys, and says,
(as alleged in the pleadings), “I think you would not
" be entitled to the whole of the insurance, but only

part of it, because you did not finish the re-instatement

of the dock, but took it out of our hands.
If the full insurance were collected, .viz:, $111,000, the
proportion payable to the Government would be as
$400,000 is to $185,000.”

This last proposition enunciated both in the letter
and on the pleadings is not to be found either in the

Order in Council or in the correspondence on behalf of ,
4597— 6}
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22 the Crown. It is outside of the alleged proposed

Hiaurax agreement—de hors the alleged contract.
GraviNg

oDock From the above cited correspondence, and from
Lmarzp  numerous other letters, and from the obvious fact
Tre Ko that the $111,000 were never paid by the suppliants,—
Reasons for it conclusively appears that the parties were never
ad idem, after the passing of the Order in Council of
the 15th January, 1918, with respect to this sum of
- $111,000,—which the suppliants were to pay' but
never did pay. On the other hand it appears clearly
that the Crown always adhered to the Order in Council,
never waivering and never ceasing to ask for the
$111,000. Therefore, it must be found,—as the
parties were never ad idem, that there could never
have existed any legal contractual obligation under
which the suppliants could recover in an action like
the present one.

It is perhaps noteworthy that.on the 17th January,
1918, (p. 14 of Exhibit No. 1) the secretary of the
Department of Public Works wrote to the company,
“an agreement is being prepared in the matter, and it
will be submitted to you for signature.” Now, what
can be deduced from this statement, except the Crown
was theun willing to enter into a contract with the
suppliant, could the parties come to terms? This
they wholly failed to do—no such contract or agree-
ment has ever been entered into or executed by the
parties. See Love & Stewart v. Instone Co.; Ltd. *
The Crown has borne the expense of the considerable
work it has performed at the dock, and in addition
thereto the Crown has paid for it over again as part of

the compensation in the expropriation of the dock.

Assuming for the sake of argument that a contract
133 T. L. R. 475.
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had been entered into, could the suppliants recover for
any work of reconstruction done, or to be done, outside
the period between the 20th May, 1918,—(when the
Order in Council of the 15th January, 1918, was
rescinded) and the 21st June, 1918, the date of the
expropriation? Indeed, on the 2lst June, 1918,
would not such contract be put at an end by the
expropriation? That was the doctrine laid down by
this court in the case of Samson v. The Queen.?
See also Nichols, On .Eminent Domain, p. 700 et seq.
And for all such work executed up to the time of the
expropriation, they have received full compensation in
the expropriation case No. 3239.

Under all the circumstances of the case, I have

come -to the. conclusion that thiere existed no legal®

“contract between the parties, and when the Crown
came to the help of the suppliants in this great up-
heaval and calamity, it did so of its own benevolence,
and what it has done is referable to its grace, bounty
and benevolence, and does not constitute an acknowl-
edgment of a right of action or does not amount to
any act that might imply any contract upon which an
~action would lie.

Therefore, my judgment is, that the suppliants are

- not entitled to any portion of the relief sought by their

Petition of Right. -

-

‘Solicitor for suppliants: J. S. Roper.
Solicitor for respondent: W. L. Hall.

22 Can. Ex. C. R. 30.—Ses 04.
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Judgment accordingly.
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BRITISH COLUMBIA ADMIRALTY DISTRICT.

HALEY ET AL, PLAINTIFFS.
vs.
SS. “COM0X,” DEFENDANT.

Shipping—Action for necessaries—Jurisdiclion—Effect of entry in
register—Admissibility of evidence lo contradict—24 Vict.,, ch.
10, 5. 5; 53-54 Vict., ch. 27; (Imp.) R.S.C. (1906) ch. 141,

The SS. Comox was registered at the Port of Vancouver, B.C., and
was owned by the H. S. Company, having its head office at the
same port. While she was at the port of New Westminster, B.C.,
-plaintiff supplied her with necessaries such as material and labour
to refit her, and not being paid, action was taken in Vancouver to
recover price thereof. The said H. 8. Company was practically
one Captain Woodside who was domiciled in San Francisco,
U.S.A., being the owner of 995 shares of a total of 1,000 shares,
capital stock of said Company. ‘

Held, That notwithstanding the 88. Comox was registered in Van-
couver, her home port was really San Francisco where the true
owner thereof was domiciled; that she was a foreign vessel and
that the court had jurisdiction in the matter under section 5, ch,
10, 24 Viet., and 53-54 Viet., ch. 27, sec. 3 (Imp.)

2. That evidence may be admitted to contradict entry in the ship’s
register to show the true owner and home port of the vessel.
The Polzeath (1), the St. Tudno (2), the Proton (3); and the Hamborn
(4) ; referred to.

In this'case the plaintiff sued for necessaries sup-
plied in the shape of material and labour in refitting
the defendants’ ship at New Westminster in the
Province of British Columbia. The Defendants ob-
jected to the jurisdiction of the Court and alleged
that the ship belonged to the port of Vancouver, on
the ground that she was owned by the Henrietta
Ship Company having its head office at the Port of

(1) 1916, P.D. 241, (3) 1918, A.C. 578.
(2) 1916, P.D. 291. (4) 1018, P.D. 19.
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Vancouver, but the evidence showed that of a thou- %0
sand shares of stock which comprised the ‘capital HAWY Brat -
stock of the Henrietta Ship Company, nine hundred * C"m"“

Statement of
and ninety-five shares were owned by Captain Wood- ~ Facts,

Captain Woodside’s wife and son the other direct-
drs of the Company, lived and were domiciled at
San Francisco, and it was argued by Counsel for the
plaintiff, Mr. E. C. Mayers, that therefore the ship
was really owned in San Francisco, and was a foreign
ship and that, in consequence Section 5 of the Admir-
alty Courts Act of 1861 applied.

The following cases were cited in support of the
contention that the court should look behind the - - |
‘Register of the ship to ascertain the true ownership:—

~ The Polzeath. (1); the 8. Tudno (2); the Proton’(3);
the Hamborn (4). '

By the Admiralty Courts Act, 1861, being 24 Vict.,
- Chap. X, sec. 5, the High Court of Admiralty shall
have jurisdiction over any claim for necessaries sup-
plied to any ship elsewhere than in the port to which
the ship belongs, unless it is shown to the satisfaction
of the court that at the time of the institution of the
cause, any owner or part owner of the ship 1s domi- -
ciled in England or Wales .

By the Colonial Courts of Adm1ra,lty "Act, 1890,
53-54 Vict., Chap. 27, the word “Canada” -is sub-.
stituted for ‘“England and Wales.”

The case was tried at Vancouver on the 19th 20th
and 21st days of July, 1920, before the Honourable
Mr. Justice Martin.

4

(1) 1916, P.D. 241. (3) 1918, A.C. 578.
(2) 1916, P.D. 291. (4) 1918, P.D. 19.
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E. C. Mayers, and G. L. Fraser, counsel for
plaintiffs; ' '

C. B. McNeill, K.C., counsel for defendant.

Archer Martin, L.J.A., now (this 9th of August,
1920) delivered judgment. _

“This is an action claiming $19,258.29 for neces-
saries supplied in the shape of material and labour in
refitting the defendant ship at New Westminster in
this Province. An objection is taken to the juris-

~ diction founded on the submission that the ship

belongs to the port of Vancouver and that she is owned
by the Henrietta Ship Company, a Canadian Company
with head office at that port, but I have no hesitation
whatever in finding upon the evidence that whatever
the documents may pretend to show, her home port
is in San Francisco and her true owner is Alexander
Woodside domiciled there.

Part of the work was done under a written con-
tract dated the 12th February, 1920, for $13,100, and
the balance uuder a later verbal one: the submission
that the plaintiffs’ right to recover was dependent
upon the owner being able to obtain classification
from the British Corporation or otherwise. is not
supported. I find as a whole that the work done
under both contracts was a fair job of its class, and the
prices charged were reasonable, which leaves ounly a
few items that require particular notice..

The main one relates to the engine, etc., under this
clause of the written contract:—

‘“ All propelling machinery to be installed complete
with auxiliaries and pumps, also cargo winches. The

‘ahove items to be supplied by the owners ready to

install. It is assumed that the present tail shaft
and propeller will be used.”




Vor. XX. EXCHEQUER COURT REPORTS.

It is submitted that under this clause the plaintiffs
were required to supply thé engine bed and therefore
a large number of items in their bill covering the
considerable cost of that work, about $5,000, should
be disallowed. In the Oxford Dictionary I find these
definitions:— ‘

Install (2) To place (an apparatus, a system of
Ventllatlon lighting, heating, or the 11ke) in position
for servme or use:

Installation (2) Thé action.of setting up or fixing in
position for service or use (machmery, apparatus, or
the like); a mechanical apparatus set up or put in
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position for use; spec. used to include all the neces- -

sary plant, materials and work required to equlp
rooms or buildings with electric light.

The main idea of “installing” thus conveyed is to
place or set up in position for use, and though in
certain circumstances and some trades it may have a
special or wider meaning, yet there is nothing in the
circumstances of this case to so enlarge it. I am
of the opinion that it was and must have been in the
contemplation of .the parties that the new engine was
to be placed in position upon a bed sufficient for that
purpose already in '‘‘place” in the ship, The state-
ment of the witness Lockhart, marine engineer, on
cross-examination, that it meant the plaintiffs were to
get the engine, auxiliaries and pumps from the owner
“ready to install’ and then couple them up for sea in
the ship’s engine room seems the reasonable view to
take of the situation,-and it is, moreover, supported by
the correspondence between the parties, even if the
blue print, Ex. 38, is to be discarded in this con-

nection, as is rightly, I think, submitted by defend-

‘ant’s counsel, it being merely an over-all dimension
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plan, as explained by the witness Akhurst. Therefore
said items covering the cost of the engine bed will be
allowed.

As to certain “hardwood”’ items, it is clear from the
evidence that unless otherwise specified by name
local shipwrights include Douglas fir under that
category and that wood was in fact used, therefore
the items are allowed.

With respect to the two wing tanks for oil, that
question has occasioned me the most difficulty but
after a careful consideration of the evidence and the
circumstances I have reached the conclusion that the

- owner, Woodside, has so acted that he must be held

A

to have accepted them after full knowledge of the
result of the test, and their capacity, if the plaintiff
Christian’s evidence is to be believed, and I prefer it
to Woodside’s; the latter did not insist upon larger
tanks being substituted, as the plaintiffs offered to
do, because they would reduce the cargo space, and,
consequently, earning power, and it is difficult to
understand, if his objection were so serious as now
put forward, why he nevertheless put to sea without
any further alterations to them: as they are now with
a capacity of 3,800 gallons, instead of the 5,000 as spe-
cified for, they still give a 19 day voyage range on the
engine consumption of 200 gallons per day, which he
doubtless agreed to regard as sufficient; furthermore,
his representative, Wallace, agreed to test them
though he knew their capacity was short and that
they were not "/ plate and did not order them to be
taken out after the test, though he had the power to
do so, simply because it would have delayed the vessel
in sailing. I am of the opinion, on the whole aspect
of this item, that it is too late for the owner to suc-
cessfully contest it.
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There are five items, hoﬁever, which the owner is
entitled to have disallowed, viz., those charged for the
time occupied in purchasing materials, under these
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headings in the monthly “Statement of Wages:'—
J. F. Haley, looking after extra materials, _
work............ e ..$ 125.00
Overhead (April).................. L. 83.33
Do. (May)......... e S 83-22
Do. (Junelsthalf).................. 125.00
Do. (June 2nd half).............. ‘.- 125.00
$ 541.55

The verbal contract was that the plaintiffs were to
purchase the material and supply the labour and do
the work on a percentagé of 20 per cent of the cost,
and it is submitted that the time occupied in purchas-
ing is part of the overhead cost of labour and that as
in this ecase the plaintiffs did not include their office
expenses in ‘““overhead” they are entitled to exclude
* non-productive work outside the office, that is, instead
of including in “overhead” the office administrative
expenses they excluded them and therefore should be
allowed for them as time occupied in the ‘“labour’
of purchasing. But I am of opinion that, while it may
be the plaintiffs made an error in excluding their
general expenses from “overhead” and estimated ‘oo
low as pointed out by witness Lockhart, ‘yet never-
theless that was the contract they made and if they

made a mistake in it they must bear the loss, so con- .

sequently the said five items will be disallowed.
judgment will be entered in favour of the plaintiffs for
all the other items.

With respect to the counter-claim: it has not been

supported by evidence and must fail. While  the
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120 telegram of the 26th May from the defendants to
HALEY BT AL W oodside concerning the arrival of the engine, begin-
8- Comoz ning “Expect engine, etc.,” was an unfortunate one,
R yvet an ordinarily prudent man would not treat such
expectations of the arrival of an engine, especially
in these days of delayed transportation, with much
confidence; the engine, as a matter of fact, did not
arrive in the plaintiff’s yard until the 8th Juune, and
after that time I am unable to find that there was any
undue delay, bearing in mind the fact that under the
verbal contract additional and collateral work was
being continually ordered by the owner’s agent, Wal-
lace, even up to the 3rd July, two days before sailing.
It is therefore impossible to hold that the owner really
suffered any loss or damage on this head.

The whole result is that judgment should be entered
for the plaintiffs as above indicated, and the costs will
follow the event.

Judgment -acco'rdingly.
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In THE MATTER of the Petition of Right of

NAPQLEON LOISELLE........... .SUPPLIANT ;
' AND :
_HIS MAJESTY THE KING ........ RESPONDENT.

Razlways—Responszbzhty—Damage lo one using properly unthout per-
- -massion of company——Lwensee—NegZzgence

8- had three carloads of potatoes near the freight-shed at Mont-Joh,
which by agreement with railway company he was to keep heated.

To reach this car, 8. could take a good travelled road or could take a
short cut through the busy railway yard. The latter was used by
the public, but without the permission of the railway company.
S. on the 16th November, 1917, at 8.15 p.m. elected to take this
short cut to his car. The night was dark and having missed his
way, he fell into a viaduet and was injured. :

Held, that the proximate and direct cause of the accident was want of
prudence on the part of the suppliant in venturing on a dark night,
through a busy railway yard to his car, instead of using a good
travelled road, free from any such dangers, as he was confronted
with in using the t;ra.cks

2. Where a licensee, for his own benefit, is upon the premises of a rail-

way, without objection from it, such railway company cannot be
said to be under the legal duty to guard such licensee against
the obvious risks and dangers attending his crossing or walking
through 2 railway yard at mght He must under such circum-
stances, take care of himself in using the premises as he finds
them at the time he made his contract for transportation, and is
not entitled to be protected from obvious conditions upon the
_property in their ordinary state.

PETITION of Right to recover from the Crown
damages alleged to have been suffered by reason of
an accident in a railway yard of the Intercolonial
Railway Company. - :

THE case was tried at Riviére du_ Loup on the 9th

of July, 1920, N

Adolphe Stein and Dominique Lévesque, counsel for.

suppliant.
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_— AUDETTE, J., now (this 23rd September, 1920)
delivered judgment.

The suppliant, by his Petition of Right, seeks to
recover $4,660.10, damages for personal injuries
caused by the negligence of the Intercolonial Rail-
way’s servants. 4

The accident in question occurred on the 16th
November, 1917, and the Petition of Right was filed
in Court only on the 20th January, 1919. While on
its face the claim would therefore appear to be pre-
scribed, the evidence established the Petition of
Right had been lodged with the Secretary of State,
pursuant to sec. 4, of the Petition of Right Act, on
the 14th November, 1918, and it must be found that
such compliance with the statute interrupted prescrip-
tion. ‘

The suppliant,” having purchased three cars of
potatoes, entered into agreement with the Inter-
colonial Railway Company, as appears by the Bill of
Lading and the way-bill, filed herein as Exhibit No.
13, to transport the same to destination upon his
undertaking to place a wooden lining inside the car,
heat the same, and supply the fuel therefor,—the
question of frost being thereby at his own risk and
peril.

. The cars of potatoes in question were placed at
‘Mont-Joli, near the freight shed, at the place indicated
on the plan, Exhibit No. 2, as “chars de patates.”

At 4 o’clock on the afternoon of the day of the
accident, the suppliant had gone and heated his cars,
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and, as he says, that fire could last only about four
hours,—at 8.15 p.m., of thé same day, the 16th Novem-
ber, he started to attend to his fire again.

He went.to the station, at the office marked “B” on
the plan, with the object of advising the employees
he wished to leave that night, and to have his cars
weighed, and he was informed the employees were in
the yard. '

It was then he started from point “B,”’ on his errand
to-heat his cars, and followed the dotted line shown
on the plan and marked “trajet parcouru par Loiselle.”
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He states it was then difficult to cross opposite the
station towards his cars, as there was shunting going

on. The Mont-Joli yard is at a Divisional point of
the Intercolonial Railway and it is also the terminus
of the Gulf & Terminal Railway running downto
Metis and Matane. There are two shunting engines
in that yard to attend to the considerable shuntmg
necessarily involved in such a locality.

Loiselle, after leaving point ‘“B,” followed the dotted

line above mentioned, and being carried beyond his

bearings, reached point “A” and fell at that point
into the viaduct from a height of 12 feet, 7 inches,
upon the grating of a drain and was injured. He now

‘claims for the bodily injury resulting from such .

. accident. Can he recover under such circumstances?
Was the suppliant justified in crossing the railway yard

to go to his ecars, instead of taking the road leading

to them? What were his rights?

In answering this question let us follow the modern

tendency of the courts and view the facts of the case
in the light of the first principles of the law of negli-
gence rather than to seek to establish an analogy
bétween the facts of this case and those obtained in
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1920 decided cases. Negligence is want of care in the
Naroukox. circumstances, and every case must be determined

s Kmg., UPOD its own set of facts. An observation upon this

Reasons for P0OINt of Lord Finlay, in the case of Craig v. Qlasgow

Judgment.  Cornoration (1), is quite instructive. His Lordship
was then dealing with a case of injury to the person
arising out of alleged negligence on the part of the
driver of a tram-car. He says:—"“The use of cases
was for the proposition of law they contained, and it
was of no use to compare the principal facts of one
case with the principal facts of another for the purpose
of endeavouring to ascertain the conclusion to be
arrived at in the second case.”

In determining the question of liability in all such
cases as the one before the court, it i1s necessary to
examine the conduct of both parties in the circum-
stances, and note the bearing that the acts of each
had upon the resultant injury. Want of care must be
posited as the cause of the injury. Then whose
incuria was the proximate or active cause of the
accident. Liability is established where it is shown
that the party injured had some legal right to be on
the locus of the accident and did not know of a peril
to his safety that was known to the defendant, but in

_respect of which he took no care to warn the plaintiff.

Holmes J. in the case of Commonwealth v. Pierce (2)
says: “So far as civil liability is concerned, at least, it
is very clear that what we have called the external
standard would be applied, and that, if a man’s con-
duct is such as would ke reckless in a man of ordinary
prudence, it is reckless in him. Unless he can bring
himself within some broadly defined exception to
general rules, the law deliberately leaves his idiosyn-

(1) 1919, 35 T.L.R. 214 at p. 216. (2) 138 Mass. 165, at p. 176.
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crasies out of account, and peremptorily assumes
that he has as much capacity to judge and to foresee
consequences as a man of ordinary prudence would
have in the same situation. In the language of
.Tindal, C.J., “Instead, therefore, of saying that the
liability for negligéence should be coextensive with
the judgment of each individual, which would be as

variable as the length of the foot of each individual,

we ought rather to adhere to'the rule which requires
in all cases a regard to caution such as a man of ordinary
prudence would observe.” Vaughan v. Menlove (1).

To succeed in the present instance, the suppliant
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must bring the circumstances of his case within the -

ambit of sec. 20 of the Exchequer Court Act. There
must be, 1st, a public work; 2nd, there must be negli-
gence of an employee or servant of the Crown while
acting within the scope of his duties or employment,
and 3rd, the accident must be the result of such negli-
gence. ‘ |

Coming back to the course pursued by the sup-
pliant on the night of the accident, it must be noted
that there is a road indicated on the plan at the back
of the station, joining when travelling west, the King’s
highway * which runs north under the viaduct in
question. Then both to the mnortheast and south-
east of the letter “N,” on the plan, there are good
travelled roads leading from the King's highway, to
the freight shed and therefrom to the cars of potatoes
in question, _ ,

Leaving the station, the suppliant could and should
have gone to his cars in that way, or on leaving his
hotel, which was to the west of letter “x” he just had
to walk east almost straight down to the freight

(1) 3 Bing N.C, 468, 475; 8.C. 4 Scott, 244.
45977 -
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120 shed. However, he says he was unfamiliar with

Haroikon  Mont Joli, and did not know of the roads; but, that
Tas Kuoia is no excuse for running through a busy railway yard
Reasons for OF 80y dangerous locality in Mont Joli. He could

Judgment. oasily have enquired and been told.

He had gone across the yard in the afternoon,
without interference or objection from the railway
company. The most favourable construction of the
suppliant’s complaint is that he was in the railway
yard, or at the place in question, in pursuance of a
usage by the public, which usage was permitted
passively by the railway company. It does not go
further than this. The suppliant was not passing
over the tracks at a crossing or on a road which had
been adopted or recognized by the railway company;
but was simply making use of this “short cut” from
one place to another, which is said to have been
used by many persons for convenience. Such user
of the tracks or “‘short cut” is unquestionably dan-
gerous and regarded as an intrusion upon the legal

_ rights of the railway who maintain their railway yard
solely for the purpose of operating the railway. It
is not easy to see how such a user of the railway ‘yard
by the public could be wholly prevented without
force, which would be attended with difficulties that
might not be overcome without the imposition of
unnecessary burdens upon the railway company.
Conceding, however, that the suppliant had the tacit
and passive permission, resting upon usage, to walk
through the railway yard and that in the circum-
stance he might be termed a licensee, his presence there
was not especially invited and was of no advantage
to the railway company. "
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Where a licensee, for his own benefit, is upon the
- premises of a railway, without objection from it, such
railway company cannot be said to be under the legal
duty to guard such licensee against. the obvious risks
and dangers attending his crossing or walking through
a railway yard at night, to get to his cars at the freight
shed, when his businhess can be looked to by following
the safe roads made and provided by the company to
reach the freight shed or the siding adjoining thereto.

- 99

1920
———

NaroLEON
LoISELLE

a.
Tae KiNag,

- Reasons for
- Judgment.

& —

In other words, the licensee must under such circum- .

stances take care of himself in using the premises as
he finds them at the time he made his contract for
transportation, and is not entitled to be protected
 from existing conditions upon the property in  their
ordinary state (1).

The suppliant might have the rlght to complam of
a wilful act of the railway company in running him
down or of traps and pitfalls, which would be an
allurement to unexpected dangers. There ..is no
natural or possible relation between the injury and
the fact that there was no cattle fence at the viaduct
or that the latter was not lighted, as requested by the
municipality, for its traffic. That is nihil ad rem.
Had he not crossed the railway yard, had he not lost
his way,there would have been no accident. As the
station-master at Mont-Joli testified, ‘“we do not

give permission to pass over the tracks, but we do -
not prevent any one from doing so.” ‘The suppliant
had no right to be where he was at the time of the .

accident, and in no cage, can this passive leave to go
across without objection, referable to the obliging act

of thé_ Crown, be said to give rise to a legal right of

action. A wrongful act cannot impose a duty. Theze

' (1) Sullivan v. Walers, 14 Ir. C.L. 460, (1003) 58, L.R.A. 77. (cited)
4597714
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1920 is no act of negligence on behalf of any officer or
Jarouwon servant of the Crown, which caused the injury. The
Tae Kmve, Proximate and direct cause of the accident is the
Reasons for ODPVIOUS incuria, want of elementary prudence for the
udgment. suppliant to venture on a dark night through a busy

railway yard, and to wander and grope his way therein
to his cars which were accessible through a good
travelled road, free from any such dangers.

A man gifted with ordinary prudence would not, at
night, have ventured through that yard. He should
have reached his destination by the ordinary road, and
not choose to go through the yard. Volenti non fit
injuria. ~ As between himself and the railway company, -
he has obviously shown greater incwric and the
railway can only be liable for cases of negligence.

The accident being obviously the result of the
suppliant’s incuria and imprudence, he is adjudged
not entitled to any portion of the-relief sought by his
Petltmn of Right.

Judgment accordingly.
Solicitor for suppliant: Adolphe Siein.
Solicitor for respondent: Léo Bérubé.
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In THE MATTER of the Petition of Right of 1920
Sept. 28rd
DAVID BRAULT........ e . .SUPPLIANT; | R:;—;:“
Lo .AND L X . ) =Jl.ldament.

" HIS MAJESTY THE KING. . ......RESPONDENT.

Contract—Breach—Damages—Public Work.

On the 22nd August, 1911, 8. entered into a contraet, ‘‘for supplying
crushed stone required for macadamizing a portion of the road
along the west side of Chambly Canal,” to be completed on or
before October 15th, 1911. Before the 18th of September, the
engineer in charge had repeatedly notified S. that he was not
delivering enough stone to allow the work to be performed in time.
On that date, he called in another contractor to help complete the
necessary deliveries, and, notwithstanding that the date for
completion of contract was extended a month, and S. delivered
all he could, the work was only just able to be completed that
seagon, No quantities were stipulated in, the contract and no
exclusive right to supply stone was given to S. and all that S.
delivered or offered to deliver was accepted.

Held, that, upon the facts, the Crown had committed no breach of the
contract, and that 8. had suffered no damage for whlch the Crown
was liable. i

2. ‘Where a party has by his own act or default put it out of his power
to fulfil his contract, the other party may at once treat this as a
breach of contract w1thout waiting for the time of performance or

* completion to arrive. - o

PETITION ‘of Right to recover from the Crown
damages alleged to have been suffered by suppliant
by reason of a breach of. contract by the Crown.

THE case was tried at Montreal on the 10th of Sep-
tember, 1920.

Mr. G. Fortin, counsel for suppliant.

Mr. O. Gagnon, counsel for respondent.



102

1920
S——t
Davip
BravuLy
7.

Tar King.

Reasons for
Judgment.

‘EXCHEQUER COURT REPORTS. Vor. XX,

The facts of the case are stated in the reasons for
judgment,.

AUDETTE J. now (this 23rd September, 1920)
delivered judgment. '

The suppliant, by his Petition of Right, seeks to
recover the sum of $1,746.55 for damages arising .out
of a breach of contract with the Crown.

On the 22nd August, 1911, the suppliant entered
into a contract with the Crown, “for supplying crushed
stone required for macadamizing a portion of the road
along the west side of the Chambly Canal,”’—and
complete such supply on or before the 15th October,
1011. :

He had, at the time he tendered for such contract,
a small plant, at his quarry, that was irsufficient for
the performance of this contract, and he was duly
notified by Mr. Parizeau, the Government Engineer,
of that fact after his visit to the quarry, at the request
of the Ottawa headquarters. However, the suppliant
promised to purchase additional plant.

He started to make delivery under his contract,
on the 10th August, 1911, and on the 1st September,
he had delivered 395 tons. From the 1st to the 18th
September, he delivered 743 tons.

“Euclide Brault, the suppliant’s son and foreman,
says that at the time they took the contract they had
a middling size plant, and that when they perceived
that it was not sufficient, ten days or so after starting
work, they purchased a larger crusher.

Mr. Parizeau, the engineer in charge of the works
for the respondent, testifies that the delivery of stone
made by Brault in September varied between 45, 55,
and 14 tons a day; and that the average delivery
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between the 10th August and 1st September was
only an average of 27 tons.

Mr. Parizeau swears that before the 18th Septem-
ber, he has time and agam told the suppha._nl: he was
not delivering. elibugh stone to allow him to perform
the work on time. However, at that date, he says he
had realized, he was certain, that Brault was not
delivering stone in sufficient quantity, and at the rate
the stone was being supplied the works could not be

finished in time. Mr. Parizeau further states that he

repeatedly informed his superior officer that if the
stone was not forthcoming the works could not be
executed on time. '

Under these circumstances, on the 18th September,
1911, he called in a Mr. Lord to supply similar stone
at the contract prices, and with Lord’s help and
concurrence and all Brault could and did deliver,
prolonging and extending the time of completion of
the contract to the 15th November, 1911, he was
only just able to complete the works.

Brault, ever since the 10th August to the 15th
November, 1911, was asked to deliver all he could,
and all he has delivered or offered to deliver was duly
accepted. '

!

However, it was contended at bar that the Crown
was guilty of a breach of contract inasmuch as by
calling in Lord, the latter took away from Brault a
number of carters to whom he would give wages of

25 cents over and above what Brault was giving up to
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that date, and by Lord using some of these carters : .

Brault was deprived of their services and qould not
supply all the stone he would otherwise have been
able to deliver.
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1920 From perusal of the contract, it will be seen that
B?J?ﬁ there is no quantity of stone mentioned,—that Brault
Tax s Seme. 18 Dot given the exclusive supply of the stone, therefore
Reavons tor NOW could he sue for a given quantity supplied by
Judgment. himself exclusively? By clause 5, the works have to

be carried on and prosecuted to completion to the

satisfaction of the engineer. Clause 16 provided
what the engineer may do in case of delay, and there
are other such permissive clauses in the contract;
but does not the word “may,” in such a document,
amount to a mere intimation of what might be done
and not an obligation to resort exclusively to that
method? Had the word “shall” been used instead of
“may,” it would have tied the engineer to that method
and that method only.

However, it is abundantly proven that the contractor
has delivered all he could, and that the Crown readily
accepted all he offered and delivered, and that but for
the help of Lord, according to the testimony of Mr.
Parizeau, the works could not have been entirely
executed that season. How could it be found under
the circumstances that the Crown is guilty of a breach
of contract?

If there is a breach of contract, it is a breach by
the suppliant and of which he is alone responsible.

Indeed, where a party has by his own act or default
put it out of his power to fulfil his contract, the other
party may at once treat this as a breach of contract
without waiting for the time of performance or com-
pletion to arrive. The apprehension of the engineer
that the work was unduly delayed was in this case
well founded (1).

(1) Stewart v. The King, 7 Ex. C. R. 55; 32 5.C.R. 483.
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Contractors cannot have the Whole matter of the
contract in their hands in respect of public works
involving public interest. The Crown cannot be
at the mercy of ‘the contractor, it must protect itself,
and would do no violence to the contract, when real-
izing that the contractor was going behind in the
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execution of the works, to buy outmde to protect -

itself. '

Moreover, time was by clause 26 of the Lcontra,ct‘,«
deemed to be material and of the essence of the con-
tract, and while the stone should have been all sup-

“plied by the 15th October, 1911, the Crown extended
the period of the contract by a full month and accepted
all the stone supplied by the contractor even during
the long extension. '

~ Out of the total quantity of 5,119 tons requlred for
the work in question, the supphant supplied 2 498
tons and Lord 2,621.

If as between the suppliant and the respondent
either of them has been guilty of a breach of contract,
it is not certamly the Crown, but the suppliant him-
self.

The suppliant was given every opportunity of

delivering all the stone he could from the 10th August .

to the 15th Novembe‘r, 1911, and all he was able to
deliver within that period, which includes several

days before and after the date of the contract, was J

accepted and credited to him. If ‘there were not
enough carters available in the contractor’s own

parish for the discharge of the duties imposed upon
him by his contract, he could and should have pro-
cured that help from .outside. Brault, the son,
further adds all we had of crushed stone, we delivered
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to. the Government,—and the suppliant says the
Crown never prevented us from delivering stone.
Under the circumstances, I have come to the con-
clusion that the suppliant is not entitled to any portion
of the relief sought by his Petition of Right.
Nore—Exhibit “A,”’—a statement of the quantity
of stone actually supplied up to a certain date—not
to the end of the contract,—was filed at trial, and

‘was to be completed to the end of the contract. The

trial took place on the 10th September,—the com-
pletion of that exhibit involved the work of at most
half an hour,—but it has not as yet come to hand
and I am not on that account delaying judgment,
because, in the view I take of the case, it is immaterial.

. Judgment accordingly.

Solicitor for suppliant: Georges Fortin.

Solicitors for respondent: Rainville & Gagnon.
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BETWEEN

THE KING, oN THE INFORMATION OF
THE ATTORNEY—GENERAL or CaN- PLAINTIFF

AND
ELIZA . MURRAY (WIDOW) AND

AGATHA HATT, MARRIED WOMAN, DEFENDANTS.A

WirE or EarL HA’I‘T AND EARL
HATT

Ezxpropriation—Value of farm for. subdivision- purposes—Market
-value—Probabilities of sale in wvillage lots.

Held. The value of a farm for subdivision must be tested by the law
. of supply and demand; and where it does not appear that even
had the property been subdivided, and on the market at the date
of expropriation, it could have been all sold in lots within a reason-
able time; and, moreover, where there is a large amount of property

in the neighbourhood available for subdivision and- more suitable.

than the property expropriated, the court will value the property
on the basis of farm land and not as village or town lots, notwith-

standing that industrial enterpnses in the vicinity had developed
the locahty '

INFORMATION exhibited by His Majesty’s Attor-
ney-General for Canada for the expropriation of
property of the defendants for use as a Seaplane
Station at Eastern Passage, Portmouth, Nova Scotia.
_ The case was tried at Halifax, on the 22nd, 23rd,

- and 24th days of July, 1920.

R. H. Murray, K.C., counsel for plaintiff;

R. T. Macllreith, K.C. and C. Tremaine, counsel
for defendants .
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1020 The facts of the case are stated in the reasons for
Trre King. '

’ judgment.

Mot . AupErTE J., this 23rd September, 1920, delivered
1}‘%.‘?::::, judgment. |

" This is an information exhibited by the Attorney-
General of Canada, whereby it appears, inter alia,
that certain lands, belonging to the defendants, were
taken and expropriated by the Crown, under the
provisions of the Expropriation Act, for the use,
construction and maintenance of a Seaplane Station
at Eastern Passage, on the Dartmouth side of Halifax
Harbour, N.S., by depositing, on the 19th August,
1918, and the 6th November, 1918, respectively,
plans and descriptions of such lands, in the office of
the Registrar of Deeds for the county of Halifax, N.S.

The area taken is (19-31) nineteen and thirty-
one hundredths acres for which, it is admitted, the
Crown tendered, on the 29th August, 1918, the sum
of $13,660 for the lot first described in the informa-
tion, and the sum of $2,700 for the second lot, on the
14th January, 1919. Both tenders were refused.
The expropriation takes the best and most valuable
part of the farm upon which the buildings were erected.

The defendants by their plea, claim that the sum of
$16,360 is insufficient and ask a larger and further
compensation and relief.

Accompanied by counsel for both parties, I have
had the advantage of viewing the locus in guo which is
situate at about four miles from Dartmouth.

At the date of the expropriation the property in
question was used and worked exclusively for farming
purposes,—it was a farm in the full acceptation of the
term. True, there had been at that time some few
applications for building lots to be carved therefrom,
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and the owners, as part of their policy, had refused
to sell finding it undesirable to.interfere with the
property as a whole; but, at that date, no building
lots therefrom had been sold. Subsequently, as
. appears by the evidence, a few were sold.

As a farm, it was nothing but a very ordinary farm,—
below the average of what may be termed good farms.
The soil, upon the part fit for cultivation, is very

ordinary, and a great part of the farm to the east is

_rocky and covered with bushes and trees.

The compensation is to be based upon the value to
the owners of land at the date of the expropriation,
taking intd__ account all its prospective potentialities,
but only the existing value of such advantages at the
date of the.expropriation (1). '

The value of the farm for subdivision . purpdses
must be tested by the law of supply and dermand. ‘It
does not appear from the evidence that if the property
had been subdivided and in the market at that date,
that it could have been all sold in lots within a reason-
" able time. The oil works at Imperoyal have developed
that locality, but there is any amount of property in
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that neighbourhood available for subdivision, that

would be taken'in preference to the lands in question.

There were options of $80,000 for the whole, _and

.$50,000 for half of the farm, given upon this property,—
one of them, however, was of a very uncertain char-
acter—but- such options never matured, and are very
much of a speculative character. Some extravagant
amounts would be arrived at, if the testimony of some
of the witnesses for the owners were given heed to;
but they are based upon public talk, especially arnong
promoters, in the locality, built upon the comparative
prices which were obtamed from subdivisions in other
(1) Trudel v. The ng, 49 8.C.R. 501, and cases therein cited.
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localities. That is not of much assistance when it is
sought to find the market price of this property at
the date of the expropriation, especially when the

Reasonstor demand for lots there must be admitted to bé very

Judgment.

small.

-As expressed .by Anglin J. in the Trudel case (ubi
supra), p. 514: “Of anything which a farseeing
purchaser would take into account in estimating
what he should pay for the property, * * * * the
owners are entitled to the benefit in fixing the value
of the land for purposes of expropriation.”

And indeed, when we consider the amount tendered
and offered by the Crown, we must come to the
conclusion that such consideration and basis have
been weighed and accepted before arriving at the sum
of $16,360, because that amount is far beyond the
value of the property ae a farm.

Viewed as a farm, with the advantage of the poten-
tiality of being turned into subdivisions within a
fairly reasonable time, the buildings, with very few
exceptions, can only have a demolition value and not
the value established by some of the witnesses on the
basis, as to what it would cost in our days to build
them anew. The dwelling house appears to have
been built over 60 years ago.

At the date of the expropriation, it could not fairly
be expected that this property could be all sold
within a reasonable time as building lots. -Sales
would be very slow, and spread over a very long period,
if ever they were all sold. There was no market for
such a large subdivision in such locality at the date of
the expropriation.

The tender and offer made by the Crown, which
appears to be very reasonable under the circum-




\

Vor. XX, EXCHEQUER COURT REPORTS.

stances, is based as appears from the evidence, upon
the valuation of Crown witness Morrison,—but as
this witness has, apparently, left out some items for
which the owners should receive compensation, and

upon which the witness when at trtal placed additional

value, I have come to the conclusion that if $2,000
be added to the tender, as representing compensation
for severance, the water-lot, fence, second well, ete.,
etc., in fact covering all other legal element of com-
pensation,—that a very fair and just award will be
arrived at.

Eliza Murray, one of the defendants, is vested
with only a life interest in the property, and ‘it is
admitted by both parties, that she was born on the
11th October, 1864,—she being of the age of 54 at
the date of the expropriation,—her ' life-interest .is
assessed, according to the tables found in Cameron
on Dower, at 55:89 per cent of the award, and Agatha
Hatt at 44-11 per cent for the reversion. |

Therefore, there will be judgment as follows: 1st, the
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lands expropnated herein, are declared vested in the -

Crown a8 of the date of the expropriation; 2nd, the
compensation for the lands taken and for all damages
resulting from the expropriation, is hereby fixed at
the total sum of $18,360, with interest on the sum of
.$15,660 from the 19th August, 1918, to the date
hereof, and on $2,700 from the 6th November, 1918,
to the same date; 3rd, the defendants are entitled to
recover from the plaintiff the said sum of $18,360 in
the following proportion, viz.: Eliza Murray,—for
her- life-interest, 55-899,, equal to $10,261.40, and
Agatha Hatt, the reversion representing 44-119,
" equal to $8,098.60—with interest as above mentioned—
upon their giving to the Crown a good and sufficient
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D2 {title free from all mortgages or incumbrances what-
Tar Kine. goever upon the said expropriated property. 4th, the

aouzh  defendants are also entitled to the costs of the action.

l}e?lsona f(:t
u ment. .
Bmen Judgment. accordingly.

Solicitor for plaintiff: R. H. Murray.

Solicitor for defendant: C. Tremaine.
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BETWEEN . .
THE KING, oN THE INFORMATION OF 1920
St
\L’:\[‘HE ATTORNEY-GENERAL OF CAN- PLAINTIFF; = Sept.23.
ADA . o it ittt e
rd .
AND

N

JAMES LACK, MATTHEW T.
REID, INGLIS N. SPROTT,
ROBERT S. McCURDY, ROY B.
McCURDY anp SAMUEL C. *DEFENDANTS.
CROCKETT, tHE TRUSTEES OF
MippLETON CHURCH, MipDLE MUs-
QUO’/ oBoIT, COUNTY OF HALIFAX .

Expropriatio;n—-Cem{atery properfy—Owner's title—Value to Owner—
Not commercial property. _

The property expropriated was part of a cemetery consisting of sand

and gravel and was absolutely vested in trustees “for cemetery

purposes in connection with the congregation and * ~ ' * shall

be used solely for such cemetery and for no other purpose whatso-
ever.”

Held, that the defendants were entitled to fair compensation to the
extent of their loss, which loss is to be tested by what was the
value to them at the date of the expropmatmn That in view of
the restriction.upon their use of the property as a cemetery, the
property was ouf of the market for commercial purposes.

That consequently, its value could not be estimated on the basis of its
sand and gravel deposits, but as a cemetery ‘only.

INFORMATION exhibited by His Majesty’s Attor-
ney-General for the Dominion of Canada for the
expropriation of a part of a cemetery property belonging
to the defendants for the purposes of the Intercolonial
Railway, a public work of Canada.

The case was tried at Halifax on the 21st day of .
July, 1920.

4597—8
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The facts are stated in the reasons for judgment.

My, J. H. MacKinnon counsel for plaintiff.

‘L. A. Lovette, K.C. and Jas. A. Sedgewick counsel
for defendant.

_AupeErTE J. now (this 23rd September, 1920)
delivered judgment.

This is an information exhibited by the Attorney-
General of Canada, whereby it appears, infer alia,
that certain lands, belonging to the defendants, were
taken and expropriated by the Crown, under the
provisions of The Expropriation Act, for the purposes
of the Intercolonial Railway, a public work of Canada,
by depositing, on the 21st September, 1917, a plan
and description of such land, in the office of the regis-
trar of deeds for the county of Halifax, province of
Nova Scotia.

The areataken is 0:674 of an acre,—very nearly
three-quarters of an acre,—for which the Crown offers
the sum of four hundred dollars.

. The defendants, by their plea, claim:—

(a) To be reinstated.

(b) In the alternative for the acquisition of new
land, under drainage of same, removing the soil
therefrom to the depth of six feet and replacing the
same with similar gravel to that expropriated, $6,000.00.

(¢) In the alternative, for 16,000 cubic yards of
gravel removed at 25 cents per yard, $4,000.00. _

(d) ‘In the alternative for 83 burial lots, taken at
$10.00 per lot, $880.00, and for direct and conse-
quential damage to remaining part of cemetery and
to cemetery as a whole, $1,000—m$1,800.00.

This piece of land so expropriated formed part of a
Presbyterian cemetery, of about three acres in size,
at Middle Musquodoboit, N.S., purchased by the
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defendants, under statutory power hereinaf ter refer-
red to, on the 8th April, 1908, for the sum of $150, as
appears by the deed of sale filed herein as Exhibit ‘‘J.”

When the officials of a railway take upon them-

selves the responsibility of interfering with a ceme- -

tery, for the sole purpose of getting gravel,—mot

.even for their right of way,—should they not expect

this -callous step involves the payment of a very
adequate compensation for this interference with the
field of the dead, when gravel is available elsewhere?
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The nature of the soil is gravel and sand, and it is .

considered as the best material for cemetery purposes.
The population. of Middle Musquodoboit, under

the last census, is 1,000,—and under. witness Bishop's
estimate it is composed of about one-third of Metho-

dists, and two-thirds of Presbyterians, dlthough. that

estimate is criticised by witness Guild, who contends

that the population is composed of not even a quarter

of the Methodist denomination. Both denomina- -

tions bhave a separate cemetery. There are 110
families belonging to the Presbyterian denomination,

and we have it stated in evidence that the farming

districts in Nova Scotia have not 1ncreased in the
last thirty or forty years.

The new Presbyterian . cemetery was opened in

1912 or 1913,~—and "there is also the old cemetery
which is still open and used by a part of the popula-
tion,—and the lots in the new cemetery are being sold
at $10 eagh. -
The defendants were duly incorporated under the
name of trustees of Middleton Presbyterian Church
of Middle Musquodoboit, by an Act of the Nova
Scotia Legislature, in 1896 (Ch. 116, 59 Vict.), and

by an Act of the same Legislature, in 1908 (8 Ed.
45979
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1920 VII, ch. 198), the trustees were authorized and
THEEU“G empowered to purchase the three acres in. question
Lack etal. herein for cemetery purposes. By section 2, thereof,
Reasonsfor these lands were “absolutely vested in the said trus-

tees and their successors in office forever, in trust
nevertheless for cemetery purposes in connection with
the said congregation, and the said lands and every
part thereof shall be used solely for such cemetery

and for no other purpose whatsoever.”

It appears from the evidence of John B. Archibald
that 0-30 of an acre, of this new three-acre cemetery,
was on the 1st April, 1915, sold by the trustees to the =
Crown for the sum of $100. This piece of land is
sald to have been so sold to give access to the Bruce
propesty, and it is contended that it- was taken from
the flat below, where the land is wet and low and
valueless for cemetery purposes, although, as appears
by the several plans filed at trial, that part was also
divided in burial lots.

The first sale decreased the area of the cemetery and

. the present expropriation has also had the further
effect of decreasing its size; but, does it really remain

so small as to be useless, as not answering the require-
ments of the community for a long time to come,
when used conjointly with the old cemetery in exist-

ence for over 100 years, and of a much smaller size?

I am unable to answer this question in the affirmative.

However, be that as it may, the defendants are
entitled to a fair compensation to the extent of their
loss, and that loss is to be tested by what was the value
at the date of the expropriation of such piece or parcel
of land to them, with the statutory title above men-
tioned. |
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The value of the land to the taker, the party expro-
priating, is no test or criterion for arriving at the
compensation. The nature of the trustee’s title
takes the property out of the market for commercial
purposes and it has no value as such.

The defendants own the property solely for ceme-
tery purposeé, and it could not be used for any other

purpose. .

- The consideration of the value of the gravel and
sand,—the nature of the soil, is no test, as is well
established by a long catena of cases. It is, I repeat,

the value to them for cemetery purposes that must be

considered (1).

I am unable to find, as stated in the evidence, that
88 lots were taken by the present expropriation,—I
cannot find that quantity on the plans filed.

It was conceded on the argument at bar that rein-
statement was impossible under the circumstances.

The whole of the cemetery is subdivided on plans,
but such subdivision is not all plotted on the ground.
To collect $10 a lot upon the land expropriated, the
trustees would have to expend a certain amount of
-money. ' '

-Taking all the circumstances of the case into con-
sideration, I will allow for the land taken, which, after
proper allowance being made for roads, clearing,
grubbing, seeding, etc., would sell at $10 a lot,—a
sale spread perhaps over a number of years,—the

(1) See Stebbing -v. Metropolitan Board of Works, (1870) L.R. 6 Q.B.
87; Manmatha North Mitler v. Secretary of State for India,
(1897) L.R. 24 Indian App. P.C. 177; Secretary of State for
Foreign Affairs v. Charlesworth Pilling & Co. (1901) A.C. 373;
Browne & Allan—Law of Compensation, 97, 1563; Cripps on
Compensation, 102, 103; Hudson on Compensation, 301, 302,
1192; Nichols on Eminent Domain, 212,
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1920 lump sum of $600.00 and for the expenditure in the
Tas Kive gorrection and alteration of roads, occasioned by the
Lace et al.  oxpropriation, together with the unsightly appearance
Reasomsfer of the land on the expropriated side, the total sum of

~ $150.00, making in all the sum of $750.00.

There will be judgment, as follows, to wit:

1st. The lands expropriated herein are hereby
declared vested in the Crown from the date of the
expropriation.

2nd. The compensation for the land so taken, and
for all damages resulting from the said expropriation
is hereby fixed at the sum of $750, with interest thereon
from the 21st September, 1917, to the date hereof.

3rd. The defendants are entitled to recover from the
plaintiff the said sum of $750 with interest as above
mentioned, in full satisfaction for the land taken, and
for all damages resulting from "the expropriation,
upon their giving to the Crown a good and sufficient
title free from all mortgages or encumbrances what-
soever upon the said property.

4th. The defendants are also entitled to the costs
of the action.

Judgment accordingly.
Solicitor for plaintiff: R. H. Murray.

Solicitor for defendant: Jas. A. Sedgewick
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IN THE MATTER of the Petition of

CHRISTIE BROWN CO., LIMITED, or TtHE 12
Ciry oF TORONTO, IN THE PROVINCE OF ONTARIO, September 7.
CANADA,

AND

IN THE MATTER OF A Sepeciric TRADE MARK TO-
BE Usep IN CONNECTION WITH THE MANUFACTURE
AND SaLeE ofF Biscurrs, Caxs, PuppINGS, AND .,
InFanTs’ Foob. :

Trade-Marks—Names—Registration thereof.

Petitioners had manufactured biscuits, cake, puddings and infants’
foods-for a great number of years, and had adopted and used the
word or name “Christie’’ as a trade-mark on.labels and in adver-
tising to denote and distinguish their goods. The word “Christie”
had been used alone, not associated with the word “biscuits’ or
other words and had acquired a distinctive meaning.

Held, On the facts stated (following the decision of the Supreme Court, -
in the cage of Horlick Malted Milk (1), that the word “Christie”
should be registered as a specific trade-mark to be used in connec-
tion with the manufacture and sale of biscuits, cake, puddings and
infants’ foods.

PETITION praying for an order directing that the -
trade-mark ‘“Christie” may be registered as a specific - ,
.trade-mark to be used in connection with the manu-

facture and sales of biseuits, etc. .

(1) Judgment rendered 1st May, 1917. Not reported.

Reporter’s note.—In the case of the Welck Company Limiled,
decided the same day by Audette J. this case is referred to and followed,
and the word “Welch’s”’ was ordered to be registered.
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1920 In the petition it is alleged that petitioners are the
o Ee  proprietors of a trade-mark consisting of the word
Trave-Marx “Christie” which has been used by them for many

Statement. years in connection with the manufacture and sale of

Tidgmens: Biscuits, Cake, Puddings and Infants’ Food, manu-
"~ factured and sold by them and which distinguishes
said goods from similar goods manufactured and sold
by others, which said trade-mark is known through-
out Canada as denoting and distinguishing the goods

of your Petitioners. .

That the Petitioners made application to the
Minister of Agriculture of the Dominion of Canada,
for the registration of the said trade-mark as above
described as a specific trade-mark to be wused in
connection with the manufacture and sale of biscuits,
cake, puddings and infants’ foed, in accordance
with the provisions of the Trade-Mark and Design
Act.

That the Minister of Agriculture by letter dated
December 15th, 1914, refused to register the said
trade-mark on the grounds that it is a surname and
could be registered only in accordance with an order .
from the Exchequer Court of Canada.

That as a matter of fact the word ‘‘Christie” has
through long continued use and extensive sale acquired
a secondary and trade-mark meaning denoting and
distinguishing goods manufactured and sold by the
Petitioners.

From several afﬁdawts filed it is estabhshed that
the petitioners have been manufacturing biscuits,
cake and infants’ goods for a great number of years
and that the trade—mark"‘Christie” has been used
by them to denote the goods manufactured by them
and has acquired a distinctive meaning; that the said
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word “Christie” has been used alone, and not the

name of the petitioners’ company, as a specific trade-
~ mark aforesaid; and that said word “Christie” was
not associated with the word ‘“biscuits’” or other
words; and that, for a great number of years, biscuits
manufactured by the Petitioners have had the word
“Christie” alone stamped thereon and said word has
been used in advertising and on labels to denote and
distinguish the goods of the petitioners.
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The application first came before the President of

Court, on the 2nd. March, 1920, but was then
enlarged to permit petitioners to furnish further
evidence.

The application again came up on the 7th of Sept-

ember, 1920, and order for registration of the trade-

mark as prayed for, was granted on the same day.
Russell Smart, counsel for petitioners.

Turg PRESIDENT oF THE CoOURT, now (this 7th
September, 1920), delivered judgment.

This application stood over with the view of fyr-
‘nishing further evidence. The petitioner has now
shewn that for a great number of years the word

“Christie’’ alone has been used on the biscuits manu- .

factured by the firm. I should doubt very much the
validity of such a trade-mark as the word “Christie’’
alone. My granting the order to register does not
conclude any validity of the trade-mark, should an
action be brought on the trade-mark, for contesting its
validity. It has the effect merely of casting the onus
upon the parties sued. In any event I find myself
bound by the judgment of the Supreme Court of
the 1st of May, 1917, in the Petition of the Horlick
Malted Milk Co. to have their trade-mark “Horlick’s’”’
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1920 - registered. The Supreme Court have thought that

—

clnre  they were entitled to register such a trade-mark and
Trave-Mark directed by their formal judgment that the word
Reasons for ‘Horlick’s "’ be registered. The case of “Christie” is
~  very much stronger than that of Horlick and I am
bound by the judgment of the Supreme Court. I
order that the word ‘“Christie” as applied to biscuits,
cake, puddings and infants’ foods be registered as

prayed.

Ordered accordingly.




MEMORANDA

Appeal- has been taken to the Supreme Court in the followmg
cages reported in this part and are still pending :—

1. BAUER CHEMICAL COMPANY, Inc., vs THE. SANATOGEN COMPANY
OoF CANADA.

2. Tee King, vs THE OnTARIO & MINNESOTA PowER COMPANY.
3. LocoMoTIVE STOKER CORPORATION vS COMMISSIONER OF PATENTS.

4 [NEITZKE Vs SECRETARY OF STATE, B | -
WIEHMAYER VS SECRETARY OF STATE. '

5. WoLrE Company vs THE Kine.
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BETWEEN

THE BAUER GHEMICAL COM-) S— o
PANY, Inc.............. PO g

“Nov. 6.

AND

SANATOGEN COMPANY OF CAN-
ADA, LIMITED, AND WILLIAM {DEFENDANTS.
WELLSTED BARRY ............

Trade-Marks, Title- thereto—Custodian of Alien Property—Iriendly
Nation—War Measures Act.

B. and Co. were a German firm, operating in Germany but had branches
of their business, under different names, in England and the
United States. The trade-marks in‘question were registered in
their name both in England and in Canada.

When England declared war, in 1914, the trade-marks reglstered
there were avoided, and the British branch of business sold by the
Custodian of Alien Property, and while the conditions of sale
did not provide for the sale of the goodmll it was subsequently
inserted in the deed of sale.

When the U.8. entered the war,—the American business of B. and
Co. who were owners of the Canadian trade-marks, was taken
over by the American Alien Property Custodian, and later -the
stock and all assets of this company including the Canadian
trade-marks, were by him sold to American citizens, who, with
other shareholders, now constltute the plaintifi company.

Held, that by the sale of the American Alien Property Custodian to
the plaintiff of all the assets of the German company aforesaid, ~
the Canadian trade-marks in question passed to them and
became their property.

2. Although the title was obtamed by the plaintiff during the war, it
was derived from the Government of a friendly. nation, allied with
Canada in the war, which purged it of any taint of German owner-
ship, and was not adversely affected by anything contained in the
Canadian Wac Measures Act, 1914, or any of the Orders in Council
made thereunder.

3. That there being no privity of contract between those who purchas-

" ed from the English Custodian and the defendants and moreover,
a8 defendants cannot invoke jus lertii they have falled to prove
any title to the trade-marks in question.

13137—1
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ACTION by plaintiff to restrain the defendants by
injunction from selling or offering for sale their.pre-
parations under the trade-marks ‘‘Sanatogen” and
“Formamint.”

The case was tried at Quebec on the 5th and 6th
days of August, 1920, before the Honourable Mr
Justice Audette.

Russell Smart and J. Lorne McDougall for plaintiff.
Louzs Cété and J. E. C. Bumbray for defendants.
The facts are stated in the reasons for judgment.

AupeTTE J. now (November 6, 1920) delivered
judgment.

By this action the plaintiff company seeks to restrain
the defendants from infringing certain trade-marks
and labels and from selling or offering for sale, in
Canada, Chemical Pharmaceutical preparations under
the trade-marks ‘“‘Sanatogen’’ and ‘‘Formamint” or
having thereon certain labels described in the trade-
mark of 1912 hereinafter referred to.

The defendants, by their statement in defence,
deny that the plaintiff company has any ownership in
the said trade-marks, and they themselves make
claim to the same in the manner hereinafter set forth.

On the 6th April, 1904, Bauer & Co., a co-partner-

ship of Berlin, Germany, registered in Canada, a
general trade-mark consisting of the word - ‘“Sana-
togen.”’ ;
On the 1st March, 1905, Luthe & Buhtz, of Berlin,
Germany, registered in Canada, a specific trade-mark
consisting of the word ‘‘Formamint’” and on the 27th
October, 1905, assigned the same to the said Bauer
& Company, of Berlin. Germany. :
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"Then on the 25th January, 1912, the latter, styling
-itself “Bauer & Cie,” manufacturers and chemists, of
.231 Friedrichstrasse, Berlin, Germany, trading also as
The Sanatogen Company (A. Wulfing & Co.) of 12
Chenies Street, London, England, registered in Canada
in the name Bauer & Cie., trading as above mentioned,

the specific trade-mark ‘“Formamint,” with label and -

device of a triangle containing the initials “A.W. &
Co.” and the facsimile signature “A. Wulfing & Co.”
On the same day, the 25th January, 1912, the same
p‘}rty likewise registered in Canada, in the name of
“Bauer & Cie.” trading as above mentioned, the
specific trade-mark of “Sanatogen’” with label bearing
the sigdature “A. Wulfing & Co.” and-the device of
a chield provided with rays bearing the initials ‘‘S.
CO ) B
. Then the war between Germany and Great Britain
broke out on the 4th August, 1914.
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The German firm of Bauer & Cle, or Bauer &

Company, according to withess Hehmeyer, is com-
posed of John A. von Wulfing and Ernest- Moeller;
Wulfing - belng the senior partner and “the one Wlth

more money.”’ : , _

Hehmeyer, on behalf of - the German ﬁrm, opened
in the United States a regular branch office of the
business, and later on a manufacturing plant. The
manufacturing plant for “Formamint” was opened in
1913 and the Sanatogen manufacturing plant was
decided to be erected in 1914, shortly after the out-
break of the war. : :

In 1914, owing to war condltlons, Hehmeyer the
German agent in America, says he was given a new
power ‘of attorney superseding any other power of

attorney limited in its powers, the new one being .

'13137—1%
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more comprehensive and broader, and i1t was under-
stood whatever Hehmeyer would do and say would
have the sanction of his principal, the German firm.

Hehmeyer registered, under a partnership name in
the United States as agent for Bauer & Co., carrying
on business under the name of Bauer Chemical Co.

Then in June, 1916, Hehmeyer received a wireless
from Bauer & Co., telling him to incorporate and pass
the interest of Bauer & Co., to an incorporated com-
pany so that they would be the owners of the stock as
that was the ultimate outcome. The German citizens
remaining the owners, as shareholders in this new
company. The principal reasons assigned for this
incorporation was the alleged improvement in export
facilities, as at that time the British black-list threat-
ened to hamper their exports to other countries.
The English branch of the German company having
on the 11th May, 1916, under the Trading with the
Enemy Amendment Act, 1916, been taken over by
the English controller.

The new company was incorporated on the 26th
July, 1916, and then on the 31st July, 1916, Heh-
meyer made to the company an offer in writing,
purporting to be on behalf of Bauer & Co., to transfer
to the company all their American rights in North
and South America to the products of “Formamint”
and “‘Sanatogen.” Hehmeyer testifies he had no
specific instructions from Bauer & Co. to transfer the
Canadian rights, but took it upon himself to do it
under his general power of attorney, (Exhibit No. 10),
thinking it was the best thing to do under the circum-
stances, in the interests of Bauer & Co. His idea,
it is clear, was to save as much as he could for his
German principal, knowing moreover that the Custo-
dian of Alien Enemy property in England had taken
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‘over the English business of A. Wulfing & Company
and was controlling it, and knew it when he incorpora-
ted his'American company. (See Exhibit “A”).

The United States entered into the war on the 6th :

‘Apl'll 1917.

Then, in June, 1918, the American business of this
German company, 'cerllying on business under the
name of the company incorporated in July, 1916, was,
under the provisions of the Act of Congress known as
The Trading with the Enemy Act, taken over by the
‘American Alien Property Custodian, and an order for
sale of the same-was made on the 23rd day of J a,huary,
1919. (Exhibit “B”).

As a result of such proceedings, both the stock of
the Bauer Chemical Co., Inc., and all the assets of the
company were sold, by the Alien Property Custodian
to three American citizens, Henry Pfeiffer, G. A.
Pfeiffer and Garfred D. Merner, who now constitute,—
‘with changes in the list of shareholders,—the Bauer
Chemical Co., Inc., under which name they ‘carry on
their purchased business, and who claim the Canadian

trade-marks which were transferred by Hehmeyer,

agent of Bauer & Co., of Berlin, in 1916, and which
they claim formed part of what they bought from the
American Alien Property - Custodian.

The war between Germany and England was
declared on the 4th August, 1914, and was brought
to a termination on the 10th January, 1920, as will be
seen by the proclamation published in the
Gazette ”’ on the 29th March, 1920. .

Therefore, it appears that, in England, the Official
controller seized the business of the branch established
by the Berlin firm of Bauer & Cie, avoided their
trade-marks, forfeited and sold their business. In
the United States, after entering in the war, the
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1920 American branch of this Berlin firm, incorporated
B'fggn into a company, was also forfeited and sold and the

Cmmaocat  present plaintiffs,—American citizens and an American
Inc.  company,—became the owners of the trade-marks
Ségﬁo&? held in the company’s assets at the time they were

013:;;33:‘» sold and which were purchased by them -from the

Wi American controller.” Continenial Tire Co. v. Daim-

Wi
VBLLSTED ler (1).

Ressone for 1N Canada, Parliament enacted the War Measures
Judgment.  Act, 1914, and further enacted thereunder a number
of Orders in Council, the most important among them
being that of the 2nd May, 1916, respecting Trading
with the Enemy, (3 Sup. Proclamations O.C., relating
to Kuropean war, 1558), and that of the 14th day of
April, 1920, “Canada Gazette,” 1st May, 1920) respect-
ing the Treaty of Peace at Versailles. |

Under this Canadian legislation, or otherwise,—
after much labour,—I have been unable to find any
enactment depriving the plaintiffs of the owmnership
of the trade-marks in question. There is no text of
law dealing with a matter of this kind.

The sale by the American Custodian has purged
any taint of German ownership, and the present
plaintiffs,—an American company,—are entitled to
the trade-marks in question. The action is based
upon a sale, or title derived from the Government
of a friendly nation allied with Canada in the war
and the Canadian legislation and Orders in Council
respecting Trading with the Enemy do not affect
such a transaction.

In the case of Porter v. Freudenberg, In re Merten’s
Patent (2), Lord Reading, said (at p. 869): ’In ascer-
taining the rights of aliens the first point for con-
sideration is whether they are alien friends or alien

(1) [1915] 1 K.B. 893. (2) [1915] 1 K.B. 857.
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enemies. Alen friends have long since been, and dre at
the present day, treated tn reference to civil rights as if
they were British subjects, and are entitled to the
“enjoyment of all personal rights of a citizen including
the right to sue in the King’s Courts.”

Coming to the consideration of the defendants
right to the trade-marks in question and in respect of
which they are sued for infringement, it will be suffi-
cient, without going into the details of the several

transactions in that respect, to state again that Bauer

& Co., of Berlin, had also a branch of their business in
England. When the war broke out, their trade-
marks were avoided and their business seized and

sold by the English Official Custodian. And while

the conditions of sale did not provide for the sale of
the good will, it was inserted in the deed of sale and
the defendants claim that the Canadian trade-marks
passed with such good will. o

Hehmeyer testified that all trade-marks in question
were the property of the Berlin partnershlp How-
ever, with respect to the defendants’ claim to the
ownership of the trade-marks, it will be sufficient to
say, whether or not such sale by the English Custodian
dealt with or included the Canadian trade-marks,
that they have absolutely failed to prove any title

or proprietary rights thereto. Moreover, they cannot |

invoke jus fertii, the rights which could be derived
from the sale by the Custodian in England. Theré
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_1s no privity between the defendants and those who . -

purchased from the English Custodian, in London,
England. All the defendant Barry .did was to take
the law in his own hands, and to assume and convert
to himself the said trade-marks and assign them to a
company formed by him and which, according to his
own evidence, was himself. .
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The defendants’ claim to the trade-marks in ques-

~tion has not been proven.

Plaintiffs’ counsel at bar, taking sec. 84 of the
Order in Council of the 14th April, 1920, (C.G., 1st
May, 1920) into consideration, declared he would be

' satisfied to limit the recovery of damages resulting

from the infringement to the period after the ter-
mination of the war, and effect is hereby given thereto.
Under the circumstances, there will be judgment in
favour of the plaintiffs, and they are at liberty and
entitled to issue the injunction prayed for, the damages
or the account of profits to be ascertained only from
the date of the termination of the war. The whole
with costs in favour of the plaintiffs. '

Judgment accordingly.
Solicitors for plaintiff: Fetherstonaugh & Co.

Solicitors for defendant: Louis Coté.




s

Vor. XX. * EXCHEQUER COURT REPORTS. 131

BETWEEN : - . 1920
y‘ Oct. 14.
HIS MAJESTY THE KING...:.... PLAINTIFF;  Beasons for
AND

JAMES LOONAN, LLOYD JAMES
LOONAN, ano THE STANDARD ;DEFENDANTS.
AGENCIES, LIMITED......... 3

Ezxpropriation—Defendanls’ title—Severance—Use by su_ﬂ'erance——Com—
pensatwn

Held, that where, by a previous expropriation, I's property was severed
by the right of way of the Canadian Pacific Railway crossing it,
and where ‘L’s. use of a culvert under their tracks as a passage ‘
from one parcel of land to the other was only by sufferance and
without legal right or title, the fact that the expropriation takes
land on each side of the said right of way and thus closes the
access to the culvert, is not a severance of the property for which
L. would be entitled to compensation, and nothing will be allowed
for same in fixing the compensation under expropriation proceed-
ings. ‘

INFORMATION exhibited by the Attorney-General
of Canada to have property taken for purposes of a
hospital at Calgary valued.

The case was tried before the Honourable Mr.
Justice Audette, at Calgary, on the 28th day of Sep-
tember, 1920. ‘ ‘

- Clifford F. Jones, K.C., for the plaintiff.

I. W. McArdle and W. 4. Damdson, for Loonan
Bros.; defendants.

The facts are stated in the reasons for judgment.
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AvupeETTE J. now (October 14, 1920) delivered
judgment. '

THIS is an information exhibited by the Attorney-
General of Canada, whereby it appears, inter alia,
that certain lands, belonging to the defendants, were
taken by the Crown, under the provisions of The
Expropriation Act, for the purposes of a hospital, by
depositing on the 29th April, 1919, a plan and descrip-
tion of such lands in the office of the registrar of the
Southern Alberta Land Registration District, at
Calgary, in the province of Alberta.

The title to the land is admitted to be in the defend-
ants, James Loonan and Lloyd James Loonan, subject
to a mortgage in favour of the other defendant, the
Standard Agencies, Limited.

By the information, the Crown offers for the lands
so taken, the sum of $10,175.50—an amount already
tendered, and being at the rate of $50 an acre. The
defendants, by their statement of defence, claim the
sum of $30,357.00.

The lands expropriated are composed of two parcels,
separated from one another by the right of way of
the Canadian Pacific Railway. The piece to the
north of the railway contains 142.03 acres, and the one
to the south 61.48 acres, making in all 203.51 acres.

This property, slightly over 1,100 acres, was at
the time of expropriation and years previous, used
as a ranch, with the exception of the piece adjoining
the Bow River which was rented to Chinamen for
gardening purposes and also for raising oats. The
900 odd acres were, previous to the expropriation,
used as a ranch and rented as such for $300 a year.
The whole ranch, four years previous to the expropria-
tion, had been offered at $35 an acre.
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As will be seen on looking at the plan, the Canadian
Pacific Railway crosses the property and severs the
northern part from the comparatively small piece to
the south. There existed a severance of the property
by the railway before the expropriation.  The expro-
priation does not take the whole of the parcel lying
between the railway and the Bow River,—leaving to
the west 30 acres of the parcel south of the railway.
It was claimed, at bar, that the parcel south of the
railway was not absolutely severed before the expro-
priation, because, as stated by some .witnesses, there
existed a viaduct under the railway track connecting

the south and north of the railway, through shich

cattle could easily pass. However, it turned out that
the so-called viaduet is nothing but a large culvert,
to conduct the waters of the creek under the railway;
but it could formerly be used by the cattle and was so
used. = This state of things has been changed since the
Crown has expropriated the piece of land immediately
adjoining the railway to the north.

However, while this culvert was so used, as a-means
of access between these two pieces of property, there
was no evidence adduced to show that the defendants
had any legal right to use that culvert as such a means
of access,—the reasonable inference being that they
bad been using it by sufferance without title, and that
the railway could at any time fence in each side of the
right of way, thus cutting off access.

Three witnesses were heard by each party respec-
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tively, and here follows a brief summary of their testi-

mony. On behalf of the owners, witness Parslow
values the land taken, without improvement, at $70
an acre, and contends the balance of the farm, about
911 acres, are damaged by the expropriation to the
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extent of $10 an acre, and the 30 acres, on the south-
west, to the extent of $10 and $15 an acre. Henry
Jones values the buildings at $1,400, the breaking of
140 acres at $5 an acre, and the land at $50 an acre.
The property as a whole he values at $30 an acre, and
the damages to the 911 acres remaining at $7.50 an
acre. He values the lands expropriated from the
Canadian Pacific Railway, taken at the same time as
those in this case and for the same purposes, at $45
an acre—an amount which was accepted by the
Canadian Pacific Railway.

Ge.?rge H. Johnston values the land taken at $50
an acre, and contends the 30 acres, above referred to,
are depreciated to their full value. The depreciation
of the 911 acres he placed at $6.25 an acre, and values
the buildings at $2,300.

On behalf of the Crown, witness Clarry values the
land taken to the north of the railway at $35 an acre,
and to the south $40 an acre, and the buildings at
$1,500, and adds that the 30 acres are depreciated 50
per cent. He cannot say, if any, by how much the
balance of the farm is depreciated by the expropriation.
Witness Thompson values the land taken at $50 an
acre, including the buildings which he knows for 29
yvears. He values the depreciation to the 30 acres at
$10 an acre, and testifies there is no depreciation to the
011 acres. Albert C. Johnston values the land taken
at $35 an acre, and would not allow anything for the
breaking of the land, adding that the thirty acres are
possibly depreciated by $10 an acre. -

The Canadian Pacific Railway, for lands of a similar
class, accepted $45 an acre, including all damages,
and the Crown tendered in this case at the rate of $50
an acre, including the buildings and for all damages.
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" Taking all the circumstances into consideration,

I have come to the conclusion to allow as follows:
For the land taken, 203.51 acres, at the
rateof $50 anacre............... ...% 10,175.50
For the buildings.................... 1,500.00
For damages to the 30 acres, to the ‘ '
| south west, at the rate of $10 an acre. - 300 00
For the breaking. of 100 acres to the
southat$5........................ "~ 500 00

Coming to the question of damages to
the 900 odd acres, north of the lands"
taken, I consider that if the whole

property were worth $30 an acre, and - '

if $50 an acre is allowed for the 203
acres taken, this excess price of $20 an
acre over the $30 for this piece so
carved out of the whole property, off-
sets whatever damages or depreciation -
which might result from the expro-
priation to the parcel to the north. ..
Making in all the sum of...... e $ 12,475.50

Therefore, there will be judgment as follows, viz.:

. 1st. The lands expropriated are declared vested in
thé Crown as of the date of the expropriation.

2nd. The compensation for such lands and property
including all damages whatsoever resulting from the
expropriation, is hereby fixed at the sum of $12,475.50
with interest thereon.from the 29th day of Apnl
1919, to the date hereof.

3rd. The defendants, James Loonan, and Lloyd
James Loonan, upon giving to the Crown a good and
sufficient title to the lands expropriated, free from
the mortgage to the Standard Agencies, Limited,
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1020 gnd free from all other mortgages or incumbrances
Tae Kive  whatsoever, are entitled to recover from the plaintiff

0.
z‘lﬁfifgg the said sum of $12,475.50 with interest as above

Jauzs Loo- mentioned.. Failing the said defendants, James Loo-

g ize  nan and Lloyd James Loonan to discharge the mort-

Aesxems,  gage in favour of the Standard Agencies, Limited, the
'— _ latter will be entitled to such part of the compensation

Reasons for
Judgment. yanies as will discharge the said mortgage, and if
any monies remain over and above the same, they
shall be paid to the other two defendants, but always
-~ in the manner above mentioned. ‘
4th. The defendants, James Loonan and Lloyd

James Loonan are also entitled to their costs.
Judgment accordingly.

Solicitor for plaintiff: J. W. McArdle.

Solicitors for defendants, Loonan Brbs. : Jones, Pescod
& Hayden.
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In ADMIRALTY_

»

ON APPEAL FROM THE BRITISH COLUMBIA ADMIRALTY ,

, DISTRICT.
‘ BETWEEN

THE J ESSI EM AC AND OTHERS PLAINTIFFS
__ (Appell.ants)
) AND |

: THE SEA LI ON AND OTHERS. ... .DEFENDANTS.
(Respondents)

‘ Admiralty Law—Foul berth—Inevitable acczdent—Common harbour of
refuge—Negligence. - ~

A number of tugs with their ’tow, including the tug J. M had sought
shelter in Trail Bay off the B.C. coast, recogmzed ag a proper
. harbour of refuge.

The J.M. being first in, was tied to the shore in a safe posﬂuon, three .

other tugs with their tow subsequently came in and tied alongside
of her. At 2 a.m. the next day the Sea Lion and tow also sought
shelter in the same bay, and anchored some distance out, but not
far enough to allow her tow to swing clear ‘of these boats and the
shore.. Af 3 p.m. on the day of the accident theé Sea Lion and her
tow swung towards the Island with the tide and wind, and the tail
end of the boom caught on the shore. At 9.30 p.m. the Séa Lion

~ realizing she was dragging anchor, attempted by pulling at right
angles to get her tow off the land, using the stern of the boom as &
fulerum. In so doing the boom parted and swung towards the
tugs tied at the shore fouling the boom of the 2nd from the shore,
breaking the eastern and centre shore wires fastening the J.M.S
“boom . to the shore, shovmg the rafts and tugs to the west; and
landing the J.M. on a rock and foundering her. -

Held, (reversing the judgment appealed from) that there bemg ample
space from which to select a safe anchorage, the act of the captain of
the Sea Lion in electing to anchor where he did and i in not allowing

~ sufficient space between the Sea Liori and her tow and‘the other
" vessels on the shore to permit of his .tow having a good, clear,

swing-berth, showed a want of ordinary maritime skill and ordinary
prudence a.nd -care and - constltuted his anchorage a foul berth
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2. That having taken a foul berth endangering other crafts, the Sea
Lion was in fault and liable.

3. That a manoeuvre is primi facie wrong if it creates a risk of collision;
but the best test is that when it creates such a rigk and eventually
actually contributes to the accident, it then beccmes a fault.

4. That a vessel not under way but fastened to the shore and moored

in a position of safety, and exhibiting proper lights, is entitled to

assume she is as safe as moored at a wharf or pier.

AN appeal from the decision of the Honourable Mr.
Justice Martin, L.J.A., of the British Columbia
Admiralty District, which dismissed the action of
plaintiffs (1). :

Hume Robinson K.C. for appellants.
. Wallace Nesbitt K.C. for respondents.

The appeal was heard before the Honourable Mr.
Justice Audette, at Ottawa, on the 19th day of October,
1920.

The facts are stated in the reasons for judgment.

!AUDETTE J. now (November 6, 1920) delivered
judgment.

THIS is an appeal from the judgment of the local
Judge of the British Columbia Admiralty District,
pronounced on the 9th day of April, 1919, dismissing
the plaintiffs’ action.

To properly understand the facts of the case and the
circumstances of the accident, which are clear and
simple, it is well to keep before our eyes the plan of

- the locus in quo, filed as exhibit No. 2.

Owing to strong westerly winds producing heavy
sea in the open, a number of tugs, about ten in number,
towing raft of logs, sought shelter in Trail Bay, under
the lee of Trail Island, off Sechelt, where it is custom-

(1) Reported 19 Can. Ex. C. R. 78,
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ary and proper to go for refuge in westerly winds; but 1820
unsafe with easterly winds, with pérhaps the exception T
of the inside shore position between the S.W. point of 4o Orazzns
the Island and a well known rock,—a position taken SE’{%JEON
by the Jessie Mac upon her arrival in the Bay. AND OtHERS.

At various times between the 30th March and the ‘}3?1?:,:1{2’
1st of April, 1918, inclusive, these tugs and rafts came 4
into this haven. The Jessite Mac (39 tons net) was
the first to come in, at about 3 o’clock a.m., on the
30th of March, and made fast to the shore with two
5/8 inch wires at the east end and centre and with one
14 inch wire at the west. Subsequently, the Chieftain, -
the Stormer and the Volcan, tugs of approximately the
same size, came in with rafts aid moored alongside
the Jessie Mac's boom or rafts, in the manner, approxi-
mately shewn on Exhibit No. 2, with, however, some’
slight variations whiclt have no bearing upon the case.

The Sea Lion, 129 feet long, 22 beam, drawing 15
feet, gross tonnage 218, with 46 swifters, in three
rafts or booms, arrived on Sunday, the 31st March,
at 2 o’clock a.m., and cast anchor at the place shewn
on exhibit 2, and with westerly wind prevailing, ‘her
tow swung to eastwa.rd She remained there all
Sunday and the best part of Monday, when at.3
o’clock, p.m. on that day, her tow changed position,
the tide having startéd to flood and the “westerly
wind having died out and a light wind having sprung
from the: northeast (p. 153), her tow swung to the’
west, in a southerly direction, and the tail end of the
raft swung on the island and remained there fast,
until 9.30 p.m. of the same day, when the Captain said
he felt his anchor was dragging (148). Then being
asked: “Q. And what did you do as a result of that?”
(result of dragging anchor). “A. Well, I had to—

13137—2
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when I was dragging my anchor I seen that was going
to drag me into a very cautious position and I raised

AND (;THERS my anchor and steamed ahead.”

Tar

8sA Lion

“Q. Now, what position did you take up——lookmg

swp Omaens. af the chart—is your position practically shewn
Remererdthere? ‘““A. After I had raised my anchor I headed

more to the eastward so as to draw my tow—and I
used the stern of the boom for a fulerum.” .
“Q. And you used the stern of the boom as a fulcrum‘?”
“A. Yes, I headed towards the eastward, and used the
stern of my boom as a fulerum to swing the boom—
the whole tow, more to the eastward, so that I could
draw it straight off, so that the stern would not strike the
boats on the beach. In doing that the boom parted.”

It is well to note, by way of testing his judgment and
seamanship, that his raft went aground at 3 o’clock
in broad day light in the afternoon, and that it is only
at 9.30 p.m. when it is dark and his anchor is dragging
that he ever awakes to the necessity of doing some-
thing. The boom parted at the end of the 9th swifter,
leaving 6 swifters at the island. The tail end of the
nine swifters, with the help of the tide and the wind,
swung towards the four tugs and rafts fastened to the
shore, and struck the head of the Chieftain’s rafts.
The two wires tying the Jessie Mac’s rafts at the east
and centre broke and the four fugs and rafts swung to
the west, the western wire still holding, the Jesste
Mac being dragged unto the rock shewn to the north
west, she sunk and suffered damages for which she is
now suing in the present case.

Some witnesses contend that these big tugs usually
anchor far enough to clear the rock and the vessels
fastened to the island (pp. 116, 137). Capt. Jones
testifies that the trail of the tow fouling the shore,
would indicate the Sea Lion was anchored too close.
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Now the learned trial judge found that, under such
circumstances, the accident was inevitable.
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What is an inevitable accident? Marsden, Collision ¥ Orazzs

-at Sea, 7th Ed., p. 18, says: “In the Europa-(1), Dr.

Tae
Sea Lrown

Lushington states that inevitable accident is ‘where Axp Omazgs.

one vessel doing a lawful act without any intention of.
harm, and using proper precautions, unfortunately

happens to run into another vessel.” Again it has
been said, ‘to comstitute inevitable  accident, it is
-necessary that the occurrence should take place in

such a manner as not to have been capable of being
prevented by ordinary skill and ordinary prudence. We’

are not to expect extraordinary skill or extraordinary
diligence, but that degree of skill -and that degree of
diligence which is generally to be found in persons
who discharge. their duty. The Privy Council
adopting the language of Dr. Lushington, defined
inevitable accident to be ‘that which a party
charged with an offence could not possibly prevent-by
‘exercise of ordinary care, caution, and maritime
skill, and this must now be regarded as an authori-
tative definition.” ”

In Lowndes, Collision at.Sea, pp. 98 et seq, almost
the same definition is to be found, but it adds:
“In the subsequent case of the Locklibo (2) the same
principle was laild down in almost the same words:
‘By inevitable accident, I must be understood, as
meaning, a collision which occurs when both partles
have endeavoured by every mesns in their power, with
due care and caution, and a proper display of nautical
skill, to prevent the occurrence of the accident.” Again
in the case of W. U. Moses the same learned Judge
defined inevitable accident to be ‘that accident, that

(1) [1850] 14 Jur. 627, at p. 629. (2) 3 Wm. Rob. 310, at 318.
131372} |
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calamity, which occurs, without there being any
practicable means of preventing its taking place; it is
that accident which takes place when everything has
been done which ordinary skill, care and ability could
do to prevent the accident’.”” See also Williams’ and
Bruce’s Admiralty Practice, p. 94.

What is the first and elementary duty of a captain
picking out a berth? Todd & Whall, Practical Sea-
manship, under the chapter, intituled ‘“‘Coming to An
anchor,” says at page 81: “Supposing many vessels
are- lying about, look out and pick out a good; clear
swing-berth”” and further on he guards against bringing
up close to other vessels and against being too near the
ground to be pleasant.

Marsden, p. 461: “In coming to an anchor caution
must be used not to injure or embarrass other ships. A
vessel rounding up to, so as to bring her head upon tide,
should, before altering her helm, look round and see
that all is clear, and that her manoeuvre will not
endanger other ships.” The Ceres- (1); The Shannon
(2); The Philotaxe (3).

Then at p. 462: ““After coming to an anchor, those on
board must show proper skill and seamanship in
keeping their vessel from driving and endangering
other crafts.” -

Lowndes, p. 76: “A ship which anchors too near
another ship, so as to give her what is called ‘foul
berth,” or which neglects to drop a second anchor
when she ought to do so, and when in a gale drifts foul of
the other vessel, will be held answerable in damages. ”’

The Secret (4): “Inevitable accident is where the col-
lision could not have been prevented by proper care and
seamanship in the particular circumstances of the case.

(1) [1857], Swab. 250. (3) [1878] 37 L.T. 540.
‘2) [1842] 1 W. Rob. 463. (4) 1 Asp. N.8. 318.
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“p defendant, in order to support & defence of 1020
inevitable accident, is bound to show that everything T

s1E Mac

ordinary and usual-was done which could and ought moﬂ'_fﬂﬂé
to have been done to avoid a collision.” s:::foﬁou
See also The Saima v. Wilmore (1); The Cily of ="
Seaitle (2). | . . ‘Judgment,

A number of cases bearing upon the facts of the
case In question are hereafter cited:—

In Marsden’s Collisions at Sea, 7th ed. article 29,
p. 459, we find: “‘If one ship properly lighted (if at night)
is fast to the shore, or lying at established moorings, it
- can scarcely happen that the other would not be held -
in fault for the collision (3). ’ -

Then at p. 460: “A ship in bringing must not give
- another a foul berth. If one vessel anchors there, and
another here, there should be that space left for swing-
ing to the anchor that in ordinary circumstances the
~ two vessels cannot come together. If that space is
not left, I apprehend- it is a foul berth” (4).

In an American case it was held that a ship at
anchor is entitled to have room to swing, not only
with the scope of cable which she has out at the
time when the other ship takes up her. berth but
with as long a scope as may be necessary to enable
her to ride in safety (5).

(1) 4 Lloyd’s L.L. Rep. 218 et seq. (4) Per Dr. Lushington in The

(2) 9 Ex. C.R. 146, at 152 et seq. Northamptorn (1853), 1 Spinks,

*(3) Bee TheSecret(1872),1Asp. M.. . Ece & Adm. 152, 160. ‘
C. 318; and Culberison v. Shaw, (5) The Queen of the East cmd the
18 How(59U.8.) 584 ;Portevant v. Calypso, 4 Bened. 103.

The Bella Donna, Newb. Adm.
510; The Bridgeport, T Blatchi,
. 361; 14 Wall. (81 U.8) 116;
. The Granite State, 3 Wall. 310;
The Helen Cooper and R.L.
Mabey, 7 Blatchf. 378.
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“If a ship gives another a foul berth she cannot
require the latter to take extraordinary precautions
to avoid a collision. (1) It has been held that in the
Mersey a cable’s length between the two ships is a
clear berth (2). This, however, cannot be laid down
as a general rule, for at this distance a laden vessel
riding to the tide might, in swinging, come dangerously
close to a light vessel riding athwart the tide. And
not only must a vessel not bring up so close to another
as not to giver her room to swing, but she must not
bring up in such a place that she endangers the other
ship. She should not bring up directly ahead, or in
the stream of another ship, having regard to the -
current and also the prevailing winds. If she brings
up directly in the hawse of another ship, or elsewhere
in the neighbourhood of another ship there should
be such a distance between them that if either of them
drives or parts from her anchors, she may have the
opportunity to keep clear (3). Where a ship in bad
weather, took up a berth two cables’ length to wind-
ward of another, in an anchorage where there was
plenty of-room, and then rode with only one anchor
down and that not her best, she was held in fault for a
collision with the ship to leeward, against which she

 was driven when her cable parted in a heavy squall

“If a vessel takes up a berth alongside another
where she takes the ground and falls over and injures

(1) The Vivid (1872), 1 Asp. M.C. (3) The Cumberland (Vice-Ad.
601; The Meanatchy (1897) A. Court, Lower Canada), Stuart’s
C. 351. Rep. (1858), p. 75; The Egypl~

tan (1862), 1 Moore. P.C.N.8.373.

(2) The Princeton (1878), 3 P.D. 90. (4) The Volcano (1844), 2 W. Rob.

337; The Maggie Armsirong and
The Blue Bell (1866), 14 L.T.
340.
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the other, “she w1ll be held in fault (1) A vessel 1820

" voluntarily taking up such a berth in a dock does so soakEE
- at her own risk (2). So where two colliers were x> Otnuzs
beached near each other for the purpose of discharging sgﬁon

cargo, it was held that it was the duty of the last axp Ormmss.
comer to moor head and stern, and in such a way as l}g‘g’;“eﬁgf

not to foul the other when the wind shifted (3).” —

~ “The omission to warn a ship astern of her intention
to bring up has been held neglect of a precaution
required‘by the special circumstances of the case’ (4).
“A tug in charge of an unwieldy tow of car floats
in. New York harbour was overpowered by her tow in
a heavy squall, and, having let go her anchor, which
did not hold, she drove against a third ship. It was
held that she was in fault for not having an anchor - -
that would hold her (5) p. 463........ '

““Vessels navigating in an unusual manner or by an -
improper course do so at their own risk. p. 472... e

“A tug took her tow so close to a ship at anchor
that, upon her suddenly altering her course to clear
the ship at anchor, the tow line parted, and the tow
fouled the ship at anchor. The tug was held in fault
for the collision (6) p. 476.

In Lowndes, Collision at Sea, pp. 57 et seq.: “The
next subject for consideration is the case where one
" of the colliding ships is at-anchor. Here, supposing

(1) The Indian and the Jessie (4) The Philotaxe (1874), 3 Asp.
(1865), 12 L.T. 586; The George = M.C. 512; and see The -Queen
and the Lidskjalf (1857), Swab. Victoria (1891), 7 Asp. M.C. 9;
117; The America, 38 Fed. Rep. The Helen Keller, 50 Fed. Rep.
2566; The Addie Schlaeger, 37 142.

Fed Rep. 382; The Beham, 6

Fed. Rep. 400.
(2) The Pairiote and The Rival (5) TheJ.H. Ritler, 35 Fed. Rep.
(1860) 2 L.T. 301. - 365.

(3) The Vivid (1872), 1 Asp. N.S. (6) The City of Philadelphia v.
601. Caragnin, 62 Fed. Rep. 617.

-
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120 that a proper light has been exhibited by the ship
JEB;I;;’%‘J o ab anchor, the presumption of law is that the vessel

AND %THERE which runs into her is in fault and the burden of

SEE‘%’ON enculpating herself rests with the latter.” Thus, in

anp Omaers. the case of the Percival Forster, Dr. Lushington said:

Roone for “‘She had anchored in a place respecting which no fault
—  could be found, that is, she had a right to be anchored
where she was. The result of that is, that if any
vessel in motion comes into collision with her while at
anchor, the burden of proof lies on the vessel so coming
into collision, to show either the collision was inevitable
from eircumstances, or that the vessel at anchor was
to blame. The justice of this, which is a rule of law,
1s obvious, because a ship lying at anchor has very
little means of avoiding a collision; to a certain extent
she may possibly manceuvre, but to a small extent;
whereas the vessel driving up with the tide, whether
under steam or sail, has much greater means of: doing
whatever may be necessary.
“Even though the ship should have been anchored
in an improper place, the same rule must hold good. . . .
Supposing a carriagé be standing still, and be on the
wrong side of the road, it would be no justification for
another carriage, which might be on the right side of
the road, to run into that carriage, if the driver could
avoid it without risk to himself.”
See also Pritchard’s Admiralty Digest, p. 288, et
seq, Nos. 834, 885, 886, 837 and 888.
 See also Culbertson v. Shaw (1): ‘“where a boat is
fastened to the shore, especially at a place set apart
for such boats, lights are not required.” = “A vessel
tied to the shore is helpless.” ‘‘Ordinary care, under
such’circumstances, will not excuse a steamer for a wWrong
done,” etc. - | -
. 1) 18 How. Rep. 584 et seq: at page 587.
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In Parsons, on Shipping and Admiralty, ‘Vol. 1,
p. 573 et seq: “If a ship at anchor and one in'motion
. come into collision, the presumption is, that it is the
fault of "the ship in motion, unless the anchored vessel
was where she should not have been. The rule of
" law is the same when a vessel aground or one lying
at a wharf; is run into...... If a vessel is at anchor,
another must not anchor so near as to cause damage to
her...... If 4 vessel about to get under way is so
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near to a vessel at anchor that there is danger of a

collision, she should notify such vessel of her intention
to get under way.”

And in The City of Seattle (1), Martin, J. said:
“Her position there was tantamount to that'set in
the preliminary act,.that is to say, in being fast to the

shore; and she was not a ship ‘at anchor’ or ‘under.

way’ within the proper imeaning of these terms as
understood by seafaring men......She was moored
...... in a position of safety and entltled to assume
that she was safe. .. ...

“The fact that...... was in the position I have
referred to and that she was run down, as aforesaid,
establish a prima facie case of negligence against the
defendant ship that the rule of law set out in the case of
The Merchant. Prince (2), is properly invoked agamst
her. That is to say, the defence has failed to sustain
the plea of inevitable accident, because to do so it was
necessary to show what was the cause of the accident,
and that, though exercising ordinary care and coution
and maritvme skill, the resulf of that accident was mnevi-
table.

The Jessie Mac fastened to the shore, not ‘under
way, moored to a position of safety, exhibiting proper
~ light, was entitled to assume that she was safe.

(1) 9 Ex. C.R. 146, at 150 et seq. (2) [1892) P.D. 179,

™
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See also The Bridgeport (1), as to light, and The
Northampton (2); Lloyd’s List Law Reports, Vol. 4,
p. 283; The Ship Wandrian (3); The Helen Cooper (4);
The Volcano (5); The Granite Slate (6); Neptune the '
Second (7).

Having set forth, perhaps at too great a length, a -
number of cases and extracts from text books on the
question at issue, let us follow the modern tendency
of the courts and view the facts of the case in the
light of the first principles of law that must guide in
the present case. Craig v. Glasgow Corporation (8) —.

I am of opinion that the captain of the Sea Lion
in selecting his berth,—he being the first of the 6
large tugs to come in at anchor in the open on the
northwest of the island,—failed to show ordinary
maritime skill, ordinary prudence, and failed to exer-
cise care, caution, and maritime skill. As laid down by
Todd & Wall,—and it is of ordinary common sense
prudence for a mariner,—the first duty incumbent
upon a captain bringing his vessel to anchor is to pick
out a good, clear, swing-berth and to guard against
bringing her up close {o another vessel or the shore.

The berth selected by the Sea Lion, when there was
plenty of space available, placed her in the position
that if the tide turned and flowed to the west and if the
wind, when changing from west, did change to south-
east, instead of northeast as it did, she would swing
unto the tugs fastened at the shore. It is too obvious.
Looking at exhibit No. 2, placing a rule on the bow of
the Sea Lion—although it should be placed above her
anchor which is still more to the west, the tug and tow

(1) 14 Wall. (81 U.8.) 116. (5) 2 W. Rob. 337.
(2) [1853), Spinks 152-160. (6) 3 Wall. (70 U.8.) 310.
(3) 11 Ex.CR. 1. (7) 1 Dodson 467.

(4) 7 Blatch. 378. (8) [1919] 35 T.L.R. 214, 216.
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Would swing directly north, west and south upon the
well known rock and the four tugs and tow fastened to
the shore. That alone would denote bad seaman-
ship, want of ordinary maritime skill, ete.

However, the wind happened to shift from west to
northeast and with the tide, tle See Lion's tow
swung upon the island, grounded hard and fast, on an
exposed beach. This wrong anchoring, foul anchoring,
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resulted in taking the raft to the shore, moreover

" followed, as said by her captain, by the dragging of
her anchor as too much stress was placed upon it
from the grounding of the raft and the tide,—a position

- circumspect of consequences of danger. He then -

steamed up harder, as he said (p. 150) and pulled his
raft at right angle, to the east, with the object of
freeing her from the shore. Pulling thus at right
angle especially with the tail end of the raft grounded
at the beach,—placed a much heavier strain on the
raft, as admitted in the evidence (pp. 173, 208) with
the result that it broke at the end of the 9th swifter—
leaving six swifters to the shore, that raft being of
fifteen swifters altogether. The tail end of these 9
swifters swung to the west and struck the eastern end
of the Chiefiain’s boom,—the 2nd from the shore—
breaking the eastern and centre shore wires fastening

the Jessie Mac’s boom to the shore, and shoving the-

rafts and tugs to the west and 1and1ng ‘the Jessie Mac

on the rock and foundering her.

The following question was put to one of the expert
witnesses for the defence: “Q. So, according to you,
you would just as soon have your boom ashore as in
" open waters?”’ “A. No. No.” “Q. Then it must
be worse to have it ashore?” “A. Well, you try to
keep it off, if you can.” (p. 192. See also 137).
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1020 The answer is obvious, although some witnesses
e, contend it could be done. Some witnesses testified, -
anp OTHERS jn an irresponsible manner, that it was a proper

seamm - manoeuvre to intentionally anchor close enough to the
anp Ormess. gshore to allow the boom to come in contact with the

Beasonsfor beach and ground thereon. It is hard to believe good
~—  experienced mariners,—outside of a law suit—would
assert such a proposition. Why! All seafaring men,
mariners, worthy of the name—as a rule seek as
much as possible to navigate in open waters and
keep away from land. It was further contended at
Bar, that one of the reasons why the Sea Lion dropped
anchor where she did, was because she knew the island
protected the four tugs fastened to the shore, in that
the end of the rafts would be stopped by the island.
Overlooking that if the raft had swung north, west and
south, that then it came directly in contact with the

rock and the four tugs at the shore.

However, the irony of such an afterthought and
specious argument would not commend itself to a
competent mariner. That was the cause of the
accident; anchoring where he did eventually led to
and created the accident. A manoeuvre is prima
Jacie wrong if it creates a risk of collision; but the
best test 1s when it creates such a risk and eventually
actually contributes to the accident, and in that case
it then becomes a fault. It is a bad thing to have
your boom hung on the shore (p. 137) Good and,
competent seamen and skippers always seek good,
deep and open waters to manoeuvre-—they always
endeavour to get away from the shore and where
there is plenty of water. '

It is contended at bar that the Sea Lion had a right
to anchor where she did. No doubt that per se she
had that right; but having taken a foul berth endanger-
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ing other ’crafts, she is responsible for all that might

. result therefrom. She anchored too close to the

shore, too close to other vessels, and she did so at
her own risk and peril and she must bear the conse-
quences of a contingency to which she exposéd herself.
She must extricate herself at her own risk and peril.
The Hope (1); The Cape Breton (2); The Lancashire (3);
The Patrioto and The Rival (4).

A significant fact which should be noted is that
when finally the Sea Lion succeeded in freeing her
raft from the shore, she did not go back to her old
anchoring. She anchored, according to her. own
reckoning, about 1,000 feet further out.

The want of due diligence in picking up a clear
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swung berth and the wrong and initial manoeuvre of

the Sea Lion in anchoring at such a place, endangering
other ships, dragging -her anchor, ete., thus departing
from good and cautious seamanship, destroyed the
safe position and by her error and want of ordinary

maritime skill, prudence, care and caution she became -

and was the cause of the accident—ignoring the

dictates of good seamanship. She failed - to show.

that degree of skill and that degree of diligence which
is generally to be found in persons who discharge the

duty of master on board ships and which amount in-

other words, to what is termed good seamanship.:

The tugs fastened to the shore, in a like position to
vessels moored at a wharf or pier, had the right to
expect that incoming large vessels anchoring outside,
would anchor far enough to avoid colliding with them.

If the Sea Lion had anchored far enough away from

(1) 2 W. Rob. 8, (3) 2 Asp. N.8. 202.
(2) 9 Ex. C.R. 67, 116; 36 S.C.R. (4) [1860, 2 L.T. 301.
564, 579; (1907) A.C. 112. '



152

1920
——

THE
JESSIE MacC

EXCHEQUER COURT REPORTS. - - Vo, XX.

the shore, as far as she did after the accident, her
boom would have swung free from the shore.and there

sxo Ormers would have been no accident. -
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Under the circumstances I am unable to adopt
the finding of inevitable accident. An accident that
can be avoided by mere ordinary seamanship cannot,
in any manner, be termed inevitable. The fallacy
of such a conclusion lies in the premises of the syllo-
gism; The Volcano (1); the Sea Lion having been
guilty of wrong and faulty seamanship, in anchoring as
she did, as above set forth. She was primarily at
fault in choosing her anchoring without first ascer-
taining she had a clear berth that would not endanger
other ships. The Ceres, The Shannon, The Philotaxe
(ubi supra). After coming to an anchor, her master
had to show proper skill and seamanship, in keeping
his vessel from driving and endangering other crafts.

The appeal is allowed and with costs. -

Judgment accordingly.
Solicitor for appellants: Hume B. Robinson.

Solicitors for Respondents: D. G. Marshall.

(I) 2 W. Rob. 337.
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QUEBEC ApMIRALTY DISTRICT.- 1020
: Oct. 6.
LOUIS WOLFE et al.. ... . e PLAINTIFFS;
vs.
S8 CLEARPOOL.............,.. DEFENDANT.

Ezxchequer Court, Admirally jurisdiction of—Damages—Breach of .Con-
tract—53-54 Vict.,, Ch. 27 (Imp.); 54-55 Vict.,.Ch. 29 (Dom.);
1-2 Geo. V, Ch. 41. ’

Plaintiffs were stevedores and had entered into a contract with the
owners of the ship defendant to load the vessel on its arrival at the
port of Montreal. ‘

" The captain of the ship refused to allow them to load the vessel in
accordance with their said contract, and thereupon the ship was

. arrested on a claim for damages arising out of breach of said
contract. ; : . )

Held, that as the Admiralty jurisdiction of the Court is derivable from *
the Colonial Courts of Admiralty Act, 1890 (53-54 Vict. ch. 27 Imp)
and the Admiralty Act, 1891 (54-55 Vict., ch. 29, Dom.) such
jurisdiction is no greater than the Admiralty jurisdiction of the
High Court of England. '

2. That upon the facts the Court had no jurisdiction to entertain the
present action. '

ACTION in rem by plaintiffs, stevedores, to recover
$1,700, damages alleged to have arisen out of.a -
breach of their contract to load the ship defendant.

The case came up before this court, on a motion to
dismiss the action for want of jurisdiction, on the
15th September and again on the 6th of October,
1920, before the Honourable. Mr. Justice Maclennan,
at Montreal. , .

A. Chouwinard for plaintiffs. : ‘ -

Lucien Beauregard, for defendant.
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- The facts and questions of law raised are stated in
the reasons for judgment.

MacrEnnaNn D.LJ.A. now (6th October 1920)

Judgment. delivered judgment.

This is an action in rem on a claim by the plaintiffs
for breach of a stevedore’s contract between them and
the owners of the SS. Clegrpool, the plaintiffs alleging
that the captain of this ship, on its arrival in the port
of Montreal, on or about 13th July, 1920, refused to
allow them to load the vessel in accordance with their
contract, whereupon they arrested the ship on a
claim for $1,700 damages arising out of the breach
of said contract. The ship has been released upon
a bond and the defendant now moves for the dismissal

‘of the action and all proceedings had therein upon the

ground that this Court has no jurisdiction in an
action of this kind.

. 'The Exchequer Court derives its admiralty juris-
diction from two statutes, the Colonial Courts of
Admiralty Aet, 1890 (53-54 Vict., ¢. 27, Imperial),
and the Admiralty Aect, 1891 (54-55 Viet., c. 29,
Canada.) From these statutes it is clear that the
jurisdiction of the Exchequer Court, as a Court of
Admiralty, is no greater than the Admiralty juris-
diction of the High Court in England. The expression
“Admiralty jurisdiction of the High Court” does not
include any jurisdiction which could not have been
exercised by the Admiralty Court before its incor-
poration into the High Court or may be conferred by
statute giving new Admiralty jurisdiction; Bow Mec-
Lachlan & Co. v. Camosun (owners) 1).

(1) 79 LJ.P.C. 17; [1809] A.C. 597.
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. The Admiralty Court has never exercised a genmeral 1920
jurisdiction over claims for damages. Its jprisdiction Lovs, Woure
was originally confined within well defined limitsg, 7 ..
which have been extended by the Admiralty Court - room..
Act, 1840 (34, Viet., c. 65, Imperial) and the §pemsfor
Admiralty Court Act, 1861 (24 Viet., ¢. 10, Imperial).
Under section 4 of the latter Act the Admiralty
Court was given jurisdiction over any eclaim for the
building, equiping or repairing of any ship if, at the
time of the institution of the cause, the ship or the
proceeds thereof are under arrest of the Court, but no
provision was made in the statute giving jurisdiction
to the Court to enforce a claim for damages for breach
of a building contract, whether there was an arrest
or not, and the Privy Council held in the Camosun
case, that the Court did not have jurisdiction in such a
clain. By the Admiralty Court Aect, 1840, the
Admiralty Court was given jurisdiction to take cog-
nizance of all claims and causes of action of any person
in respect of any mortgage of any ship, whenever such
ship was. under arrest by process issued from the
~ Court of Admiralty or the proceeds of any ship having
been so arrested have been brought into and were in
the lx'egistry of the Court,.and by the Act of 1861 the
Court was given jurisdiction over.any claim in respect
of any mortgage duly registered "according to the '
provisions of the Merchant Shipping Act, whether the
ship or the proceeds thereof were under arrest of said
Court or not. The Camosun case was an action on a
mortgage in favour of the builders registéred under the
provisions of the Merchant Shipping Act, and it was
held in that case that the Admiralty Court had no
jurisdiction to enforce a claim for damages by the
owners for breach of the contract for building the
13137—3
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were against the ship or against the builders.

By the Merchant Shipping (Stevedores and Trim-
mers) Act, 1911, 1-2 George V, chap. 41, claims for
work done in respect of stowing and discharging on
board or from any ship, the owners of which do not
reside in the United Kingdom may be enforced as
claims for necessaries in all Courts having Admiralty
jurisdiction. This statute contains no provision for the
enforcing of a claim founded on a breach of a contract
in respect of stowing or discharging.
~ The plaintiffs’ claim is clearly one for breach of a
contract in respect of stowing and the principles
which were applied by the Privy Council.in the Camo-
sun case on a claim for breach of contract for the
building of a ship are applicable, in my opinion, to a
claim for breach of a stevedore’s contract.

In Cook v. the 8S. Manauence (1), Chief Justice
McColl, in the British Columbia Admiralty District
of this Court, in an action for an alleged breach of
contract to carry plaintiff from Liverpool to St.
Michaels and thence to the Yukon Gold Fields, where
proceedings were taken against the ship and a warrant
of arrest was obtained, held that even if the breach
alleged were established the plaintiff was not entitled
to a lien on the ship and the action was dismissed.

In the case of The Monirosa (2}, an action in rem for
breach of a charter party originally brought in the
City of London Court under the provisions of the
County Courts Admiralty Jurisdiction Amendment
Act, 1869, and transferred to the High Court by the
order of the latter, Sir Samuel Evans said:—

(1) 6 Can. Ex. C.R. 193, (2) 86 L.J. Adm. 33.
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“The Court could not have entertained the action 1820
if it had been originally brought in this Court, because Louts Nowrs
it has not been entrusted with powers like those o

. 88, Cuman-
conferred on County Courts by the County Courts  roor

Admiralty Jurisdiction Amendment Act, 1869. Why Fgiene fer
that is so I do not know. Those interested in ship- —
ping have urged the extension of the powers of this .
~ Court to enable it to decide causes arising out of
agreements made in relation to the use or hire of a
ship, and also in relation to the sale and purchase of
ships. It seems to me to be fitting that this should
be done; but that is a matter for the Legislature.
But if the City of London Court had jurisdiction to
entertain the action, this Court by transferring the
action to itself obtained jurisdiction to hear and
determine it, notwithstanding that it could not have
been instituted here originally.”

I have examined the cases cited at the hearing and

many others, but I have been unable to discover any
case in which it was held that the Admiralty Court
has jurisdiction to enforce a claim for the alleged
breach of a contract between a stevedore and the
owner of the ship. The owner is not a party to this
action and, in my opinion, this Court had no juris-
. diction to hear a claim of this kind whether against
the ship or against the owner and the matter should
be left to be settled in a Court having ]urlsdlctlon'
to entertain the claim.

For these reasons the plaintiffs’ action ‘must be
dismissed with costs. ‘

Judgment accordingly.

Solicitors for plaintiffs: Poplinger & Choutnard.

Solicitors for defendant: Atwater & Bond.
13137—31
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BETWEEN:"

HIS MAJESTY THE KING, oN THE
INFORMATION OF THE ATTORNEY- PLAINTIFF,
GENERAL OF CANADA.............

AND

LYNCH'S, LIMITED, A Bopy Cor-
PORATE, aNp THOMAS COZZO- ' DEFENDANTS.

Ezxpropriation—Special adaptibility—Compulsory taking.

The property expropriated consisted of two lots of land one on which
‘was a large bakery, and the other a vacant lot. The ba.kery was
built on a slope, allowing of a high basement on the river side
adjoining a siding of the railway, over which carloads of flour
required for the bakery could be and were brought to their very
doors, thus saving them haulage of freight.

Held; The specml suitability of the property for the business there
carried on by the owner, and the savings and additional profits
derived thereby, are elements in assessing the compensation to be
paid by the crown for a property expropriated. And, where
there is such special suitability in a property, as compared to other
neighbouring properties not so well situated for their own purposes,

. such property is of a special and higher value to the owners than
the surrounding properties, and the court will allow them an addi-
tional amount over and above what was allowed for other proper-
ties in the neighbourhood, it being the value to the owner which

“must be taken into consideration. :

2. Where an owner remains on the property after expropriation, and
makes repairs to the buildings, and puts up temporary structures,
he must assume the responsibility of such a course and its conse-
quences, and nothing will be allowed him therefor.

3. Where the owners, owing to special adaptibility of the property
to the business expropriated would obviously care to retain it, 10%
will be allowed for compulsory taking thereof; but nothing will
be allowed for compulsory taking of a vacant lot which was un-~
improved and from which no revenue was derived.
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INFORMATION exh1b1ted by the Attorney—Genera.l

for Canada to have the compensation for certain
properties exproprla.ted by the Crown, in the city of
Halifax fixed by the Court.

W H. Covert and E R. M acN utt, for plamtlff

J. McG. Stewart for defendants i

The case was tried before the Honoura.ble Mr.
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Justice Audette, at the city of Halifax, on the 27th

of July, 1920.
The facts are stated in the reasons for ]udgment

Avperre J. now (October 23, 1920) dehvered :

yudgment.

This is an information exhibited by the Attorney-

General of Canada, whereby it appears, inter alia,
that certain lands, belonging to the defendants, were

taken by the Crown, under the provisions of ‘the’

Expropriation Act, for the purposes of the Canadian
Government Railways, by depositing, on the 29th
December, 1917, a plan and description of such lands
in the office of the registrar of deeds for the county of
Halifax, in the province of Nova Scotia.

The lands in question are situate in ‘the city of
Halifax between Barrington street and the dry dock,
and no part thereof is under water, notwithstanding
allegations to the contrary in the Information. .

The extent of the area taken is in controversy
between the parties. After hearing the évidence, I
will accept the area of lot No. 23, at 7,025 feet, being
the actual area covered by the building that had been
thereon erected. With respect to lot No. 19, I find,

under the evidence, that the defendants, both by
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¥20  themselves and by their predecessors, in title, had
Tms Kové heen in possession of an area of 11,960 feet for a period
ms of upward of 20 years, and I fix the area at that figure.
A Booy A number of properties have been taken by the

CORPORATE

i Crown, by the same expropriation, both on Barrington

Cozzouvo. gtreet and in that vicinity. In no ‘case was there an
Reaoms fer amount over and above fifty cents a foot allowed for
™ a number of other properties, together with a certain
allowance for the foundation and .quite a number
were purchased at 20 cents a foot. All the proprie-
tors of such lands have been satisfied with the Crown’s
tender and the present defendants are the only owners

with whom the plaintiff has been unable to settle.

The catastrophe of the explosion which inflicted
upon Halifax such disaster and upheaval occurred on
the 6th December, 1917, that is 23 days before the
expropriation and the properties expropriated had all
been thereby badly shaken and wrecked. Part of

. the foundation of the defendants’ property as well as
the oven were left in a damaged state and compensa-
tion for the same is sought herein besides the value of
the land.

The defendants were using the building erected on
lot No. 23 as a large bakery, turning out between
300,000 to' 350,000 loaves of bread in the year. The
property, it must be admitted, was especially well
adapted for the defendants’ trade and business in
that it was built on a slope from Barrington St.,
towards the railway, allowing a high basement on the
river side, adjoining a spur or siding abutting to the
back of this property, from which they received in
car loads the flour required for their bakery. They,
however, did not use the railway siding for the distri-
bution of their bread or for small freight coming to
them.
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It is a well settled principle in expropriation matters,

that the¢ most cogent evidence in arriving at the
compensation for the land taken is the price which has
been paid for similar properties in the vicinity within
reasonable time from the date of the expropriation.
The highest price paid for similar numerous proper-
ties, similarly situated on Barrington street, with the

on the rear, was 50 cents a foot. Fitzpatrick v. Town-
ship of New Liskeard (1); Dodge v. The King (2).

On behalf of the defendants, one witness valued lot

23 at $1 a foot, while the witness heard by the

Crown placed a value of 50 cents. I am unable to
accept this extravagant valuation of $1, while I
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advantage of the slope and the access to the railway -

think that 50 cents a foot is about the real market

price for that lot. But the value we seek to ascertain
in the present instance, is the value to the owners
who must be compensated for their loss. Through its
special suitability for the business the owners were
carrying on thereon, whereby for the purposes of their
business they could realize savings in hauling their
freight and thereby making additional . profits, as
compared to other properties not so well situated for
their own purposes, this property was of a special and
higher value to them than the actual market value
thereof. And, as said in the case of Pastoral Finance
Association, Limited, v. The Minister (3), the value of

- the property to the owners in such circumstances, is

the amount a prudent man in the position of the

owners would have been willing to give rather than
fail to obtain it. '

(1) 13 Ont. W.R. B06. “(2) 38 Can. 8.C.R. 149,
(3) [1914] A.C. 1083. '
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The defendants, on the 6th November, 1913, bought
the two lots in question herein, with the building on
lot 23, as excavated at date of expropriation, for the
sum of $10,000, and there is no evidence upon the
record that property has since increased in value at
Halifax or that any boom in real estate has affected
the value of the property. For lot No. 23, inclusive
of the land and the excavation, I will allow, as a
special value to the defendants in consideration of the
special adaptibility to theirs business, the sum of 65
cents a foot, something like 15 cents a foot over and
above what has been allowed for the other properties
in the neighbourhood.

For the salvage value of the foundation and oven’
including both stone and brick walls, which have
ostensibly been badly shaken and wrecked by the
explosion I will allow:—

Forthewalls.................. e $ 5,666.12
and for theoven...................... 1,800.00

The defendant Lynch testified he had leave to
temporarily .repair these foundations and remain in
occupation for some time; but no satisfactory evidence
has been adduced upon this question. He procured
from the city his permit to build on the 28th of Decem-
ber, 1917, and the expropriation took place on the
following day. By remaining upon the property
and thus making repairs to the wall and putting up a
temporary structure, the defendants assumed the
responsibility of such a course and its consequences,
thus waiving in advance any right to complain. The
King v. Thompson (1); Chambers v. London, Chatham
and Dover Railway Company (2).

(1) 18 Can. Ex, C.R.23,atp. 30.  (2) [1863' 8 L.T. 235; 11 W.R. 479.
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Coming to the consideration of lot No. 19, which is
a vacant and unimproved lot at the back of lot 23 and
from which the defendants derived no Trevenue, I
~ find, under the evidence, that an allowance of 20
cents a foot—a price paid for similar and- perhaps
" better located property—would be a fair and just
compensation. Likely v. The King (1):

The Crown, when tendering at 50 cents a foot for

lot 23, and at 20 cents a foot for lot 19, had added -
thereto an allowance of 109, for compulsory taking..

While I' readily understand that this 109 might
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properly be allowed for lot No. 23—which had a’

special value to the owners for their business and

that they would obviously care to reta,ir_i its owner- K
- ship—the same' cannot be said with respect to the

vacant lot No. 19. I will allow the 109, for com-

. pulsorily taking for lot 23; but no such allowance

will be made for lot 19. The King v. Hunting (2).

" Under all the circumstances 'of the case I have come

to the conclusion of allowing for lot 23, as follows:

7,025 at 65 cents a foot....... .. .... $ 4,566.25
that is for the land with the excava- ' '

' tion being of .a special value to the

owner. ‘ y :
The salvage wvalue of the oven.......... - 1,800.00
The salvage value of the walls, both of
stone and brick, as' damaged by the :
explosion. . .......... ... .. .. . .. 5,666.12
. $ .12,032.37
To which should be added 109 for - ‘
compulsory taking.................. - 1,203.23
$ 13,235.60

(1) 32 Can. S.CR. 47. (2) 32 D.L.R. 331; 27 D.L.R. 250.
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For lot 19:

11,960 at 20 cents a foot............. 2,392.00
Makinginall..................... $ 15,627.60

Therefore, there will be judgment, as follows, to
wit:

1°. The lands and property taken herein are declared
vested in the Crown as of the date of the expropria-
tion.

2°. The compensation for the land a,nd‘property
taken and in satisfaction of all claims and damages
arising out of the expropriation, is hereby fixed at the
total sum of $15,627.60 with interest thereon from
the 29th December; 1917, to the date hereof.

~ 3°. The,defendants, Lynchs,” Limited, upon giving
to the Crown a good and satisfactory title free from
the mortgage in favour of Thomas Cozzolino and free
from all other mortgage and incumbrances upon the
property, are entitled to recover the said sum of
$15,627.60 with interest as above mentioned. Failing
Lynch’s, Limited, to procure a release of the Cozzolino
mortgage, the latter is to be paid his mortgage from
the said compensation, and whatever amount, if any,
remains over, will be paid to the said Lynchs’, Limited, -
subject always to the condition above mentioned.

4°, The defendants, Lynchs,’ Li:mited,' are also
entitled to their costs.

Judgment accordingly.
Solicitor for plaintiff: W. H. Covert.

Solicitor for defendants: W. A. Henry.
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IN THE MATTER OF THE PETITION OF SUAPPLIANT' B 1920
RieceT oF ARTHUR BILLARD,. .. ’ Sept. 23.
Rea;n: for
Judgment
AND
HIS MAJESTY THE KING........ RESPONDENT

Petition of Right; Public Work; Grain elevator; Negligence.

B. was familiar with all machinery connected with grain elevators and
the loading and unloading of grain, and on the occasion in question
had been sent to one of the shovels (leg No. 2) to instruct a novice-
how to work it. This man worked the first shovel full without
difficulty, but on the second trial it stopped, when B. gave it a
jerk which started it. He was then standing with his face towards
the platform and on turning round to return to work the rope or
bight of the rope coiled around his leg and drew him to the iron
block crushing his feg badly. No accident had ever occurred in
connection with this machmery which had been in full operatlon
for a very long time. :

The machinery was inspected every morning and this particular shovel
or leg had been inspected five minutes before the accident, and
found in every way satisfactory; and no complaint had ever been
made by suppliant in this regard.

Held; On the facts, that the accident was due to suppha.nt placmg _
himself in the position he was in at the time of the accident, and -
that he was a victim of his own negligence and carelessness,

PETITION of Right seeking to recover the sum of

$10,000 damages for personal injuries alleged to be

due to the negligence of the Intercolonial Railway’s

employees. ' . -
The case was tried before the. Honourable Mr.

Justice Audettecat the city of Halifax, on the 24th -

day of July, 1920. ' '

J. E. Grifith, for suppliant,

J. 8. Roper, for respondent.
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The facts are stated in the reasons for judgment.

AvpeTrTE J. now (23rd September, 1920), delivered
judgment.

The suppliant, by his Petition of Right, seeks to
recover the sum of $10,000 damages for personal
injuries caused by the negligence of the Intercolonial
Railway’s employees.

He had worked for the Intercolonial Railway, at
loading and unloading grain at the elevator, from
January to the 15th April, 1918, when he had left off.
However, having come back upon the works on the
last day of April, at foreman During’s request, he
then resumed the same class of work.

On the next morning, the 1lst day of May, 1918,
having gone back to work, he relates he was told by
foreman During to take a new man at leg No. 2 of the
elevator, and show him how to work it. This man
worked the first shovel full all right he says, but the
next time it stopped—he pulled again but it did not
go. Then the suppliant said, pull it that way, with a
jerk, and that time it started. When the suppliant
pulled the rope, he was standing with his face towards
the platform—he then turned around to go back, to
get away, when the rope or the bight of the rope coiled
around his leg, as he turned around to go to his work,
and took him to the iron block where he was badly
crushed. He further adds, on cross-examination, he
really did not know himself how he was caught.

~ As a result of the accident, he Wwas taken to the
hospital, and his leg, after a few days, was amputated.

The suppliant contends that leg No. 2 of the elevator
did not work well, was defective, and that he had
complained about it to During, and to the oiling man,
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Hartland, who inspects the machinery every morning.
Hartland had inspected No. 2 five minutes before the
accident. Both During and Hartland swear the
suppliant never did complain to them about leg No. 2.

No accident had ever occurred at leg No. 2, which
had been in full operation for a very long time in- the
past. And this question of defective machinery, in
view of the disinterested testimony of both During
and Hartland, as against that of Billard and others,
cannot be given entire credence, especially in con-
sideration of the circumstances of the accident, whereby
it appears conclusively that Billard, for an experienced

167
1920

Am'ntm
Bn.mnn

THE KING

Reasons for '
J udgment

man in handling such machinery, had no business and

no . justification in placing himself in-the position he
was at the time of the accident,—that is, between the
shovel and the block or machine. There was no
justification for him to stand by that rope, between

-the shovel and the block'—he was the vietim of his

own negligence and carelessness.

It is testified by the suppliant’s son that it is da.n—
gerous to stand between the two blocks. - Witness
Hartland says that the amount of slack in the rope
“depends upon the man himself operating the machine,
and if anyone chooses to place himself between the
shovel and the machine, he is there at his own risk.

The case cannot in any manner be brought within

the ambit of Section 20 of the Exchequer Court Act, .

which requires, as a condition precedent to recovery,
that the accident should be the result of negligence
of some officer of the Crown acting Wlthm the scope
of his duties and employment. *
" Having so found upon the facts, it becomes unneces-
sary to discuss the question of common employment
(1). Furthermore, it also becomes unnecessary to
(1) Ryder v. The King, 9 Ex. C.R. 330, and 368, C.R. 462.
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pass upon the improper manner in which the insurance
was obtained,—by both antidating the document
and having the signature of Billard authenticated
by someone who was not present when he signed—
together- with the third question as to whether his
acceptance of the insurance money does not estop
him from setting up any claim inconsistent with the
regulations governing his insurance. The Chief Jus-
tice of Canada, in re Conrod v. The King (1), says:
““The suppliant, having accepted $250, the amount of
insurance on the life of the deceased payable by the
Association under the rules and regulations, is estopped
from setting up any claim inconsistent with those
rules and regulations, and therefore, precluded him
from maintaining his action.”

Therefore, there will be judgment declaring that the
suppliant is not entitled to any portion of the relief
sought by his Petition of Right.

Solicitor for suppliant: J. E. Griffith.

Solicitor for respondent: 7. F. Tobin.

(1) 49 8.C.R. 577, at 581.
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IN THE MAT’I‘ER of the Petition of Right of R X
L |, - Sept:23. -
JAMES WILLIAM FLEMING ..... SUPPLIANT; ° Reasonsfor
AND . B '
HIS MAJESTY THE KING........ RESPONDENT.

Petition of Right—Public Wo'rk—--N egligence.
F was a porter in the Post Ofﬁce, at Halifax. and as such it was his
duty to attend to incoming mail bags, some of which were pushed
through a chute in the hall, to the basement. There was a door to
the chute, and when open, a8 in this instance, a chain was across
the opening as a warning, which was visible from the hall. . It , .
was algo his duty to look after the strings by which the bags were .
tied, and he had frequently seen these strings break in the past, ‘
and knew they were at times defective. On the occasion in
question, F. took hold of a bag, containing 27 or 28 empty bags,
by the small string above referred to, giving it a powerful pull
" towards the chute, the string broke and he was thrown heavily
against the chain protecting the opening, which gave way at one -
end, and he fell to the basement, m]urmg himself. It was not -
proved that the chain attachments were in a dangerous condition,
but on the contra,ry, it was established that-even if the attachments .
had been in perfect order, they could not have prevented the - .
© ¢+ accident. '

Held; On the facts, that there was no negligence on the part of any
officer or servant of the Crown, and that the accident wasg entirely
the result of suppliant’s careless and imprudent conduct. "

S

PETITION of Right seeking to recover damages
from the respondent, for injuries alleged to be the
result of negligence of respondent’s employees in the
Post Office bulldmg at Halifax. |

KE

- The case was tried at Halifax, on the 29th of J uly, L
1920, before the Honourable Mr. Justice Audette_.,
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J. Terrell for suppliant.

R. H. Murray for respondent.
The facts are stated in the reasons for judgment. -

. AupETTE. J., non (23rd September, 1920) delivered
judgment.

The suppliant, by his Petition of Right, seeks to -
recover damages for bodily injury caused by the
negligence of the respondent’s employees in the
Post Office building, at Halifax, N.S.

. The accident in question oceurred on the 2nd April,
1919, when the suppliant, a porter in the Post Office,
at Halifax, was attending to the incoming mail bags,
which were being brought from the street,—as shown
by a plan of the locus in quo, filed as Exhibit No. 3.

Keeping this plan before our eyes, it is sufficient to
say that the mail-bags, after being taken inside the
building, were deposited on the floor of the hall.
The bags containing letters were taken upstairs, by
the elevator, which is to the right coming in. Having
seen to this, he then gave his attention to the other
bags that went to the basement through the chute in
the hall, which is shown, at the end of the hall by the
chain across the frame of the door opening into it.
He then took a bag, (containing 27 to 28 empty bags)
by the (small rope) string and pee and gave it a strong
pull to move it towards the chute into the basement, .
and when: at about 214 to 3 feet from.the chute, the
string broke and with all the momemtum acquired
*from such a strong swing of the body, he struck with
his shoulder the chain placed across the door of the
chute. The chain gave way on one side owing
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to the weight and impact of his body; and the

suppliant fell into the basement, sustammg serious

- bodily injury.

. The suppliant was a porter whose duty it was to
look after these mail bags and push them,, as he says,
under the chain into the basement. But he did not
push this one, he pulled it. Had he pulled the bag to
the orifice, as a prudent man would have done, and
then pushed it into the chute, the accident would not
have happened. Was not his way an unskilful way of
handling the bag? Was he not doing his'work in an
awkward manner? His own evidence gives rise and
justification for such an idea, when he tells us that
those who were working with him complained that he
was handling the bags with too much strength. He is
a powerful and strong man. In addition to all this,
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one cannot overlook the unfortunate accident he had =

formerly met with, namely on the 12th July, 1918,
‘when pulling a mail bag he had backed into the shaft
- of the elevator and .fell to the basement on his head,

when the elevator had gone up, and he had not even

taken the elementary, precaution to look before moving
backward. He was severely injured in the first
accident—he fell on his head and had both arms
broken, and as a result of this first accident, he could
not use his right hand to its full advantage.

He was in charge of these mail bags and it was his

duty, as one of the porters, to look after those strings—
and the bag in question was a Canadian bag.

He had seen such strings break in the past on several |

occasions, and he knew as a rule, he adds, ‘““that the
strings were bad.”

13137—4
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1920 * Coming to the question'of the chain, it must first
wazs © be said that this chain was placed across that door
Fune  Jeading to the chute. That door was kept open in

Tas K. summer time, and it was when the door was open
‘}3?,‘3’;:,{2}’ that the chain did show from the hall. Now the sup-
—  pliant contends that this chain was nailed on the left side
and screwed on the right. However, he asserts that
the elevator-man, at his request, had repaired the
- side with the screws which were getting loose, and
that he had filled the holes with matches and rescrewed
them to their place. That is absolutely denied by
the elevator-man, who says he has nothing to do with
such ‘work, ‘that he attends to the elevator, is not a
porter, and further that he had nothing to do with
the repairs in the building. Umlah, this elevator-.
man, swears with emphasis that it is untrue Flemming
ever asked him to repair this chain, and that he never
screwed it before.

From the testimony of Flemming, which is so
strongly denied by Umlah, who is a disinterested
witness, it is impossible to find positively that these
screws in the chain were ever loose or had been so
replaced ‘and, indeed, from what is said of Flemming’s
strength, it would appear he would, on the occasion
in question, have pulled off the chain, whether in

- good or bad condition, by his manner of tugging at
the bags and throwing his shoulder on the chain
- with such strength.

While it may be said to be the master’s duty to
take reasonable care and to make reasonable effort to
provide a safe place and safe machinery in which and
with which the servant is to work, he does not guarantee
that the place and machinery shall be absolutely safe. (1)

(1) Scott v. London & St. Katherine Dock Co. (1865), 3 H. & C.
596, 601, 140 R.R. 627, 631.
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There was a door at the chute, and for greater
_prudence the government had a chain placed across,
more as a warning not to go beyond, than with the
idea of placing there a bulwark that would withstand
the assaults and attacks of a strong man. The mere
fact of a chain breaking off or unserewing is not prima
facie evidence of negligence (1). o | ;

Had the .suppliant looked to the string, and it was

subject to his official inspection, before tugging at
1t with such strength,—had he drawn the bag to the
orifice of the chute, instead of endeavouring, in an
awkward manner accentuated by limbs affected by
his first accident, he would not have taken the chain
across the door as a bulwark against which he could
throw ' himself, but merely as a sign or notice of danger
* and acted accordingly. In other words, had he acted
as an ordinary prudent and careful man the accident
would have been avoided. '

The case cannot in any manner be brought within
the ambit of sec. 20 of the Exchequer Court Act,
which requires, as a condition precedent to recovery,
that the accident should be the result of the negligence
of some officer of the Crown acting within the scope
of his duties and employment.

Having so found upon the facts, it becomes unneces-
sary to consider the question of common employment

2).

(1) Haywood v. Hamilion Bridge (2) Ryder v. The King, 9 Ex. C.R.
Works Co., 7 Ont. W.N. 231; 330; 36 S.C.R. 462,
Hanson v. Lancashire & York-
shire Ry. Co., (1872) 20 W.R. 207. '

Courteau v. The King, 17 Ex. C.R. 352.

13137—43
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1920 I have, therefore, come to the conclusion that there
whuss i3 in this case mo proof of negligence on behalf of an
Fumane  officer of the Crown, and that the accident was entirely

Tee Kma. the result of the suppliant’s careless and imprudent

Roapone for conduct.

g

There will be judgment declaring that the suppliant
is not entitled to any portion of the relief sought by his
Petition of Right.

Solicitors for suppliant: James Terrell. .

Solicitors for respondents: Murray & McKinnon.
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IN THE MATTER OF THE PETITION OF]
"Rigar or WILLIAM J. YATES,
or THE TowN oF NEw LISKEARD,|SUPPLIANT;
IN THE DISTRICT OF TEMISKAMING, |
IN THE PROVINCE OF ONTARIO, MER- | ,

AND
HIS MAJESTY THE KING........ RESPONDENT.

Ezxchequer Court—Jurisdiction—Injurious aﬁectwn—Tort——Expropna-
tion of Easement.

Y. by his pet,itionva,lleged that respondent constructed a dam at the
south end of Lake Temiskaming which was operated by the
Department of Public Works for the Dominion of Canada and

which raised the level of the water in the lake, flooding part of

Y’s. land, and injuriously affecting his property. No part of
his property, which is some 80 miles from the dam, was taken,
nor was any easement to flood expropriated. It is not alleged
the flooding was the result of the negligence of any oﬁicer or
servant of the Crown.

Held, That sub-sections (A) and (B) of section 20 of t.he Exchequer
Court Act must be read together, as they deal with questions of
compensation, and not damages, i.e.,, the indemnity recoverable
by owners for lands compulsorily taken, or injuricusly aﬁected
by expropriation.

The Crown, in this case; not having expropriated any ﬁnart of sup-:

pliant’s property or any easement to flood the same, the ease did not
come within the ambit of said section and the court had no juris-
diction to entertain the claim under the Expropna.tlon Act or any
- other provision of law.

.2. That the action being for the recovery of damages to land, sounded
in tort, and apart from special statutory authority no such action
will lie against the Crown.

THIS case came before this court under the provision’é :

of rule 126 for argument on points of law raised in the
pleadings. . .

176
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The argument was heard before the Honourable Mr.
Justice Audette at Ottawa on the 19th day of October,
1920. '

C. J. R. Bethune, for suppliant.

W. D. Hogg K.C., for respondent.

The points of law involved and the facts neces-
sary for the understanding of the matter are-stated in
the reasons for judgment.

AvupETrTE J. now (October, 23, 1920) delivered
judgment.

This matter comes now before this Court, under
the provisions of Rule 126, for the disposal of the
points of law raised by the fifth paragraph of the
Statement in Defence, which reads as follows: ‘“The
petition of right does not disclose any cause of aetion
within the jurisdiction of this Homourable Court
which entitles the suppliant to the relief sought herein.”

The suppliant, by his Petition of Right, claims to be
the owner of certain parcels or tracts of land in the -
town of New Liskeard, which, it is alleged, as the result
of the construction, by the respondent, of a dam at the
southern end of Lake Temiskaming, have been over-
flowed and flooded.

The dam in question has been constructed in or
about the month of August, 1912, and is operated by
the Department of Public Works for the Dominion
of Canada, and it is alleged that the effect of such
construction has been to raise the level of the waters
of Lake Temiskaming, thereby creating the damages
complained of herein. '
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The actmn is for the recovery of damages t¢’ land
and is therefore in its very essence one sounding in
tort. Apart from breach of contract or from special
statutory authorlty, no such action W111 lie agamst the
Crown.

As between subject and subject there can be no

doubt that a right of action would exist in a.case
like the present one, but the law is different as between
the subject and the Crown. -

The respondent, in the present case, has not exprop-
riated (The Expropriation Act, R.S.C. 1906, ch, 143,
sec. 2, sub-section f.-sec. 3) the easement to flood the
suppliant’s land and it therefore follows that the
Court has no jurisdiction to entertain the claim under
the Expropriation Act.

The case does not come within the ambit of sec. 19
of the Exchequer Court Act, which as defined in the
- Supreme Court-of Canada in the case of Gauthier v.

The King, (1) merely recognizes pre-existing liabilities,
n posse, of the Crown and confers jurisdiction upon'

the Court only to regulate the remedy and the relief

to be administered. \
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Can 1t-be said that the case comes within the pro- ’

visions of sec. 20 of the Exchequer Court Act?

The suppliant seeks to rest his case upon. sub-sec.
(b) of this section 20; but that contention has already
" been answered by the decision of the Supreme Court
of Canada in Piggott v. The King, (2) when His Lord-
ship the Chief Justice, says: “Paragraphs (a) and
(b) of sec. 20 are dealing with questions of compensa-
tion, not of damages.”

(1) 56 Can, S.C.R. 176, at pp. 182, 190.
(2) 53 Can. S.C.R. 626. ,
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“Compensation is the indemnity which the statute
provides to the owner of lands which are compulsorily
taken in, or injuriously affected by, the exercise of
statutory powers.”

And His Lordship, Mr. Justice Anglin, in the
same case, at pp. 632 and 633, says: ‘‘As to clause (b)
of section 20 of the Exchequer Court Act, invoked in
this court by the suppliant, damage to property
sustained in the course of construction of a public
work, through negligence or otherwise, is not ‘damage
to property injuriously affected by the construction’
of such public work.”

Therefore the present claim does not come either
under sub-secs. (a) or (b) of sec. 20.

Does the case come under sub-sec. (¢) of sec. 20,
repeatedly passed upon by this Court and the Supreme
Court of Canada?

To bring this case under the provisions of sub-sec.

' (e) of sec. 20, the injury to the property must be

the result of some negligence of an officer or servant
of the Crown while acting within the scope of his
duties and employment. '

No such negligence is even alleged upon the pleading.

The law and jurisprudence upon the subject matter
under consideration is now well settled and as said by
His Lordship Sir Louis Davies, at p. 553, re Chamber-
lin v. The King (1): “With the policy of Parliament
we have nothing to do. Our duty is simply to con-
strue the language used, and if that construction
does not fully carry out the intention of Parliament,
and if a wider and broader jurisdiction is desired to
be given, the Exchequer Court Act can easily be
amended.”

(1) 42 S.C.R. 350.
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‘In the result, following the numerous decisions 1920
upon this point of law given by the Supreme Court of WoaxJ.
Canada and my own view expressed in the case of . %
Poisson v. The King (1); and Hopwood v. The King g —— .
(2), it must be found the suppliant is not entitled, Tedgment.
to any portion of the relief sought by the .Petiti'on
of Right herein. ‘ c |

Pl

Solicitor for suppliant: C.J. K. Bethune.

Solicitors for respondent: Hogg & Hogg. .

(1) 17 Ex. C. R. 371, (2) 16 Ex. C.R. 419.
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1920 QUEBEC ADMIRALTY DISTRICT.
Nov. 11.
CHARLES A. FINNIGAN.......... PLAINTIFF;
vs.
SS. NORTHWEST . ................ DEFENDANT.

Shipping—Jurisdiction—Action on mortgage—Registration according to

Merchant Shipping Act—Amendmeni—Costs.

Action in rem, to recover balance due on a Deed of Mortgage, executed

at Buffalo and registered there according to the law and regula-
tions of the state of New York. The ship was arrested and
subsequently released on bail. After other proceedings had in
the cause, defendant moved for an Order to set aside the writ of
summons, ete.,for want of jurisdiction. On the hearing F. moved to
amend, which amendment was in substance an allegation that
defendant undertook to have the ship placed under Canadian
Register and to mortgage the ship, which he failed to do. The
ship was not under arrest or seizure at the time of the institution
of this action.

Held; On the facts, that in as much as the Admiralty Court possessed

no original jurisdiction over mortgages of ships, and that by the
Admiralty Court Act, 1840 (34 Vict. ch. 65, Imp.) the Court was
only given jurisdiction in respect to mortgages, when the ship or
proceeds thereof were under arrest by process from that court;
and that later by Admiralty Court Act, 1861 (24 Vict., ch. 10,
Imp.) the High Court of Admiralty was given jurisdiction over
claims in respect of any mortgage duly registered according to the
provisions of the Merchant Shipping Act, 1854, whether the ship
or proceeds thereof were under arrest of the Court or not, the
Court is without jurisdiction to entertain the present claim.

2. In as much as by his proposed amendment, the plaintiff endeavours

3.

T

to add a claim for damages for breach of contract to grant a
mortgage, which claim could not be entertained by the court, the
plaintiff will not be allowed such an amendment.

hat where defendant could have made his motion at an earlier
stage and thus saved the parties useless proceedings and expense,
he will only be allowed the costs of action up to' the time he
could have so moved.
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ACTION in rem agamst S.8. N o*rth*west cla,lmmg by,
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endorsement on the writ of summons the sum of CEARW ‘A,

$76,997.62, balance due on a deed of mortgage executed
ati Buffalo and registered there according to- the laws
and regulations of the state of New York.

The matter came before the Honourable Mr. Justice

Maclennan, Deputy Local Judge in Admiralty, by

way of motion to dismiiss for want of jurisdiction, at
Quebec, on the 25th day of September, 1920,

Thomas Vien K.C., for plaﬁntiﬁ.

FINN[GAN

88. Nonm—
WEST. .

Reasons for

Judgment,

Louvs 8. St. Laurent “and A C. M. Thomson for

defendant

The facts are stated in the reasons for judgment.

MACLENNAN D.»L.,J . A. now (November 11, 1920) '

delivered judgment.

THIS is an action in rem against the S.S. North-
~ west and by the endorsement on the writ of summons

the plaintiff claims the sum of $76,997.62 for the

balance due on a certain deed of mortgage executed
at Buffalo, on the 19th' day of November, 1918, pay-
able in American funds at Buffalo on the 1st of July,
1919, with interest at six per cent (69) and for costs.
The ship was arrested and released on bail, pleadings

were filed and some other proceedings were had in the "

cause. The defendant now moves for an order to
set aside.the writ of summons, the service thereof and
the warrant and the seizure thereon, the defendant’s
bail released and the action dismissed with costs
on the ground of want of jurisdiction of this Court

to hear and decide the present cause. On hearing -
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of this motion the plaintiff moved for leave to amend .
the endorsement on the writ of summons by adding
the following words:—

““the whole as completed and amended by a memor-
andum of terms of settlement of mortgage claim of

Charles A. Finnegan against the steamer Northwest

and John F. D’Arey, dated November the 10th, 1919,
by which the defendant Charles A. Barnard under-
took to have the said steamer Northwest placed on
the Canadian register, and a first mortgage on such
vessel registered on the Canadian Register against
the said steamer Northwest, to secure in favour of the
plaintiff in this case the payment of the above men-
tioned mortgage.”

and by adding certain paragraphs to statement of
claim alleging at greater length the matters referred
to in the proposed amendment of the endorsement of
the writ.

The Admiralty Court possessed no original juris-
diction over mortgages of ships, but by the Admiralty
Court Act, 1840 (3-4 Vict., chap. 65, Imp.) section
3,—the Court was given jurisdiction over claims or
causes of action in respect of any mortgage of a ship
whenever such ship or the proceeds thereof were
under arrest by process issued from the Court of
Admiralty, and by the Admiralty Court Act of 1861
(24 Vict., chap. 10, Imp.) section 11, the High Court
of Admiralty shall have jurisdiction over any claim in
respect of any mortgage duly registered according to the
provisions of the Merchant Shipping Act, 1854, whether
the ship or the proceeds thereof be under arrest of the
sald Court or not. The Merchant Shipping Act, 1854,
is now replaced by the Act of 1894. The jurisdic-
tion of the Exchequer Court as a Court of Admiralty

. in cases on mortgages is derived from the Imperial




.
Vou: XX, EXCHEQUER COURT REPORTS.

Statutes of 1840 and 1861 aboire referred to. The
mortgage upon which the present action is brought
was executed at Buffalo, in the State of New York,

U.S.A., on 9th November, 1918, and was registered .

. in the office of the Collector of Customs for the Port
of Buffalo, N.Y., on 19th November, 1918, according
to the law and regulations of the state of New York.

The pleadings and mortgage on their face show that -

the mortgage upon which this action is based i 1s not a
mortgage registered according to provisions "of the
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Merchant Shipping Act, but is a mortgage registered .

. according to the law and regulations of the state of
. New York. The ship was not under arrest or seizure
at.the time of the institution of this action, and,
unless the plaintiff is entitled to amend by alleging a
new cause of action over which the Court has juris-

diction, the -defendant’s application for dismissal of |

the proceedings will have to be grantéd. The plain-
tiff’s proposed amendment is in substance an allega-

tion that Charles A. Barnard undertook to have the
~ ship placed under Canadian register and to mortgage

the ship in favour of the plaintiff and that he has
failed so to do. Any eclaim which might be based on
the failure of the owner to carry out an agreement to

grant a new mortgage must necessarily be in the

nature of damages for the non-execution of the agree-
ment, or, in other words, for the breach of a contract
by which the owner of the ship undertook to grant a
mortgage after the ship had been registered in Canada.
This ship was brought from Buffalo to Quebec where
certain repairs were made and the ship was registered

on the Canadian register under a mew name, but a’

new mortgage has not been executed in favour of
plaintiff. The question therefore arises as to the
jurisdiction of the: Court to deal with a claim for the
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breach of a contract to grant a mortgage. If the Court
has no jurisdiction in such a claim, the plaintiff’s
motion to amend should not be granted. The Admir-
alty Court has never exercised a general jurisdiction
over claims for damages and its jurisdiction was
originally confined within well defined limits which
have been extended by the Admiralty Court Acts of
1840 and 1861. Neither of these Statutes give juris-
diction on a claim for damages arising from breach of
contract.

In the case of Bow, McLachlan & Co. v. Camosun
(owners) (1), it was held in the Privy Counecil that the
Admiralty Court had no jurisdiction in a claim for the
breach of a contract to build a ship whether there was
an arrest or not, although the Court, under section 4
of the Imperial Statute of 1861, had jurisdiction over
any claim for the building of a ship if, at the time of
the institution of the action, the ship or the proceeds
thereof were under arrest of the Court. In my opinion,
the same principles apply on a claim for damages for
breach of a contract to grant a mortgage and, holding
that opinion, I must come to the conclusion that the
plaintiff is not entitled to amend the endorsement on
the writ and the statement of claim.

At the hearing plaintiff submitted that defendant’s
motion to dismiss for want of jurisdiction came too
late and should not be entertained. The defendant’s
objection is that under the statute there is absolute
absence of jurisdiction which is quite a different
thing from a mere technical objection which could be
waived by appearance and other proceedings——in the
action. In the case of Stack v. the barge Leopold (2),

(1) 79 LJ.P.C. 17, 1909, A.C. 507.
(2) 18 Can. Ex.C.R. 325.
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I held that an objection to the jurisdiction could be

raised at the trial and, upon the authorities cited in
that case, I am of opinion that this objection to
defendant’s motion is-unfounded.

As T have come to the conclusion that the record
shows that the action 18 based on a mortgage not
- registered under the Merchant Shipping Act, the Court
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is without jurisdiction. Defendant’s motion to dis--

miss could have been made at an earlier stage which
would have saved some useless proceedings and
expense to the parties.

There will therefore be judgment dismissing the
action, setting aside the arrest and releasing the
bail, with costs of defendant’s motion to dismiss and

with the general costs in the action up to and including .

the release of the ship on bail; and the plaintiff’s
motion to amend .the endorsement on the writ of

summons and the statement of claim will be dismissed -

with costs.

Solicitor for plaintiff: Thomas Vien K.C. -

3

Solicitor fdr defendant: Lewis St. Laurent K.C.
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In THE MATTER OoF GRAY DORT MOTORS,

LimMiTED,

AND

IN THE MATTER OF A SpPECIFIC TRADE-MARK CON-
SISTING OF A ROUND CIRCLE IN THE CENTRE OF
WHICH ARE THE WORDS ‘‘GrRAY DorT’, THE
BORDER OF THE SATD TRADE-MARK BEARING THE
wORDS “‘OWN A” AT THE TOP, AND WORDS ‘‘You
WiLL Like IT,” AT THE BOTTOM.

Trade-Mark—Company’s name—Secondary meaning—Advertisement.

Petitioners were incorporated in October, 1915. Since then they have
done a large business in motor cars, and have used a trade-mark
consisting of a round circle in the centre of which are the words
“Gray Dort”, the border of the said Trade-Mark bearing the
words “Own a” at the top, and the words “You will like it,” at

- the bottom.

Held; That, had the petitioners used as their trade-mark the words
“Gray Dort"” alone, their five years user would have entitled them
to have had the same registered as a trade-mark, and, in view of
that, the fact of their using additional words as above mentioned,
in connection therewith, should not have the effect of vitiating
their right to register, and that the trade-mark as described and
used should be registered. H. G. Burford & Company’s trade-
mark “Burford” (1919) Ch. D, 28, referred to.

"PETITION of the Gray Dort Motors, Limited,
praying for an order of this Court directing ;the regis-
tration of the words “Gray Dort” in the middle of a
circle on the border of which are the words “own a”
at the top, and “You will like it,”” at the bottom, as a
trade-mark to be used in the sale of their motors.
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The petltlon was first. heard by the Honourable Slr 920
- Walter Cassels at the city of Ottawa on the 14th day
of May, 1920, and enlarged sine die to allow petitioners 15,

to submit authorities. The matter was again spoken pozar Doar

to on the 11th November, 1920. =~ , THD, SHADE:
’ T ‘ . Reasons f

M. @G. Powell, for petitioners. o 7 Judgment.

No one appeaxjing for the Minister of Trade and
Commerce. ,
The facts are stated in the reasons for Judgment

THE PRESIDENT OF THE COURT, now (November
19, 1920) delivered judgment. '

The petitioners, Gray Dort Motors, Limited, are a
Canadian corporation having their head office in the
city of Chatham. They were incorporated on the
25th Qctober, 1915. They ask for registration of a
specific trade-mark consisting of a “round circle” in - -
the centre of which are the words “Gray Dort,”’—
the border of the said trade-mark bearing the words
“Own a”’ at the top, and the words “You will like it”
at the bottom.

The advertisement requn'ed before the a.pplica,tion

is made states that notice is given that a petition
" of “Gray Dort Motors, Limited,” etc., that a certain
trade-mark described in said petition consisting of a
circle in the centre of which are the words “Gray
Dort,” the border of the said trade mark bearing the
words “Own a’’ at the top, and the words “You will
like it,” at- the bottom, be registered.

A large number of affidavits have been filed showing
that a large business has been built up, and that this
specific trade-mark, including the words above the
circle, have been attached to every motor sold.

131375 |
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1920 For a consrderable time I had doubts whether a
trade mark, such as I have described, contained the

mre ©ssentials of a trade mark, having regard to the fact
Gray Dort of thege words “Own a,” and “You will like it,” being

Morors Livn-

D, P included as part of the trade-mark.

Reasons for The Privy Council, in the case df the Standard
—— " Ideal Co. v. The Standard Manufacturing Co., (1)
have practically stated that under the subsequent

sections of the Trade-Mark Act, there must be the
essentials of a trade-mark, and that our decisions

followed the line of decisions in England.

In the case of Perry Davis & Son v. Lancaster
Harbord (2), the application was made for the regis-
tration of the words ‘“‘Pain Killer.” It is true the
cases differ to a certain extent, but on one point their
Lordships agree that what was used as the trade-mark
was not the words ‘“Pain Killer” alone, but ‘‘Perry
Davis’ Vegetable Pain Killer.” Lord Halsbury, for
instance, at page 320 states as follows:

“Now, finding this difficulty in his way, the learned
counsel contended that the word ‘pain-killer’ alone,
dissociated from everything else, was what had been
used. As a matter of fact I find against him on that,
as each Court in turn has found against him. The
evidence negatives it. It appears to me that which
was registered as a trade-mark was used as a trade-
mark together with the words ‘Perry-Davis, and
‘vegetable,” the one set of words forming, to my mind,
just as much part of the trade-mark as the other.”

Lord Herschell says at page 322:

“Now, how has the appellant in this case marked,
identified or distinguished his goods? Not merely
by putting upon them the words ‘Pain Killer,” but by

(1) 1911, A.C. 78. (2) 15 A.C. 316.
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putting on them the Words"Perry Davis’ Vegetable
Pain Killer.” It seems to me impossible to say that
he has used the words ‘Pain Killer’ as his trade- mark.”

1890

1920 °
St

Inre
GraY Dorr

And Lord Macnaghten’s words are to the same Morors Lna-

effect (at page 322): “It seems to me also, upon the

TED, TRADE~
MARK.

evidence, to be perfectly clear that the appellant did Reasons for

not use the WOI‘dS ‘Pain Killer’ separa,tely and alone as
his trade-mark.

In this particular case on the face of the petition
- and by the advertisement, the words “Gray Dort”’
have not been used alone, but always with the words
“Own a”’ at the top, and underneath it ‘“You will
like it.” The reason I mention it is that on the
argument before me, Mr. Powell contended that if
the applicant be not entitled to a trade mark as

prayed, that at all events they should be entitled to

register the words “Gray Dort.”

There is no question about it, that on the trade-
mark. as shown by the petition, and in the affidavits,
the words “Gray Dort”’ form the prominent feature
of the trade-mark and one which would strike the
eye. Had the applicants used as their trade-mark the
words “Gray Dort” alone, I think on the evidence of five
years user they would have been entitled to registration.

The decision in the Court of Appeal in the case of
H. G. Burford’s & Company’s application, (1)
might be referred to. That was an application for re-
gistration of the word “Burford.” In that case the

trade-mark had been used for only 314 years, but-

notwithstanding that, the court of appeal overruled
the decision of Sargant J., who had refused to allow
the registration.

S (1) (1919) 2 Ch. D. 28.
13137—5% ' '

udgment.

—_—
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1920 A considerable amount of stress is laid upon the

fact that a large amount of capital is necessary to be

Inre ©Xpended in the construction of works to turn out

M‘ifr‘gstgfr automobiles, and in this respect it differs from articles
THED, TBADE of & small kind.

l}ﬁ'}:ﬁi‘{f I have come to the conelusion that on the evidence

—  before me the petitioriers have brought themselves

within the decision I have just quoted if the trade-

mark was “Gray Dort” alone. After some doubt I

have come to the conclusion that their trade-mark

should not be vitiated by the use of the words above

and below the seroll. For a considerable time 1

thought- taking the whole trade-mark as claimed it

was merely an advertisement.

I have come to the conclusion, not without doubt,
that the fact that they have above the circle “Own a,”
and below “You will like it”’ should not have the
effect of vitiating their right.

Also, as I have said on more than one occasion, the
owner of a trade-mark cannot bring an action unless
his trade-mark is registered. The registration does
not make it a valid trade-mark if contested in the
courts. It merely has the effect of shifting the onus.

I think that an order should go directing the registra-
tion of the trade-mark as applied for.

Judgment accordingly.
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ON APPEAL FROM THE DECISION OF THE COMMISSIONER
OF PATENTS FOR CANADA. ‘

No. 4004. In THE MATTER OF AN APPLICATION OF THE
LocomoTive, STOKER CORPORATION FOR LETTERS
PatEnT oF INVENTION FOR NEW AND USEFUL
IMPROVEMENTS IN LOCOMOTIVE' STOKERS.

International Law—Canadian Patent Act, secs. 7 and 8; 10 Geo. V, ch.

30—O0rder in Council, 14th April, 1920—Trealy of Versailles— -

International Convention of 1883, —Convention of 1900 and of 1911,

Petitioners, citizens of the United States of America, 8 nation allied
and associated with His Majesty in the war, filed on the 30th
June, 1920, a petition for a patent in Canada. On the Ist August,
1914, when war was declared, the invention had not been in
public use or on sale with consent of the inventor for more than
one year previous to that date. The words “par un tiers” which
are to be found in Article IV of the International Convention of
1883, were omitted from the said Article in the Convention of
1900. In the Washington Convention of 1911, ratified by Great
Britain in 1913, the words “by a third person” were carried into
the Enghsh transla,t;on, although in the French version, ‘the
words ‘“par un tiers’” are again omitted. '

Held: 'That the French version must be regarded as the official embodi-
ment of the treaty, and in that view, where any difference of
construction arises between the French text and that of the Enghsh
translation, the language of the former must prevail.

2. That section 83 of the Order in Council of the 14th April, 1920,

 passed under authority of 10 Geo. V, ch. 30, not only affects section
8 of the Patent Act by declaring in effect that, in computing the
delay for filing application for a patent, refecred to therein, the

time between the Ist August, 1914, and the 11th July, 1920°

should not be taken into acecount, but also section 7, by abroga-
ting the provisions thereof for the same period. The words
““rights of priority”’ in said section 83 of the Order in Council
mean that the status of the applicant should not be lost by any
act of omisgion or commission, if the right claimed had not expired
on said st August, 1914, the said period being eliminatéd froin the
counsideration of whether or not the year referred to in article 7
had elapsed.

]

Reporter's note.—The appeals in the cases of : I'n re Eiseman Magnetic
Corporation; In re Charles H. Norton and In re Hemphill Company,

were argued by Mr. Russel Smart, at the same time, and the same

judgment rendered.
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1920 APPEAL from the following decision of the Commis-

A{,’;;jn sioner of Patents for Canada: ‘“The Office understands

ovTHE  that section 83 of the Treaty of Peace (Germany),

LocomorIva

SroxEr  (Qrder, April 14th, 1920, extends the time fixed by

CORPORATION

N section 8 of the Patent Act until the 11th July, 1920,
SIONER OF -but does not abrogate the other vequirements of the

ATENTS.
Reasons for Patent Act, notg,bly those of section 7.” _
sment November 10th, 1920.

The appeal was heard before the Hohourable the
President of the Court (Sir Walter Cassels) at Ottawa.

A. W. Anglin K.C., for the Locomotive Stoker
Corporation.

R. V. Sinclair K.C., for the Commissioner of Patents.

The facts and questions of law involved are stated
in the reasons for judgment.

The PresIDENT oF THE CoURT, now (November
19th, 1920) delivered judgment.

The questions involved in the four cases are identical.
The questions of law in all four cases were argued
together.

Section 7 of the Patent Act, provides that ‘“‘Any
person who has invented any new and useful art,
machine, manutacture or composition of matter, or
any new and useful improvement in any art, machine,
manufacture or composition of matter, which was not
known or used by any other person before his inven-
tion thereof, and which has not been in public use or on
sale with the consent or allowance of the inventor
thereof, for more than one year previously to his
application for patent therefor in Canada, may,
on a petition, ete.” ' ‘
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I deal with the locomotive stoker. case argued,by 1620
"~ Mr. Anglin. The Commissioner of Patents has Jrre
refused to entertain the applications for patents, and , o THE

LocomoTtIve

the appeal is brought to this court under the pro- Of:glff;o N
visions of the statute, 3-4 Geo V, Cap. 17, which .
veads as follows: “23a. Every applicant for a patent’ 8oNeR oF
under the Patent Act who has failed to obtain a patent p ——
by teason of the objection of the Commissioner of Tudgment.
Patents as in the said Act provided may, at any time

within six months aiter notice thereof has been mailed,

by vegistered letter, addressed to him or his agent,
~ appeal {from the decision of the said commissioner to

the Excheque: Court. 2. The Exchequer Court shall
- have exclusive jurisdiction to hear and determme any

such appeal.”’

i

- By virtue of that statute appeals from the mliné of
the Commissioner will have to be dealt with by the
Exchequer Court, instead of by the Governor in
Council. Under this statute these appeals were set
down for hearing and came on to be argued on the .
10th day of November, instant. . Mr. Sinclawr, K.C,,
argued the cage on behalf of the Commissioner. '

Shortly, the point in the case is as follows: The
petition dated the 23rd day of June, 1920, was filed
on the 30th June, 1920. It must be borne in mind.
that the applicants for patents in all four cases are '
* citizens of the United States. On the 30th day of
~June, 1920, the application in the stoker case was, as
I have mentioned, filed in the pa,tent office. On the
~ 1st August, 1914, when war was declared the invention
was not in public use or on sale with the consent or
‘allowance of the ipventor for more than one year
previous to the lst August, 1914.
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At the time of the filing of the application for the
patent, namely, the 30th June, 1920, if the ruling of the
patent office is correct, more than the year had elapsed.

The contention of the appellant is that under

v. . . - .
Tre Conus- certaln orders and treaties, which I will refer to, a

SIONER OF
PATENTS,

Reasons for
Judgment,

period of time between the 1lst of August, and the
11th day of July, 1920, has to be eliminated from the
consideration of whether or not the year had elapsed
before the application for the patent on the 30th
June, 1920.

The Patent Office have ruled as follows: It is referred
to in their letter of the 5th August, 1920, in which
they state: “The Office understands that section 83 of
the Treaty of Peace (Germany,) Order, April 14th,
1920, extends the time fixed by section 8 of the Patent
Act until the 11th July, 1920, but does not abrogate
the othef requirements of the Patent Act, notably
those of section 7.”

If that view is the proper view to be taken of the
meaning of the order, then the judgment of the Com-

" missioner of Patents is correct. If, on the other hand,

the view or the opinion of the Commissioner of Pat-
ents "is erroneous, his judgment should be reversed
and the matter should be left to th? Commissioner to
proceed with the applications in the usual way.

After listening to the carefully prepared arguments
of counsel for the appellant and also for the Commis-

. sioner, I am of. opinion that the Commissioner has

erred in the view he takes limiting the meaning of the
Order in Council merely to section 8. I think it
should "equally apply to section 7,—and if I am cor-
rect in the view I have formed, then the time between
the first August and the 20th July, 1920, should be
eliminated from the consideration of the case, and if
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this view is correct, at, the time of the application for 1920
the patent the year had not elapsed as provided for ,JInre

ArPPBRAL

by section 7 of the Patent Act. OF THE

S oen

The statute of the Dominion, 10 Geo. V, cap., Corroramon
30, was assented to on the 10th November, 1919. Tazn Coms-
It provides: “I. (i) The Governor in Council may nvake Parzws.
such appointments, establish such offices, make such l}msgs s for
orders in council, and do such things as appear to —
. him to be necessary for carrying out the said treaties
and for giving effect to any of the provisions of the -'

sald treaties.”’

The order in council bears date the 14th April,
1920. It recites the fact that whereas at Versailles,
on the 20th June, 1919, the Treaty of Peace, etec.,
between the allied and associate powers and Germany,
was signed on behalf of His Majesty acting for Canada
by plenipotentiaries. The important sections of this
order in council are to be found in part IV—they are
sections 81, 82, 83 and 84. The main section, and
which is the one in question here, is section 83, which
- reads as follows: '

~ “83. The rights of priority, provided by Article 4
of the International Convention of Paris for the

Protection of Industiial Property, of March 20, 1883,

revised - at Washington in 1911, or by any other Con-

vention or Statute, for the filing of registration of

applications for patents or models of utility, and for

the registration of trade marks, designs and models-
which had not expired on the first day of August,

1914, and those which have arisen during the war,

or would have arisen but for the war, shall be extended
in favour of all nationals of Germany, and of the

powers allied or associated during the war with His

Majesty, until the eleventh day of July, 1920.”
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1920 The words ‘‘rights of priority’”’ evidently mean that
snre  the status of the applicant should not be lost by any
Loy I8 act-of omission or commission, if the right had not
cosomrn  expired on the 1st August, 1914.
S— The first international convention, as far as I can
EE ComMams- . ' ' '
G- i ascertain, for the protection of industrial property;

Reasons for WaS signed at Paris on the 20th March, 1883. A
Tudgment. nqny is to be found in the 4th edition of Frest, on
Patents, Vol. 2, commencing at page 308. There was
an additional convention which modified the industrial
property convention of March 20th, 1883, signed at
Brussels on December 14th, 1900. The original
French text commences in Frost, at page 328, and the
English translation at page 329.

It may be of importance, as pointed out by Mr.
Anglin, that the words in this latter convention omit
in the new article IV the words “par un tiers.” If
these. words had not been omitted, an argument
~would be raised that this clause of the convention or
treaty, if read as in the former convention of 1883,
would limit this application to public use by a third

* party, and not by the applicant for the patent.

By Article IV of the International Convention
signed at Washington on the 2nd June, 1911, and
ratified by Great Britain on April 1st, 1913, the
words ‘‘par un tiers” (by a third party) are carried
into the English translation of this convention, al-
though in the French copy of the convention the
words ‘“‘par un tiers” are omitted, translating the
section in the French text as if similar to the previous
text of the convention of 1883. I think the contention
put forward by Mr. Anglin is correct that the reaty
is the treaty as set out in the French version, and the
translator has in the English translation of it inserted
these words “‘by a third party’”’ by mistake.
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This may be of importance. The ‘question of 102
whether or not Canada was bound by this Conventiop 27
of 1911, is one of interést but not material for the Lo
consideration of this case. It is a debatable question COBSPT:S’;I*O -
whether or pot when His Majesty the King of Gregt . & ..
Britain and Irveland and of the British Dominions SONER o
entered into a treaty, Canada is not bound by the p —
terms of the treaty. That is a question which hag Tudsment.
been very much debated both for and against the
view that Canada is bound. It is not, however, of

importance at present.

Section 83, which I have quoted refers to the
rights of priority provided by Article 4 of the Inter-
national Convention of Paris .of 1883, as vevised in
1911. It is unquestioned that the United States
were allied or associated durmg the war with His
Majesty.

I fail to see why the Comxnlssmner should have held
that the effect of this section 83, or the order in council
should be limited so as to apply to section 8 of the.
Patent Act, and not to section 7. I think the matter
should be referred back to the Patent "Office for con-
sideration of the applications.

There should be no order for costs.
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IN THE MATTER OF THE PETITION OF
RiceT OoF A. G. CREELMAN AND ;SUPPLIANTS;
HH VERGE...................

AND

HIS MAJESTY THE KING........ RESPONDENT.

Petition of Right—Damages——Tort—Reasonable Delay—Contracts—
Tender.

In July, 1916, the Crown called for tenders for the construction of a
Drill Hall in Calgary, Alta., such tenders to be received not later
than August the 8th. On the 4th of August, suppliants mailed
their tender from Calgary, and on the 12th September, they
were advised their tender had been accepted and that the con-
tract would be sent shortly for execution. On the 15th they were
advised that the contract etc., was being expressed, and on the
19th the letter was received by suppliants; but the plans, ete., did
not arrive for several days, not later than the 29th, when it was
signed. At the trial suppliants stated they had no objection to
‘the delays in staking, and no proof was offered as to delay in
giving possession. The action was taken for damages due to
delays above mentioned.

Held: That as the acts of the Crown complained of could not be con-
sidered as amounting to a breach of contract; and as the present
action was one sounding in tort for which no action lies against the
Crown, apart from special statutory authority, suppliants’ action
could not be entertained.

Semble: That owing to the abnormal conditions prevailing during the
war and the unavoidable delays in communication due to the
parties being over 2,000 miles apart, the delays in accepting the
tender, advising thereof and sending the contract for signature,
were not unreagonable or oppressive.

~

PETITION of Right seeking to recover $35,453.58,
amount of loss alleged to have been suffered by sup-
pliants by reason of delays in connection with the
contract with the Crown for the construction of a
Drill Hall at Calgary.

i
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The action was tried before the Honourable Mr.

Justice Audette at Calgary, Alta., on the 27th day of

September, 1920.
R. B. Bennett K.C., and W. D. Gow, for suppliants.
I. W. McArdle and W. 8. Davidson, for respondent.

The facts ave stated in the reasons for judgment,
and the material averments in the petition may be
summarized as follows:

Suppliants claim that the delays in accepting théir
tender, -in forwafding the contract for execution, in
the staking and giving possession of the land for the
building were unreasonable, and by reason thereof
they were thrown into the winter months, when the
work of excavation could not be done, and these
operations had to be suspended till the following
spring, and they were unable to undertake the work

of construction when and in the manner contemplated

199
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by them and respondents. That the cost of labour |

and material was speedily increasing at all times dur-

ing the construction, and, that in consequence, they °
suffered damages, from such delays to the extent of .

$35,453.58.

AvuperrE J. now (November 15, 1920), delivered
judgment. ‘

The suppliants, by their Petition of Right, seek to
recover the sum of $35,453.58, the amount of a loss

they allege to have suffered as hereinafter set forth, in

connecfion with their contract with the Crown, for the
construction of a Drill Hall, at the city of Calgary, in
~ the province of Alberta.
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The Crown, during July, 1916, called for and

CREMAN invited tenders for the construction of this drill hall,
Tan Ko under the conditions mentioned in the notice to that

Reasons for)
Judgment.

effect, as set forth in exhibit No. 1, and stating, among
other things, that tenders for the same would be
received at the office of the secretary of the Depart-
ment of Public Works, at Ottawa, until 4 o’clock,
p.am., on the 8th August, 1916.

After acquainting themselves with the plans and
specifications, the suppliants, on the 4th August,
malled their tender in the form shewn in Exhibit
No. 2, under the form supplied by the respondent.

On the 12th September, 1916, the suppliants were
by telegram advised and notified that their tender had
been accepted and the following letter, bearing same
date, was sent, by the Department of Public Works, to
the suppliants, viz.:—

“I beg to inform you of the acceptance of your
tender, at $282,051.45; for the construction of a Drill
Hall, at Calgary, Alta., $9.25 per cubic yard to be
paid for any additional concrete, as per specification,
including all extra excavation, filling and wood forms,
ete.

“The contract in this connection is being prepared
and will be forwarded shortly for execution.

“I have the honour to be, Gentlemen,
“Your obedient servant,

“(Sgd.) L. H. Coleman,
Asst. Secretary.”

“Messrs. A. G. Creelman & Co.
“Calgary, Alta.
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Then on the 15th September the Department
addressed to Mr. Leo Dowler, their resident engmeer
at Calgary, the following letter:—

“Sir:—I beg to transmit to you herewith, in dupli-
cate, the draft of contract to be entered into between
His Majesty and Messrs. Creelman & Verge, for the
construetion of a dvill hall at Calgary, Alta., and. to
“ask you to kindly have these documents, and plans,
forwarded to you under separate cover, signed by the
contractors in your presence as witness.

“You will please fill in the blank spaces left for the
date of signature and for the first names of the con-
tractors, and veturn me these documents, together
with .the plans, for completion by the Department,
atter which, one ot the duphcates will be returned to
the contractors.

' “Your obedient servant,
“R. C. Desrochers,

“Leo Dowler, Esq., Secretary.

“Re&dent Architect, P.W. D
“Calgary, Alta.”

As may be inferred from this letter the draft of the
contract, the specification and plans were being
transmitted to Calgary, under separate cover.

This letter (exhibit A) appears to have been received
at Calgary, on the 19th September, but the dvaft of
the contract and plans, ete., which were sent by express
only came several days afterwards. The resident
architect testified he could not swear on what date
they arrived; but he made rvepeated enquiries for
these documents at the Express office, and on the day
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they came into his possession, he immediately advised .

the suppliants who came and signed the contract on
the 29th September.
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1020 [His Lorpsuip here recited certain averments of the
CREELMAN petition, the substance of which is stated Ante. p. 199. ]

THEE’NG Can it be said, with justification, that the tender
Seaemene: having reached Ottawa on the 8th August and the
~ notice of acceptance having emanated on the 12th
September,—that the delay between these two dates

was unreasonable and oppressive?

I must answer in the negative. The parties in °
question were more than 2,000 miles apart. The
Crown was not obliged to accept the tender,—it had
only invited the contractors to submit figures for the
erection of that building; and, on the other hand, at
any time, between the date of the tender and the
notice of acceptance the suppliants were at liberty to
revoke their tender which must be construed as
speaking from day to day, expressing willingness
‘from day to day to perform that contract. If they
found the delay in answering their tender was too
long, they could at any time put an end to it; they
could have withdrawn by revoking it. .

Now, if the suppliants had found, at any time after
the 8th August, that the Crown was taking too long
in advising them whether their tender was accepted or .

®  rejected, it was always opened to them to revoke it.
If they did not do it and if they received, on the 12th
September, the notice of acceptance without protest,
and if they entered into and signed the contract on
the 29th September without protest, have they not
acquiesced in what was done, are they not to-day
estopped from setting up contentions so inconsistent
with their conduct? And this would apply as well to
the delay in accepting and in signing the contract.

Halsbury, The Laws of England, Vol. 7, pp. 346, 347:
[His Lordship here gives the citation.]
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Apart from these considerations, I find that the .

delay in question cannot be qualified as unreasonable
-and oppressive.. Under normal conditions, taking into
consideration that the parties were over 2,000 miles
away from one another, that the Crown is necessarily
a slow body to move, as a matter of this kind has
first to be taken up by the officials, then by the minister
who finally takes the matter before the Governor in
Council. All these contingencies are well known to
experienced contractors as' the suppliants.
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However, in this case we have more than normal

conditions to consider. In 1916 the. country was
engaged in this gigantic mondial war, when all the
resources of the country were taxed to their limits and
when all the ministers of the Crown gave their chief
and paramount attention to the inumerable questions
‘involved in the prosecution of the war, I unhesitingly
find that the delays complained of were decidedly
not oppressive, but quite reasonable and what might
be’ expected, under the cucumstances

The suppliants were, as just said, always at hberty
to revoke their tender before its acceptance, and

they therefore cannot construe a right of action |

against the Crown for such delay. The delays which
elapsed between the notice of acceptance (12th Sep-
tember) and the signature of the contract (29th
September) were not unreasonable as far as the Crown
1s concerned when consideration is given to the neces-
- sary delay involved in forwarding any document
from Ottawa to Calgary,—and moreover, in the
present instance, the delays in the transmission of this
contract, specification and plans seem to have been
caused by the express company.

13137—6
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. 1920 With respect to the complaint of delays in staking
CREW and giving possession of the land upon which the
Tan Kiva building was to be erected, it must be found that
‘}f,?f::,:,{‘t’f there is no evidence bearing upon the delay in giving
—  possession of the land, but only in respect of the
staking, which seems to have been attended to just as

soon as it was mentioned by the contractor and

witness G. E. Hughes, the suppliants’ manager,
speaking of this delay, said: “After the receipt of the

plans, I would say it (the staking) was not done
promptly, but I do not object to the time it took.

It was staked on October 7th. It might have been

staked sooner.” Indeed, many things might have

been done sooner; the suppliants also might have

started the excavation sooner than the day they did—

they might also have held their sub-contractors to

their contracts, etc. However, all of these matters in

the view I take of the case become unnecessary to pass

upon.

This action is for the recovery of damages, under the
above mentioned circumstances, and is therefore in its
very essence one sounding in tort. Apart from breach
of contract or from special statutory authority no
such action will lie against the Crown.

The complaints made herein cannot be construed
as amounting to a breach of contract for the reasons
already mentioned.

By the third clause, on page 4 of the specification,
which forms part of the contract and which had been
in the suppliants’ possession before making any
tender,—it 1s provided, among other things, that
“no charge shall be made by the contractors for any
delay or hindrance from any cause during the progress
of any portion.of the work embraced in his contract.”
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The clause 44 of the contract provided that: “The
contractor shall not have, nor make any claim or
demand, nor bring any action or suit or petition
against His Majesty for any damage which he may
sustain by reasons of any delay or delays, from what-
ever cause arising in the progress of the work.”
Failing to establish that the delays complained of
were oppressive, as contemplated in the case of Bush v.
Trustees of Port and Town of Whitehaven, (1) cited at
bar in the able argument presented on behalf of the

- suppliants,—no right of action will lie against the

Crown under the circumstances. The present case is
clearly distinguishable from the latter in that- the
works contempla,ﬁeql by the contract in that case
were to be performed in the space of four months and
that the delay in giving possession of the land extended
for a period of three months and thirteen days and
ran into the winter.

It is true the suppliants discharged in 8 creditable
manner the works contracted for at the sum of $282-,
051.45, plus the charges for concrete, and that under
the. evidence adduced by both parties, the building,
as erected, was worth, at the time of the trial, between
$350,000 to $400,000. However, the contractors
would appear to have been the victims of circumstances.
In the autumn of 1916, the climatic conditions were
worse than usual and the cold weather set in earlier;
then the war was being carried on with all due energy
with the result that the price of labour and materials

kept soaring up. Had the weather been more favour-

able, had prices gone down instead of jumping up, the

“result would have been different. Did not the con-

(1) Hudson on Building Contracts, (4th Ed.) Vol, II, p. 122.
13137—63%
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1920 tractors tender at too low a price under the circum-
Cﬂﬂfm“ stances, when prices were so unsteady? However,
Tes Kve these are matters that cannot be judicially weighed,

Seaeomefor the contract is the law of the parties.

o Under clause 3 of the contract the works had to
be fully completed by the 12th September, 1918.
They were completed on the 25th October, 1918,
with extras to the small amount of $940, and the
Crown made no complaint in that respect. Perhaps I
should not close without mentioning, that there is
endorsed, on the outside cover of the contract a memo,
that the contract was authorized on the 9th Septem-
ber, 1916, by an Order in Council; however that may
be, there has been no evidence on the record estab-
lishing that any such Order in Council was ever passed
‘and if any were passed, the nature of the same. ’

The suppliants have established that they have
performed their contraet in good workmanship, to the
satisfaction of the Crown; but they have failed to
show a rvight of action, under the circumstances.
They have been the vietims of circumstances over
which neither party had any control.

There will be judgment declaring that the sup-
pliants are not entitled to any portion of the relief
sought by their Petition of Right.

Judgment accordingly.
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’ A

IN THE MATTER OF Tim PETITION OF : | © 1020
THE PACIFIC LIME COMPANY, ;PETITIONER. Nov. 26.
LIMITED....................... , m&"ﬁ:&or

Trade-Mark—Geographical 'name“Secondary stgnification—Regisira-
tion.

Held; That a geographical name is not ordinarily the subject of a
trade-mark and is not per se registerable; but when by long user .
thereof the name has acquired a secondary signification in deroga- -
tion of its primary geographical meaning and has' become the ~
trade designation of a manufactured artlcle, such a name may -
be registered.

APPLICATION by petitioners herein to have the
words “Blubber Bay Lime” reglstered as their trade-
mark.

November 16th, 1920.

Application before the Honourable - Mr. Justice
Audette at Ottawa. B

L. P. Sherwood, for petitioners.-

No one appeared for Cc_:i:n.miséioner of Patents.

. L. P. Sherwood: I would refer to section 5 and part
of section 11 of the Trade-Mark and Design Aect (ch.
71 R.S.C. 1906).

The Act contains no precise definition of a trade-
mark, but it is to be remarked that section 5 states
that names may be “considered and known as trade-
marks.” Section 11 (e) ‘“‘the essentials necessary ' to
constitute a trade-mark properly speaking,” it is
submitted, must mean the essentials of a Common
Law trade-mark as modified by the Canadian Tra,de-
Mark Act.
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1020 The various English Acts have little or no- bearing
Pacnde .p Upon the Canadian Act. See New York Herald Co.

o] Loamo v. Ottawa Citizen Co. (1).

umentof I the United States a large proportion of trade-

ovoeel marks granted consist of surnames of manufacturers or
producers, but geographical names have also been
registered, as, for instance, ‘“Winchester’” for rifles,
and ‘“Yale” for locks.

The law in regard to names is understood to be that
whilst they are not primarily the subject of a trade-

- mark, they may nevertheless by use in connection
with the goods of a certain individual, acquire a
secondary méa,ning as a trade-mark, and may be
registerable under the Canadian Trade-Mark Act.
See Horlick’s Malted Milk Company case, decided in
the Supreme Court, 1st May, 1917 (2); Canada Foundry
Company v. The Bucyrus Company (3); See also
English cases, Wetherspoon v. Currie, The Glenfield
Starch case (4), and particularly the remark of Lord
Westbury at p. 251. See also Seizo v. Provezende (5),
and In re National Starch Company’s application (6),
for registration of word “Oswego.”

I submit that the case of Grand Hotel Company, of
Caledonia Mineral Springs v. Wilson and others (7),
can be distinguished and does not adversely affect the
present application  (See particularly Lord Davey
at p. 113).

In the present application, the evidence which is
submitted, shows that the words “Blubber Bay Lime”
have acquired'a secondary meaning as distinguishing
the product of the Pacific Lime Company, and as

(1) 41 S.C.R., 229 at p. 232. (4) 5 H.oof L.(E. & I. App.) 508.
(2) 35 D.LL.R. 516. (5) [1865[ 14 L.T. (N.8.) p. 314,
(3) 11912} 47 S.C.R. 484. (6) [1908] 2 Ch. D. 698,

(7) [1904] A.C. 103.
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such, in accordance with the authorities referred to, 1920
the words have become a trade-mark which is properly In Re

] %:)aixchn
IMITED
registerable. Furthermore, the words are not in use 0o lmammn
as a distinguishing feature or as a trade-mark by any Reasons for
other individual, firm or corporation in connection Judgment.

with the sale of lime.

It is submitted therefore, that the applicants are
entitled to have registered in their name as a tra.de-
mark the words “Blubber Bay Lime' for the reason
that the evidence shows these words to have acquired
a secondary meaning as a trade-mark distinguishing
the product of the applicants, and that the evidence
shows that the wovds are not in use by any other
person. ‘ ’

The facts are stated in the reasons for judgment.

AupeTTE J. now (November 25, 1920) dehvered
judgment,

This is an application, by the petitioners, who carry
on the business of manufacturers or producers of lime,

to register as theu' trade-mark the words “Blubber
Bay Lime.”

Blubber Bay is a small place Situaté in the electoral
district of Comox-Alberni, in the provmce of British '
Columbia.

Therefore, it appea,rs that the Word “Blubber
Bay’’ is, in its ordinary signification, a geographical
name, and, per se, is not subject to registration as &
trade-mark. (Columbia Mill Co. v. Alcorn (1).

The Canadian Act does not contain a definition of
trade-marks capable of registration.. To find what
trade-marks in Canada are subject to registration, one
must read together sections 5 and 11 of the Act.

(1) 150 U.8. 460.
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1920 Section 5 provides what may be the subject of a

LSty

paanBe . trade-mark, but that section must also be read with

T%‘;‘Dlg_hﬁg’; the provisions of sec. 11 whereby, among other things,

Reasomafor U 18 set out what the minister may refuse to register.

Judgment. Qub-section (¢) of that section reads as follows:—

““(e¢) if the so-called trade-mark does not contain the

essentials necessary to constitute a trade-mark,
properly speaking.”

And as said in the Standard Ideal Co. v. Standard

Sanitary Co. (1): “the Act does not define or explain

the essentials of a trade-mark, it does not provide for

taking off the register an alleged trade-mark which

. does not contain the requisite essentials. In applying

the Act the Courts in Canada appear to consider

themselves bound or guided mainly by the English

law of trade-marks and the decisions of the courts of

the United Kingdom.” -

By sub-sections 4 and 5 of section 9 of the English
Act of 1905, it is provided that a geographical name
cannot be registered as a trade-mark, unless upon an
order of the Board of Trade, or the Court.

The words ‘Blubber Bay Lime” standing by them-
selves may not, strictly speaking, have reference to the
character or quality of the lime as derived from the
strata of the stone or the formation of the soil; but will
not the registration of these words precludé any other
resident of Blubber Bay, who migth choose to manu-
facture lime, to wuse that name? Nothing could
prevent him from manufacturing lime, if he so saw
fit. Would not also that mark appear to6 be generie,
in its very nature? Does it not convey the idea that
Blubber Bay lime is the product of one individual
residing at Blubber Bay, while it may also designate

(1) [1911] A. C. 78.
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the product of many hundred manufacturers or . 1020
residents of Blubber Bay, to whom the trade-mark , InZRe

sought to be registered would equally apply? Would o Ludm=n

TRADE-MARK.

not the mark, in such a case, cease to be distinetive Reasons for

and therefore become objectionable? ‘ - Judgment.

Wood, V. C., in the Anafolia liguorice case
(McAndrew v. Bassett- (1) said that: “the plaintiffs
had established beyond all doubt the connection
of their vame with that mark, that was beyond
dispute,” and that ‘“he could not treat the word
as being otherwise than a designation mark, which
the plaintiff had caused to be attached to that
- particular article of liquorice which they so manu-
factured, and which they had a right to consuler, in
tha.t qualified sense, property.”

See Sebasman, 5th Ed. at p. 87. (Abstract recited.)

Lord Westbury, C., in that case strongly confirmed
the opinion of the Vice-Chancellor; and in the later
case of Wetherspoon v. Currie (2), where the subject
of the dispute was the word ‘“Glenfield,” applied to
starch, he stated that the word had acquired a second--
ary signification or meaning in connection with a -
particular manufacture; in short, it had-become the
trade designation of the starch made by the appel-
lants. It was wholly taken out of its ordinary mean-
ing, and in connection with the starch had -acquired
that peculiar secondary signification to which he had
referred. The word “Glenfield,” therefore, as a
denomination of starch, had become the property of -
‘the appellants. It was their right and title in con-
nection with the starch. :

(1) 33 L.J.; Ch. 561; 4 DeG.J.& S. (2) 5 H. of L. (E. & I. App.) 508.
380 (App ).
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In view of the liberal modifications in previous
jurisprudence, together with the legislation, introduced
by sub-sec. 5 of section 9 of the English Trade-Mark
Act of 1905, and the decision above veferred to,—
would it not be attaching an excessive regard to the
geographical aspect of this mark to refuse its regis-

" tration?

The American law upon the present subject would’
appear to be the same.

See Paul, on Trade-Marks, pp. 101 to 104 inclus-
ively, and pp. 434 et seq. (Abstracts from these
pages were here given at length.)

At p. 103 he states that geographical names,
designating districts of country are incapable of
appropriation as trade-mark and concludes by
saying (p. 104) that one must avoid, in selecting
devices for trade-mark, ‘“‘geographical names ‘which
are descriptive of the local origin of the goods, if
other persons have the right to deal in goods of a
similar origin.”’

The words ‘“Blubber Bay Lime” may not suggest
to ordinary observers a geographical origin and may,
therefore, remain special and - distinctive. In re
Magnolia Metal Company (1). The user of these
words for the period mentioned in connection with
the lime manufactured or sold by the petitioners has
given such words a secondary signification in deroga-
tion of their primary geographical meaning and has
become the trade designation of the lime manufactured
by them. '

It would appear that if a word is strictly geographi-
cal according to its ordinary signification, that, where
it is not caleulated or likely to deceive, it may still be
registered in a proper case by the leave of the court.

(1) [1897] 2, Ch. Div, 371.
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In re Appollinarts Brunnen (1); In re The National 1920
Starch Co. (2); and In re California Fig Sirup Co. (3); p In Re

ACTEFIC LIMB
'The Stone Ale case (Montgomery v. Thompson (4),,1%‘;-1)15_%1:%1;_

The Bucyrus Company (5). —

Reasons for -

Judgment.
It appears from the allegations of par. 5 of the —

petition that the application for registration made to,
and refused by, the Minister of Trade and Commerce,
was for a general trade-mark. It is obvious that the
petitioners are applying for the registration of this
trade-mark for the use of the same in connection
with the sale of a class merchandise of a particular
description,—namely, lime. In such a case they are
not entitled to a general, but only to a specific trade-
mark. - '

Therefore, I have come to the conclusion, under the
circumstances of the present case, but not without
some hesitation,—after considering the de facto dis-
tinctiveness arising from fairly long and exclusive
user in the past,—although the words are driginally
geographical,—to allow the registration of the same as
a specific trade-mark to be used in connection with the
sale or manufacture of lime or of that class of mer-
chandise coming within that particular description.

The granting of an order for the registration of this
trade-mark does not conclude the wvalidity of the
trade-mark, should an action be hereafter brought
contesting it. It amounts to no more than ai prima
facie decision, open to being wvaried or set aside upon
evidence produced by opponents. In re Crosfield (6);
In re Akt. Hjorth (7). In re Christie (8) the present

(1) 24 R.P.C. 436. < (5) 14 Ex. C.R. 35, 47, 8.C.R. 484.
(2) 25 R.P.C. 802. & [1908} (6) 26 R.P.C. 561, 837.
2, Ch. D. 698. (7) 27 R.P.C. 461,

(8)26 R.P.C. 846. - (8) 20 Ex. C.R. 119,
(4) 1891 A.C. 217,



214 EXCHEQUER COURT REPORTS. Vor. XX.

1920 decree does not declare that the mark ought to be

In Re 3 : .
Paccr e Tegistered because it is a good mark but merely

Co. LiMitED 3 s 3 3 L
o LoatEd gllows and permits its registration under the ecir

Reasoms for CUmMstances of the case. Such order, it would seem,
Judgment- gught to be decreed when there is a sufficient prima
facie case made out establishing a reasonably long

user of the trade-mark. Sebastian, 5th Ed., p. 370.

Judgment accordingly.
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/

IN THE MATTER OF THE PETITION OF : ‘ 3_!?_@
Ricar or MARIUS DUFRESNE. . | SUPPLIANT; Nov. 15.

AND

®

HIS MAJESTY THE KING........ RESPONDENT.

Petition of Right—Plans and Specificitions—Quantum meruit—Int-
erest—Architect’s Tariff.

D. was engaged in 1913 as supervising architect to take charge of the
preparation of drawings and specifications for a Post Office, at
Maisonneuve, and was to be paid for such services at the rate of
5% on the actual cost of the building. The plans and drawings
were started and from time to time modified at the request of the
Crown, after consultation with the Post Office officials; but on
account of the war, or some other reason, not disclosed on the
facts, the Crown did not start or proceed with the work., D.by his
petition (filed in October, 1919) asked to be paid for his services.

Held; That although D. was not entitled to claim to be be paid under
articles 11 or 14 of the Architects’ Tariff, his plans not being com-~
plete, nevertheless, as the plans and estimates had been ordered -
and accepted by the officers of the Crown, the Crown must be
taken to have ratified what, in* that respect, its officers had done;
and D. was entitled to recover the value of his services under a
quantum meruit.

3

PETITION of Right seeking to recover the sum of
$7,161 for plans prepared at request of the Crown
for Post Office building contemplated to be erected in
the city of Maissonneuve. ‘

November 9th, 1920.?

Tried before the Honourable Mr. Justice Audette
at Montreal.

E. Lafleur K.C., and J.-A. Bovin for suppliant.
F. J. Laverty K.C., for respondent.

The facts are stated in the reasons for judgment.
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Avperre J. this (November 15th, 1920) delivered
judgment.

The suppliant, by his Petition of nght seeks to
recover the sum of $7,161 for plans prepared by
him, at the request of the Crown, for a post office
building contemplated to be erected in the City of
Maisonneuve, in the District of Montreal.

It appears from the evidence spread upon the record
that, as far back as the 27th October, 1913, the sup-
pliant accepted the position of supervising architect
to have charge of the preparation of drawings and
specifications ete., for the post office in question and
started to prepare such drawings and plans, which
were from time to time modified at the request of the
Crown, after consulting with the post office officials.

Were there any doubt as to the validity of the
contract under the circumstances, a matter which
however appears to be conclusive in favour of the
suppliant, it must be found, under the authority of
Henderson v. The Queen (1); Wood v. The Queen (2);
Hall v. The Queen (3); May v. The King (4), that the
plans having been prepared, having been accepted by
the Crown, having been modified at the request of the
Crown, and of which it received full benefit,—that if

the suppliant i1s not entitled to recover under an

executed contract, he is entitled to recover under a
quantum merurt for services rendered and goods sup-
plied of which the Crown received the benefit.

The letter of engagement, exhibit No. 1, fixes the
remuneration for such services at the rate of 5%, of the
actual cost of the building—and that charge would ap-
pear o be in conformity with Article 8 of the Architeet’s
Tariff for the Province of Quebee, filed as Exhibit No. 24.

(1) 6 Ex.C.R. 39; 28 S.C.R. 425. (3)3 Ex. C.R. 373.
(2) 7 S.C.R. 634. (4) 14 Ex. C.R. 341,
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However, as time went by, from 1913 the Crown

- did not finally decide to start the works in question,
and has not done so up to date,—either on account of
the war, or for any other reason,—and -the suppliant
by his Petition of Right filed in Qctober, 1919,
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Judgment.

m———

is now very reasonably asking to be paid for his

SGI'VICGS

The question now remaining to be considered and
decided is as to the question of the remuneration which
should be paid_under the circumstances. The plans
and the estimates have been ordered and accepted by
the officers of the Crown, and the Crown must be
taken to have ratified what, in that respect, its officers

‘have doné. The plans, however, were not working
plans, as is understood by builders and contractors.

The chief architect of the Department of Public.

Works, on the 29th July, 1919 (Exhibit No. 34)
offered $3,570, in full and final payment for the pre-
paration of the plans. '

I find that supphant is not entitled to any claim
under article 14 of the Tariff. I further find he is
not entitled to the full 214% under article 11. .His
plans were not complete,—among other things, there
was no longitudinal plan,—a plan required under the
evidence to call the plan complete. TUnder all the
circumstances of the case, I think a fair and just
compensation will be 29, on the estimate of $238,700—
na.mely, the sum of $4,774.

Pursuant to the leave mentloned at trial, I hereby
order that the suppliant’s pleadings be amended so as
to agree with the facts proved, whereby if the sup-
pliant cannot strictly recover under a specific item of
the Architects’ Tariff, he may recover upon a quantum
meruit. (Arts. 518, 520, C.C.P., P.Q.).
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The suppliant is further asking for interest. Under
the decision of the case of St. Louts v. The Queen (1),
ever since followed in this court, I also find he is
further entitled to interest from the date the petition
of right was lodged with the Secretary of State, as
provided for by sec. 4 of the Petition of Right Act, a
date which may bereafter, by leave, be established by
affidavit, at the time of the settlement of the minutes
of judgment. '

Therefore, there will be judgment declaring that the
suppliant is entitled to recover from and be paid
by the respondent the said sum of $4,774 with
interest thereon from the date of the lodging of the
petition of right with the Secretary of State to the
date hereof, and with costs.

Judgment accordingly.

Solicitors for applicant: Taillon, Bovin, Morin &
Laramée.

Solicitors for respondent: Blair, Laverty & Hale.

(1) 25 S.CR. 649.
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BETWEEN .
No. 4018. | |
'MARY PENISTON WIEHMAYER. . PLAINTIFF;

AND

Tre SECRETARY OF STATE OF
CANADA 4as CusTODIAN ' UNDER|DEFENDANT.
THE TREATY OF PEACE (GERMANY)
ORDER, 1920.....................

. AND
BETWEEN.
No. 4006

LUCY HAMILTON NEITZKE... ... PLAINTIFF;
AND

Tue SECRETARY OF STATE OF
CANADA as CuUsTODIAN UNDER DEFENDANT.

THE TREATY OF PracE (GERMANY)
OmpER, 1920............... N

Enemy Property, Custodian oj'——Treaiy of Versailles, 28th J i.ine, 1919—

Articles 296-297—"‘Debts’—J urisdiction—10 Geo. V, ch. 14.

W. and N. were British-born women, who at birth had ne other nation-
ality, and who acquired German nationality only by their marriage,
the former in July, 1898, and the latter in July, 1910. Their
property, rights and interests in Canada were vested in the defend-
ant by virtue of the Treaty of Peace (Germany) Order, 1920.

Under this Treaty and an Order in Council in that behalf passed, -

they applied to have it declared that their said property, rights and
interests did not come within the prowsmns of Article 296 of
Treaty of Peace, that they be relmqulshed ete. . )

13137—7
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.

THE
SECRETARY
OF S1A1E OF
CANADA.
{Nos. 4018
and 4006).
Statement of
Facts.
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Held: That jurisdiction to entertain such an application, and to make
the declaration asked for was conferred on the Exchequer Court by
10 Geo. V, chap. 14.

2. That money on deposit in banks or with a loan and saving company;
- bonds of commercial and industrial companies and shares of the
capital stock thereof or of banks, or of mortgage corporations;
money in the hands of trust companies for investment, and moneys
invested under their guaranteed trust investment receipts; money
Ioaned and secured by mortgages on real estate in Canada; money
loaned to a company upon a receipt, subject to call on 3 months’
notice; could not be classed as‘“‘debts” within the meaning of Article

296 of the Treaty of Peace signed at Versailles on the 28th June,

. 1919, between the Allied and Associated Powers and Germany,

and may be relinquished to the plaintiff.

THESE were applications to have it declared that
none of the property, rights and interests of the
plaintiffs which were vested in the defendant, were
within the provisions of Article 296 of the Treaty of
Peace with Germany, and to have the custodian

relinquish the same.

Mary Peniston Wiehmayer was British-born, and
in 1898 married Theodore Wiehmayer, a German, and
took up residence in Germany where she was residing
on the 4th August, 1914. By the death of her father
and mother in' Canada in years 1912 and 1916 respect-
ively, she inherited certain properties, interests and
rights in Canada which were held by her on the said
4th August, 1914, and which, by an Order of the 20th
May, 1919, became vested in the Minister of Finance
and Receiver General as custodian of Enemy property,
and were later vested in defendant under the Treaty
of Peace (Germany) Order 1920, together with interest,
ete., accrued since.

In January, 1913, there was held for said plaintiff
by one Fielding, at Toronto, mortgages upon and
agreements’ respecting real estate in Canada, and in
the said month she instrueted him to remit the interest
to her from time to time and to pay over any principal
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moneys paid thereon to the National Trust Com-’

pany, to be held by it for investment. On 22nd
August, 1914, the Trust Company ceased to reinvest
any principal sums, but held them in cash.. On the
4th August, 1914, they held mortgages amounting to
$34,050 and on the 10th January, 1920, they held
mortgages amounting to $16,900. and cash $14,220.
*On'the 6th May, 1915, said Fielding handed over the
balance of mortg:.a,ges‘ to the Trust Company, to be
dealt with by the Company as aforesaid and on the
10th January, 1920, they held investments amounting
to $32,115.14 and $21,054.27 in cash. During the

war the interest, and part of the capital was paid .to

one Louis S. McMurray, for said plaintiff who deposited
the same, along Wlth interest from other securltles,

to her credit in a saving’s acecount in the Bank of

Toronto, except such as was remitted to said p_la,mtlﬁ.
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Tan .
SECRETARY
oF BtaTE oF

CANADA.

(Nos. 4018
v and 4008).

Statement of
Facts.

The moriey now in the hands of the custodian as

regards said plaintiff amounts to the sum of $23,285.54
under the vesting ovder aforesaid. Besides the above,
bonds of the Wm. Davies Company, Limited, shares
of the Consumer Gas Company, Dominion Bank
Stock and Dominion Telegraph Company *Stock,
with interest accrued were vested in the Minister of

Finance and Receiver General, by said vesting order, .

and later were vested in the defendant herein. That
besides these the said plaintiff was, on the 10th of

January, 1920, the owner of the following property

and interest, to wit: ,
Bonds of the Commercial Cable Company;
Bonds of the Canada Locomotive Company;
Shares of the MacKay Companies; C

Shares of the Canadian Pacific Railway Company,

all of which was vested in the defendant.
13137—73 ’
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1920 The plaintiff, Lucy Hamilton Neitzke was also by
Mary — hirth of British nationality. In 1910 she married

PeEnIsTON

WinMATER Jeo Neitzke, a German, and has ever since resided in

Hammwton  (Jermany where she was on the 4th August, 1914.

NEr1zge .
., At that time she owned certain property, rights and
SecrETARY interests in Canada which, by an order of the 20th May,

oF STATE oF

Canapa. 1919, were vested in the Minister of Finance and

(Nos. 4018 Receiver General as custodian of Enemy property and

and 4008). :
Seatomeac of Were later vested in the defendant under the Treaty of

Facts.  Peace (Germany) Order 1920.

The property, rights and interests involved in this
case are given in the schedule to the case and are as
follows:

First mortgage, 15 year sinking fund of the Wil-
liam Davies, Company, Limited, of the par value of
$10,000, bearing interest at 6 per cent per annum, the
‘principal to mature July 1st, 1926; $13,000 invested
by " National Trust Company, Limited, under its
guaranteed trust investment receipts, dated the
16th of January, 1912 and the 2nd January, 1914;
$30,000 invested by the Toronto General Trusts
Corporation under its guaranteed investment receipt,
dated the 9th of July, 1913; 100 shares of the capital
stock of the Canada Permanent Mortgage Corpora-
tion of the par value of $10.00 each; $20,000 in the
hands of the W. B. Hamilton Shoe Company, Limited,
under the terms of a receipt dated the 1st day of
January, 1913; $3,456.67 on deposit with the Central
Canada Loan and Savings Company; 6 shares of the
Fire Insurance Exchange Corporation Stock and
Mutual, of the par value of $60.00 per share, upon
which $30.00 per share is paid up.
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N\

November 20th, 1920. .

The special cases of ‘the said Lucy Hamilton
Neitzke and Mary Peniston Wlehma,yer, were united
for argument, being argued by the same counsel,
before the PRESIDENT OF THE EXCHEQUER OOURT,
at Ottawa.

o7

Both plaintiffs by their statements of claim ask for
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Mary
PeENIsTON
IEHMAYER
AND Lucy
HamMmmion
Ne1rzZKs
.
Tue .
SECRETARY
oF BTATE OF
CANADA.

(Nos. 4018
and 4006).

(a) a declaration that none of their property, rights and gcement of

interests vested in the defendant, as aforesaid, are

Facta.

within,the provisions of Article 296 of the Treaty of '

Peace with Germany.

(b) An order that the said property, rights and
~ interests be returned by the defendant to them.

R. 8. Robertson K.C. for plaintiff.

Chm'stophér C.. Robinson K.C. for defenglant.

Robertson. K.C. cited the fo]lbwihg cases: Bradford
Old Bank v. Suicliffe;' (1); Coyne v. Broddie (2); re
Tidd (3); Atkinson and Bradford Building Sociely (4);
In re Brown Estate (5); Hart, Bankmg, 2'Ed. pp 199,
200 and 567

Robinson K.C. cited: Pbtt V. Cl_egg (6).

The remainder of the facts and the points of law

submitted are stated in the reasons for judgment.

THE. PRESIDENT OF THE CoOURT now (November -

25, 1920) delivered judgment.

(1) [1918] 2 K.B. 833. (4) 25 Q.B.D. 377.
(2) 15 Ont. App. Rep. 159. ~ (5) [1893] 2 Ch. Div. 300.
(3) [1893] 3 Ch. Div, 154, (6) 16 M. .& W. 321.
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The questions raised are of considerable interest.
On the 15th November, 1920, an order in council was
passed which reads as follows:

* . “Ottawa, 15th November, 1920.
“To His Excellency, '
““The Governor General in Council:

“The undersigned has the honour to observe that
under the provisions of the treaty of peace with Ger-
many, and the treaty of peace (Germany) Order, 1920,
Canada has the right to retain and liquidate the pro-
perty, rights and interests of certain enemies in Canada,
and such property, rights and interests are vested in the
custodian, but power is reserved to relinquish any of
such property, rights or interests, and it is desirable
to exercise the power of relinquishment with respect
to property of British-born women, who at birth had
no other mnationality, and who acquired German
nationality only by marriage. Doubt, however, arises
as to the liability of Canada to Germany with respect
to certain classes of such prop('erty, and it is desirable
to resolve such doubt so far as possible by the decision
of the Exchequer Court of Canada.

“The undersigned therefore recommends that the
property, rights and interests of British-born women
who at birth had no other nationality, and who have
acquired German nationality only by marriage, be
relinquished, provided such relinquishment shall not
include any property, rights or interests for or in respect
of which Canada is or may be liable to Germany
unde~ the provisions of the treaty of peace; that any
such woman may make an application under the
treaty of peace (Germany) Order, 1920, to the Exche-
quer Court of Canada for a declaration as to what
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property, tights or intevests formerly owned by her
may be relinquished hereunder having regard to the
foregoing proviso, and that the order in counecil
approved by Your Excellency on the 29th .of July,
1920, P.C. 1760, be rescmded ”

A statute was enacted by the parliament of Canada
Cap. 14, 10 Geo. V, assented to the IOth November,
1919, which reads as follows:

. “His Majesty, by and with the advice and consent
of the Senate and House of Commons of - Canada,
enacts as follows:—

“1. Section twenty of the Ewxchequer Court Act,
Revised Statutes of Canada, 1906, chapter one hupdred
and forty, is amended by adding thereto the follow—
ing:—

“(1) Every claim, demand, set off,‘ counter claim,
dispute, or question with respect to any debt, prop-
erty right or interest mentioned in section three or
~ section four of Part X of the treaty of peace with
Germany, or ia any similar section or provision which
may be included in the treaties of peace with Austria,
Bulgaria or Turkey, or in any statute or order in
council passed for the purpose of carrying into effect

‘the sald section three or section four or any such

similar sectlon or provision.

“(2) Nothlng in paragraph (i) shall affect the juris-
diction of any other court to hear and determine any
matter now pending before such court.”

" By the treaty of peace between the alhed and- asso-
ciate powers and Germany, signed at Versailles, June
28th, 1919, it is provided by sectlon 3, article 296 as
- {ollows:
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“There shall be settled through the intervention of
clearing offices to be established by each of the high
contracting parties within three months of the noti-
fication referred to in paragraph (e) hereafter the
following classes of pecuniary obligations:

“(1) Debts payable before the war and due by a
national of one of the contracting powers, residing
within its territory, to a national of an opposing
power, residing within its territory;

‘“(2) Debts which became payable during the war to
nationals of one contracting power residing within
its territory and arose out of transactions or contracts
with the nationals of 4n opposing power, resident
within its territory, of which the total or partial
execution was suspended on account of the declara-
tion of war.

Y(4) * * * * The proceeds of liquidation of
enemy property, rights and interests mentioned in
section IV and in the annex thereto will be accounted
for through the clearing offices, in the currency and
at the rate of exchange hereinafter provided in para-
graph(d),and disposed of by them under the conditions
provided by the said section and annex. The settle-
ments provided for in this article shall be effected
according to the following principles and in accordance
with the annex to this section:

‘““(b) Each of the high contracting parties shall be
respectively responsible for the payment of such debts
due by its nationals, except in the cases where before
the war the debtor was in a state of bankruptey or
failure, or had been given formal indication of insol-
vency or where the debt was due by a company whose
business has been liquidated under emergency legis-
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lation during the war. Nevertheless, debts "due by
the inhabitants of territory invaded or occupied by
' the enemy before the armistice will not be guaranteed
by the states of which those territories forn part;

-,

““(¢) The sums due to the nationals of one of the high
- contracting parties by the nationals of an- opposmg
state will be debited to the clearing office of the country
of the debtor, and paid to the creditor by the clearmg
ofﬁce of the country of the creditor;

. “(d) Debts shall be paid or credlted in the currency
of such one of the allied and associated powers, their
colonies or protectorates, or the British Dominions or
India, as may be concerned. If the debts.are payable
in some other currency they shall be paid or credited
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in the currency of the country concerned, whether an

| allied or associated power, colony, protectorate, British
dominion or India, at the pre-war rate of exchange.

“Far the purpose" of this provision the pre-war rate
of exchange shall be defined as the average cable
transfer rate prevailing in the allied or associated
country concerned during the month immediately
preceding the outbreak of war between the said
country concerned and Germany

“If a contract provides for a fixed rate of exchange
governing the conversion of the currency in which
the debt is stated into the currency of the allied or
associated country concerned, then the above provis-
ions concerning the rate of exchange shall not apply.”

The first question that arises is whether or not the

classes of property mentioned in the stated cases, in .

both actions, are ‘‘debts” within the meaning of this
. article- 296 which I have quoted.
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1920 The case was very fully and ably argued by counsel
Pég;;‘;N for both parties. It is conceded that all the various

Wnmaver clagses of property referred to in both of the actions are
axp Lucy

HamwtoN pow vested in the custodian by order of the Supreme
NEITZKE

.,  Court of Ontario.
SeeRe™RY  After considering the various sections of the treaty

Caxapa and also the authorities cited by counsel, I am of the

resta opinion that none of the property, rights or interest
mfer Set out in the special case and the -schedules thereto,

Reasons for

Jud . . . . . .
uesment- can be classed as debts within the meaning of section

296. I think this is manifest from a consideration of
the different sections of the treaty, 296 and 297.
For instance, article 296 starts by stating that:“ Theve
shall be settled through the intervention of clearing
offices to be established by each of the high contracting
parties within three months of the notification veferred
te in paragraph (e) hereafter the following classes of
pecuniary obligations:”

And then tollows the clauses defining the debts.
The debts are manifestly not all classes of pecuniary
obligations. If we turn over to sub-section 4, there is
the provision that the proceeds of liquidation of enemy
property rights and interests mentioned in section 4,
and in the annex thereto will be accounted for through
the clearing offices, etc.

In the annex of section 296, it is provided that
in this annex, the pecuniary obligations referred to in
the first paragraph of Article 296 are described as
“enemy debts;’ the persons from whom the same are
due as “enemy debtors.”

Article 297 is of importance as bearing on the
meaning of the word ‘‘debts.”” It provides in sub-
section (b): “Subject to any contrary stipulations
which may be provided for in the present treaty, the
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allied and associated powers reserve.the right to
retain and liquidate all property, rights and interests
belonging at the date of the coming into force of the
present treaty to German nationals, or companies
controlled by them, within their territories, cclonies,

possessions and protectorates, including territories

ceded to them by the present treaty.

“The liquidation shall be carried out in accordance
with the laws of the allied or associated state con-
cerned, and the German owner shall not be-able to
dispose of such property, rights or interestsnor to
. subject them to any charge without the consent of
that state.” '

This would answer all the matters argued before me
as to which I have any jurisdiction. "I am asked,

however, to give my opinion on another matter as to
which any views that I express would merely be a
matter of personal opinion. , -

By the order in council, which I have set out in full,

the Crown is willing to relinquish their claims on all of

these properties and assets which are now vested in the
custodian, to the two ladies, the plaintiffs in the differ-

ent actions; but, they would like to be advised 'as to

whether in case of their so doing there might be any
liability to Germany by reason of their so relinquishing.
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The German government is not represented before

the court, and any personal views of my own would

have no binding authority, and would be of no more -

value than the opinion of the Justice Department.

There can be no doubt-that if the Crown' so chooses, -

they can velinquish for the benefit of these ladies the
properties in question, and it 1s difficult to see how
any liability is likely to arise by reason of their so
doing. - '
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The only question that might arise is one of very

remote probability, and it is this: By sub-section 4 of

article 296, it is provided that “the proceeds of liqui-
dation of enemy property, rights and interests men-
tioned in section IV and in the annex thereto will be
accounted for through the clearing offices.”

Sub-section (b) of article 297, provides that “Sub-
Ject to any contrary stipulations which may be pro-
vided for in the present treaty, the allied and asso-
clated powers reserve the right to retain and liquidate
all property, ete.

Sub-section 4 of the annex to article 298, reads as
follows: “All property, rights and interests of German

Vou. XX,
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nationals within the territory of any allied or asso- -

ciated power and the net proceeds of their sale, liqui-
dation or other dealing therewith may be charged by
that Allied or associated power in the first place with
payment of amounts due in respect of claims by the
nationals of that -allied or associated power with
regard to their property, rights and interests, including
companies and associations in which they are inter-
ested, in German territory, or debts owing to them
by German nationals, and with payment of claims
growing out of acts committed by the German Govern-
ment or by any German authorities since July 31,
1914, and before that allied or associated power
entered into the war. The amount of such claims
may be assessed by an arbitrator appointed by Mr.
Gustave Ador, if he is willing, or if no such appoint-
ment 1s made by him, by an arbitrator appointed by
the mixed arbitral tribunal provided for in section
VI. They may be charged in the second place with
payment of the amounts due in respect of claims by
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the nationals of such allied or associated power with
regard to-their property, rights and interests in the
territory of other enemy powers, in so far as those
claims are otherwise unsatisfied.”

A question might arise if the German government
retained assets belonging to Canadian subjects and
failed to pay them over, in which case a claim might be
put forward on the part of %he Canadian government
to have these monies paid by Germany Germany
might retort, if you had not relmqulshed the assets
in question you might have set them off against any
claims that youa have against us. This is a remote
contingency, and I should think not worth while
taking into account.

I have gone out of my way as I have said in expres-
sing any opinion on this latter question, but as I have
been asked by counsel I have done so.

These are not cases in which costs should be given

- to either party. I presume that the Crown would be

entitled to recoup themselves for any costs and expenses
out. of the properties in question.

y
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QUEBEC ADMIRALTY DISTRICT.
LA CIE DES BOIS DU NORD....PLAINTIFF;
Vs, | |

SS.S8ST.LOUIS.................... DEFENDANT.

Shipping—Jurisdiction—Building and Equipping—Maritime Lien—
Admiralty Court Act, 1861.

Plaintiff claimed $1,562.99 for work done and materials furnished for
the S.8. 8t. Louis while at Amos, P.Q. The vessel was arrested,
and J. F. H,, of Amos, aforesaid, who had an interest therein
under an agreement to purchase, filed an appearance under reserve.
The vessel was registered at the Port of Montreal, and at the date
of institution of the action the registered owner was J. F. 8., of
Smiths Falls, Ont. The vessel was not under arrest of the court
‘at the time of the institution of the cause.

Held: On the facts, that the court had no jurisdiction to entertain the
claim made herein (1).

2. A claim for the supply of necessaries to a ship' does not constitute a
maritime lien thereon. (The Two Ellens, 4 P.C. 161 (at p. 166)
referred to.

AN ACTION 1n rem claiming $1,562.99 for work
done and necessary disbursements made for the
vessel St. Louis. '

An appearance was filed and certain proceedings
had in the case.

December 2nd, 1920.

Defendant moved before the Honourable Mr.
Justice Maclennan, D.L.J.A., at Quebec, to have the
action dismissed for want of jurisdiction.

(1) Reporter’s Note.—See sections 4 and 5 of the Admiralty Court

Act, 1861, and The Barge Leopold, 18 Ex. C.R., 325; and Haley v.
Comoz, 20 Ex. C.R. 86.,
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J A. Gagne, K C. for plamtlff ‘ N | 1020

La Cie DS

A C. M. Thomson and Luczen M omud for defendan .
8. 8t. Louis

f
The facts a,nd questions ,of law ralsed are stated in Ju?l?tg:n(t).r

the reasons for Judgment T

MACLENNAN D L. J. A ‘this (December 6, 1920) ‘

delivered Judgment .

This is an action in rem and by the endorsement on
the .writ of summons the plaintiff claims the sum of
$1,562.99 for work done and necessary disbursements
- made for the vessel St. Lowis at Amos, province of
Quebee, during the. period within April .and . August,
1920, inclusively, and for costs. On a warrant issued
from the Court the vessel was arrested in' due course.
The writ is addressed to the owners and others inter-
ested in the vessel St. Louis. An appearance was
filed on behalf of Julius Francis House, lumber mer-
chant and agent residing in Amos, province of Quebec,
owner of the vessel St. Louis and under reserve. .
Both parties have taken some incidental proceedings
in the action. The defendant now moves the Court
to .order that the writ of summons, the warrant and .
the arrest be set aside and be annulled, the vessel
released from seizure and the action dlsxmssed Wlth :
costs, for want of jurisdiction, on the ground that the
registered owner or owners were domiciled in Canada
before, at the time and since the work clalmed to
have been done and materials ‘claimed to have been
furnished were so done and furnished and, in any
event, that the warrant and the arrest should be set
aside on the ground that the allegations of the affi-
davit for the warrant are msufﬁclent and 1rregular,
the whole w1th costs.

BowspuNorp .
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It was admitted by the parties that at the time of
the institution of the action the vessel was not under
arrest of the Court, and it would not therefore have
jurisdiction over a claim for building, equipping or
repairing under section 4 of the Admiralty Court

Act, 1861. Section 5 of that Act gives jurisdiction to

.~ the Court over any claim for necessaries supplied to

any ship elsewhere than in the port where the ship
belongs, unless it is shown to the satisfaction of the
Court that at the time of the institution of the cause

" any owner or part owner is domiciled in Canada.

This vessel was registered at the Port of Montreal, on
July 3rd, 1902, and at the date when the cause of
action arose and the case was instituted the wvessel
was registered in the name of John F. Sherman,
of Smiths Falls, provinece of Ontario, and since April,
1919, House has had an interest in the vessel under
agreement to purchase her. It is settled law that a
claim for the supply of necessaries does not give a
maritime lien on a ship (Johnson and others v. Black),
The Two Ellens (1),

The registered owner Sherman being domiciled in
Canada at the time of the institution of the action,
and House, who claims to be interested in the vessel
under agreement to purchase, being also domiciled in
Canada since many years, it is manifest that the
Court is without jurisdiction over the claim upon
which the action is based and that the action must
therefore be dismissed. , . .

The defendant, as a second ground for the setting
aside of the warrant and arrest, alleges that the affi-
davit to lead warrant is insufficient and irregular
inasmuch as it does not state, as is required by Rule of

() L.R., 4 P.C.,, 161, at page 166.
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Practice and Procedure,‘ 37, the national character 1920
of the ship and to the best of r(?spondent’s l.>e.lief no poA CmDES
owner or part owner of the ship was domiciled in

. ) ) R . . S.S.Su?..Loma
Canada at the time of the institution of the action. . —

Reasons for
The plaintiff submits that the objection raised by ?fudgment
defendant to the sufficiency of the affidavit is a meére
technical objection which has ‘been waived by the

appearance and other proceedmgs in the. action.

It is unnecessary for me to decide the question
raised as to the sufficiency of the affidavit, as I have
come to the conclusion that under the statute there is
absolute absence of jurisdiction, Staék et al. vs. the
barge Leopold (1). The defendant could have raised
the question of jurisdiction immediately after appear-
ance; this would have saved:some expense for both.
parties. There will therefore be judgment setting

aside the writ, warrant and arrest, and dismissing the
"action with costs up to and including the appearance
and defendant’s motion to dismiss for want of juris-
diction, and as to all other proceedings in the action,
each party will pay his own costs.

Judgment accordingly.

(1) 18 Ex. CR. 325

13137—8
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IN THE MA’ITEﬁ of the Petition of Right of
JOSEPH LECLERC...... e SUPPLIANT;

' AND
HIS MAJESTY THE KING........ RESPONDENT.

Common™ Carrier—Railways—Negligence—Section 20—Ezchequer Court
Aci—Quantum.

On the 30th September, 1919, L. shipped a carload of potatoes from
St. Charles, 200 miles from Montreal, by the I.C.R., consigned to
one. Gustave Brossard, Viger Station, Mountreal. When the
railway agent was preparing the bill of lading, L. placed a slip of
paper on his desk giving the weight of potatoes and number of the
car, and, by error, the agent, entered the weight of potatoes on
the bill of lading for the car number, which L. on receiving put
into his pocket without looking at it. By reason of this error
the car was not found in Montreal till the 15th or 16th of October,
.when 1. was notified, but notice was not received by B. until the
20th, due to the wrong name being placed on the notice. In fact,
the ear never reached its real destination, as indicated in the bill of
lading. B. then refused delivery, the priee of potatoes having in
the meantime gone down, and, without notice to L. the potatoes
were sold, and after deducting demurrage the balance was tend-
ered fo L. in settlement. Both I. and B. had made repeated
enquiries for the car.

Held: On the facts, that the car did not reach Moutreal in reasonable
time, that the railway employees were guilty of negligence in the
performance of their duty, and that L. should recover the damages
suffered by reason of the delay in transportation.

2. That the crown is entitled to the benefit of the provision in the bill
of lading that “the amount of any loss or damage for which the
carrier is liable shall be computed on the basis of the value of the
goods at the place and time of shipment under the bill of lading,”
and the court assessed the damage on the basis of the value at the
time and place of shipment.

3. That as the petitioner alleged that he suffered damages “par la
faute, negligence et imprevoyance” of the employees of the rail-
way, the case came within the operation of section 20 of the
Exchequer Court Act, and the Crown was liable thereunder, and
without reference to any liability as a common carrier.

Quaere: Can the Crown now be said to be o common earrier, notwith- |
standing the decisions in the cases of McLeod v. the Queen (1),
MacFarlane v. the Queen (2), Lavoie v. the Queen (3).

(1) § S.CR. 1. (3) 3 Ex. C.R. 96.
(2) 7 S.C.R. 216.
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PETITION OF RIGHT seeking to recover $971, 1920
damages suffered by reason of delay in transportation Jos- Lectero
of potatoes from St. Charles de Bellechasse to Montreal. Txe Kiv

‘ Reasons for
November 17th and December 3rd, 1920. Judgment.

LN

Tried. before the Honourable Mr Justlce Audette,
at Quebec.

" J. A. Gagne, K.C. for suppliant..
A. Sévigny K.C. for respondent.

i
The facts are stated in the reasons for judgment.

Auperre J. this (December 7, 1920) . delivered
Jjudgment.

The suppliant, by his Petition of Right, seeks to
‘recover the sum of $971 as representing the alleged
loss suffered by him in forwarding, by the Canadian
Government Railway, a car of potatoes from St.
Charles de Bellechasse, P.Q., to Montreal under the
followmg circumstances.

The suppliant having secured a car from the station _
master at St. Charles, loaded the same at the siding, )
with 674 bags of potatoes of 90 lbs. each,—each bag
being' weighed as it went on board. The loading
being completed, on the 30th September, 1919, he
went, accompanied by witness Lapointe, who had.
weighed the potatoes, to the station and asked the
-station master for a bill of lading—and at the same
time placed on the agent’s desk a slip of paper giving
both the weight of the potatoes and the number of -

- the car. The lettér “N”’ on such slip stood before the
figures representing the number of the car, and the
letter “P’’ (for poids-weight) stood before the figures

representing the weight.
13137—8%
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1020 The agent then prepared the bill of lading, and
Jos. Leatere handed to Leclerc the document filed as Exhibit No. 1,
Tae Koo whereby he acknowledged having received the potatoes
’};‘,’;,;‘:,’;;,ﬁ‘t’f from Leclere, at St. Charles, on the 30th September,

~  consigned to Gustave Brossard, with destination to

Viger Station, Montreal, and placed upon the bill of
lading, Exhibit No. 1, as the number of the car, the
figures representing the weight of the potatoes. Hence
the present action.

The documents, constituting the contract of carriage
in the present case, were prepared by the agent, and
when Leclerc was handed exhibit No. 1, he placed it in
his pocket without looking at it.

Leclerc contends that having enquired from the
agent when the potatoes would reach their destination,
he was told that the car should or would be in Montreal
somewhere around the 3rd of October, and he went
to Montreal for that date with the object of taking
delivery with his consignee.

However, the agent denies having told him when he
thought the car would be in Montreal, and says that
Leclerc told him the number of the car and gave him
the wrong figures.

Upon this latter point, both Leclerc and Lapointe,
the latter a disinterested witness, swear positively
that the slip of paper was duly handed to the agent,
and I accept their teétimony in preference to that of
the agent; because, when in the witness box, although
showing honesty of design, he disclosed a very bad
memory, especially in respect of what I might call
the McCarthy enquiries and telegrams.

" The car of potatoes left St. Charles on the following
day, which was the 1st of October, 1919, and having
reached Chaudiere Station, a comparatively short
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distance from St. Charles, it remained there according 192
' to some evidence until the 6th October, on account of Jos. me
the difficulty resulting from the wrong number on T=E v
the bill of lading. _ l}g';,ggggr
In the meantime Leclerc had gone to Montreal and
several times each day had been enquiring at the
Place Viger Station, at the freight offices at Bona~
venture Station, at the freight offices of the Inter-
colonial Railway, the Grand Trunk, and the Canadian
Pacific Railway, but he could obtain no knowledge of
the car in Montreal. He then telephoned from
Montreal to the agent at St. Charles de Bellechasse for
the right number of the car, and was again given by
the telephone the weight number. Leclerc said he
knew the right number and took it that the agent
was giving the wrong number. He then on the 6th
October sent a telegram (Exhibit “A’’) to the agent
asking immediately for the number of the car, and
on the 7th the agent sent the right number, and that
telegram was received by Leclere,; at Montreal on the
morning of the 8th. '
Leclerc then went again to the Place Viger station,
to Bonaventure station, etc., but again was told they
did not have the car. He and Brossard again and
again went to the station and freight offices, and
finally on the Saturday, being discouraged, he left for
his home, at St. Charles, giving the address of the '
consignee at the freight office. Leclerc arrived at
St. Charles on Saturday, the 11th, in the evening,
and next day agent Rheaume and Leclerc met at’
church. The evidence as to how the conversation
which then took place arose, is somewhat conflicting, -
but in the result, it amounts to the agent telling
Leclerc he had better take delivery of his car and
make a claim if he suffered damages; but Leclerc
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220 said, I need not bother about it, Brossard, the
Jos. LeciEre consignee is in Montreal, and they are going to pay
Tne Kwva me for that car. His patience by that time had
Todemens: graduated down to its minimum and perhaps not
—  without some justification.

The suppliant says that on the Wednesday or
Thursday following (the 15th or the 16th) he was
advised by agent Rheaume, at St. Charles, that the car
had been traced and that he could find it in Montreal.

Brossard, the consignee of the potatoes, confirms
Leclerc as to all of these enquiries at the railway
freight offices, but some difficulty appears to have
arisen as to Brossard’s address—a matter which will
be hereafter referred to. Brossard, however, testifies
he went to Viger Station every day up to the 20th
October.

Then, on the 10th October, witness McCarthy, an
employee of the Intercolonial Railway, at Montreal,
and agent of the Canadian Northern Railway at
Montreal wharf, received the bill of lading or way-
bill, and testifies that at the time he received the
way-bill he supposed the car was likely at Pointe
St. Charles (Montreal) but he did not actually know.
Witness McCarthy says he then endeavoured to
locate Gaston (not Gustave Brossard) Brossard, the
consignee, but seeing he could not succeed, he wired
the station agent at St. Charles de Bellechasse (Exhibit
“C”) for Gaston Brossard’s address. After several
enquiries Gustave Brossard was found on the 20th,
and according to McCarthy he then refused delivery
of the potatoes, as endorsed upon the document—
because, says Brossard, he did not want to sign before
seeing the car, and because the price of potatoes had
then gone down. The evidence is conflicting upon
~this point. The railway official endeavoured in part
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to escape hablhty upon .the ground that they could 1920
not-locate the consignee, but it must not be overlooked Jos. Lmﬂ"f‘f’
that they were trying to find Gaston Brossard and not T=® Kma
Gustave Brossard. A messenger had been sent to I};?;,?:;:,{‘t’f
the place where the consignee was working, and upon =
_enquiry was told they had no Gaston Brossard in
their employ. Moreover, as the destination of the
car was entered upon the bill of lading, would it not’
appear, as a primary duty of witness McCarthy, to
notify the freight office at Viger station, of the arrival
of the car. Had that been done, it is obvious that
Brossard would have been notified before the 20th, as
he kept enquiring daily at that station, the destination "~
of his car.

Upon Brossard refusing delivery on the 20th October,
the potatoes were sold without any notice to the "
consignor, and the sum of $517.52 realized by such
" sale, from which the freight, $114.20, and demurrage of
$55.00. were deducted, leaving the sum of $348.32
which was tendered the suppliant. in settlement, and
he refused it, standing by his rights for the full value
of the potatoes. o

I must not overlook mentioning that we also had
in the case the hyper-expert who testified as to what
might have happened, and as to what might not have
happened to the potatoes while in transit at that
season. However, this speculative evidence has no
bearing upon the gravamen of this action.

In the result I must find that the car in question
never reached its destination, Viger station, Montreal.
-It 1s true witness McCarthy when pressed to locate the
car at certain dates, tried to explain that the car might
not have gone to Viger station on account of the
Canadian Pacific Railway embargo, on account of
.congestion. From his evidence, however, it must be
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120 found that while that year there had existed inter-
Jos. I;f"mf‘c mittent embargoes, he did not know positively whether
Tue Kmé the embargo was in foree at the very time in question.
R meler Moreover, if there was such an embargo, it should

~—  have been proved in the regular manner.

The wrong number was placed upon the document
prepared by the St. Charles agent, and it was his duty
to ascertain the right number before placing it on the
bill of lading or way-bill, even if the document had
been prepared by the consignor.

The evidence does not clearly disclose at what date
the car actually reached Montreal. On the 10th
October, witness McCarthy, who received the bill of
lading, testified he thought the car was at Pointe St.
Charles, but he was not sure,—as he might very well
and very likely receive the way-bill or bill of lading
even before the arrival of the car. The consignee was
only notified on the 20th. On the 15th or 16th
October, the consignor was notified at St. Charles de
Bellechasse that the car had reached Montreal.

Did this car of potatoes reach Montreal within a
reasonable time? What is a reasonable time depends
upon the eircumstances of each case. It was known
to all concerned that the car in question was loaded
with perishable goods, and therefore that all due
urgency and efforts should have been made by the
railway officials to forward the car to its destination
with all due speed. Too much seems to have been
taken for granted in allowing the car to remain at
Chaudiere up to the 6th. It if took all of that time
to transport potatoes over a distance of about 200
miles, railways would thus defeat their utility.

The wrong number was placed upon this bill of
lading by the railway official, and he admits, in his
evidence, it was his duty to corroborate and ascertain
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if the number was correct. The name of the consignee 1920
on the bill of lading is Gustave Brossard, and it was Jos- LEC"“C
wrongly placed upon the notice to be served upon him. Tae Kin
Gaston Brossard was the person sought, andnot Gustave l}:?,?,‘,‘,:,{‘,’f
Brossard. The car did not reach Montreal withina  —
reasonable time under the circumstances, and in fact
never reached its destination, Viger station, Montreal.-

Upon the facts, if the case were one between subject

and subject, the respondent would be liable in damages

for a breach of the contract-of carriage. But in

view of the decisions in this court of McLeod v. the
- Queen (1), following MacFarlane v. the Queen (2), and
Lavoie v. the Queen (3), holding that the Crown cannot

be a common carrier, it would be necessary for me to :
consider whether those decisions have not become . |
obsolete before I could find liability in respect of the con-
tract of carriage. (See annotation to report of Vipond

v. Furness Withy Co.)(4). However, I am relieved from
" any necessity of considering the case on the theory of
carrier’s liability by the fact that by his petition the
suppliant alleges that he suffers damage occasioned
““par la faute, negligence et imprevoyance” of the em- !
ployees of the railway, and so brings the case within the
operation of section 20 of the Exchequer Court Act.
" It is mentioned in the evidence that the potatoes
cost $1.25 a bag at St. Charles, and were sold at -
Montreal for $1.50. However, under the terms and
conditions of the bill of lading, “the amiount of any
loss or damage for which the carrier is liable shall be
computed on the basis of the value of the goods at
the place and time of shipment under the bill of lading.”
Getty Vs, the C.P. Ry. C’o (5).

. (1)8S.CR.1. (3) 3 Ex. C.R. 6.
(2) 7 S.C.R. 216. (4) 35 D.L.R. 285
(6) 22 Can. R. C. 297.
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1920 The suppliant loaded his car partly with some of
Jos. LECLERC his own potatoes and partly with potatoes he had
Tre Kixa bought at $1.00 a bag. I will accept that figure.
‘}ﬁﬁ?ﬁiﬁ‘t’f He also charged for his board at Montreal, but

1 fail to see the necessity of a consignor following his

goods to their destination and therefore disallow such
charge.

The suppliant is therefore entitled to recover the
sum of $674, with interest -(St. Louts vs. the Queen (1)
and Laine vs. the Queen (2) thereon from the date
at which the petition of right was left with the Secre-
tary of State (a date which may hereafter be estab-
lished by affidavit) to the date hereof, and with costs.

Solicitors for suppliant: Galtpeault, St. Laurent,
Gagne, Metayer & Devlin. '

Solicitors for respondent: Sévigny & Sirois.

{1) 25 8.C.R. 649 at p. 665. (2) 5 Ex. C.R. 103,
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BETWEEN

DOMINION IRON AND STEEL
CO., LIMITED AND THE DOMIN-
ION STEEL CORPORATION,
LIMITED (AppEp BY ORDER OF ‘
Court Darep 4th NOVEMBER,
1920).. ..o PLAINTIFFS;

AND

HIS MAJESTY THE KIN G ........ DEFENDANT.

War Measures Actn-.“Appropmtzon”—Meaning of under section T— '

Section 6—Contract—Necessity for formal document—Effect of
erroneous statement in Reference by Minister,

. Held: Where a proposal to manufacture certain steel rails was accepted
in writing by the party to whom it was sent, such acceptance
stating that it would be followed by a formal contract, and where
it appeared that the formal contract was intended solely to embody

. the agreement already arrived at, in such a case, looking to the
intention of the parties, the contractual relations between them
should be regarded as based upon the terms so agreed upon.
Lewts v. Brass, 3 Q.B.D. 667 referred to.

2. That where durmg the whole time that an order given by the
Crown to a company to manufacture rails for various ra.llways,
was being filled, the company carried on their own business in

addition to turning out the rails ordered, and had full control -

thereof, the act of the Crown in giving such an order cannot be

construed as an “appropriation’ of the plant, within the meaning .

of section 7 of the War Measures Act, or otherwise, United Stales
va. Russell, 13 Wall. 623 referred to:

3. That section 7 of the said Act only applies to cases where the Crown
appropriates property for its own use, and section 6 authorizes
the issuing of an order by the Crown, dlrectmg a - company to

furnish goods, ete., to a third part;y, without the Crown incurring”

any liability therefor,

4. That where the Minister of Justice in referring the claim in question
to the court erroneously stated that the same was referred under
the powers conferred by section 7 of the War Meaaures Act, such

statement could not vary the rights of the parties as established
under an order-in-council.

245

1920
St
Dec. 16.
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1020 REFERENCE by the Minister of Justice of a
DouivIoN  claim of the plaintiff, to recover the price of rails
Smeet Co., furnigshed to various railways, to wit: the Canadian
svo B - Pacific Ry., the Grand Trunk Ry., the Toronto,

Conggﬁgmm Hamilton and Buffalo Ry., etc., during the war,
Inmrep  ypon the order of the Crown for which it was liable.

Taz Kmne.  Tnformations were also exhibited by the Crown,

£ . . . . .
St nee f claiming from the railways for whom said rails had

been ordered, the price thereof.

By consent of counsel for all parties, inasmuch as
the said railways were interested in the result of this
action, counsel for the said railways attended the
trial and were permitted to cross-examine the witnesses
and were heard in argument. No judgment was given
against them, counsel for the Crown declaring they
were not asking for judgment against the railways and
that the question, as between the Crown and Railways,
would be left over for future direction.

September 7th, 8th, October 25th, 26th, 27th and
20th; November 3rd, 4th, 6th and 8th, 1920.

The case was heard before THE PRESIDENT OF THE
ExcaeQuer CoUrT at Ottawa.

Wallace Nesbitt, K.C., Hector McInnes, K.C., J."
McG. Stewart and E. F. Newcombe, for plaintiff.

F. E. Meredith, K.C., and A. Holden, K. C., for the
Crown.

W' N. Tilly, K.C., for the Canadian Pacific Railway
and (J. A. Soule with him) for the Toronto, Hamilton,
and Buffalo Railway.

C. P. Chisholm, K.C., for the Grand Trunk Railway.

The facts are stated in the reasons for judgment.
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THE PRESIDENT OF THE. EXCHEQUER COURT now 192

(December 16th, '1920) delivered judgment. Daumron
The trial of this case commenced at Ottawa on the Sﬂf«’hﬁxf"

AND THE

17th September, 1920. The only witness called on Domvton
behalf of the plaintiffs was Charles Symonds Cameron. Conggfm'l'ml\,
He is the Controller and the Secretary-Treasurer of the Tavren
Dominion Iron and Steel Company, and also a Director z:::iir

of the company. ‘ , Judgment.

After proceeding for a considerable length of time
with the cross-examination of Cameron, it appeared
that a mass of papers required for the cross-examination
were not in Ottawa, and it was subsequently arranged
that the continuation of the cross-examination should
be taken at Sydney. At the request of all the parties,
~ the Registrar of the court went to Sydney, and several
days were occupied in the continuance of his cross-
examination, and then adjourned to Montreal, and
then to Ottawa where the trial was continued before
me on the 25th October, 1920, and Mr. Cameron’s
© cross-examination was concluded. The trial was then
continued and lasted nearly five days. The argument
" took place on a subsequent day, and lasted for nearly
five days. A great mass of ‘evidence and exhibits have
cumbered the record. Had counsel for the defendant .
examined Mr. Cameron for discovery prior to the trial,

a great deal of time would have been saved, and a mass
of irrelevant evidence eliminated from the case. The
examination of Cameron at Sydney was practically, to
a great extent, an examination for discovery. | o

In justice to the counsel who conducted the case,
it is apparent that Cameron was not over anxious to
facilitate the getting at the facts. It looked to me as
if he were rather enjoying tbe tilt of wits with the .
learned counsel who was cross-examining him.
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1920 However. the case came to an end. Since the close
Domistion  of the argument, I have read over carefully all the

SgeL Co., evidence and arguments, and such of the exhibits

i . . . . . .
Do wee. a8 In my opinion required consideration,

Confg'iizm On the 13th March, 1918, the company had a

Imimen o ontract with the Imperial Munitions Board for the

Tuz Kixe- polling of shell steel for munition purposes. The

R f . .
Judgment. order in council reads, as follows:

“P.C. 629. Report of the Committee of the Privy
Council, approved by His Excellency the Governor
General on the 15th March, 1918.

“The Committee of the Privy Council have had
before them a report, dated 13th March, 1918, from
the Minister of Railways and Canals, representing
that it is essential that rails for renewals be obtained
immediately for the various railways in Canada, if the
railways are to continue operation to their full capacity
for war purposes during the next year.

“The Minister further represents that every source
of supply outside of Canada has been investigated
without success.

“Further, that the Imperial Munitions Board,
realizing the absolute necessity of the railways obtaining
rails, have agreed to release the Dominion Steel
Corporation, Limited, from its contract with the
Imperial Munitions Board from the 1st April. so
as to permit of the rail plant running to fullest capacity
until at least one hundred thousand tons (100,000)
of rails have been rolled, as said rails are urgently
needed for war conditions,

“Further, that the Minister of Railways and Canals
took up with the Domintion Steel Corporation the
question of rolling said rails and he has received the
following letter: ,
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“In accordance with your request of this date, I 192
beg to submit the following proposal covering your Doixiox

IrRON AND .
requirements of steel rails: S’{ﬁﬁlﬁgg |
““Material : Basic Open Hearth Steel Rails, of ﬁ%ﬁxiﬁ

B
the Canadian Patific Railway’s Company’s section CORpomﬁxox,
- LiMmrrep
weighing eighty-five pounds per lineal yard, first o e
. . HE ING.,

quality. : —

Reasons for

“Quantity: One hundred. thousand (100,000) gmss Judgment.
tons of 2,240 pounds

“Specification. The rails covered by this proposa.l
to be manufactured in accordance with the specification
which governed the production of steel rails by the
Dominion Iron and Steel Company for the Canadian
Government Railways, during 1917,

“Lengths: The standard length of rail to be thirty-
three (33) feet. ' The purchaser to accept not less
than ten per cent (109) of the contract tonnage in
shorter lengths, down to and including twenty-four
(24) feet, should the seller elect to supply the same.

“Inspection: Testing, inspection and acceptance of
the rails to be carried out at Sydney, N.S.

“Shipment: The rolling of the rails covered by this
proposal shall be undertaken to commence on or
about April 1st, 1918, and shipments shall begin as
soon as practicable thereafter, in carload lots. The
rate of rolling to be the capacity of the Dominion
Iron and Steel Company’s rail mill. - It is estimated
that it will be possible to produce approximately
10,000 tons during the month of April, 1918.

““No. 2 rails: The purchaser shall accept not less
‘than five per cent (59,) in second quality rails, in
-lengths down to and including twenty-four (24) feet,
should the seller elect to supply the same.
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1920 “Price: No. 1 quality, seventy dollars ($70.00).
- poumton No, 2, sixty-eight dollars ($68.00). Both prices per

SteiL Co., pross ton of 2,240 pounds, free on board cars, Sydney,

AND THE 1
AND THE Nova Scotia.

Comert v, ‘Terms: Net cash on thirty days from date of ship-

Laed yhent,
::;_I;":::, “The above proposal is made subject to acceptance
Judgment. within a reasonable period, and will in the event of the
same meeting with your approval be followed by a
formal contract. ‘

“And to which the following reply has been sent:
“Dear Sir:

“T am 1n receipt of your letter of the 12th instant,
covering your offer for the rolling of 100,000 tons of
steel rails, and in reply, beg to say that your offer to
manufacture is quite acceptable, the price will be
submitted to Council. You will hear from me in due
course.

““Please make the necessary arrangements to proceed
with the rolling as of April 1st.

“Yours faithfully,
“J. D. RE.

“Mark Workman, Esq.,
““President, Dominion Steel Corporation, Limited,
“Montreal, P.Q.

“Further, that since the Dominion Steel Corporation
received reply to their letter they ask that before
agreeing to commence the manufacture of said rails,
the price quoted be assured to them, _

“The Minister recommends that authority be
granted under the War Measures Act, 1914, for an
order to be issued to the Dominion Steel Corporation,
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Limited, for the rolling by the Dominion Iron and
Steel Company, of .at least one hundred thousand
tons of steel rails, rolling to commence on the Ist
April, 1918, to specifications to be approved by the
Minister of Railways and Canals and at a price to be
determined on the recommendatlon of the said Minis-
ter, approved by. your Excellency in Council, after an
investigation of the Company’s costs by experts
appointed by the Minister of Railways and Canals.,
“The Committee concur in the foregoing recom-
“mendation to submit the same for approval.

“RopoLPHE BOUDREAT,
“Clerk of the Privy Council.”
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1920
——

Dominiox
TRON AND -
Stesr Co.,
LivrreD
AND THE
Doyvanton
STEEBL
CORPORATION,
LI\II’I‘ED

THE KING

Reasons for
Judgment.

It will be noticed that by this orderin council it was.

provided that the price to be paid for the rails was to
be approved by the Minister of Railways and Canals,
and at a price to be determined on the recommenda-

‘tion of the said Minister, approved by His Excellency .

in Council, after an investigation of the Company’s
costs by experts appomted by the Minister of Railways
and Canals.

Under the order of the .15th March 1918, the
“company proceeded to roll the rails, and the 99,000
tons of steel rails number one, were delivered to the
various railways, and in addition thereto some 17,000

tons of second class rails were also delivered, it having |

. been -agreed, first, that five per cent of second class
rails should be accepted out of the 99,000 tons of
rails, subsequently modified by an .agreement that

- the five per cent of second class rdils should be in

addition to the 99,000 tons of first class rails,—and by
a later arrangement, an additional number of tons of
second class rails were also to be taken over.

| 131379 o
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4

1920 Instead of the Minister fixing the price, a subsequent
D°‘“NI°N order in council, dated on the 26th February, 1919,

IroN anD

SeEL GO, was passed, under which the Minister, apparently

AN THE - with the assent of some of the railways, made the

STEEL .
CORPORMON’reference to the Exchequer Court to fix the price.

Lanrrep The Dominion Iron and Steel Company presented
Tae Kive. their claim, and it is material to consider this claim.
'}3%?.323?.' The Minister of Justice referred the claim as presented

~  bya direction, which reads, as follows:
““Under the powers confered by section 7 of the
War Measures Act, 1914, or otherwise existing in th/is
behalf, I hereby refer to the Exchequer Court of
Canada the annexed claim of the Dominion Iron and
Steel Company, Limited, for compensation for appro-
priation by His Majesty 100,000 tons of steel rails.

“Dated at Ottawa this 30th day of October, 1919.

CuarLEs J. DOHERTY,
Minister of Justice.

“To the Registrar of the Exchequex; Court of Canada,
Ottawa.”

This reference states that under the powers con-
ferred by section 7 of the War Measures Act, 1914,
or otherwise existing in that behalf. No doubt seeing
this reference to section 7 of the War Measures Act,
counsel were astute enough to amend the nature of the
claim and to attempt to obtain compensation under
section 7 of the War Measures Act, Cap. 2, 5 Geo. V,
assented to on the 22nd August, 1914.

The claim put forward at the trial by Mr. Nesbitt,
K.C., senior counsel for the steel company, was shortly,
as follows: He proved certain contracts with the
Imperial Munitions Board under which shell steel was °
to be delivered at the contract price of about $80.00 per
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ton, and his contention was that they should receive 1020
the same price per ton for the rails in order that the DoMmion

X IrON AND
steel company might obtain compensation under section Sﬁ’;ﬁgg
7 for the loss of their contract with the Imperia] AND THE.
Munitions Board. ' » _ Stoen

CORPORATION,

- T suggested that if the case had to be decided under - T™r™®
section 7, it would be necessary for the Steel Company 52 Kwe.
to prove the loss which they had sustained. It might §eaegnsfer
. appear that instead of the steel company suffering by =~
reason of having as they claimed a loss from their
contract, they might have been saved from loss. Had
the cost of the shell steel contract been greater than
the $80.00 a ton, there would -be no ground even on the
contention of the steel company for compensation
under section 7, for the reason that it might have been
beneficial to get rid of a losing contract.

Mzr. Nesbitt, however, took a different view stating
he had fully considered the questlon and was prepared’
to take his stand on his case.

Counsel for the Crown or the rallways d1d not
suggest that the action should be dismissed for lack of
proof, and the case was proceeded with,and the
question now is of no importance, as counsel for the
Crown proved conclusively the case of the steel
company, if it stood to be decided on the basis of
compensation and the profit which they would have
made from the shell contract had it been. carried out.

After a full consideration of the case, I'am of opinion
that the steel company cannot avail themselves of the
provisions of section 7 of the War Measures Act.
The reference of the Minister'bf ‘Justice in which he
states: “Under the powers conferred by section 7 of
the War Measures Act, 1914,” is evidently a mistake, .

13137—9%
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1920 and cannot vary the rights of the parties as provided
Dommnion hy the order in council of the 15th March, 1918.

Irox AND

Sent Oo. Under section 6, the Governor-in-Council shall have

gy e - power to do and authorize such act and things, ete.,

conem, - and that the powers of the Governor-in-Council shall
ORPORATION,

Ll:gj:fﬂb extend to all matters coming within the class of subjects
Tt Kixe. hereinafter enumerated. Sub-section “‘f”’ includes

. -
N mene. appropriation.

In no sense can it be held under the facts of this
case, that the premises of the steel company were
appropriated by His Majesty.

Mr. Meredith referred me to an authority in the
United States Supreme Court, which has an important
bearing on the case before me. United States v. Russell
(1). It was an appeal from the Court of Claims.
In that case two steamers were requisitioned on the
part of the United States for the services of the United
States. On the 4th July, 1864, an Act had been
passed, which reads ‘“That the jurisdiction of the said
court (Court of Claims) shall not extend to or include
any claim against the United States growing out of the
destruction or appropriation of property, etc.”

It was contended under the circumstances of that
case that the vessels in question had been appropriated
by the United States. The Court of Claims held
against this contention, finding that during the time
each of the said steamers was in the service of the
United States they were in command of the claimant,
or of some person employed by him subject to his
control. Further, that when the steamers were
respectively taken into the service of the United
States, the officers acting for the United States did
not intend to ‘“appropriate’”’ these steamers to the

(1) 13 Wall. Rep. 623.
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United States, nor even their services; but they did
intend to compel the captains and crews with such
steamers to perform the services needed. Part of
the opinion of the court reads as follows:

-
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Dominton
TRON AND
Steen Co.,
LivmiTED
AND THE
DomiNioN

“Three steamboats, owned by the appellee during . STest

the rebellion, were employed as transports in the
public service for the respective periods mentiohed
in the record, without any agreement fixing 'the
compensation to which the owner should be entitled.
Certain payments for the services were made in each
case by the government to the owner, but he claimed
a larger sum, and the demand being refused he insti-
tuted the present suit. Prior to the orders hereinafter
mentioned the steamboats were employed by the

owner in carrying private freights, and the findings.

of the court below show that he quit that employment
in each case and went into the public service in obedi-
ence to the military order of an assistant quarter
master of the army. Reference to one of the orders
will be sufficient, as the others are not substantially
different. Take the second, for example, which reads
as follows, as reported in the transcript: ‘Imperative
military necessity requires the services of your steamer
for a brief period: your captain will report 'to this
office at once in person, first stopping the receipt of
freight, should the steamer be so.doing.” Pursuant to
that order or one of similar import in substance and
effect, the respective steamboats were impressed into
the public service and employed as transports for
carrying government freight for the several periods of
time set forth in the findings of the court. Through-
out the whole time the steamboats were so employed
in the military service they were in command of the
owner as master, or of some one employed by him
and under his pay and control, and the findings of the

RPORATION,
Livrrep

. ,
Tas Kinc.

Reasons for
Judgment.
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1920 court show that he manned and victualled the steam-
Dommvion hoats and paid all the running expenses during the

Sreeu Co., : 1
1eeL O, whole period they were so employed.

AND THE ] N
Pp THE The facts in the present case before me are much

c onfgflﬁ;mm weaker than the facts in the case before the Supreme

Lntrep Cqurt, as during the whole time that the order in

Tre Kwve. question was being filled, the steel company, as I will

Reasonsfor point out, were carrying on their own business in

—  addition to the turning out of the rails as required by
the order in question.

I have come to the conclusion after a good deal of
consideration, and after hearing the forcible argument
before me by Mr. Meredith and Mr. Tilley, and of
Mr. Nesbitt and Mr. Stewart, that the relationship
between the Crown and the Steel Company was one
of contract and not a compulsory order under the
provisions of the War Measures Act. Even if it
were not one of contract it would make but little
difference as in point of fact the Steel Company
accepted the terms of payment as provided by the
order of the 15th March, 1918, namely, that the
price should be determined on the recommendation

~ of the said Minister approved by His Excllency in
Council, after an investigation of the Company’s
costs by experts appointed by the Minister.

Before discussing the question of contractual
relationship between the Crown on one side and the
steel company on the other, I think I should refer to
what I think has a strong bearing on this feature of
the case. Section 7 only applies to a case where the
Crown appropriates property for its own use. It is
admitted here that the bulk of the order in question
of the 99,000 tons of steel rails, was not for the use of
His Majesty, but only a comparatively small portion
of - the order. There is no dispute on this point.
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The order in council of the 15th March stated “tha;o

rails for renewals be obtained. immediately for the-

varioug railways in Canada,”’—the greater portion
of which rails were being ordered for the various
railways, namely :—the Canadlan Pacific, the Grand

Trunk, ete.
Under section 6, had the Crown been acting under the

powers thereby conferred, they could have directed the

steel company to furnish the rails for these different
railway companies. As I read the section there would
be no liability on the part of the Crown. The liability
would have been a direct liability .as between the
Steel Company and the various railways -obtaining
their share of the tonnage of the rails. The Crown
did not purport to act under Section 6, but themselves
became the contracting party, and became liable to
the steel company, and have subsequently paid large
sums to the steel company, amounting according to
the claim of the steel company to some $5,500,000.
I was informed on the argument that since the pre-
sentation of the claim a further sum has been paid.
This would, to my mind, have a strong bearing on
the question whether it was a compulsory mandate

or not. There is no question that the steel company

had an intimation :that if they refused to comply
with what the Minister requested, power would be
invoked under the War Measures Act to compel the
. production and manufacture of these rails to be
furnished .to the railway companies.

The order in council of the 15th March, 1918, con-

tains a provision that the Minister recommends that,

authority be granted under the War Measures Act,
1914, for an order, etc. It confers upon the Minister
power, if the parties could not come together, to
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invoke the provisions of the War Measures Act.
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1920 That the steel company did not consider it as a manda-
Downiox tory order is apparent from the correspondence had

SteeL Co., .
Taanen betweeen the parties.

anxo THE - Jpn Exhibit No. 3, the letter of the 12th March, 1918,

DoMviniON o i
Cm%gff;imm the proposition is put forward on the part of the steel

Inmen company. I may refer to a portion of this letter,
Tue Kive. which has a bearing on another phase of this case,

Rensone o with which I will have to deal later, in which it
—  gtates that the rate of rolling is to be the capacity of
the Dominion Iron and Steel Company’s rail mill.
There is no distinction between that and the words

““fullest capacity.” '

The company asked that they should be paid for No.
1 rails, $70.00 per ton, and for No. 2’s $68.00 per ton;
and the letter further states that: “The above proposal
is made subject to acceptance within a reasonable
period, and will in the event of the same meeting with
your approval be followed by a formal contract.”

This letter is answered by a subsequent letter
from the Minister of Railways in which he states:
“I am in. receipt of your letter of the 12th instant,
covering your offer for the rolling of 100,000 tons of
steel rails, and in reply, beg to say that your offer to
manufacture is quite acceptable, the price will be
submitted to Council.”

This letter from the Minister is followed up by a
letter from the steel company, in which it is urged
that, ‘‘it is very desirable and essential that price be
established before rolling arrangéments commence.
We would appreciate your early confirmation of
price quoted my letter of twelfth.”

There is further correspondence which was referred
to at length in the argument of Mr. Tilley, and even-
tually the parties came together with the exception
as to the specifications which were to govern under the
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contract, and for a time the price to be paid. It was 1920
pointed out on behalf of the steel company that as Pomiox

‘these rails were to be supplied to the different railway Sme Co.,

companies, it would make the work more difficult if a AD T8

common specification was not agreed upon. There- %n?gﬁrémn,
upon, a meeting took place in Ottawa, on the 22nd LIMTTED
March, 1918, and at this meeting Mr. Lavoie, the T== Kuva.
purchasing agent, details in his evidence, what took ‘}f,?,sg";:,f‘t’f
place. He says he met Mr. McNaughton, the repre- =
sentative of the steel company in Ottawa, on the
22nd March, 1918, and were present at the meeting,
Mr. Bell, the Deputy Minister of the Department of
Railways and Canals, the Chief Engineer Fairbairn,
of the Canadian Pacific Railway, Chief Engineer
* Stewart, of the Canadian Northern Railway, Chief
Engineer Blaiklock, of the Grand Trunk Railway,
and Chief Engineer Brown, of the Canadian Govern-
ment Rrilways, and at this meeting speci_ﬁcations
applicable to the manufacture of these rails were
arrived at without dissent. It was under the pro-
visions of these specifications that the manufacture
of the rails was proceeded with. The only other
point left undetermined was the price. The steel
' company through its president was anxious to have the
price fixed as quoted in his letter. To this the Minister
would not agree, and the steel company went on with
the order and rolled the rails which were subsequently
~delivered and accepted. The steel company had been
furnished with a copy of the order in council of the’
15th March, 1918, by which the manner of ascertaining
- the price was set out; and with full knowledge and
without dissent, they proceeded to carry out the
contract, evidently accepting that provision of the
order in council which required the price to be fixed
* by the method Stated in the order

¥
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1920 The proposal of the Steel Company contained this
ﬂ%‘gfgg statement: ‘“The above proposal is made subject to

S}Jﬁfﬁgg_ acceptance within a reasonable period, and will in the

AND THE . : . )
Doneee. event of the same meeting with your approval, be

STEEL )y
CORPORATION, followed by a formal contract.

Lnrren No formal contract was ever executed, and in my
Tus Ki v, view that is of no consequence, as the documents

1}3?,?,:2,’,2}" showed a contract, and the contract has been per-

formed (1).

Had a formal contract been drawn up and executed
by the parties, it would have no doubt contained a
provision as to the manner in which the price was to be
ascertained. It is quite evident that the steel com-

_ pany, if the price could not be agreed on, had no objec-
tion to this method of providing for the ascertainment *
of the sum they should be paid.

An order in council was passed on the 6th December,
1918, providing for a contract with the steel company,
for 125,000 gross. tons of 85 pound rails. This was
followed up by a written agreement which bears date
the 1st April, 1919. It throws light on the willingness
of the company to accept the method of fixing the price.

“8. His Majesty, in consideration of the premises
agrees that, upon delivery of the said rails as afore-
said, and the production of a certificate from the said
agent or inspector that the said rails as herein con-
tracted for have been manufactured and delivered in
accordance with this agreement, and certifying to

“his approval of and satisfaction with the same, the
Company will be paid for and in respect of the said
rails so delivered, such price or prices as may be fixed
by the Minister of Railways and Canals of Canada
upon and subject to the approval of the Governor in
Council.”

(1) Lewis v, Brass, 3 Q.B.D. 667.
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It appears from the order in councll of the 26th 1920
February, 1919, that the Minister was of opinion that Doymox

TrRON AND

$65.00 a ton was a fair and equltable price in his S Co.,

judgment to be paid to the steel company. Instead, A mHE

however, of proceeding to make a final adjudication COR§3§§‘;,ION,
by himself and obtaining the approval of the Gover- Lmmn
nor in Council and ending the matter, he makes thig Tue K.
reference to the Exchequer Court. Reasone for
Mr. Tilley argued with considerable force that this -
action of the Minister arriving at the sum of $65.00
was in fact an adjudication by the Minister, and that
his finding became binding and conclusive with the
result that the reference to the Exchequer Court was
abortive. I do not agree with him. If is perfectly
obvious there was no intention to adjudicate on the
price. It was a mere recital of facts. The object of
the order in council is to provide for a reference to the
court, as a forum to adjudicate in place of the Minister.
It was simply changing the forum, and nothing more.
I would refer to the cases cited, of Cameron v. Cuddy,
(1) and also Yule v The Queen (2)
It was also argued by Mr. Tilley that the effect of:
this order in council of the 26th February, 1919, was
to fix the price for the subsequent order, for the 125,000
tons of rails ordered by the order in council of the 6th _
December, 1918, . This order in council of the 6th ,
~December, 1918, might have been worded in clearer
language, but it could hardly have been the intention
to fix the price of the order of the 125,000 tons of
rails. ‘As I have pointed out, the contract for these
rails was executed on the 1st April, 1919, and con-
tained the provision which I have quoted, as to the
manner in which the price was to be fixed, namely,
upon the completion of the contract.

(1) (1914) A.C.651,at page 666.  (2)6 Ex C'R. 103,.and 30 S C.R. 24,
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I am of opinion that a contract is proved for the
reasons stated; but, even if what has taken place is
not in fact to be deemed a contract, it would not
affect the case, as I think it quite clear that it never
was contemplated or intended that compensation
should be made to the steel company for any loss of
profits by reason of the interference with the munition
contract. The contract for the munitions was not
cancelled or done away with. The time for the
completion of this contract was only postponed, and
placing oneself in the position of the parties in March,
1918, it is apparent that no claim was ever thought
of being put forward in respect of any loss that might
be sustained by reason of the company being asked to
turn out steel rails in lieu of shell steel. If such a
claim was contemplated it should have been put
forward by the steel company at the time. There is
no suggestion in any of the correspondence or docu-
ments that such a claim was ever in their mind.
What is termed the contract with the Munitions
Board for shell steel, are the orders which were given.
There was no other, more formal contract. It is
admitted the steel company, had the Munitions
Board terminated the contract, would have lost
nothing because the Munitions Board would have had
to order rails or other material produced by the steel
company at a price which would have given them the
same profit as if they had complied with their steel
contract.

During the course of the trial (page 371 of the
evidence) the following conversation took place:

“His Lordship: Is there any contract produced
which required the Imperial Munitions Board to ac-
cept that Quantity (Referring to the tonnage to be
turned out for the Munitions Board)?
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“Mf. Holden: Yes, they bought the steel.

“His Lordship: There has been so much evidence
submitted that I do not profess to follow the details:
has anything been produced showing a  contract

which required the Imperial Munitions Board to take ¢,

so many tons, as that before me in evidence?

“Hon. Mr. Nesbitt: That information has been filed
in the nature of an exhibit, and there is an order in
council dated March 22nd, expropriating the work
for rails which were to be supplied. Perhaps your
lordship has forgotten that in the turmoil. It was
undérstood by the Minister of Railways at the time
of taking over these works that the rails would all be
delivered some time towards the end of the summer.
Then the idea was that we should continue after this to
produce the 118,000 or the 100,000 of shell steel to the
Imperial Munitions Board.”

This, evidently, was the view of the éounsel for the .

steel company, and is in my opinion the correct view.
It is also obvious from the manner in which the claim
was made upon the steel company, signed by Mr.
MacInnes, solicitor for the steel company, that he
was of the same opinion: In the second clause of his
claim he refers to the fact that “the price was to be
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determined on the recommendation of the said Minister

approved by His Excellency in Council after an
investigation of the Company’s costs by experts
appointed by the Minister.”

Mr. MacInnes proceeds to state that the.company )

in obedience to the said order rolled and delivered to

the Government of Canada the said 100,000 tons of -

steel rails, -“but the Governor in Council has not
determined the said price but has referred it to the
Exchequer Court.”

L
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I think it obvious that this claim which is set up for
compensation for loss of profits, on the munitions
contract, is an afterthought. In point of fact, as I
will point out later, had the Steel Company run their
mills to full capacity, instead of carrying on their
other more profitable business, they would probably
have completed the munitions contract. _

I propose now to deal with the question of what
sum should be allowed as the cost of the rails furnished
by the steel company with a reasonable profit added
thereto. The plaintiffs by the Exhibit No. “U.B.”
claim the cost per ton to be the sum of $61.01, less
profit. The Crown and the railways accept this as
the basis, taking issue with the plaintiffs as to certain
items, notably the price charged for the coal. The
plaintiffs in making up their statement of costs, place
the price of the coal at $3.442. The Crown on the
other hand, claim that the cost of this coal should be
taken at the rate of $1.55 per ton. The difference
makes a very considerable amount in the cost per
ton. I think the contention of the Crown, as put
forward by their counsel, should be given effect to, and
that in arriving at the cost the sum of $1.55 per ton
should be the amount allowed.

It appears from the evidence that both in the
accounts of the Dominion Coal Company, Limited,
and the Dominion Iron and Steel Company, Limited,
the cost of coal has been carried in their books at the
rate of $1.55 per ton. A contract has been entered
into between the Dominion Iron and Steel Company,
Limited, and the Dominion Coal Company, Limited,
by which at the time this particular order was given,
namely, in March of 1918, and down to the present
time, the Dominion Coal Company had contracted to
furnish the coal to the Steel Company at certain rates,
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subJect to revision. At the date of this particular
order the . price at which the coal was to be furnished
wad the sum of $1.55 per ton. There had been no

further ;ﬁ*{lng of the price under the terms of the con-

tract. What happened was that some time in Septem-
ber, 1918, the parent company, namely, the Dominion
Steel Corporation, Limited, readjusted the price, and
after certain fluctuations in the price so fixed, arfived

at the sum of $3,443 per ton. This amount was not -

credited to the Dominion Coal .Company, but is held
in a sort of suspense account by the Dormmon Steel
Corporation, Limited.

The claim put forward on behalf’ of the present
plaintiffs is that g merger had taken place whereby
both the Dominion Coal Company, and the Dominion
. Iron and Steel Company; had been merged in what is
referred to as the parent or holding company, namely,
the Dominion Steel Corporation, Limited. There
was in reality no merger, but each company, namely,
the Dominion Coal Company, Limited, and the
Dominion Iron and Steel Company, Limited, were
kept alive as separate corporate bodies, the stock
of each company being held by the holding company.
The terms upon which the arrangement between the
holding company and the Dominion Coal Company,
and the Dominion Iron and Steel Company, are set
out in two documents which have been filed as Exhibit
No. “F.” They are similar in terms except as to the
separate companies, and I will refer to the one relating
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to the Dominion Iron and Steel Company, Limited. °

It recites the fact: of the stock of the company being
held by the holding company, and it then proceeds:
““And whereas the corporation (mearning the Domin-
ion Steel Corporation, Limited, the holding company)
is arranging to handle the products and revenues of
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120 the said Steel Company, and desires to handle the
Doumtox - products of this company (The Dominion Iron and

Stee Co.,  Stee]l Company, Limited) as well, so that the output

LiviTeED

D e of both companies may be jointly dealt with.

CoroTBEL ox, “Be it resolved, that all products of the company
Loureo —intended for sale and all rents and revenues of its
Tne Kive. property now or hereafter existing or arising be and
Beasomafer are hereby assigned and transferred to the corporation
~—  to be handled by it jointly with the products and reven-
ues of the said Steel Company, on the following terms,

namely:

““1. The corporation is to provide the company with
all moneys required for its current operating expenses
and also for capital expenditures approved by the
corporation, as and when required.

2. The company shall issue promissory notes to the
corporation from time to time to cover moneys used
in operating expenses until the corporation has been
recouped for the same out of the proceeds of the
company’s products and revenues.

“For the moneys required for expenditures charge- .
able to capital account securities of the company shall
be issued and transferred to the corporation.

““3. The corporation shall from time to time pay over
to the company the moneys necessary to pay its interest -
and other charges, now or hereafter existing as follows :—

“Interest and sinking fund on mortgage bonds.

“Depreciation as hereinafter specified.

“Interest on general indebtedness.

“Interest on income bonds.

“Dividends on preferred stock. ,

4, The amount to be provided for depreciation
shall be fixed from time to time but so that the amount
provided for depreciation and sinking fund together
shall not in any year be less tha}l $480,000.
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“5. Payments under clause 3 shall be made by the
corporation as and when the respective payments
therein mentioned fall due from time to time, but
nothing herein contained shall make it obligatory
on the corporation to pay any part thereof unless the
surplus derived by it from the products and revenues
of the company during the then current financial
year are sufficient to meet the same. The corporation
shall nevertheless be bound to pay over to the company
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whatever surplus has been so derived whenever the
same is insufficient to meet the whole of the above -

payments.

“6. If the corporatlon shall at any time fail to pay_
any part of the moneys requlred to meet the said
charges it shall forthwith prepare a separate account
of all receipts and expenditures in connection with the

products and revenues of the company so assigned to *

it, and submit the same with proper vouchers to the
company’s auditors so that the company may be able
to submit proper statements to the holders of its
securities, provided, however, that so long as the
moneys above specified are provided in full the cor-
poration shall not be bound to furnish the company
- with any accounts.

“7. Any part of the above charges which the cor-
poration may leave unpaid in any year shall be added
to and form part of the charges to be provided for and
" in the following year and shall bear: interest only

in -case of any interest charges left unpaid and unpro-_

vided for.

“8. Nothing herein contained shall affect the right

of the corporation to receive payment of the interest

or dividend on any securities of the company held by

it, as if the same were held by any other person.”
13137—10 '
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It is quite apparent in my judgment that the Domin-
ion Iron and Steel Company, Limited, are entitled
under the terms of this resolution to have the profits
from their works treated separately from the profits
derived from the Dominion Coal Company, Limited.
Under the terms of this resolution, the contingency
might arise that by charging the Steel Company with
this increase in price of coal, injury might be done
to the Steel Company.

For instance, take clause 5 of this resolution. I do
not think the holding company had any right whatever
to readjust the price of the coal. If they did readjust it,
credit should have been given to the coal company for
the increased price which the coal company - was
supposed to derive by the increase from $1.55 to the
$3.442. This so-called readjustment did not take
place until, as I have stated, some time in September,
1918. By this time, had the Dominion Iron and
Steel Company carried out the bargain as it ought to
have been carried out, the contract for the 99,000
tons of rails and also the extra quantity of seconds,
would probably have been completed. It seems to me
that this so-called readjustment was made with the
view of increasing the cost so that the Dominion
Iron and Steel Company might recover from the
Crown a larger sum of money.

In the same way with the adjustment of the cost of
iron ore. In the books of the companies, the cost of
the ore has been treated as being five cents. On this
claim this price has been raised to twenty cents.

I think the arguments of the counsel for the defend-
ants are well founded, and that from the $61.01 shown

on the Exhibit “U.B.,” this additional charge should
be eliminated.
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The claim put forward on the part of the Crown
that credit should be given for the profits realized
from the by-products should not be allowed. The
Steel Company have given credit in their cost sheets
for the sum of $100,000. The additional profits were
earned by putting these by-products through a differ-
ent process and manufacturing them into articles of
commerce. Had there been a loss in the manufacture
of these by-products it would be difficult to see how
this loss should be added to the cost of turning out of
the steel rails. " '

- T asked counsel for the Crown to furnish me with
authority in support of their contention, but they
‘have not done so.
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I would have ‘thought it quite clear that no such’

claim can arise in this case, and that the Crown and

the railways have received all that they are entitled

to receive by this allowance of $100,000 odd.

- A further claim was put forward upon the part of
the Crown. If the rail mill had been operated to the

fullest capacity the government would have had full®

deliveries by October, 15th, 1918, according to the
claim of the Crown, and they argue that a deduction
should be made by reason of the increased cost incur-
red owing to higher wages, etc. My opinion is adverse
to the claim put forward under this head. It might
have been a forcible claim if raised on behalf of the
Munitions Board, had they complained of the failure
of the Steel Company to comply with the contract for
the turning out of the rails within a reasonable period.
I will-refer later to some portions of the evidence to
show that this delay in reality to a great extent was
occasioned by the fact that, instead of the company
devoting their plant to its fullest capacity, two-

13137—10} '
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fifths of the products were devoted to other business
of a more profitable nature. The rails were eventually
rolled and accepted by the Crown, in fulfillment of
their contract.

Mzr. Cameron in his evideuce at page 383, describes
the whole process of making the shell steel, and also
of making the steel for rails. The process up to the
manufacture of ingots is the same for both. When
the ingots are put through the blooming mill for the
making of the steel rails, about eighty per cent of the
ingots would be used in the manufacture of the rails
as against sixty per cent of the ingots used for the
purpose of the manufacture of shells. Mr. Jones
explains this in his evidence at page 335.

It is quite apparent from the evidence of Mr.
Cameron that the making of wire rods and barbed
wire was more profitable. For ‘nstance, at the
opening of the trial, in answer to Mr. Nesbitt, page -
15, Cameron describes the kind of material that they
were asked to supply in addition to rails, for wire
rods and barbed wire, and billets in a form suitable for
the manufacture of rods. He is asked this question:

“Q. How would that buginess compare, if you had
been allowed to carry on and run your own business,
how would that have compared, in point of being
profitable, with either shell steel or the rolling of rails?

“A. It would be more profitable. It would be a
better price relatively for wire rods and barbed wire
than almost any other form of steel.

“Q. So that, may I take if for granted that, apart
from your contention as to the 99,000 tons, as to the
difference of the 16,000 tons, that the court can be
satisfied that but for this order in council and its
interference with your business, you would have had a
more profitable business even for the 99,0007
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“A. Yes.” VL:}.I : 1920
Towards the end of the trial I asked Mr. Cameron Do¥oN

certain questions, which are to be found at page 655 SFEme Co-

- (the fifth day). I asked him the following questions: Hommros

D%TEMON
“Q. Were the products turned out from soft steel Corroramo,

more lucrative to your company than the product L T
- Tare Kine.
you. turned out -from hard steel? -
Reasons for
“A. I think that they possibly may have been. - = Judgment.

RS

“Q. Was it a matter of more importance to your
company to get out the manufacture of the products of
soft steel than to keep on with the contract for hard
steel?

“A. It was a matter of importance to the coinpany
to keep on its organization and to keep its mills going,

“Q. You got your contract for the rails, that was
fixed, and you wanted to keep your custom for the
soft steel products; isn’t that what it all boils down to,
speaking man to man?

“A. That is true, sir.”

McQuarrie, who was inspector (page 485) referring
to the subsequent contract, states that they com-
menced the rolling in January of 1919. He also
- shows that in March the company rolled over.22,000
tons of rails—and the important part of his evidence
to which I refer is the fact, according to the statement
of this witness, that the plant was the same in 1919 as it
was in 1918, :

Carney, an importa,nt, WitneSS, states (page 637)
that if they gave the rail mill the right of way, they
could easily have turned out about 18,000 tons of
rails per month. He also refers to the fact that
eighty per cent of the ingots would be used for rails, as
against sixty per cent for the shell steel.
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1920 In regard to prices, it is important, as sworn to by
Dommviox T avoie, that under the contract of August, 1917, the

SmiL Co., - company turned out 12,000 tons of 85 pound rails at the

AND THE — pyyice of $58.50 per ton; he also refers to the letter of

DoyxNioN

Coﬂf’gﬁ;mm Mr. McNaughton, the general sales agent of the Steel
Inwed  Company, in which they offered to turn out 40,000
Tue Kxe. grogs tons for the price of $62.50, and afterwards for a

Jedamen, reduced tonnage of 7,500 tons instead of 40,000, they

Judgment.
——  agreed to take $60.00.
The claim as to the Newfoundland tax needs no
eonsideration. The directors exercised wise judgment
and their decision must be accepted.

I am afraid my reasons for judgment are too vol-
uminous. The matter involved is so great I have
thought it better to set out more in detail than perhaps
is necessary.

Counsel devoted a great deal of time to the prepara-
tion and conduct of the case. I have felt it due to
them to make an examination of the voluminous
evidence and exhibits, fuller than otherwise I would
have felt inclined to do.

After the best consideration I can give to the case,
and having regard to all the circumstances existing
owing to the war, I think the price arrived at by the
Minister. of $65.00 a ton for number one rails, will
fully and amply recompense the Steel Company.
For the second class rails, I would allow $63.00 a
ton. The letter previously quoted from the Steel
Company would indicate that in their view there
should be this difference in price between the two
classes of rails.

The application to amend the claim should be and
is refused.
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Counsel will have no difficulty in arriving at what

" amount should be paid at the prices I have quoted.
And the fact must not be lost sight, of, that since the
claim was filed, further payments have been made by
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the government and received by the Steel Company. . S

In regard to interest, I have no power to allow
interest as against the Crown. This seems to have
“been conceded by counsel who only claim interest as
part of the compensation, if they were entitled. to
compensation under section 7 of the statute.

i

I am of opinion that under all the circumstances of
the case, each party should bear their own costs.

o Judgment accordingly.
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IN ApMIRALTY.
APPEAL FROM THE NOVA SCOTIA ADMIRALTY DISTRICT.
BerweEN

PERLEY W. McBRIDE, (WILLIAM
LOVETTE, A. D. CAMERON, W.
D. McBRIDE, ELVIN GATES
AnD HARRY 1. MATHERS, poing
Business UNpER THE FirmM Name
or I. H. MaTturers SoN, ADDED

BY ORDER oF COURT)...... ... ... PLAINTIFFS;
. '+ AND
THE STteEaAMsSHIP AMERICAN....... DEFENDANT
(APPELLANT).
AND .
JOHN S. DARRELIL COMPANY;
INTERVENORS. . .................. RESPONDENT.

Shipping—Equalable jurisdiction of the Admiralty Court—Sale of vessel
by sheriff—Vigilantibus el non dormientibus jura subveniuni,

M. obtained judgment for wages, ete., against the S.8. American, the
owners having made default to appear. But D. & Co., the owners
of the cargo, intervened. The vessel was duly seized and adver-
tised for sale. On the application of the dwners of the ship, the
sale was adjourned for two days, and on the expiration of this
delay the vessel was duly sold at auction by the sheriff on Satur-
day, the 18th September, 1920, and purchased by D. & Cao., who
made the necessary deposit. Money had been wired by the
appellant to discharge plaintiff’s claim, but arrived too late to stop
the sale. D. & Co. tendered the balance of price on the following
Monday, which was refused on account of an application to the
Deputy Local Judge to set aside the sale, and to redeem the
vessel. D. & Co., on purchasing the vessel, made arrangements
for repairs thereto, and at the time the said application wag
originally made, they were negotiating for the sale thereof. The
vessel is now on the high seas, and it did not appear whether
she had been sold. The D.L.J. refused the application and,from
his decision the present appeal was taken. The claim is based on
equity alone. ‘
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Held: (Affirming the judgment appealed from) that while the Admiralty 1920
. Court exercises an unquestionable equitable jurisdiction, inas- Pertsy W.
much as the appellant had failed to show a superior equity to those Manmn et al
ariging in favour of the purchasers, the order below should not be

interfered with. J. DARRELL.

Reasons for

Judgment.
APPEAL from the decision of the Honourable Mr. :
Justice Mellish, D.L.J.A. for the Nova Scotia Admir-
alty District dismissing the application of the owners
of the S.8. American to set aside the sale thereof made,
- under authority of justice. .

Geo. Henderson, K.C., for appellant.

R. V. Sinclair, K.C., for respondent, John 8. Darrell
Co. ' L

December 9tf1, 1920.

Appeal hieard before the Honourable Mr. Justlce
Audette, at Ottawa °

The facts and questions of law raised on this appeal
are stated in the reasons for judgment.

- AubpgTTE, J. this December 20, '1920, delivered
judgment. |

This is an appeal from the judgment or order of the
Deputy Local Judge in Admiralty for the Admiralty
District of Nova Scotia, pronounced on the 25th
.September, 1920.

. This is an action for wages and disbursements in
which the plaintiffs obtained judgment for $1,871.83
and costs after the owners of the ship had made default
to appear; but when John 8. Darrell & Co., the
owners of the cargo, had been allowed to intervene
and contest the plaintiff’s claim. -
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After judgment the vessel was seized and adver-

Poriey W. tised for sale. On the application of the shipowners,

McBRIDE ¢t al

.
J. DarRELL.

Reasons for
Judgment.

the sale was adjourned for two days and on the expira-
tion of the two days the vessel was sold at auction by
the sheriff and purchased by Darrell & Co. on Satur-
day, the 18th September, 1920, through their Halifax
agent, when the necessary deposit was paid and the
balance tendered on the following Monday—and
refused on account of the present application of the
shipowners to set aside the sale, and allow them to pay
the amount due the plaintiffs and redeem the vessel.

It appears that the necessary monies to discharge

~ the claim of the plaintiffs in the action came too late

to Halifax,—about the time of the sale,—but not on
time to stop the sale.

There is spread upon the record the further fact
that the purchasers of the vessel on the Monday
following the sale had msade arrangemeunts with the
Halifax Shipyard to have the American go in the dry
dock on the following Monday for repairs. Moreover,
it appears from an affidavit on record that negotiations
had already been entered into for the sale of the
vessel at the time the application was originally
presented, and a long time has elapsed since the
sale. Where is the vessel at present, was asked at the
hearing of the appeal, and counsel for the intervenors
answered she was travelling on the high seas. She
may well have been sold for all is known of her. If
that were so, it would hardly be practicable to attempt at
this stage, to restore the parties to pre-sale conditions.

From my first impression gathered at the hearing
of the case I thought, to do justice among the parties
interested, that the application ought to be granted
and the vessel restored to the original owners upon
paying the plaintiffs’ claim and all costs occasioned by
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their neglect, upon the ground that “much is to be . 1920
 said in favour of a. pr11101p1e which does justice to one ME%“;I’;‘; W
- party without doing injustice to the other;” however, ; o
so many conflicting interests have arisen since the , —, .
time of the sale, which was made in a perfectly legal Jodgmene
B manne'r “that it beeomés apparent that to extend an
‘equity to. the party in default would be to do an
injustice. to the other party whose rights were acqulred'

in an unlmpeachable way.

It is true the Admlralty Court, as said by Lord.
Stowell, exercises an equitable jurisdiction. The
 Court is not absolutely ministerial, and it is at liberty-

to hold its hand when it appears equitable to do so.
 See also The Monireal Dry Dock and Ship Repairing
" Co. vs, Halifax Shipyards, Limited(1). .

However Vigilantibus et non dormientibus, Jum ‘
subveniunt; the equitable arm of the Court is extended
to the vigilant and not to the negligent. The sale
was adjourned for two days to allow the shipowners to -
come in and cure their negligence and they failed to do so. - »
The indulgence of the court has already been extended /
to them and they failed to take due advantage of it.

While the Admiralty Court exercises this unques-

* tionable equitable _]urlsdlctlon it must not be expected

to peddle small equities.. ‘The case presents equities

on behalf of both sides and they seem equally balanced. = '
The burden was upon the appellant to show a superior - -
equity: which I fail to discover on the facts before me. .

There were ample reasons for the learned local
judge; after delaying the sale for two days at the
request of the shipowners, to refuse their apphcatl,on
and I am unable to ﬁnd sufficient reasons to vary his
pronouncement. And as said per Lord Loreburn
L.C., in Brown vs. Dean (2).

(1) 60 8.C.R. per Anglin J., p. 371. (2) [1910]-A. C. 375.
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1920 “When a ligitant has obtained a judgment in a
romet W, Court of Justice, whether it be a county court or one of
5 Do, the High Courts, he is by law entitled not to be deprived
Reamons for Of that judgment without very solid grounds.” There

Judgment. js ample reason to support the judgment appealed
from, which, under the circumstances gives substantial

justice to all concerned.

There will be judgment dismissing the appeal.

Judgment accordingly.
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 BETWEEN

HIS MAJESTY THE KING, ox THE
INFORMATION OF THE ATTORNEY
GENERAL OF. CANADA.............PLAINTIFF;

AND

" TaE ONTARIO & MINNESOTA .
POWER COMPANY, LIMITED DEFENDANTS

Indian Lands, surrender of Lo Domzmon—Powers, thereof to aqcept—-—
Indian Reserves—Transfer by Province to Dominion—Provincial
Lands—B.N.A. Act 1867—5 Geo. V, ch. 12—6 Ed. VII, ch. 132
(Ont.) : -

.k

Held: That upon a f)roper‘ construction of the Nort West Angle Treaty
(1873), the .Dominion Government had full power under such

treaty to accept the surrender on behalf of the Crown from the ..

Indians, and as the result of such surrender the title to or bene-

ficial interest in the lands so . surrendered, within the Ontario

boundaries, passed to the province under the provisions of section
109 of the B.N.A.. Act, 1867, and that the eiitire beneficial intefest

therein was in the provmce until the conveyance of a part for -

Indian Reserves, by the p provmce I to the Dominion by the Act of
_ the leglslature of the provmce in 1915 (1).

2. That when the provmce-assented to the “Reserves” being made
and transferred them to the Dominion (5 Geo. V, ch. 12), the
Dominion ‘acqiired them subject to the statutory rights, (2), and
that the lands and privileges so granted were specifically elifminated
from what was transferred to the Dommlon, including among
other things, the right granted to defendants to flood the land up

to bench mark 497, . o

(1) St. Catharines’ Milling and Lumber Co. vs. the Queen, 14 A.C. 46;
and Attorney-General P.Q. vs. Attorney-General Dominion, 37 T.L.R.
125; Ontario Mining Co. va. Province of Ontario (1910) A.C. 637; the

King vs. Bonhomme, 16 Ex. C.R. 437 confirmed on appeal to the -

Supreme Court of Canada. *
(2) See 6 Ed. VII ch. 132 (Ont

279

1920 -
et
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020 - 3. That, by reason of a reserve for roads, etc., along the shores of
Rainy Lake and River being contained in the deseription of the

Tue King . . . .
2. Indian Reserves so surendered by the province to the Dominion as
OTHE aforesaid, the land so reserved, did not form part of the Indian
& lef{;];;%m Reserves, and the beneficial interest therein remained in the

Power Co., province.

LiMIiTED.

Reasons for
Judgment.

—_—

4. That, therefore, in view of all the facts, plaintiff could not recover
 for injury due to the flooding of any of said lands previous to the
Act of 1915 aforesaid; but that, in 1916 (after the conveyance of
the Indian Reserves to the Dominion) in view of the defendants
having accumulated large quantities of water in the upper lakes
and reservoirs, plaintiff could recover damages occasioned by the
flooding of the land between bench mark 499 (in the state of
nature) and bench mark 500.

INFORMATION exhibited by the Attorney Gen-
eral for the Dominion of Canada claiming damages
for injuries to an Indian Reserve in the Rainy Lake
District in the province of Ontario, by reason of
flooding due to a dam constructed on the banks of the
river and other works of the defendant.

October 5th, 6th and 7th, 1920.

Case was heard before the Honourable Mr. Justice
Audette at Fort Frances.

November 12th, 1920, trial and argument continued
at Ottawa.

. Peter White, K.C., and B. H. L. Symmes for plaintiff.
W. N. TWlly, K.C., for defendant.
The facts are stated in the reasons for judgment.

AvupeETTE J. now (December 22nd, 1920) delivered
judgment.

This is an information exhibited by the Attorney
General whereby the sum of $23,413.50 is claimed
from the defendants as damages, for the flooding of
lands alleged to belong to the plaintiff.
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I have had the advantage, accompanied by counsel .E??E
for both parties, of viewing the premises in question Tue Ewa
‘the day preceding the trial. Tug

ONTARIO

By the North West Angle Treaty, No. 3, made and & Mixxssora |

Power Co.,

concluded on the 3rd October, 1873, between Her late Lmumeo.
Majesty Queen Victoria and the Saulteaux tribe of Fegioms for
the Ojibbeway Indians, a certain tract of land,—
containing about 55,000 square miles, covering in

general terms, the area from the watershed of Lake
Superior to the North West Angle of the Lake of the

Woods, and from the boundary of the United States

"of America to the height of Jand from which the

streams flow towards Hudson Bay—was duly ceded,

released, surrendered and yielded up to the Govern-

ment of the Dominion of Canada for Her Majesty

The Queen,- subject to certain conditions mentioned

in the treaty, and among others to lay aside resequs

for Indians, etc. See Exhibit No. 11.

By an act of the Parliament of Canada, 54-55
Vie.,, Ch. 5 (1891) and an act of the Legislature of
Ontario, 54 Vic. ch. 3 (1891) the government of the
Dominion of Canada and that of the province of
Ontario were given authority to enter into an agree-
ment for the settlement of these reserves, and certain
questions respecting the lands so surrendered by this
Treaty No. 3, with such modifications or additional
stipulations to the draft recited in such statutes, as
may be agreed upon by the two governments.

On the 16th' April, 1894, the agreement above
referred to was entered into by both governments, .
and it is therein, among other things, recited that
whereas, out of the lands so surrendered by the Indians,
reserves were to be selected and laid aside; and whereas
the true boundaries of Ontarto had since been ascer-
tained and declared to include part of the territory
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1920 surrendered; and whereas before the true boundaries
Tae Kivé had been declared as aforesaid, the Government of
Tae  Canada had selected and set aside certain reserves for

&ngﬁ*‘%&’iﬂ the Indians in intended pursuance of the treaty,
Lamrep.  although the Government of Ontario was no party to
Reaomsncr the selection, and af that time had not concurred therein—
with the view of coming to a friendly and just under-
standing—the two governments had agreed between

themselves as follows: ¢

“1. With respect to the tracts to be from time to
time taken up for settlement, mining, lumbering or
other purposes and to the regulations required in
that behalf, as in the said treaty mentioned, it is
hereby conceded and declared that, as the Crown
lands in the surrendered tract have been decided to belong
to the Province of Ontarto or to Her Majesty in right of
the said province,the rights of hunting and fishing by
the Indians throughout the tract surrendered, not
including the reserves to be made thereunder, do not
continue with- reference to any tracts which have
been, or from time to time may be, required or taken
up for settlement, mining, lumbering, or other purposes
by the Government of Ontario or persons duly autho-
rized by the said government of Ontario; and that the
concurrence of the province of Ontario is required in
the selection of the said reserves.

“2. That to avoid dissatisfaction or discontent
among the Indians, full enquiry will be made by the
government of Ontario, as to the reserves before the
passing of the said statutes laid out in the territory,
with a view of acquiescing in the location and extent
thereof unless some good reason presents itself for a
different course.
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“3. That in case the Government of Ontario after
such enquiry is dissatisfied with the reserves or any

of them already selected, or in case other reserves in -

the said territory are to be selected, a joint commission &
or joint commissions, shall be appointed by the Govern-
ment of Canada and Ontario to settle and determine
any question or all questions relating to such reserves
or proposed reserves. :

“4, That in case of all Indian reserves so to be
confirmed or hereafter selected, the waters within the
lands laid out or to be laid out as Indian reserves in the
said territory, including the land covered with water
lying between the projecting headlands of any lake
or sheets of water, not wholly surrounded by an
Indian reserve or reserves, shall be deemed to form
part, of such reserve including islands wholly within
such headlands, and shall not be subject to the public
common right of fishery by others than Iudians of the
band to which the reserve belongs. _

““5. That this agreement is made without prejudice
to the jurisdiction of the parliament of Canada, with
respect to inland fisheries undet the British North
America Act, one thousand eight hundred and sixty-
seven, in case the same shall be decided to apply to
the said fisheries herein mentioned.

“6. That any future treaties with the Indians in
respect of territory in Ontario to which they have not
before the passing of. the said statutes surrendered
their claim aforesaid, shall be deemed to require the
concurrence of the government of Ontario.” .

Under the provisions of an order in council of the
8th July, 1874, Messrs. S. J. Dawson and Robert
Pithers, had already been appointed to secure and

283
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Judgment.

select these reserves, and by a further order in council of -

13137—11
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the 27th February, 1875, the report upon the selection of
such reserves was provisionally approved, after the maps

" accompanying the report of the commissioners had also

& MinnesoTa
Power Co.,

been submitted with a full description of the reserve.

Now it has been established by Mr. Bray, the chief
surveyor of the Indian Department at Ottawa, who
has been in the employ of the Department for a long
period of time, and who has knowledge of the matters
concerning treaty No. 3, and who was called as a
witness on behalf of the plaintiff, that the reserves
provided for by the treaty were duly selected by federal
officers, and surveyed and accepted by all concerned.
Mr. Bray filed as Exhibit No. 21 and as Exhibit “Q”
(also marked “V’’) plans of the Indian reserve at
Rainy Lake, together with the description of that
reserve, which description forms part of the records
of his department—the language (p. 33 of the evidence)
used in setting apart the same and which is to be
found, at page 1 of Exhibit ‘‘R-a’’ reads as follows:

“Treaty No. 3. Description of reserves to be set
aside for certain bands of the Saulteaux tribe of the
Ojibbeway Indians, under treaty No. 3.

“Rainy River. At the foot of Rainy Lake, to be laid
off as nearly as may be, in the manner indicated on the
plan, two chains in depth along the shore of Rainy Lake and
bank of Rainy river, to be reserved for roads, right of way
tolumbermen booms wharvesand other public purposes.

“This Indian reserve not to be for any particular
chief or band, but for the Saulteaux tribe, generally
and for the purpose of maintaining thereon an Indian
agency with the necessary grounds and buildings.”

- This description appears to have been in existence
and accepted by the department ever since 1875,
when it was provisionally approved by an order in
council of the 27th February, 1875 (Exhibit R-A).
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Reading this description together with the two 182
plans filed by Mr. Bray, it will be found that they Tan K'NG
conjointly, agree.. That is to say, that the “two Tarm

. ONTARIO
chains in depth along the shore of Rainy Lake and &Mivvusors

Power Co.,
bank of Rainy river, to be reserved for roads, right of —Lrurrep.
way to lumbermen, booms, wharves and other public ‘},'iﬁm:,{':’
purposes’ appear on the one plan in the shaded space, ~
and on the other in the road allowance plainly shown
and marked thereon. All of this information is

-supplied by the Department of Indian Affairs, at
Ottawa. The only conclusion to arrive at is that the
132 feet do not form part of the reserve, and that
the fee or beneficial interest in these two chains
is in the province, for the reasons hereinafter
mentloned '

On behalf of the pla,mtlff it is contended that the
plan {No. 70) of the reserve which is in the hands
of the Ontario quernment, and which forms part of
the departmental records, does not show the reserva-
tion, and the witness who produced it testified that-
it had been filed with their department in January,
1890, and that no such reservation of 132 feet appear
upon the plan. However, by the letter (Exhibit “W”’)
of Mr. Hardy, the then Commissioner of Crown
Lands for Ontario, written to the Deputy Minister of
Indian Affairs on the 22nd May, 1889, it appears that
- while agking for tracings of -the plans of the Indian
reserves in the district of Rainy river, he stated:
“it will be sufficient for our purpose if only the
outside measurements and courses are put on.”
And there are some notes and writing on Exhibit No.
70, which do not appear on either exhibits “V’’ and
€21, and vice versa.

13137114
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1920 This does not in any manner conflict with the
Taz Kive records at Ottawa, in the Department of Indian
olmas  Affairs. The plan, as requested, was sent to the

& Muvnzsors Qntario government, but it was not as complete as

Power Co.,
Lnaren.  the plan of record at Ottawa, where in addition
Reasone for thereto was also to be found, as would be expected, a
—  description of the reserve. At the trial, I asked for
the production, if available, of the field notes of
surveyor Caddy, who prepared these plans in 1876;
they have not been forthcoming, but after all they are

not needed for adjudicating upon the case.

Then, briefly stated, freed from a welter of details
and facts which when properly analysed . resolve
themselves into a small compass, we have the agree-
ment between E. W. Backus and the Ontario govern-
ment, bearing date the 9th January, 1905, and the
assignment of his rights thereby secured to the defend-
ant company, coupled with the act of the Ontario
legislature (1906) Ch. 132, 6 Ed. VII, together with
the act of the parliament of Canada, 4-5 Ed. VII, ch.
139, whereby the defendants acquired their franchises,
the right to erect a dam, to flood the Ontario lands, to
interfere with a navigable river, etc.—all of which
is so well known to all parties, that I will dispense with
mentjoning more than the source of such rights.

The defendants in 1906 acquired from the province
of Ontario certain land together with leave to con-
struct their dam, and also the right to flood any land
that was the property of Ontario to the bench mark of
497.

The defendants further acquired from the Dominion
the right under 4-5 Ed. VII, ch. 139, to develop the
water power in question, provided that no work autho-
rized by that act, be commenced until the plans thereof
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7

be first submitted and approved by the Governor in 1920
Counecil. The plans were duly submitted and approved TH= KING
before commencing the works, but subsequently o:?-rﬁm
thereto some alterations and changes were made, & Mivnusors

Power Co.,
which, under the evidence were approved verbally LivTep.
by the Minister as provided, I would think, by the §gEeie
order in council of the 19th September, 1905 (Exhibit ™
No. 13). Howewver, the matter is here mentioned,
because great .stress was laid upon the point by-the
plaintiff to the effect that the works as constructed
were not properly authorized,’and that the defendants
were therefore trespassers. I dismiss this contention,
and it would appear also to be de minimus in a case
like the present one. In the result it means that
these changes and alterations were of an essential
benefit to the works and had been approved of by the
Minister,—and the plans of these works as a whole
had been authorized and approved by order in council
before being commenced. The sluices as built were
constructed with a capacity to discharge more than
in the state of nature. See Monitreal St. Railway vs.
Normandin. (1) '

Now, the Dominion Government had full power to
accept the surrender on behalf of the Crown from the -
Indians by the North West Angle Treaty, and as a
result of such surrender the title to the lands, coming
within the Ontario boundaries, passed to that province \
under the provisions of sec. 109, of the British North
Amerlca Act, 1867 (2). . | : :

(1) 33 T.L.R. 174.

(2) 8t. Chatherine’s Milling and Lumber Co. vs. the Queen, 14 AC.
46; and Attorney General P.Q. vs. Attorney General, Dominion, 37 T.
L.R. 125; Ontario Mining Co. vs. Province of Ontamo, (1910) A.C.
637; the King vs. Bonhomme, 16 Ex. C.R. 437, confirmed on appeal
to the Supreme Court of Canada.
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Having found so much, it results, that no part of
such lands ever passed to the Dominion before 1915,
and that from the day of the surrender to 1915, when
the Act 5 Geo. V, ch. 12, was passed by the legislature,
the entire beneficial interest in these lands was in the
province. Therefore, it follows that when by the Act
of 1915 (5 Geo. V, ch. 12) the province assented to the
reserves and transferred them to the Dominion, by
what may be termed a statutory deed, the Dominipn
acquired them subject to the statutory rights, con-
veyance, ete., that had been previously granted to the
defendants, as set forth in the Ontario statute of 1906
(6 Ed. VII, ch. 132) which adopted the agreement
between the province and the defendants, or their
predecessors in title, giving them the right to build
their works and dam, to flood the Ontario lands to the
bench mark of 497, the height of the crest of the dam,
etc. Moreover, under the provisions of sections 2
and 4 of this Act, 5 Geo. V, c¢h. 12, the lands and
privileges granted the defendants would appear to be
specifically eliminated from what is transferred to the
Dominion by that Act. It may also be observed
that by this 1915 Act, modifications have been made
to the agreement of 1894. The Dominion, however,
has no interest outside the reserve proper, and the
reserve is 132 feet from the water’s edge.

Having found that the Dominion had no beneficial
interest in these lands up to the passing of the Act of
1915, and that the lands for the reserves were by that
Act transferred to the Dominion subject to the rights,
powers and privileges acquired by the defendants
prior to that date; having further found, that ‘“the
two chains in depth along the shore of Rainy Lake
and bank of Rainy river” did not pass to the Domin-
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ionm, but that the beneficlal interest in- the ‘same is in 1920 '
the province, it remains to be ascertained if. the pla,ln— Tae KING

tiff suffered any damage, and to What extent. - o ogﬁfm

- The scope of the action has been at trial entlrely %ﬁﬁf dgT.A '
changed from what appears under the Wntten plead~ R:;I:Ot,

ings. “The plaintiff is not- entitled to. any damage Judgment.

resulting from the maintenance of the water to. the ‘

bench mark 497, and it is impossible under the evidence

adduced to assess, dt this stage, with any satisfaction,

the damages which might have been suffered in: 1916". :

when this bench mark of 497 had been exceeded.

In the extraordidary flood of 1916, qualified by Crown
witness -Smallian‘as a flood not likely to happen again, -

the waters rose to 509.06, although the waters had‘

risen very hlgh in 1896, as shown by Exhibit No. 30.

. Whereas it has been established that under the state

of nature they would have risen to 499.65. This

rise, however, should be decreased by six inches as it

was increased by these six inches through the booms -

and the jam at the bridge between the 14th and the -

27th May, 1916.

For the damages occasmned n 1916 (Whlch were
mamtamed for the best part of the. year) between the
actual ﬂoodmg and the' flooding ‘that would have '
obtained in a state of nature, and above the 132
feet along the water front the plamtlff is entltled to
recover. - I am unable to charge the defendants W1th L
negligence in taking care of this enormous Volume of o
water in 1916, including the a,ccumulatmn in the upper ..
lakes ‘used partly ‘as reservoirs, ‘when. 95 per cent:
thereof was successfully handled before -the state of .
nature was exceeded. It is easy to be wise after the
event and say if this or that means had been resorted
“to, the flood would or might have been deereased
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However, under the evidence it is impossible to find
negligence. A man of ordinary prudence could not
have foreseen the extent of the flood of 1916, as testified
to by Crown witness Smallian.

The case has been especially well argued, and with
the argument and the information already spread
upon the record, it is perhaps possible to form a fair
idea of the damages of 1916, although not with any
great precision. )

What is the damage? The damage to the trees
has been caused by the raising of the water to 497.
It must be found that the flood of 1916 did not of
itself affect the trees that were then cut or otherwise.
As I have already stated it is impossible, at this stage,
under the new state of facts which arose only at the
time of the argument and when the evidence was on
the record, to arrive at any satisfactory conclusion
with respect to the assessment of the damages; but I
have come to the conclusion on this subject of damages,
to adopt the following course, assuming that the
Indians claiming herein are beyond the 132 feet and
the 499 bench mark. From the general evidence, the
perusal of plans “G’” and “H” and other plans dealing
with the same matter, and bearing in mind the evidence
of witness Walker, who testified respecting the revenue
derived from the Park, it clearly appears what territory
would suffer at the two respective bench marks above
mentioned—and considering that the flood of 1916
lasted somewhat longer on account of the dam, than
it .would in a state of nature, which could not be
called damnum fatale (1). I am willing to name as
compensation and in satisfaction of these damages,
which are not of a permanent nature, the sum of
five hundred dollars. The parties herein to signify

(1) Corp. of Greenoch vs. . Caledonian Ry. Co. (1917) A.C. 556.
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by a written document to_be filed of repord, within - 1920
fifteen days from the date hereof, if they accept this Tue Kixe
figure in satisfaction of the said damages. Failing OTHE

NTARIO
the parties to accept this assessment, there will be a & Mm~Esora

Powsr Co.,
reference to the registrar of this court, for enquiry and  Lumrren.
report upon the question. . Ressons for

Subject to the right of the parties to elect to accept
either a reference or the lump sum above mentioned,
I wish to offer the following , observations. The
reference would be expensive, and the amount recover-
able thereunder would very likely be less than its
costs, so I embark upon the assumption that the
parties would suffer less from an assessment under the
present impossibility of accurate ascertainment than
" from having recourse to a reference. Indeed, according
to the testimony of the Indian agent, Mr. Wright, and °
another witness who spoke upon the question of
damages in 1916, it would seem that Pither’s Point
would not have suffered any appreciable damage from
flooding under the circumstances—although the plain- -
tiff might be entitled to recover damage for the depriva-
tion of the use of flooded lands used as a park or other-
wise, and even to nominal damages in respect of the
same for flooding the. plaintiff’s land between the
two bench marks above mentioned, being an invasion
of the plaintiff’s right to full and undisturbed posses-
sion. The material damage, if any, suffered would be
with respect to the Indians; but if the Indians squatted
within the 132 feet from the water’s edge, they squatted
upon provincial lands and noet upon the reserve, and
if the damages suffered by them is beyond the 499
bench mark, they. cannot recover, They cannot
recover as such squatters, under the decision of Smith
vs. Ontario & Minnesota Water Power Co. (1).

(1) 44 O.L.R. 43. L
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1920 Upon the question of costs, as the success of the

Tue Kixe  parties upon the result of the case is practically divided,

OETlifuo I find that there should be no costs allowed as between
&i,gg,flf‘gég’_f,‘ the respective parties as well upon the trial, as upon
Lnarep.  the adjournment and the reopening of the case.

Reasons for
Judgment.

—  Solicitor for plaintiff: J. W. Bain.

Solicitor for defendants: Arthur D. George.
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BETWEEN _ ' ' 1921
St
Janpary 8.

HIS MAJESTY THE KING, oN THE .
INFORMATION OF THE ATTORNEY- PLAINTIFF.
(GENERAL OF CA_NADA .............

~

. ° AND

MAX LITHWICK................. DEFENDANT. |
AN"D

WILLIAM ALANSEN COLE, As-} , °
, ADDED
SIGNEE TO THE DEFENDANT'S INSOL-
: DEFENDANT.
VENT ESTATE. .. ... ... ...

Dominion Income Tar—Judgment against Defendant who had, assigned
under provincial Act for benefit of créditors—Priority of Dominion

Crown—Constilutional Law.
2

Held: That the Crown, in right of the Dominion of Canada, was entitled
to be paid the amount of a judgment for income tax under 10-11
Geo. V. ch. 49, obtained by it against a debtor who has made an
assignment under the Ontario Assignments and Preferences Act
(R.S.0. 1914, ch. 134) in priority to all other creditors of thesame
class. N

The Queen v. Bank of Nova Scofia, 11 S.C.R. 1 and Liquidator of
Maritime Bank v. Receiver General of New Brunswick (1892)
A.C. 437, referred to. : :

2. That any provision in a Provincial Act relating to assignments for
the benefit of creditors cannot, ex proprio vigore, take away any
privilege or priority of the Crown a8 a creditor in right of the
Dominion, : . )

Gauthier v. The King, 56 S.C.R. 176, at 194, referred to.
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INFORMATION exhibited by the Attorney-General
of Canada to recover from the defendant the sum of
$760.66 representing the amount of Income War Tax
due by him for the year 1917 and praying that the
said amount be paid by priority.

January 5th, 1921.

| Case was heard before the Honourable Mr. Justice
Audette at Ottawa.

C. P. Plaxton and R. B. Law for plaintiff.
W. L. Scott for defendants.
The facts are stated in the reasons for judgment.

AvupgETTE J. now (January 8, 1921) delivered judg-
ment.

This is an amended information exhibited by the
Attorney-General of Canada to recover from the
above defendant, by priority, the sum of $760.66 as
representing the amount of Income War Tax due by
him for the year 1917.

The defendant, although duly served with the
original information has made default in filing any
statement in defence but appeared by counsel on the
issues taised by the amended information, at the
hearing on the 5th instant.

The Assignee was added as defendant herein and
from his affidavit, to which is attached a copy of the
resolution authorizing him to contest the Crown’s
claim to priority, it now appears that the creditors are
duly vepresented in the present proceedings.
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The amount for which judgment is asked is not
contested, the only controversy arising herein is as to
whether the amount of Income tax due-by defendant
is to be paid in full in priority to all other creditors of
equal degree who are herein represented by assignee
Cole (sec. 9).

As stated by Lord Watson; at p. 441, inre The Lz'qm'—
dators of the Maritime Bank of Canada vs. Receiver
. General of New Brunswick (1):—“The -Supreme Court
of Canada had previously ruled, in Reg vs. Bank of
Nova Scotia (2), that the Crown, as a simple contract
creditor for public moneys of the Dominion deposited
with a provincial Court, is entitled to priority over
other creditors of equal degree, The decision appears
to their Lordships to be in strict aecordance with
constitutional law.”

Unless this priority to which theprerogative attaches
in favour of the Crown has been taken away by compe-
tent statutory authority, I must find it is still good
law. Much more 'so indeed, where it is not only in
connection with an ordinary chirographic claim, but
in respect of a claim for taxes—income taxes.

T am unable to follow the contention asserted at bar
on behalf of the .assignee that the Assignment and
Preferences Act (R.8.0. 1914, ¢h. 134) established that

all creditors must be collocated pari passu or on a

basis. of equality, and that the assignment by the
ingolvent takes away any priority any claim might
have had.

In the first place this Ontario act could not, ex
proprio vigore, take away or abridge any privilege of

the Crown in the right of the Dominion. " The dis-

tribution is made under a provincial statute that
cannot affect the rights of the Federal Crown. - Gau-

(1) [1892] A.C. 437. (2) 118C.R. 1

.\'
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thier v.the King (1) per AnglinJ. Then the argument, on
behalf of the assignee, seems to confuse an assignment in
the nature of a conveyance with the assignment contem-
plated by the act, which is for the express benefit of the
creditors,—the act itself, by sec. 5, recognizing privileges.

What might have given rise to the econtention
offered on behalf of the assignee in refusing the priority
sought by these proceedings is the decision of the
Courts of Ontario in Clarkson v. the Attorney-General of
Canada (2); but the authority of that decision has now
been impaired by the decision of His Majesty’s Com-
mittee of the Privy Council in re New South Wales Tazx-
ation Commissioners v. Palmer (3), wherein it is said —

“The attention of their Lordships was called to the
case of In re Baynes, (4) which has already been men-
tioned, and a case in Ontarto, Clarkson v. Attorney-
General of Canada, (2) in both of which the right of
the Crown to preferential payment out of assets being
administered in bankruptcy was denied. Their Lord-
ships have carefully considered those cases. With every
respect to the courts by which they were.decided, their
Lordships cannot help thinking that in both cases the
learned judges have not sufficiently kept distinct the,
two prerogatives which formed separate grounds of
decision in In re Henley & Co. (5). The judgments
are devoted In a great measure to a consideration of
the prerogative under which the Crown was entitled
to peculiar remedies against the debtor and his prop-
erty, and of the law and the authorities bearing upon
it. The principle upon which that prerogative
depends is not to be confounded with the principle
invoked in the present case. The prerogative, the

(1) 56 S.C.R. 176, at 194. (3) 11907] A.C. 185.

(2)150nt. R.632;16 Ont. A.R. (4) 9 Queens land. L. J.33 at 44.
202. (5) 9 Ch. D. 469.
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benefit of which the Crown is now claiﬁ]iﬁg, depends, 1921
as explained by Macdonald C. B. in the King v. Wells Tu= KING
. (1), upon a principle ‘petfectly distinet * * * and Max

Lrra wick

mi 1 7 AND
far more general determining a preference in favour of  AN>

the Crown in all cases and touching all rights of what Azanss~

kind soever where the Crown’s and the subject’s Reasons for

right concur and so come into- competition.” : Judgment.

In Attorney-General for N.S. Wales v. Curator of A“d"“‘”
Interstate Estates (2), it was held that the Insurance ‘
Act therein mentioned did not bind the Crown which
was entitled to be paid by virtue of its prerogative in
priority to all other creditors of the deceased. -

The case of Sykes v. Soper (3), was also mentioned .
at bar but has no importance here in v1eW of the above
decision in the Palmer case.

The decision in re Henly & Co. (4), above referred
to, decided that when a company is being wound up
the Crown has a right to payment in full of a debt due
from the company for property tax before commence-
ment of the winding up, in priority to the other °
creditors—See also In re Oriental Bank Corporation (5)

Then In re Laycock (6), also decided that sec. 33 of
the Bankruptey Act 1914, which after giving statutory
priority to certain Crown and other debts in the
distribution of a bankrupt’s or deceased insolvent’s
property, provides that subject thereto all debts shall
be paid part passu, does not apply to the private
administration of a deceased insolvent’s estate out of
Court, and therefore does not affect the common law
priority of any Crown debt in such a case.

In re Galvin (7), it was held that the Crown was
entitled to priority in respect of legacy duties.

(1) 16 East, 278. : (4) L.R. 9 Ch. Div.469.
(2) [1907] A.C. 519. (6) L.R. 28, Ch. D. 643.
(3) 29 Ont. L.R. 193. (6) 11919] 1 Ch. 241.

(7) [1897] Ir.R., 1 Ch. D. 520. .
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A number of authorities in support of this view will
also be found in Robertson, On Civil Proceedings, p.
164 et seq.

The Canadian Income War Tax, 10-11 Geo. V,
ch. 49, sec. 10, sub-sec. 9, further provides that in
cases wherein assignees, etc., are administering and
distributing estates etc.: “they * * * ghall pay any tax
and surtax and penalties assessed and levied with
respect thereto before making any distribution of the
smid property, business or estate.” 'The Act thereby
recognizes and preserves the priority, if the tax has
to be paid before distribution is made.

Moreover statutes made for the benefit of the Crown
must be beneficially construed, Hals. 27, p. 166 n.

Income Tax owing to the Crown has priority over all
other insecured debts. Hals. p. 879 et seq.; Vol. 2, p. 217.

The rule of law formulated in the maxim Quando
Jjus domaint el subdity concurrunt, jus regis praeferrt
debet, cited by Strong J. in re The Queen v. Bank of
Nova Scotia (1), and approved of in the case of Liqusi-
dators  Marittme Bank v. Receiver General N.B. (2)
has still full force and effect and must be followed.

Therefore there will be judgment condemning the
defendant Lithwick to pay, as prayed, the sum of
$760.66 with interest and costs, and ordering the
added defendant Cole, in his capacity of assignee, as
aforesaid to pay the same to the plaintiff in full priority
to all creditors of equal degree of the said defendant
Lithwick. :

Judgment accordingly.

Solicitors for plaintiff: C. F. Elliott.

Solicitor for defendants: Ewart, Scott, Kelly & Kelly.

(1) 11 8.C.R. 1, at 15. (2) [1892] A.C. 437.
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Y

| QUEBEC ADMIRALTY DISTRIGT ‘ 1021
No. 506 . ; Janu-a;r_y 12,
ARMAND MARCHAND........... PLAINTIFF '
V.

Tae Suir SAMUEL MARSHALL. . DEFENDANT,
AND

THREE OTHER CASES BEARING
NOS. 507, 509 anp 516.

Shipping and Seamen—Minors’ right to sue for wages—Lex fori—Admir-
alty Courts—Canada Shipping Act—Interpretation of Seaman's
Contracl—Benefit of the doubt—Bonus. ~

M. and others, minors under the age of 21 and over 14, were engaged

in the province of Quebec, to serve on board the S.8.M. plying

_ between the Great Lakes and Father Pt., and sued in the province
of Quebec, before the Exchequer Court of Canada, in Admiralty,
for wages and bonus due them,

. Held: That whatever relates to the remedy to be enforced should be.
determined by the lex fort, and as the remedy of the plaintiff had
been invoked in the province of Quebec, by the law of which pro-
vinece & minor over 14 may sue in his own name to recover wages due
“him, plaintiff had the status and capacity to sue before this Court. - -

Don vs. Lippman 5 C. & F-Rep. pp. 1 and 13. The Milford; Swabey
362. The Tagus 72 L.J. Adm. 4; referred to. .

2. That where it is established that seamen were to be paid a bonus of
$10.00 2 month, at the end of the season, and where the ship was
arrested before the close of navigation, and the owners failed to
obtain her release, such failure on their part was in effect a consent
that she be laid up from that date, and the season’s operations

~ were then ended, and the seamen became entitled to their wages
and bonus. The Malic 2 Hagg. Adm. 158, and Viners Abridge
ment, Verbo. “Mariners p. 235 referred to.

5. It is the immemorial and benevolent practice of the Court, that
where there is any doubt as to the meaning of the contract of
hire, the seaman should get the benefit thereof; and in such a
case the contract should be interpreted against the owner and in
favor of the seaman. '

. 13137—12

' 1
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1921 AN ACTION for wages by various seamen who
Mﬁ;}g‘};ﬂ:’m were minors under the age of 21, on board the ship

NO;,.506 Samuel Marshall.

T@gi’;ﬁ The owners of the ship moved to have the action

MansualL - dismissed on the ground that the plaintiffs being

Omer OASES 1yinors had no right to sue before the Admiralty Court.

Nos. 507,
509 axo 516 December, 11th, 18th, 1920.

Reasons for

Judgment.  Argument on the questions of law raised by the

Maclennan plaintiff was heard before the Honourable Mr. Justice
——  Maclennan at Montreal.

Harold Walker, counsel for plaintiff Marchand.
T. M. Tansey, counsel for defendant,

" The facts and the questions of law raised are stated
in the reasons for judgment.

MACLENNAN D L. J. A. now (January 21, 1921,)
delivered judgment.

These are all actions for wages and some questions
arise which are common to all of the four cases. The
plaintiffs Marchand, Leblanc and ILehouillier were
seamen aboard the ship Samuel Marshall, and the
plaintiff Trepanier was the assistant cook. Leblanc
and Trepanier signed the articles of engagement dated

- at Sorel, May 7th, 1920, to serve on board the ship
between Montreal and the Great Lakes and on the
river St. Lawrence as far as Father Point for a period
not to exceed eight months, the ship to be used as
freight boat. The articles contained an agreement
that fifteen days notice must be given before leaving
the vessel and “in case of the ship being laid up, the

crew to be paid without extra wages.” TUnder the
q .
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headmg of “Particulars of Engagement’’ there is a 192t
column headed “Amount of wages.per week of calendar hﬁg}f}:ﬁ’n'
month,” in which it is mentioned the monthly wages No. 508

of each member of the crew who signed the articles, Tos Smp

M
and there is also another column headed “Bonus at A%%g%%ﬂ
the end of the season,” but no amount is entered in OTgﬁfm%*;ES
the latter column opposite the names of the crew. 503‘7 o8 BT 6.
| Each of the above plaintiffs is a mmor and the Reag::l: for
owners of the ship at the trial objected to each actmn Molomman

on the ground that the plaintiff being a minor was D.L.J.
mcompetent to sue for his wages. This is the first
question to be decided and it applies to the four
cases. Counsel for defendant submitted that the
Exchequer Court in Admiralty ‘admiristered the
Maritime Law of England in like manner as if the .
cause of action were being tried and disposed of in
the English Court of Admiralty and that by the
English Maritime Law a minor seaman under the age

of 21 years could not sue in his own name but through.

a curator or guardian; MacLachlan, Merchant Ship-
ping (5th Ed.) 263 and Albert Crosby (1). "~ Counsel for
plaintiff velies upon article 304 of the Civil Code of
Lower Canada, which provides that a minor of 14 years

of age may alone bring action to recover his wages. *

The question to be decided here is what law applies.
These plaintiffs were all engaged in the province of
Quéebec and the actions were entered in this province.
Article 6 of the Civil Code provides that an inhabitant
of Lower Canada is governed by its laws respecting
the status and capacity of persons, and C.C. 304
gives a minor 14 years of age a right of action to recover
his' wages. Many years ago the House of Lords, in Don

(1) Lush. 44,
13137-—12% '
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vs. Lippmann (1), laid down the rule, that whatever
relates to the remedy to be enforced must be deter-
mined by the lex fori, the law of the country to the
tribunals of which the appeal is made. This rule was
followed by Dr. Lushington in The Milford (2), and
by Phillimore J. in The Tagus (3). In The Minerva (4),
Lord Stowell at p. 358 said: “Seamen are the
favorites of the law . . . . . and placed
particularly under its protection.” In view of these
authorities I came to the conclusion that the remedy
of the plaintiffs being invoked in the province of
Quebec must be governed by the prosivions of the law
of this province which gives a minor a right of action
to recover his wages. Had these plaintiffis taken

proceedings before a Judge of the Sessions of the

Peace or Police Magistrate, as they were entitled
to do under the Canada Shipping Act, the objection
to their actions on the ground that they were minors
could not have been raised. In my opinion, this
objection should not prevail in the Admiralty Court,
and I therefore hold that the plaintiffs had the capacity
and status which justify them in entering their actions.
in this Court.

Another question of importance relates to the right
of the plaintiffs to claim a bonus. It is established by
the evidence that each member of the crew, with the
exception of the captain who had a special agreement
in that connection, was to be paid a bonus of $10.00
per month at the end of the season. This bonus was
In reality part of the wages of the crew and: they all
received a bonus for the previous season and, in my
opinion, the plaintiffs established their right to receive

(1) (6) C. &F.Reports, 1 and 13. (3) 72 L. J. Adm. 4.
(2) Swabey 362. (4) 1 Hagg. 347
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such bonus; The Elmwnlle (1). The defendant sub- 1921
mitted that the end of the season had not arrived Aﬁc“éﬂ?n
when these actions were instituted. This ship had No, 506

been engaged during the season of 1920 in carrying Tas B

coal from Lake Erie ports to the port of Montreal and “fﬁ%ﬁ:;‘:ﬂ )
arrived in Montreal on its last trip down on Sunday, OTgEEi‘Bg:;EB
14th November, at 10 a.m., with a cargo of coal 50&‘7?&30216
aboard, which was dlscharged on the following day Reasoms for
On November 16th a cargo of liquor consigned to Judgment.

Windsor, Ontario, was placed aboard the ship, but Maolengan

was removed by seizure in revendication against the ——
owners on 17th November. On the latter date the
ship was arrested by one McCullough on a claim
for wages. The owners did not take any steps to
secure the ships’ release from that seizure, but very
improperly, on the 18th November, induced -the.
‘Master to leave the port' of Montreal for Cornwall,
Ontario. The Marshall of the Court who had arrested
the ship and was in custody thereof having obtained
information. of the attempt to remove the ship from-
" this jurisdiction, succeeded in stopping her at the
Soulanges Canal and compelled her to return to
Montreal. In the meantime further arrests were
made of the ship at the instance of divers members of
the crew. As the owners did nothing to obtain the . '
ship’s *release from the arrest by McCullough, the
further employment -of the ship became impossible.
‘The season’s operations were ended and the crew
became entitled to their wages and bonus. The -
articles expressly provided, that in case the ship is
‘laid up the crew is to be paid without extra wages.
This clearly contemplated the termination of the
operations before the close of the season of navigation

(1) 73 L. J. Adm. 120. '
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and when the owners failed to obtain the ship’s release
from arrest they in fact consented to her being laid up
from that date; Viner’s Abridgement {1); The Malta (2),
Maclachlan (5th Ed.), Merchant Shipping, 247.
It has been an immemorial and benevolent practice of
the Court, if there is any doubt about a contract, to
give the seamen the benefit of it; The Nonpareil (3);
Roscoe’s Ad. Practice, (4th Ed.) 251.

Armand Marchand joined the ship in September,
his wages were $65.00 per month and he claims $20.00
for two months bonus. He was paid wages to the
end of October and I find that he is entitled to $41.17

. being wages from 1st to 19th November, 1920, at

$65.00 per month, and a further sum of $20.00 being
two months bonus, in all $61.17 for which there will
be judgment in his favour against the ship with costs.

Florence Trepanier was the second cook on the
ship; her wages were $45.00 per month with a bonus of
$10.00 per month, and she had served on the ship during
the whole season. She has proved her claim of $28.50
for the first nineteen days in November and $70.00
being seven months bonus, in all $98.50, for which
amount there will be judgment in her favour against
the ship and costs.

Paul Leblanc had served during the whole season;
his wages were $75.00 with a bonus of $10.00 per
month. He made a claim of $5.00 for some extra
services but this item is not proved or allowed. He
has established his right to $47.50 being wages from
1st to 19th November, 1920, and $70.00 bonus, form-
ing a total of $117.50 for which there will be judgment
in his favour against the ship with costs.

(1) Verbo Mariners, p. 235. (2) 2 Hagg. 158.
(3) Br. & L. 355.
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Xavier Lehouillier began on 1st August,; 1920, and 1291

was paid to the end of October; his wages were $65.00 jryaxo

per month and he has proved his claim for wages No. 506
from 1st to 22nd November, $47.67, and his right to a Tx»Suwe

. SAMUEL

bonus for four months, $40.00, forming a total of Marsuaun

$87.67, for which. amount there will be judgment inOmEer Casss
EARING

. ! e Nos. 507,
his favour against the ship with costs. . 500 awn 516

) ) Reasons for
Judgment accordingly. — Jvdgment.

Maclennan
D.LV.

Solicitors for plaintiffs: Heneker, Chqum'n, Wdlker & - —
Stewart.

Solicitors. for defendant: Solon E’lisoph.
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.

In THE MATTER OF THE PETITION OF | SUPPLIANT;
RieaT or THE WOLFE COMPANY

AND

.

- HIS MAJESTY THE KING........ RESPONDENT.

Exchequer Court- Act—Sect. 20—*“Public Work”’—Definition—Burden
of Proofj—Interprelation of Statules.

Held: That in the absence of any definition of a “public work” in the
Exchequer Court Aect, the phrase ag used in section 20 thereof
must be construed in its plain and literal meaning, and its con-
struction should not be governed by any definition of the phrase
in any Act of the Parliament of Canada, the intendment of which
was to limit the meaning of the phrase to the operation of the
particular Act.

2. The phrase “public work” appearing in the Public Works Act and
in the Expropriation Act should not be construed to include a
building occupied under the circumstances peculiar to this case,
namely: A building, the basement and first floor of which were
used and rented for a recruiting station by the Department of
Militia and Defence, either under the War Measures Act or the
Militia Aect, and solely under its control, with the right to vacate
at any time upon giving 14 days notice, and over which the Public
Works Department had no control.

3. That the fact that a fire takes place is not of itself evidence of
negligence, its occurrence being quite consistent with due care
having been taken; there must be some affirmative evidence of
negligence, or of some fact from which a proper inference may be
drawn.

4. That the burden of proof being upon it and the suppliant having
failed to show that the fire was the result of negligence on the
part of some officer or servant of the Crown while acting within -
the scope of his duties or employment the petition could not be -
entertained.

Semble: That while the phrase “Public Work” as used in the Public
Works Act and the Expropriation Act, means property vested in
and belonging to Canada, yet all classes of property belonging to
Canada are not necessarily public works. '




N
Voi. XX. EXCHEQUER COURT REPORTS. -

PETITION OF RIGHT seeking to recover sum of
$23,245.85 representing value of stock in trade de-
stroyed by a fire which started in a building occupied
by the Crown'.and communicated to the building
where their stock was contained. . ‘

December 22nd, 1920.
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Reasons for
Judgment.

AudetteJ.

——_

Case was heard before the-Honourable' Mzr. Justice

Audette, at Ottawa.
A.. E. Fripp, K.C., for suppliant.
W. D. Hogg, K.C., for respo,nde‘nt;

The points of law involved and the facts are stated
in the reasons for judgment.

Avperre J. now (January 5, 1921,) delivered
judgment.

The suppliant, by its petition of right, seeks to -

recover the sum of $23,245.85, as representing the
value of his stock-in-trade destroyed by fire, on the 13th
December, 1917, under the following circumstances:

On the 5th Mérch, 1916, the Department of Mﬂitig_

and Defence rented, from Messrs. A. E. Rea & Com-
pany, the Arcade building, at 194 Sparks Street, as a
Recruiting Station for soldiers, at $200 a month, with
the right to vacate at any time upon giving 14 days
notice. There was no formal lease with covenants
subscribed between the parties. The contract between
. the parties, such as it is, is evidenced by Exhibits 1
and 4. While the building was so occupied it was
destroyed by fire on the night of the 12th to 13th
December, 1917, as well as the adjoining building to
the west which was occupied under tenancy by the
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suppliant who was carrying on therein the business
of milliner and furrier. It now sues for the value of
his stock-in-trade then destroyed and which it esti-
mates at the sum of $23,245.85. .

It is well to note, however, that by Exhibit No. 1,
Messrs. A. E. Rea Company, Limited, offered to rent
for $200 a month, the premises which the Recruiting
Station then occupied, and that is the ground floor and
the basement, and further that only these two stories
were so occupied. The upper stories would not appear
to have been covered by such offer and were not in
the mind of the owner.

The question of the gquantum of damages, is by
agreement of all concerned, left-over until the question
of liability has been determined.

The action in its very essence is grounded on negli-
gence and sounds in tort. In such a case there is no
Lability on the part of the Crown, unless it is made so
liable by statute. To succeed the suppliant must
therefore bring his case within the ambit of section
20,0f the Exchequer Court Act, as amended, in 1917,
by 7-8 Geo. V, ch. 23, whereby sub-sec. (¢) of said
section now reads as follows:

““(¢c) Every claim against the Crown arising out of
any death or injury to the person or to property
resulting from the negligence of any officer or servant
of the Crown while acting within the scope. of his
duties or employment upon any public work.”

In approaching the consideration of the case, and
in view of a long series of decisions upon the statute as
it stood before the amendment, it is well to bear in
mind the amendment of sub-sec. (¢) above mentioned,
which came into force on the 29th August, 1917; and
further, that the injury to this property resulting
from the fire took place on the 13th December, 1917.
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A number of decisions upon the former state of the
law, establishing the rule that to create lability the
“injury had to be sustained on the pubhc work are not
" now applicable. ‘

Moreover, under the demsmn in Pzggot v.the King (1)
‘which is a case decided under the law as it existed prior
to 1917, it was established that such a claim as the
‘present could not be sustained under paragraphs (a)
and (b) of sec. 20. Tt was decided there that these
two paragraphs dealt with the question of compensation
and not damages, and that ‘“‘compensation,” as stated
by His Lordship, the Chief Justice of Canada, “is the
indemnity which the statute provides to the. owner of
lands which are compulsorily taken under, or m;umously
“affected by, the exercise of statutory powers.”

Does the case come under sub-sec. (¢) of section 20,
as amended in 19177 ' -

To bring this case within the provisions of sub-
‘section (c), as amended in 1917, the injury to property
must result from the negligence of any officer or servant
of the Crown while acting within the scope of his duties
or employment upon any public work. In other
words the three following requirements are necessary:
1st, a public work; (2nd) negligence of the Crown
officer thereon; (3rd) and the 1n]ury must be the
result of such negligence.

Now it is contended at bar, on behalf of the sup-
,pliant, that the Arcade building was a public work
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while rented and occupied by the Crown as a Recruiting -

Station for soldiers, and that the officers in charge were
guilty of negligence in, inter alia, building small beaver

board partitions and in-placing stoves, called Quebec

heaters, close to the same, and furthermore in not keep-

ing a watchman or caretaker over night in the building. -

(1) 19 Ex. C.R. 485; 53 8.C.R. 626.

.
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The first question to answer is whether or not this
Recruiting Station, under the circumstances, was a
“public work’ of the Dominion of Canada.

There is no description or definition of a “public
work’” in the Exchequer Court Act which provides
for the liability above mentioned under this amended
section 20.

On behalf of the suppliant it is then contended
that for the determination of what is a ‘“‘public work,”’
reference should be had to the Public Works Act,
(ch. 39, R.S.C. 1906) sub-sec. (c) of sec. 3 thereof,
which reads as follows: “(¢) ‘public work’ or ‘public
works’ means and includes any work or property
under the control of the Minister.” This section,
however, must be read conjointly with sections 9 and
10 of this Act. Section 9 especially qualifies and
determines what is to be under the control and manage-
ment of the Minister by stating: ““The Minister shall
have the management, charge and direction of the
following properties belonging to Canada, etc.” That
is, he is to have the control of properties belonging to
Canada. That is as a condition precedent the prop-
erty must belong to Canada.

Then section 10, sub-sec. (c) enacts that: “Nothing
in the last preceding Section shall be deemed to confer
upon the minister the management, charge or direc-
tion of such public works as are by or under the author-
ity of this Act or any other Act of the Parliament of
Canada, placed under the control and management of
any other Minister of or Department.”’

Now, it has been established by the evidence that
the Arcade building used as a Recruiting Station in
1917, was not at any time, under the control and

‘superintendence of the Public Works Department
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which had nothing whatever to do with it, and that
the Department of Militia and Defence, acting either
‘under the War Measures Act, 1914, or under section 8
of the Militia Act (R.S.C., ch. 41) had full control over it.
Therefore, it results that the Public Works Act
becomes and is of no help for the determination of the
question as to whether these premises were or were
not a “public work’ within the meaning of the Exche-
quer Court Act. -

Subsection (d) of sec. 2 of the Expropriation Act
(ch. 143, R.S.C., 1906) enacts the following definition
of a public work, viz.:

“(d) ‘public work’ or ‘public works’ means and
includes the dams, hydraulic works, hydraulic privi-
leges, harbours, wharfs, piers, docks and works for
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. improving the navigation of any water, the light- -

houses and beacdps, the slides, dams, piers, booms
- and other works for facilitating the transmission of

* - timber, the roads and bridges, the public buildings,
the telegraph lines, Government railways, canals,.

locks, dry-docks, fortifications and other works of
defence, and all other property, which now belong to
Canada, and also the works and properties acquired,
constructed, extended, enlarged, repaired or improved

at the expense of Canada, or for the acquisition,

construction, repairing, extending, enlarging, or

improving of which any public moneys are voted and

appropriated by Parliament, and every work required
for any such purpose, but not any work for which
money is appropriated as a subsidy only.”

This definition, however, again applies to the

~ Expropriation Act, and the question now beforé the

Court is not one involving the doctrine of eminent

domain.
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Whether these descriptions, minute and wide in
their scope, can be applied to the present case is one
not without controversy. However, it would seem
to primarily result from this that a “public work’ of
Canada, would be a property vested in and belonging
to Canada. The jurisprudence upon this point has
been quite extensive, and I desire now to cite the most
apposite decisions upon the question.

In the case of The City of Quebec v. The Queen (1),
a case that had to deal with injury to persons under
sec. 20 (then sec. 16) of the Exchequer Court Act, it
was held that the rock, or land upon which the citadel
was constructed, although owned by the Crown, was
not a ‘‘public work.” Taschereau J., there said:
“The rock upon which the citadel of Quebec rests is
not, in my opinion, a public work or work at all within
the meaning of the statufe.”

Burbidge J., in Macdonald v. the King (2), adopted
that view and citing the language above mentioned,
says: ‘“The rock on which the citadel of Quebec rests,
1s not a public work, or a work at all within the mean-
ing of the statute, though it was undoubtedly at the
time public property vested in the Crown in the right
of the Dominion, and he adds (p. 398): “The fact
that certain property is vested in the Crown in the
right of the Dominion ¢s not, it appears, conclusive
of the question as to whether such property is-a public
work or not within the meaning of the statute. It
constitutes, however, in each case an important con-
sideration and a matter always to be borne in mind.”

Then at page 399: “The fact is that there is no
ground for any contention that the place where the
accident happened was a public work within the mean-

(1) 24 5.C.R. 420, at 448. (2) 10 Ex. C.R. 394, at 397.
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ing of the statute because public money had been there 1921
expended, etc. In that respect it is not so strong a case Joure

as that of the Hamburg American Packet Company v. Tre KixG.

the Kz'ng_ (1), where it was held that the channel of , —
the river St. Lawrence, near Cap & la Roche, between Tudgment.
Montreal and Quebec was not a ‘public work,’—after Audette.J.
spending money in widening and deepening it, and
notwithstanding that sub-sec. (a) of sec. 9 of the Public
Works Act places under the control of the Minister
“works for improving the nav1gat10n of any water.”

In Larose v. the King (2) Taschereau J., at p. 208 says:
“The property occupied by this range has been leased
by the Government from one D. ... under authority of
an order in council. .... The Judge of the Exchequer ~
Court dismissed the action upon the ground that the
rifle range was not a public work within the meaning of
that term as used in the Exchequer Court Act.”

In Brown v. the Queen (3) Burbldge J. held that a
fish-way in a mill dam constructed by and at the
expense of the Crown, was not a public work within
the meaning of the Exchequer -Court Act. . ’

In the case of Paul v. the King (4) it was held that a
Government steam-tug and a scow, its tow, working
in conjunction with a Government dredge, and which
caused a collision, while' engaged in improving the -
ship channel of the St. Lawrence, was not a public
work. Yet it must not be overlooked that sec. 9 of
the Public Works Act (ch. 39, R.S.C., 1906) read with
sub-sec. (c¢) of sec. 3 thereof; places under the control .
of the Minister bringing them under the class defined
by sec. 3, “vessels, dredges, scows, tools, implements,
and machinery for the improvement of navigation.. . ..
and works for improving the navigation of any water.”

(1)7Ex.C.R.150and 338.C.R.252.  (3) 3 Ex. C.R. 79.
(2)6 Ex.C.R.425and 318.C.R.206.  (4) 38 S.CR. 126. .
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Sir Louis Davies, J. (now Chief Justice) (1) com-
menting upon this expression ‘“public work,” in
the Paul case (ubi supre) said, at p. 131: “To hold
the Crown liable in this case of collision for injuries to
the suppliant’s steamer arising out of the collision,
we would be obliged to construe the words of the
section so as to embrace injuries caused by the negli-
gence of the Crown’s officials not as limited by the
statute ‘on any public work,” but in the carrying on of
any operations for the improvement of the navigation of
public harbours or rivers. In other words, we would be
obliged to hold that all operations for the dredging of

.these harbours or rivers or the improvement of navigation,

and all analogous operations carried on by the Govern-
ment were either in themselves public works, which
needs, I think, only to be stated to refute the argument,
or to hold that the instruments by or through which the
operations were carried on were such public works.

“If we were to uphold the latter contention I would

find great difficulty in acceding to the distinetion drawn

by Burbidge, J., between the dredge which dug up the
mud while so engaged and the tug which carried it to the
dumping ground while so engaged. Both dredge and tug
are alike engaged in one operation, one in excavating
the material and the other in earrying it away.

“But even if we could find reasons to justify such a
distinction, which I frankly say I cannot...... I
think a careful and reasonable construction of the
clause 16 (now 20) (c) must lead to the conclusion that
the public works mentioned in it....are public works
of some definite area, as distinet from those operations
undertaken by the Government for the improvement
of navigation or analogous purposes, not confined to
any definite area of physical work or structure.”

(1) Also cited in Coleman vs. The King, 18 Ex. C.R. 263, at p. 268.
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In M ontgomery v. the King (1) following the views
expressed by the judges of the Supreme Court of
Canada in the case of Paul v. the King (ubi supra) it
was held that a dredge belonglng to the Dominion
Government is not a “public work” within thé meaning

of section 20 of the Exchequer Court Act.

In the recent case of La Compagnie Generale d’Entre—
prigses Publiques v. the King (2) Anglin J., speaking of

sec. 20 of the Exchequer Court Act, said: “It does not" |

seem to me to involve any undue straining of the
. language of the statute to hold that it covers a claim
for injury to property so employed. ‘Public work’
may, and I think should, be read as meaning not merely
some building or other erection or structure belonging
to the public, but any operation undertaken by or on
behalf of the Government in constructing, repairing or
maintaining public property.”

In Courteaw v. the King (3) it was held that an
injury suffered while taking a Crown vessel on launch-
ways owned and operated by a company on land
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leased from the Crown is not an injury happening .

n “a public work” of Canada,—although the vessel
was being hauled at the cost of the Government and
- upon the-latter making all the necessavy repairs to the
launch-ways for that purpose.

The case of the King v. Lafrancois (4), was cited at
bar by the suppliant, but that case has no application
because it deals with the Intercolonial Railway which
has been made and declared ““a public work of Canada”
by a special statute (5).

(1) 15 Ex. C.R. 374. (8) 17 Ex. C.R. 352.
(2) 57 S.C.R. 532. . (4) 40 S.CR. 431.
(5) R.8.C. 1906, ch. 36, sec. 55.

13137—13

N

Au;l—e;;;e J.
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1921 Therefore, in the light of the statutes and the long

coours  series of decisions above referred to, I have come to

the conclusion that it would be doing violence both

Rermmn 1o 10 the English language and to common sense to hold

Judgment. that the Arcade building was a public work of Canada,

Audettel. while the basement and ground floor thereof were

occupied by the Militia Department as a Recruiting

Station for soldiers under an agreement to vacate at

any time upon giving 14 days’ notice. It was neither

in law or fact a public work. To avoid a reductio ad

absurdum 1t must be found that it was at no time the

intendment or intention of the Parliament of Canada,

in enacting the statutes above referred to, any more

to make a public work of this building under the cir-

cumstances of the case, than it was to make of a pick

or shovel belonging to the Crown a public work,

because the word ‘“‘tools’’ is comprised in the nomen-

clature to be found in section 9 of the Public Works

Act (R.S.C. 1906, ch. 39) which, as I have already

said, must be read conjointly with sec. 3, of the same

Act. Finding otherwise would be for the court to

overlook and disregard the true intent, meaning and

spirit (Interpretation Act R.8.C., ch. 1, sec. 15) of the
legislation enacted by Parliament.

The words ‘‘public work” mentioned in sec. 20 of
the Exchequer Court Act must be taken to be used as
verily contemplating a public work in truth and in
reality, and not that which is mentioned in the Public
Works Act or in the Expropriation Act for the purposes
of each Act. Moreover, each definition given in
these two Acts is prefaced by the words “In this Act,
unless the context otherwise requires,” that is to say
it is limited to each Act. Indeed for thelpurposes of
each Act that definition is obviously acceptable,
because it is used, so to speak, as a key to what comes

7.
Tue King.
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within the ambit or provision of each Act. However,
it does not follow that it can be accepted as a general
definition in all-cases. It is not because a desk and
~chair belong to and are used in the Department of
Public Works that it must therefore be construed as a
public work, any more than the same furniture, the
property of the Department of Militia, can be called
mlhtary works, military engines.

The Crown’s liability cannot be enlarged except by
. express words or necessary implication—City of Quebec
v. the Queen (1)—and all properties belonging to the
Crown are not necessarily public works. (Idem.
24 S.C.R. 448). |

While' desirous of doing justice between the parties,
I see no reason to condemn the Crown because it is
the Crown and thereby mulet His Majesty’s hege
subjects with large damages.

Why should we depart from the g;enera.l and" plam
meaning of these specific words “public work,”” which
are of a common and dominant feature, to endeavour,
for the convenience of a case, to extend to them a
meaning which, to every one, would appear so strained
as to amount to an absurdity on its very face.

Where a statutory definition is found in an Act
and that it is said to apply.to that Act, it is well to
remember that it is not a legal definition forming
part of the law of Medes and Persians and that when-
ever such defined words are met outside of that Act,
it does not necessarily carry the meaning assigned to
it by that special statute. .

Moreover, as above mentioned, the trend of deci-
stons in our courts upon these very words suggests a
decision more in harmony with such a view.

(1) ¢ Ex. C.R. 270.
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Having found that the Arcade building was not a
public work of Canada, it might be thought unneces-
sary to go into the question of negligence. However,
for the better understanding of the case, as a whole, it
is considered advisable to pass also upon that question.

The Militia Department, at the time of the fire,
occupied the ground floor and the basement of the
Arcade building, which, entering from Sparks street,
presented a large door in the centre and two large
display windows on each side.

On coming in at the front from Sparks street,
there was an open space of about 40 feet, followed by
several rooms partitioned off. Then, as described by

* Major Woodside, from about the centre of the building,

travelling south towards Queen street, we enter upon the
rear portion of the building,occupied by the medical men,
which was partitioned in small stalls between 6 by 8 feet,
and 8 and 8 feet, with a table and stove in some of them.
The place was heated by stoves called Quebec
heaters. Witness Woodside testified there were six
or seven stoves, and witness Sewell said nine or more.
There was a central fire or furnace in the building,
but, for one reason or another, it was not being used—
it was not in gdod repair, said witness Woodside.
The southeast corner of the building, on Queen
street, deserves some special mention, in view of the
testimony of the chief of the fire brigade, the fire
mspector, and witness Sewell. On entering the
building from Queen street, there is also a door in the
centre and display windows on each side, and on
coming inside there was a hallway, and to the right

"hand side a beaver board partition with a door in it

leading into one of these small rooms, with beaver
board partitions on the north and the west. The
main wall of the building formed the eastern side of
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A

that room -and the window the southern end. In
that room, with two sides of beaver board, as above
described, there was a large ‘“Quebec heater which
stood near the partition against the window,—about
one foot away from the partition,” as stated by
witness Sewell, and two feet as said by witness Latimer.

Major Woodside, who was in charge and command
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of the building. at the time of the fire, says the “Stoves

were placed too close to the partition to suit me.”
However, he was in charge and adds he did everything
i his power to avord any danger. He contends that
notwithstanding he was in charge that he did not
place the stoves in the building, that he did not inter-
fere with the Medical Board’s work, who.laid them
out to suit themselves. While he said he did not
interfere with the medical gentlemen, he did not let
them do as they liked. He had stoves moved when they
were placed too close to partitions, and asked the con-
tractor to place metal behind. Witness Sewell said

he knew of two stoves around which there was tln to -

protect the partition.
Major Woodside thought the pla.ce was a fire trap
-and complained about it twice to the officer in charge

of the district, at Kingston, once to the Public Works |

Department, and once to the Inspector of Fires at
Ottawa. And he adds, he received no answer from
Kingston, and is it to be wondered at. Surely, he
was himself in charge—he was the better judge as to
whether or not these stoves were not in a proper
_ place, and the Kingston people would not probably,
and rightly so, be pestered with such petty questions
which should come within the "absolute scope of the
officer in charge. If he had the courage of his opinion,
he should have attended to it himself.. Too much
- seems to have been made of these details. )
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" Now, as many as 200 men or soldiers were passed
by the doctors some days, and although smoking was
not legally allowed, says witness Woodside, these men
were smoking cigarettes, and this is an important
point to be borne in mind.

Coming to the question of the engagment of the care-
taker Sewell, which was made by Major Woodside, the
Major contends that Sewell’s duties were to attend to
the firing of the stoves, and that he was to remain in and
guard the building at night. On the other hand Sewell
contends that he did not accept the occupation of watch-
man, but that his duties, as assigned to him by Major
Woodside, were to look after the heaters, clean the
offices at night when the doctors were through with
their work and nothing else; but that he was not to stay
there over night. That at the time of his engagement
nothing was said about his staying over night.

On the night of the fire, after clearing up and attend-
ing to the stoves he left for his home somewhere around
midnight, and says that nothing was then different
from any other night.

Constable Coombs, who was on duty on Sparks
street, noticed the fire somewhere around 3.40 to 3.45
in the morning of the 13th, when he found the front
part of the ground floor of the Arcade building on
Queen street was on fire and he gave the alarm.
At that time no other building on Queen street was on
fire, and he did not go to Sparks street at the time.

Constable Feeny, who was on duty on Bank street,
noticed the fire also at about 3.45 a.m. on the 13th
and says that when he arrived the fire was flaming
out of the ground floor windows on Queen street,—
the bottom story, as he puts it, was on fire—and about
a quarter of an hour afterwards the fire had spread on
each side of the building en Queen street.
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We also had the evidence of Chief Graham, who
testified he reached the place about three minutes
after the alarm had been given, and on .arrival found
that the Arcade building alone was on fire, and that
the fire had .then reached the fourth story of the
building.

Then he went to Sparks street and ascertained the’

fire was still only in the Arcade, and that afterwards
the Wolfe and Powers Building, on the western side of
the Arcade, took fire from behmd
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The Chief offers as his opmlon and belief that the
fire originated on Queen street, on the. southeast

corner of the building, but adds he does not know the
origin of the fire. It is his surmise.

Witness Latimer, the fire inspector, was heard,

and he testified he had been in the building four days -

before the fire, and described the condition of the
building and found fault, among other things, with the
basement of the building where there was rubbish,
cotton and show cases,—but there was no fire and no
stove in the basement. His surmise of the fire,
sharing the Chief’s view, is that the fire originated in
- the southeast corner of the building on Queen street

on account of the stove being too close to the window -
sill,—only two feet—but a stove per se is not defective, -

and there is no evidence that any of these stoves were

. defective.

‘However, the Inspector further testified that after

the fire was over, the floor where that stove stood, in -

the southeast corner, was not burnt,—*“that ‘part of
the floor was all right and the woodwork around there
was there still. The woodwork, excepting a piece of
the ledge of the window, was intact.”
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1921 Now, under these circumstances, and with the
Cg;f;fﬁ , above evidence can it be found that the fire resulted
rus ¥ane, 1om the negligence of any officer or servant of the
,}e%;ns o Crown while acting within the scope of his duties or
udgment.

ETeY employment upon the premises.
Audette J. . ] : .
— Would it be reasonable to jump at a conclusion

based upon the mere conjecture of the Chief of the
fire brigade and the inspector, and find that the stove
iIn the southeast corner of the building, on Queen
street, did set the fire, when it was placed at two feet
distance from the partition and that when after the
fire is over the floor and the woodwork around the
stove is still intact, with only a small portion of the -
ledge of the window being burnt.

Asking the question is answering it.

Had Sewell been in the building on that night,
would the fire have been avoided? The answer again
can only amount to a mere conjecture. He might and
he might not. Fire in a number of cases occur every
day in buildings where there are caretakers or watch-
men, and even in homes where whole families sleep.
He might perhaps or perhaps not have headed the
constable in giving the alarm.

The fact that the fire took place is not of itself
evidence of mnegligence, because its occurrence is
quite consistent with due care having been taken.
To find negligence under the circumstances, there
must be some affirmative evidence of negligence, or
of some fact from which a forcible inference of negli-
gence may be drawn. The conjecture or surmise
built upon in this case are too aleatory and uncertain.

We are told that as many as 200 men were passed in
a day by the doctors, and that smoking was not
stopped. There is as much possibility or probability
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that the fire might have originated from a stub of a
- cigar, or from a cigarette thrown somewhere in a
corner, as is customary especially with an irresponsible
class of young men, and that the fire had started
even in day-time and was smouldering for quite a
while before spreading out. That possibility or
probability is just as fair an inference as the other
conjecture that the fire would have originated from
stoves that had been there for months and had given
perfect and entire satisfaction.

Or again the fire might have originated from the
wiring for the electric light or otherwise. There is
no knowing. It was an accidental fire and no one
knows how it started.

The burden of proving negligence was upon the
suppliant who has failed to do so.

Under the circumstances I am unable to ﬁnd negli-
gence as required by the statute.

There will be judgment finding that -the suppli#nt
is not entitled to the relief sought by hlS Pemtmn of
Right.

Judgment accordingly.
Solicitors for suppliant: Fripp & McGee.

Solicitors for respondent: Hogg & Hogg.
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TORONTO ADMIRALTY DISTRICT.

BrerwEEN
JAMESJ.QUINN................. PLAINTIFF;
AND
Tue SHIP VOLUNTEER. ......... DEFENDANT.

Seaman’s Wages—Profils—Agreement lo accept share of profits for services.

Where a seaman holding a master’s certificate, agrees to accept a
share-of the season’s profits earned by a ship in return for his
services as master, he cannot, in the event of the venture not
being successful, or before its conclusion, make a claim for pay-
ment of wages for navigating the ship.

THIS was an action for wages as master against
the ship Volunieer.

November 20th, 1920.

The case was heard before Honourable Wm. Justice
Hodgins, L.J.A., at Toronto.

T. Louts Monahan, counsel for plaintiff.
F. H. Barlow, counsel for defendant.

The facts are stated in the reasons for judgment.

Hopcixs, L. J. A. now (November QTth, 1920)
delivered judgment.

Action by plaintiff, holding a master’s certificate,
for wages as master from 15th April, 1920, to 11th
June, 1920, for 58 days at $5.00 per day, less $42.00
on account, leaving a balance of $248.00.

The plaintiff sues for wages, while at the trial he
swore that he had made no arrangement with the
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owner of the ship and had never asked him for wages
until he got off the ship in June, when he asked for $3.00
per day as wages and not $5.00 for which he now sues.

It appears the vessel in question is a stone hooker
which Hartrick, the owner, bought in September,
1919, for $800, and decided to outfit her during the
winter and sail her during the summer. The vessel
was outfitted during the spring of 1920 by both plain-
tiff and Hartrick, and on 22nd May, 1920, she went on
her first voyage bringing back gravel which she dis-
charged at the do¢k in Toronto on the 4th of June,
1920. On the 11th of June the plaintiff assisted in
taking the ship to dry dock which she hit in getting
in. Both parties got very hot over it and plaintiff
left after the vessel got into dock and on the next
day claimed $3.00 wages from the 15th April.

According to the plaintiff’s account, although
Hartrick offered him during the winter of 1919 a half
interest in the boat if he helped him next season,
plaintiff did not intend to go with him and denies
any discussion during March or at any time about the
terms on which he says he assisted Hartrick. Nothing
was. done to the ship during the winter although
plaintiff shovelled snow off her several times.

On 15th April the plaintiff and Hartrick commenced
the outfitting which lasted to the 22nd of May, during
which time Hartrick paid for plaintiff’s meals. '

Hartrick’s account is that plaintiff agreed to work
for him and to sail the vessel for him on the basis of
one-third to Hartrick, one-third for expenses and one-
third to the plaintiff; fo be paid out of the profits
made by the boat during the summer and he denies
having offered the plaintiff a half interest in the

~vessel. He also says that the plamtlff agreed in
March to work on shares.
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2o Apart from some question as to the advantage
Quinw derived by Hartrick when plaintiff worked the case
vom S8 must turn, I think, on the interview on the boat on
her return with the gravel which is deposed to by
Hartrick and his wife whose account of the matter I
accept. The plaintiff was not willing to go further
than denying it and to say that it did not take place
as far as he remembered. That conversation, accord-
ing to Hatrick, is that he offered the plaintiff when he
received the money for the gravel, $97.50, to pay him
one-third, but the plaintiff demanded one-half, which
Hartrick agreed to, provided the expenses were first
deducted. These expenses consisted of a grocery
bill for provisions for the voyage incurred by the
plaintiff and he admits that he suggested payment of
that and accompanied Hartrick to the shop where it
was paid. Prior to going to the grocer Mrs. Hartrick
had been asked to figure up the division, which she
did, showing $38.83 as the plaintiff’s share. This
the plaintiff refused to take, asking for one-half share
in the boat as well, which Hartrick declined. On the
following day the plaintiff accepted $38.33 which he
contends was only pald on account, although he did
not say so to Hartrick. Shortly after that payment he
left the vessel in a huff, thus abandoning all chance of
being paid for his work before the ship was in service.
The conclusion I have come to from the whole case
is that the plaintiff agreed to do that work and to sail
the vessel for one-third of the net earnings of éhe vessel
- during the summer of 1920; that he abandoned the ship
and refused to carry out that arrangement on the 11th
June, 1920, and that his claim for wages entirely fails.
The action will be dismissed with costs.

Reasons for
Judgment.

Hodgins,
L.J.A.

Judgment accm;dz'ngly. g
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TorRONTO ADMIRALTY DISTRICT.

BETWEEN

WHITE & COMPANY, LIMITED. . PLAINTIFF;

AND

1] N . N

THE. SHIPIONIA.................. DEFENDANT.

Bxchequer Court in Admirally—Bankruptey Acl—Morlgage—Rights of
secured credilors. '

Held: That an assignment under the Bankruptcy Act does not interferc
with or lessen the rights of a secured creditor to enforce or retain
his security. . '

2. That inasmuch as the assignment itself only vests the property
of the debtor in the assignee subject to the rights of secured
creditors it can only affect what the debtor owns, namely, the
equity of redemption in the property.

3. That such an assignment did not prevent the holder of a mortgage
upon a vessel from enforeing his security before the Exchequer
Court in Admiralty, and that a motion by the assignee to set aside
the writ of summons and warrant of arrest issued in said court by
the mortgagee against the ship for its condemnation in the amount
of the mortgage therein and interest should be dismissed with
costs, which costs should be added to the mortgage debt.

4, That in the premises the only right of the assignce under the bank-
ruptey Act is to defend the action and that he could not otherwise
-interfere therein. ’

Quaere: Does the fact that creditor fails to file an affidavit under
section 46 of the Bankruptey Act valuing his security deprive him
- of the.right to participate in any dividend?

MOTION in Chambers to set aside the service of the
Writ of Summons and Warrant of Arrest issued by a
mortgagee to condemn a ship in the amount of their
mortgage thereon and interest.

January 17th, 19531.
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Motion argued in chambers before the Honourable
Mr. Justice Hodgins.

A. D. MacKenzie for the authorized assignee under
the Bankruptcy Act.

G. M. Willoughby for plaintiffs.
The facts are stated in the reasons for judgment.

.Hopgins, L. J. A. now (January 26, 1921) delivered
judgment.

Motion by assignee to set aside the service of the
writ and warrant of arrest and to stay proceedings in
this action, brought by mortgagees to enforce their
mortgage by sale of the ship.

The assignment was made on 11th November, 1920,
the writ herein was sued out on the 23rd December,
1920, and served on the ship and on the assignee on
the 28th December, 1920, and the 5th January, 1921,
respectively. The ship was arrested on 28th Decem-
ber, 1920, by warrant issued in this action and is now
in the custody of the marshall of the Exchequer Court.

The plaintiffs filed with the assignée on the 23rd
November, 1920, an affidavit of claim which stated
the security held but did not value it pursuant to
section 46 of the Bankruptey Act and no proceeding
to enable or compel the assignee to elect to take or
refuse the security has been had. The affidavit is
not in compliance with the Act and does not effect
any change in the positions of the plaintiffs .or of
the assignee. It is simply a careless and useless
proceeding.
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The provisions of the \Bankruptcy Act respecting = 1921
secured creditors are definite and precise. By making é"o‘ﬁ;:‘ ﬁ-
an authorized assignment the assignor commits an LIB@{TED
act of bankruptey, enabling his creditors to seek a Tz» Sme.

receiving order but the assignment in itself does not , —

appear to make the assignor a bankrupt under the ?Yudgment.
Act. Under section 2, s.s. (q) he is “an insolvent Fpdgips..
assignor whose debts provable under this Act exceed
$500.00.” See also s.s. (t). By section 4, s.s. 6, the -

Court can refuse to make a receiving order and may

allow the estate to be administered under the assign-

ment. The bankruptecy of a debtor commences only

on the service of a petition on which a receiving order

is made, section 4, s.s. 10.

- Under section 6, s.s. 1, when a receiving order-is
made the trustee is constituted receiver of the bank-
rupt’s property but it is expressly provided that
‘““this section shall not affect the power of any secured  *
- creditor to realize or otherwise deal with his security

in the same manner as he would have been entitled

to realize or deal with it if this section had not been
-passed.” -

Under Section 10, the effect of an authorized assign-
ment is stated to be “‘Subject to the right of secured
creditors’ and by section 11 such an assignment takes
precedence over attachments or debts and the attach-
ments, executions or other process against the property.
But as the assignment itself only vests the property
subject to the rights of secured creditors it can only
affect what the debtor owned, namely, the equity of
redemption in the property. (See section 46, s.s. 6,
and the Merchants Shipping Act, R.8.C,, c. 113, s.
45.)
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1021 The combined effect of sections 6 and 10 is to declare
M & that the bankruptcy proceedings do not interfere
Loimsp— with, or lessen the rights of a secured creditor (defined
Tas Sme in section 2, s.s. (gg) as a person holding a mortgage

—  hypothec, pledge, charge, lien or privilege on or

Reasons for
Judgment. aoainst the property of the debtor) to enforce or

Hfﬂﬂ“?’ retain his security unaffected by bankruptcy proceed-
— ings. 1t is a question, however, whether he is not
bound by section 46 to file an affidavit valuing that
security, at the risk of losing the right to participate

in any dividend (s.s. 10).

The assignee has, in my judgment, at the present
time, no right to interfere in this action, otherwise
than by defending it, if he so desires. I extend.the
time for his appearance to the writ for one week, and
dismiss his motion with costs to be taxed, and added to
the mortgage debt.

Judgment accordingly.
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NEW BRUNSWICK ADMIRALTY DISTRICT. _ 1921

ELIAS LOUPIDES axp OLGA LOU- P - January 19.
PIDES......ooiviiiiiiaaninnnnn. LAINTIFF ;
' vS.

Tae SCHOONER CALIMERIS.... DEFENDANT.

Shipping and seamen—Action In Rem—Assaull on seaman by Masler—
Jurisdiction—Viaticum.

Held: That no maritime lien attaches in the case of an assault by the
Captain, on a seaman, on board ship; and that the action in rem
did not lie against the vessel to recover damages due to such
assault.

2, That although the master of a Shlp may take all rcasonable means
to preserve discipline, where, to enforca an order given by him, he
unnecessarily lays hands on a member of the crew {(a Woma.n)
he is technically guilty of an assault on her; and, if the action
had been properly before this court, notwithstanding the absence
of all proof of actual damage, the court would have allowed $10.00
as exemplary damages.

3. That in the case of an English vesscl, the ship’s articles are co-
clugive as to the amount of wages. Thompson v. Nelson, 1913,
2 K.B.D. 523, referred to. ' ‘

4. Where the seaman is not wrongfully dismissed, but on the contrary
leaves of his own free will and for his own accommaodation, before
the termination of the voyage, the court should not allow him any-
thing by way of viaticum to enable him to return to his home port.

ReporTER's NoTk:—Although dismissing plaintiff's claim for
assault on the ground that the action did not lie, the judge discussed
whether there was or was not an assault, so that in the event of an
appeal being taken from his judgment, and it being held that such an
action did lie before this court for assault, it would not be necessary
to send the case back for a new trial.

ACTION in rem by the male plaintiff to recover
$220.13, wages due as cook, and $625.70 for wrongful
dismissal before the termination of the voyage, and by

female plaintiff, for $151.55 wages, $48.66 for wrongful
21799—15

\
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1921 . dismissal, and $1,000.00 for assault upon her by the .
Lovroes - eaptain, on the ship. - Both also claim viaticum,

a c}'{;ﬁm having engaged for the return voyage to Cardiff

Caumers.  (Greece) and having been dismissed at a Canadian port.

Argument of

unsel. January, 1921.

The case was heard before the Honoﬁrable Mr.
Justice Sir Douglass Hazen, L.J.A., at St. John, N.B.

D. Mullin K.C. for the plaintiff.
F. R. Taylor K.C. for the defendant.

TayrLor K.C.—There seem to be four claims made
by the plaintiff: First, for wages of both plaintiffs,
second, damages for wrongful dismissal; third, for a
viaticum; fourth, damages for an assault. As to the
fourth claim, it is submitted that there is no jurisdiction
in rem for an assault by the captain. The Admiralty
Court Act 1861, Sec. 7, The Teddington (1), The
‘Theta (2), The Nederland (3). Furthermore, as the
assault occurred in Morocco, the plaintiff must show
that under the laws of Morocco, such cause of action
would lie there, the foreign law being a question of
fact to be shown by the plaintiff. The M. Moxham
(4).  The claim for wages is very largely a question
of fact. Thompson v. H. & W. Nelson, Limited (5),
holds that the ship’s articles are conclusive as to
wages. If therefore, this were an English ship, and
Mrs. Loupides were on the articles at five shillings a
month, she could not receive more than the amount
stated in the articles, notwithstanding an agreement
to pay her more for work as a stewardess. It is
submitted that in this case the law of the flag, that of

(1) Stockton 45. (3) 12 Ex. C.R. 252,

- (2) [1894] P. 280. (4) 1 P.D. 107.
(5) [1913] 2 K.B. 523. :
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Greece, is applicable. An English seaman engaged 1921
on a voyage to end in the United Kingdom, as this LOU;I"’ES
was, must wait until he gets to the United Kingdom ¢ Tuz
unless regularly discharged. 26 Halsbury 53, Mer- Camuens, -
chants Shipping Act, 1906, s. 30. It may be open to Ar§ument of
question if this applies to foreign seamen. . There is
no viaticum; the voyage was at an end; they were
voluntarily discharged. The Raffacllucia (1).

D. Mullin K.C.—The ship is liable in rem for the
assault. The Sarah (2). The very title indicates it
was an action in rem, and the decree was for 70 pounds.
In the case of The Teddington, (3) the damage
was done by the ship. The Enrique (4), The Maggie
M. (5). The ship is liable for all the acts of the master
in the discharge of his duty, and there cannot be any
distinction made between an act which he does wilfully
in the discharge of his duty and negligence for which
the ship unquestionably has been held liable. The
Court: If the master of the ship should steal some
valuable article belonging to a passenger, is the ship
" responsible? Yes. It .is per se-as master that he -
renders the ship liable. No duty devolvés on the
plaintiffs to produce the laws of Greece. If there
was to be any intervention on the part of the Greek
authorities, it should have been by the Consul General
taking some step to protest. He was notified and no
protest was entered. As to the contention that the
action for assault would only be maintainable if it
were so under the laws of the country in which it
took place, the assault took place under the Greek
flag on board the vessel, and the law of Morocco has
no bearing on it at all. The Nina (6), The Leon X111, (7).

(1) 37 L.T. 365. (4) Stockton 157,
(2) 1 Stuart 89. (5) Stockton 185,
(3) Stockton 45, : (6) 37 L.J. Adm. 17. -

21799153 (7) 8 P.D. 121,



334 EXCHEQUER COURT REPORTS. VoL. XX.

1921 The facts ére stated in the reasons for judgment.
Lotrines

Tae Hazew, L. J. A. now (January 19th, 1921) delivered

ScroONER .
CALIMERIS. ]udgment p—

Reasons for , . . . : .
Judgment.  This was an action vn rem, brought by Elias Loupides

Hazen, LJ.A- and Olga Loupides, his wife, against the five masted
schooner Calvmeris, a Greek ship registered under the
Greek flag. The plaintifi Elias Loupides claimed a
balance for wages due him as cook, and a further
amount for damages for wrongful dismissal before the
termination of his voyage; and the plaintiff Olga
Loupides claimed a sum due her as wages as assistant
cook and a further sum for damages for wrongful
dismissal before the termination of her voyage, and
she also claimed damages for assault and battery,
alleged to have been committed by the captain of the
schooner, George Nicolaris, on her on board the said
schooner on the voyage, while she was assistant cook;
and both plaintiffs claim a sum of money by way of
viaticum to enable them to return to their home in

‘Cardiff.

First of all I will deal with the question of assault,
which it was alleged was committed while the schooner
was in the harbour at Rebat, in Morocco. In this
connection the defendant has raised the point that an
action 7n rem, against a vessel for assault committed
by the captain is not warranted by any statute or
decision, and that the Court has no jurisdietion in
such a matter. Mr. Roscoe in his work on Admiralty
Practice says:—

“The jurisdiction of the Admiralty over actions of
damages is at the present day based partly upon its
original jurisdiction and partly on the modern statutes.




" Vor. XX. EXCHEQUER COURT REPORTS,

Under the seventh section of the Act of 1861 it has
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been held that it includes all injuries done by ships Lovross

to ships or by ships to thirnigs other than ships, or by

Tus
SCHOONER

other objects to ships, wherever the damage is done. CaumErss.

The jurisdiction of the High Court of Admiralty was

Reasons for
Judgment.

extended by the Imperial Statute passed in the year gy, 1,74,

1861, and the seventh section of that Act indicated

that the Court should have jurisdiction over any.

claims for damage done by any ship. The jurisdiction

of the Vice Admiralty Court was also extended by

the Imperial Act of 1863, which among other clauses
contained a provision in its tenth section similar to the
above, viz., that these Courts shall have jurisdiction
over ‘“‘claims for damages done by any ship.” The
object of the two statutes of 1861 and 1863 was to
extend the jurisdiction of the respective Courts, and
the decisions of the High Court in construing the
meaning of the seventh section of the Act of 1861
are as pointed out by Judge Watters in the case of the
Teddington (1), very applicable and may be. safely
followed in considering that portion of section 10 of
the Act of 1863 relating to this Court. In the cdse
of the Thela (2), the facts were that the plaintiff issued

a writ ¢n rem and arrested a vessel claiming damages

for personal injuries sustained through falling down
in the hold of that vessel, owing to the hatchway
being covered with a tarpaulin at the time he was
.crossing to his own ship, which was moored outside
of the first mentioned vessel in the Regent’s Canal
Dock, but it was held by Bruce J. that the action
must be dismissed, for though the word damage

included personal injury the damage was not “done .

by any ship within the meaning of the Act.”” The
learned judge said:— B

(1) Stockton P. 45. (2) 1894, P.D. 286.
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1921 “I cannot think that the present case falls within
Lovrmes  the provisions of the Act of Parliament (1861). Damage
Tae  done by a ship is I think applicable only to those

ScrOoONER ;
Caumeris. cgses where, in the words of the Master of the Rolls

Heasons for in the Vera Cruz, 9, P.D. 96, at p. 99, the ship was the
Haren, LJ.A. 2Ctive cause of the damage. The same idea was
—  expressed by Bowen L.J. who said the damage done
by a ship means damage done by those in charge of a

ship with the ship as the noxious instrument.”

The case of the Nederland (1), was an action by the
plaintiff for damages for personal injury sustained
while working on a foreign ship as stewardess, such
injuries being sustained by faulty construction of
hatch covers and beams supporting the same, and
Mr., Justice Martin, Local Judge in Admiralty for
the province of British Columbia allowed a motion
to set aside the proceedings, on the ground as I under-
stand it, that the ship must be the active cause of the
damage. In that case counsel for the plaintiff relied
on the case of Wyman vs. Dewart Castle (2), in which
the judgment was given by the late Judge of this Court
Sir Ezekiel McLeod. I do not think, however, that
it in any way conflicts with the authority of the T'heta.
In that case a valve spoken of as a stop valve, broke
‘'on board the ship and caused injury to the plaintiff.
On the morning of the accident the stop valve was
closed, and a valve called a butterfly valve was also

- closed. After the accident, however, the butterfly
valve was found open but was not broken, and wit-
nesses on behalf of the defendant said that if it had
been closed it could not have been forced open, that
it would break first, while the plaintiff claimed that
it was forced open by the rush of the steam and he was
thereby injured, and that that was an injury that was

(1) 12 Ex. C.R. 252. - (2) 6 Ex. C.R. 387.
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caused by the shlp itself. 'While the su1t was dls- 1921

missed I understand the learned judge to have held LOU"DEE
that the valve bemg part of the machinery of the ch; e
ship it was the active cause of the injury, and that Csmems.
the damage was done by the ship, and that it could 1}33'3’;:{2’
not make any difference in what way the ship did g, 1.5.a.
the damage or what part ‘of the ship did the damage.
The suit, however, was dismissed on other grounds,.
and it seems to me is really an authority in favour
of the defendant’s contention on the pomt whlch I
am now considering. '

. The learned counsel for the plamtlﬁs clted three
~ cases in support of his contention that an action in rem
for assault would lie. The first case was that of the
Saiah (1), but an examination of this case shows that
it was not an action in rem, but an action for damages
brought by the steward of the vessel against the.
master for various- assaults during the voyage of the
ship. The second case to which he called my attention
was the Enrique. In that case a foreign steamship

while in the harbour.of St. John, New Brunswick,

- loading a cargo of deals, bought and received on board

“a quantity of coals for the use of the ship. The coals -
were purchased to be d_ehvered in the bunkers of the
steamer, and the coal merchant employed a third. .
party to put the coals on board. The steam power to
hoist the coals on board was furnished by the Enrigue.
The plaintiff was employed by the third party to-put .
the coals on board, and as so employed was injured
by the breaking of the hoisting rope. It was held
that an action could not be maintained against the
- steameér, ‘that the Court had mno jurisdiction and
that the Vice Admiralty Courts Act, 1863, section 10,
did not confer authority to entertain such an action.
1 Stewart’s; Vice Adm. Cases, 89
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It is true that the learned judge based his judgment
to some extent on the case of the Robert Pow (1),
and in a subsequent case, that of the Maggie M.,
decided two years afterwards, the same learned judge
(Watters), stated that the case of the Robert Pow
did not appear to have been followed by any subse-
quent case, but he held that the Court had jurisdiction
to entertain a suit in the case where a tug-boat was
engaged by the charterers of a vessel to tow through
the falls at the mouth of the river, beneath the suspen-
sion bridge which spans the falls at the point where
the river flows into the harbour, and the tug having
waited to take another vessel in tow, together with
the vessel first mentioned, was too late on the tide,
and in coming under the bridge the top-mast of the
Enrique came into collision with the bridge and was
damaged.

I can find no authority that would lead me to the
conclusion that I should go so far as to decide that a
maritime lien attaches in the case of an assault on

board of a ship by the captain. To do so I would

have to decide that such an assault was damage done
by the ship, or that the ship was the active cause of
the damage. In the present instance that cannot
be said to have been the case. I therefore decide
that the eclaim for assault must fail on this ground.
It may be well, however, that I should consider the
matter and make a finding on the question on the
merits, so that in the event of an appeal being taken

from my judgment and it being held that on the point

just considered that I have come to a wrong conclusion

‘it will not be necessary to send the case back for a

new trial. There were many witnesses called by
both plaintiff and defendant in respect to this branch

(1) 1 B.R. & Rush, 99.
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of the claim. The evidence of Mrs. Loupides is to 1%L
the effect that when the vessel was lying in the harbour Lovpipes
at Rebat she was working in the galley with her . Tus
husband. Some trouble occurred, and the captain Caumsrs.
who had previously sent word to her to go in and do %easons for
the work of the toilets instead of the galley, came in y,,.; 1,54,
where she was working and without her knowing
anything about it or having any idea with regard to
it, struck her on the left side with his fist. That he
then turned her around and pulled her outside of the
door—to use her own words “laid me down outside
the door.” Asked if she was on her feet when the
captain left her, she says “When the captain left 1
fell down, and then my husband pick me up.” That
after that she had violent pain inside and at night,
but continued working: until she got to St. Johnm,
though the pain was worse every day. After getting to
St. John she remained on the vessel for eleven days
working about asusual, and then went to the hospital,
remaining there for sixteen days. She stated positively
that she continued working up to the day the vessel
got to St. John, and after coming to St. John every
day but one before going to the hospital. Her state-
ment with regard to the assault is confirmed to a
certain extent by her husband, who says that he
saw the captain strike her in the galley in the after-
" noon. That the captain came in the galley and hit
his wife from the back, and then dragged her out and
left her on the deck, and that she was lying down
when he left her, and that he went over and lifted her
up. The only other witness called by the plaintiff
was Elias Glissis, who was a sailor on the Calimeris
at the time, who says he saw the captain in the door-
of the galley, and he saw him pulling Mrs. Loupides
outside from the galley. That he took her out and
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left her on the deck and got away from her. This
was all he saw but he says that when the captain left
Mrs. Loupides she was standing up on her feet and
remained standing, thus contradicting both Mrs.
Loupides and her husband in one somewhat important
respect. '

The defendant stated in most positive terms that he
did not hit Mrs. Loupides; that he was summoned to
the galley by the steward; that he went forward to
the galley and told Mrs. Loupides she had no business
there in the way of the cook and the steward, and
sald ‘“You had better get out of the way the time
they are getting the grub along because you are
alwaysin the way.” In reply she said to him “I am
helping my husband,” to which he replied she had
better go to her room. She said “No, I won’t come
out.” He said “You had better come out—I will
make you come out because I am the captain of the
ship and when I say anything to you you must do it
for you have no business here.”” He then put his
bhand on her to pull her out, taking hold of her by the
wrist, but he alleges that as soon as he put his hand on
her she came out without any force, complaming a
little and saying something of which he took no notice.
He absolutely denies having struck her or having
knocked her down, or that she was lying on the deck.
In cross-examination he stated that he did not go
into the galley but went in the door of the galley and
remained out on the deck close to the door all the
time, and that Mrs. Loupides was in the kitchen not
far from the door; that he reached in and took hold
of her and grabbed her by the hand, but that he did
not pull her out for when he put his hand on her she -
came out without making any fuss.
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Nicolas Dimitriades, a witness called for the 1921
defendant, says he saw the disturbance that took LOUHDEB
place, and he contradicts the captain in one important cg‘;im
particular. He states that the steward went out and Caumerms.
called the captain to go over and take Mrs. Loupides 1},‘;‘:,;"3:,{‘{’
out of the galley, as she was creating a disturbance gy,o0 7.5,
there, and when the Captain came and told her to ~
get out of the galley and she did not pay any attention ‘
to him, he took her by the hands and just as she got
outside of the door Mr. Loupides came out with a
knife and then he got hold of his wife.- He swears
that the captain did not hit Mrs. Loupides, but in
eross-examination stated that the captain went. inside
the galley and did not stay outside or just at the
kitchen door as he alleged in his own evidence. He
supports the statement of the captain, Nicolaris,
that he spoke to Mrs. Loupides and told her to go to
her room, and emphatically states that the captain
could not have struck her because he was there at or
close to the galley when the captain came and saw
what took place. The other witnesses called were
Michael Casedas, the steward, who states that the
captain stayed outside the kitchen door and did not
go in, and simply took Mrs. Loupides out by the
hand, and that she pulled back a little and then went
out. John Cotrogos, whose evidence is not of very
much value, -as he was 150 feet away from where the
occurrence took place, and George Gogas, who swears
that he saw the alleged attack by the captain on Mrs.
Loupides” at Rebat, and that he did not strike her,
though he was not in a position to see what happened
inside the door of the galley. His statement agrees
with the captain’s as'to his not going into the galley,
however, and he says that he simply stayed outside
the door and told her to come out, and when she did
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not do so the captain got angry and pulled her from
the hand, taking her out gently, however. He subse-
quently stated that he was not very angry, and that
the captain did not use any force to pull her out on
the deck.

It will be seen therefore, that there is a great deal of
conflict of evidence, but having heard the witnesses
and noted their demeanour on the stand I have come
to the conclusion that the weight of evidence is against
the contention of the plaintiffs that the captain struck
Mrs. Loupides a blow on the left side.” I have come
to the conclusion, however, taking the evidence of
the captain and that of his own witnesses, that there
was an assault, more or less of a technical character,
as it was not necessary for the captain to take Mrs.

. Loupides by the arm and pull her out on the deck.

According to the evidence of the witnesses, after he
put his hand upon her she eame out quietly and with-
out making very much opposition, and I cannot
think that it was necessary for him in order to make
her obey his order and come out on the deck, to place
his hand upon her and to pull her towards him in the
way in which he did. That. she received a blow on
the side such as she described is I think negatived
not only by the evidence of a number of witnesses but
also from the fact that she continued to work about
the ship as she had done previously for a number of
weeks, or until the vessel arrived in St. John, and
that she remained on the ship for eleven days after
the ship arrived in St. John, working, as her husband
has said, every day but one before going to the hos-
pital. There is no evidence of an independent character
to show that her going to the hospital was in conse-
quence of the blow she received on board the vessel,
although it would have been an easy matter to have
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summoned some of the doctors or other officials of the 192t
hospital to have given evidence in regard to this. Lovrmes
I do not think it would have been possible for her, had o
she received such a blow as she said the captain gave Caumers.
her to have continued working for so long a period of Beasons for
time. There is nothing to show that there was any g, 1,54,
expense incurred in consequence of the assault, and
the statement that after she was pulled out by the
captain she was left lying on the deck is contradicted
by one of the witnesses who was called on her behalf.
I have come to the conclusion, therefore, that an -
~assault was committed, but that it was a very slight
one. It was not of an aggravated character, and
there is nothing but her own unsupported evidence to
show that she suffered at all in consequence of it.
I would therefore have found damages against the
captain for ten dollars for assault, had the action
been one n personam, and I decide that that is the
amount of damage which should be awarded the
female plaintiff in the event of its being held that an
action tn rem will lie against the ship and that I am
in error in deciding otherwise. I have not lost sight
of the fact that a master may, apart from the power
conferred upon him by statute, take all reasonable
means to preserve discipline in his ship, and that he is
- given power under the Criminal Code to do so. I
do not think, however, there was any necessity in
this case for his laying hands on the defendant at all, -
and that is the reason why I find that the assault was
proved as I have stated. _
[His Lordship here discusses.the evidence touching
upon the question of wages to the female plaintiff, and
accepts the version of the captain, that she was only
on the ship as a favor to her, and to keep her husband,
and was put on the ship’s articles solely because of the
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1¥21  provision forbidding the carrying of passengers on
Lourmss  guch ships. This is not printed here as being entirely
Tuz g finding on the facts.]

ScHOONER N . . .
Cauveris.  Jn the course of his remarks on this point, His

R meaer Lordship says “We therefore have her statement to
Hazen LJ.A. the effect that she shipped with an understanding
—  that she was to receive five pounds a month, and the
captain’s explanation that he took her solely to oblige
her husband, and the further fact that she is entered
on the ship’s articles at five shillings a month, a fact
about which if she was an English ship there would,
I think be no question, because it has been held that
the ship’s articles are conclusive as to wages. (See
Thompson vs. Nelson, 1913, 2 K.B.D. p. 523.) There
is this difference, however, that the articles were
not signed by Mrs. Loupides. Under the system that
prevails on a Greek ship, as sworn to by the captain and
other witnesses, the captain makes out on a slip of
paper the agreement of each man hired, and takes it
to the consul and the consul then fills in the articles
in his own handwriting and they are not signed by
the crew. Mrs. Loupides did not sign any slip which
was taken to the Consul, and I think under the circum-
stances of the case, especially as this is a Greek ship
registered under the Greek flag, I had better deal

with the case upon its merits.”

[His Lordship then discusses the evidence as to
whether the plaintiffs were wrongfully dismissed, and
therefore entitled to damage or whether, on the facts,
they were not simply discharged at their réquest and
with their approval, and upon the male plaintiff
furnishing a substitute, and arrives at the conclusion)
“That they were not wrongfully dismissed, but left
the ship of their own free will, and that their action
for wrongful dismissal cannot be maintained.”
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His Lordship then continues:—

“For the same reason the claim so far as money by
way of viaticum is concerned to enable them to return

" to their home in Cardiff must also fail.”

“It was stated by counsel that there never had
been any unwillingness to pay Mrs. Loupides five
shillings a month from the time when she joined the
vessel at Swansea until she left it to go to the hospital
in St. John,-or to pay to Loupides the £3 that had
been deducted from his wages during the few days
that he was unable to cook in consequence of sea-
sickness. I find therefore that they are entitled to
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these amounts, and there will be no costs of this

trial.”’

“In view of the conclusion which I have come to as
above, I have not considered it necessary to determine
the point raised by the learned counsel for the ship to
the effect that as the assault occurred in Rebat,
within the exclusive jurisdiction of Morocco no action
can be brought in this court against the ship, unless

the plaintiff first shows affirmatively that under the -
laws of Morocco such action would lie in that state, -

the foreign law being a question of fact to be shown by
the plaintiff. :

“T only mention it now so that in case of an appeal
it will be clear that the point was taken in this court.”

Judgment accordingly.
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121 THE CITY SAFE DEPOSIT AND.

——

February17. AGENCY COMPANY, LTD....... PLAINTIFF;

VS.

THE CENTRAL RAILWAY COMP-.

ANY OF CANADA................ DEFENDANT;
AND
CHARLES N. ARMSTRONG. .., ...CLAIMANT;
AND
THE .SAID PLAINTIFF............ CONTESTANT.

Railways— Receiver— Manager’s salary—Rights lo privilege and priorily
therefor— " ‘Working Expendiiure”—Efect of Recetvership on salary
- of manager——Resolution of Board—Interpretalion.

Held: 1. That where by resolution of a Company the yearly salary
of one of its officers is fixed, and it is further provided that “the
said salary is to be paid from time to time as the Board direct,”
such salary, though fixed, does not become payable or exigible
until the Board so, direct.

2. That while the Court will not interfere with the domestic affairs of a
company so long as the company does not impair the funds neces-
sary to meet the creditors’ claims, it will refuse priority and pri-
vilege to the claim of the manager of a Railway for the payment of
$10,000 a year salary for managing a railway that is not a going
concern, has no railway to operate and has no revenue.

That such salary was not, under the circumstances of this case, ‘“work-
ing expenditure” as defined by the Railway Act.

3. That where a receiver has been appointed to a railway company
the person formerly acting as manager of said company cannot
claim salary as such since the said appointment, as against the
assets or fund in the receiver’s hands, the management of the
company being then in the receiver’s hands.

RerorTER'S NoTE:—The Appeal from the Report of the Referee
herein (post p. 354) was dismissed. :
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THIS was an appeal from the report of the Registrar = 192
of the Court, (Charles Morse, K.C.,) actmg as Referee. ( Tum Omy

AFE DzposiT
AND

" January 11th, 12th, 13th and 14ib, 1921 . AGEESS’.C“
"U.
HE
Appeal now heard before the Honourable Mr. Justme R CENgMéO
Audette, at Ottawa L : C , or Ci.;l;AnA
R o " ARMSTRONG
' Clainbier ¥ " 'TunSam
John W Cook K.C. for plaintiff contest{ng. Pty
E. W. Westover, for claimant.
- : , ‘ _ AudetteJ

The facts are-stated in the Report of the Referee
(post: p. 354 et. seq.) and the Teasons for judgment.

AUDETTE, J., now (February 21st 1921) dehvered .
judgment. .

. The claimant contends the defendant company
is indebted to him in the sum of $109,947. 41, being, he
‘alleges, “‘the balance due him under a settlement of
June 29th, 1912, of $50,000, for services and expendi-
tures to October 18th, 1911, with interest from that -
.date to be added, $45,000, and for salary and travel-
ling expenses and. dlsbursements to September, 1919

as per statement follow1ng — e

1. Balance of account on’ June 30th :
_ 1913, as per ledger............... $ 42, 315 55.
2. Salary, June 30th, 1913, to December
31st, 1917, 414 years at $10,000 per =~ *
QNOUM. . . oot e ettt e 45,000.00
“3. Services January lst, 1918 to A
September 1st, 1919—20 months ,
-at §250 per month.. e .. 5,000.00 .

21799—16
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921 “4, Expense accounts:

VoL, XX,

g mE Crry “Oetober 18th, 1911, to December

A o, 31st, 1911..... TR PRI . 657.97
L. “January 1st, 1912, to October
TaE

nER%  November 1et, 1910, to Doseraber
oF CANADA. ’ ! :

AD 3lst, 1912, . ................... _ 752.85
e “January 1st, 1913, toJune30th, 1913 1,140.13
PLAINTIFF. “July 1st, 1913, to October 18th, 1913 1,056.78

Reasonn for “October 18th, 1913, to December

31st, 1015............ P 2,545.04
“January 1st, 1916, to August 2nd, '
1917 ... . 4,852.04
“August 2nd, 1917, to February
26th, 1918.......... e 1,399.44
“February 26th, 1918, to April 30th,
1918, . ... 400.20
= “May 1st, 1918, to March 15th, 1919. 1,178.96
“March 15th, 1919, to September
1st, 1919, ... ... ... ... .. ... ... 1,133.95

$ 109,947.41

“5. I have a further claim against the company
defendant in connection with disbursements made
in England for the company and for the expenses of
the London office, and in connection with the scheme
of arrangement, ete., but I am unable to make up
this claim until I can go to England and get the
necessary information. For.the same reason I cannot
at present make up the account in connection with
the sale of rails, ties; etc., at Vankleek Hill.

“6. I hold $75,000 of first mortgage bonds of the
Central Railway Company of Canada as security for
the balance of $45,000 under the settlement of 29th
June, 1912. |
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“7. This claim is pr1v1leged and has pnonty over 194

THE Crty
Other ClaIInS . SAFBE Dppqgnj

The clalmant, in the course of the proceedings before Aszxcy Co.
- . .- T .

the referee, varied somewhat the amount of his claim, =
. HEBE

but not materially. This variation, ‘however, in the Cexman -

Ranway Co,

view I take of the case is of no moment or 1mportance "OF CANADA. -

: AND

Approachmg the consideration of this clalm in AmMSIRONG

AND
seriatim order, the first item presented reads as follows:— TnzSam

PLaINTIFF.
1st. Balance of account on June 30th, as - Beosmater
per ledger.......... e $ 42 ,3_15-. 55 Audette .

This last amount is the balance of the $50,000
above referred to, which is claimed under a resolution-
of the executive committee of the defendant company,
bearing date the 27th June, 1912, (Exh1b1t No. 6),
and which reads as follows:—

“Resolved: That the amount of 'compens'a'tion to be
allowed to C. N. Armstrong for his services to the
company up to October, 1911, and for the balance
due him for disbursements made by him on behalf of
the company, after deducting any sums already pald
to him, be and it is hereby fixed at fifty thousand
dollars, and that the said sum be paid to C. N. Arm-
strong out of the first monies which the company shall
receive, which can be applied to said payment and
that pending said payment the sum of seventy-ﬁve
thousand dollars in first mortgage bonds of the company
shall be given to C. N. Armstrong as collateral securxty
- for said payment, it being understood and agreed that -
the Bellevue property at Carillon is to be transferred
and made over to C. N. Armstrong in further con-
sideration of the payment of ten thousand dollars

“Mr. Raphael dissented.

. 21799—164
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1921 - “Resolved: That in accordance with the terms of
g ome Oy settlement with C. N. Armstrong the property at

AaeD o, Carillon, formerly belonging to the Ottawa River
Lm.  Navigation Company, and known as the Bellevue
Tee  property, as fully described in the deed of transfer

CENTRAL

IE,;“&':«T\D(EO from Charles F. H. Forbes to the Ottawa River

avp  Navigation Company, 6th August, 1873, be trans-

:ARMSTRONG .
avp - ferred, made over and assigned to C. N. Armstrong,

g:‘ir_‘_iﬁ- in consideration of the payment of the sum of ten
Reasons for thousand dollars, to be payable in ten annual instal-
AudetteJ. Ments of one thousand dollars each, with interest.
——  The wharf and all land necessary for the right-of-way
for the railway to be reserved by the company.
Mr. Raphael dissented.™
Whether the $75,000 in first mortgage bonds of the
company were ever given to Mr. Armstrong as col-
lateral security for the payment of the $50,000,
or whether the said arrangement has ever been
carried out or not, has not been proved. The
claimant has totally failed to establish by any evidence
whether or not the company has handed him these
bonds, and finally and especially the claimant has not
filed these bonds in support -of his claim, through
which he claims privilege and priority. .
. The.claim of privilege and priority of this balance of
$42,315.55, attaching to the bonds in question fails for
want of evidence. There is not a tittle of evidence in
support of such allegation or contention, and the claim
for privilege and priority is therefore disallowed.
2nd item—Salary, June 30th, 1913, to
31st December, 1917, 414 years at
$10,000 per annum................. $ 45,000
This item is founded upon (Exhibit 4) a resolution
passed at a meeting of the directors of the company,
held on the 19th September, 1912, and reads asfollows:—
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“Resolved: That the salary of C. N. Armstrong as 1921
managing director be the sum of ten thousand dollars (jTreCuy -
per annum to be computed from the 18th October, AcE D o,

1911, the said salary to be paid from lime to time a3 the

board direct.” ’ _ c.ff:i“gu,
While it is quite regular to appoint executive officers Iﬁ,ﬁ‘g‘f’,ﬁ,ﬁ"’

to a company in course of formation, such as president, ,p\umona

vice-president, secretary and hboard of directors, it Trim BAID

is quite another matter to appoint a manager, at a Fravm®

salary of $10,000 a year, to a railway company that i is Seemane:

not a gomg concern, that has no railway to operate. Audette J.

" There i is no justification to allow a salary of $10,000
a year to such manager, as against bona fide creditors
of the company. How could it be reasonably con-
- tended that $10,000 be paid to the manager of a non-
existent railway out of the capital—because it has no
revenue—in preference to credltors ? Stating the
case, is answering it. ‘

But there is more. The resolution of the 19th
September, 1912, fixes the salary, but, undoubtedly
having in mind there was then no occasion to pay
such salary at once, it- also provides that ‘‘the said -
salary is to be paid from ttme to time as the board direct.’’
That is to say, the salary, whilst fixed, is not now
payable, but is only so, when the board will direct.

There is no evidence adduced showing that any
resolution was ever passed directing the payment of
such salary. And it is what should be expected. A
captain is not appointed to manoeuvre a vessel, with
a salary to date from the time the keel is laid on the
ways of the shipyard. His salary will be paid when
. the vessel is constructed and afloat. It is the same for
a railway. A manager can reasonably be appointed
only when the railway is in existence.
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1921 . A court will not interfere with the domestic affairs

——t

Tae Crry 1 1 i
Sarm Doy v -of a company, provided the company does not impair

Aoy, the necessary funds to meet the creditors’ claims; but
Im.  a claim like the present one cannot be allowed with
come . privilege and priority. It cannot under the circum-

Ranway Co.gtances be placed in the class of working expenditures

avp a5 defined by the Railway Act.

ARMSTRONG -

Tue sap. - Lhe claim for priority is disallowed.
PrantiFr. - _. : .
Ressoms for- Item No. 3. Services—January 1st, 1918,

Judgment.  {fp September, 1919. 20 months at 8250
Audetted.  per month.. ... i $ 5,000.00

Suffice it to say that this is a claim for salary as
manager since the appointment of the receiver, in
whose hands the management of the company’s business
is now placed.

The claim was not insisted upon on the appeal, and
was, by counsel at bar, practically withdrawn.

This item is disallowed.

Item No. 4—This is an item for the clatmant’s expenses
from 18th October, 1911, to 1st September, 1919,
composed of several amounts.

All items since the appointment of the receiver must
obviously be disallowed for the reasons above men-
tioned

Then, with respect to the balance, to the other
amounts of the item, I find that there has been no
vouchers filed, no resolution of the company recog-
nizing such expenditure,—in other words, beyond the
claimant’s statement, that these amounts represented,
in a conservative degree his expenses,—there is no
evidence proving the same. |

However, there is more. The claimant stated in
his evidence (p. 263) that he has already received
$4,458.35 on account of travelling expenses for seven
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years and the total sum of $24,569 (p. 264) on aceount 1921

———

of salary and expenses. Furthermore, witness Midg-  ToeCmy o

ley, a chartered accountant engaged by the claimant AcrD o

and the company to make an examination and report Lo
. on the affairs of the defendant company, to open the  T=e

necessary books and furnish a report concerning the Rﬁgﬁgﬁo
financial position of the company, states in his ‘evi- , A
dence, that “Giving Armstrong credit for everything . Axp

he would be able to establish, he would be indebted Prawrwr.
to the company for a considerable amount - . . . Reasons for

Judgment
I have no doubt that it is a’very large sum of money. 5, qqtte .

Do not think the company owes Armstrong a single
cent. - I would say, if everything was in, it is my
opinion he would be indebted to the company, in a

very considerable sum of money.”

The claimant has also received $3,067 for some
property of the defendant company, sold about the
time the rails were also sold, and has never accounted
to the company for the same. That previous to the
entries in the books of the company by witness Blagg,
-—who said he made the same,—did such posting refus- .
ing to accept any responsibility in respect of the same,* ‘

“ashe did not know whether it wastight or wrong,”

a very large amount was standing against the claimant.

If the claimant has any meritorious claim with
respect to this item,—which he has failed to establish
by evidence,—the amount thereof will be set off, as
against what he owes the company.

This item cannot, under any of the circumstances
of the case, be allowed with privilege and priority as
claimed under the head of working expenditure.

This item will be disallowed.

Thereforé, there will be judgment dismissing with
costs the appeal from the referee’s report, and directing -
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1921 that judgment be entered dismissing with costs the
gqum Oy claim of C. N. Armstrong for any priority and privilege
AeD in respect of the above statement of claim.

Gmlrjf; Co.
] o Judgment accordingly.
Rm}Nguéo. The report of the Referee follows:
OF UANADA.
AND This was a claim for one hundred and nine thousand

ARMBTRONG
A nine hundred and forty-seven dollars and forty-one
Pummer. cents ($109,947.41) as remuneration for certain services
Report of the glloged to have been rendered to, and certain expendi-
—  ture alleged to have been incurred on behalf of, the
defendant railway company in this action. The
claim was filed on the 9th September, 1919, and was
contested by the plaintiff company. The hearing of
the contestation took place in Montreal on the 17th
December, 1919, and at Ottawa on the 23rd December,
1919. Mr. J. W. Cook, K.C., and Mr. A. Magee
appeared for the plaintiff contesting, and Mr. Armstrong
appeared in person. Onthe 10th-May, 1920, the claim
was reopened to. allow Senator Domville to contest it.’

I approach the task of preparing my finding on this
claim with some diffidence—mot because I am not
confident as to how it should be determined on the
facts, but because the facts themselves are of such a
character that to stir them up does not tend to sweeten
the atmosphere of business ethics in this country.

I have said that the claim was for a certain sum,
but that needs to be qualified by the statement that
certainty was lost as soon as the hearing of the con-
testation began. A perusal of the evidence passim
will show that the claim never became static in amount
before the undersigned. At the very outset of his
evidence Mr. Armstrong, no doubt unintentionally,
throws a veil of uncertainty and obscurity over his claim.
I quote from pp. 227 and 228, Proceedings on Reference:
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“When does the claim begin? A. In the books of 1%

the company it dates back as far as October 18th,  JT=s Cov

1911, and it is continued in the books of the company Ay

Ney Co,
up till 1st March, 1919. It then showed a balance to Lm
my‘ credit of $57,940.21. ' coram
“Q. That appears in the books? A. I‘ ca%mot Rawway Co.
accept that account as correct, but I am taking it at , av 4
that amount. On checking over the account last night, A%

I found two errors in connection with the travelling FPrammme. o
expenses. In one case my wife had accompanied me ReRrE oL the
~ on the passage across the Atlantic, and in charging
the amount the two passages were charged $271.

“Q. You correct that? A. Yes. One-half should
‘not have been charged. I had frequent passages, and
in another account my passage across had not been
charged, so that it makes a difference of about $85,
which should have been credited to the company.

That amount would have to come off.

“Q. Off that balance of $57,940.217 A. Well, out
of the total claim of $109,000. The total claim is
$109,947 .41.

“Q. What is the amount to be deducted‘? A.
$79.85. There is an overcharge of $175.85, and an
undercharge of $85, so that $79.85 should be credited
to the company. There are in the company’s books
a number of charges made against me. '

“Q. $109,857.56 is your net claim before me?

A. Yes. There are a number of items charged against
me in that account of the company which I have not
given credit for. One or two of them are correct, and
one or two of them I would want some information
about before giving credit for them, and that infor-
mation I can only get from the books of the company.
There is one large item charged on the 15th September,
1913. It is ‘To W: Owens $14,926.09.’

/
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1921 “Q. What do you say ought to be done with that?

goimeCny A, Apparently this is a payment which Mr. Owens

AcrD G, Claimed he had paid to me and wished the company to
L. assume. I think that amount is correct.

Tre ““Q. Then that should be deducted? A.Ithink so, but

CENTRAL

Ranway Co. ] would like to seeif there was a resolution at that time.
OF CANADA.

A a “Q. You might reserve all these mistakes to the

D end of the case, and tell me what the net claim before

Punvier. me is? © A. The net claim is, of course, as.I have

Report of the sworn to heve, but these different amounts altogether
would come to $19,817.

“Q. To be deducted from your claim? A. Yes, if
they are correct. Two of them, one item of $55.17
and another of $500 are correct.

“Q. T will ask you to file a statement showing the
difference between the claim as sworn to and the
exact amount you contend is due? A. Yes, that will
be quite satisfactory.”

Mr. Armstrong did not furnish me with a formal
amended statement of claim in writing; but he did put
in certain exhibits having a corrective bearing (e.g. Ex.
No. 18) on his original statement, which unfortunately
did nothing but add fto its uncertainty as a whole.

Now, in view of these facts and bearing in mind
that Mr. Armstrong, during the period for which he
claims, was a director of the railway company (for
the whole time he was managing director and for
certain periods was vice-president and president)
and as such stood in a fiduciary relation to the company
and its creditors (See per Lindley, L.J. in re Lands
Allotment Company (1), his remark that ‘“‘the claim
is a very simple one,” serves to reinforce the point of
the French epigram: ‘‘Les affaires? C’est bien simple:
c’est 'argent des autres.”

(1) [1894] 1 Ch. 616 at p. 632.
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“A president and managing director is not only 192
the executive and confidential agent of the company, ( Teelrry
he is also a trustee for the company’s money and , AN .
property.” See Rogers Hardware Co. v. Rogers (1), m
citing Great Eastern R. Co. v. Turner (2), Gluckstem V. ogoiE
‘Barnes (3). : : R&“‘&ﬁﬁ"

It will be useful at this stage to state briefly the ABMSTRO\G
history of the railway company and Mr. Armstrong’s Tas SA
connection with it. The company was organized R:o?:fi;w
in 1903 to build a railway from Montreal to Grenville, —Referee.
P.Q., being incorporated by 3 Edw. VII (Dom.) c.
172, under the name of the Ottawa River Railway
Company. By an amending Act, 4 Edw. VII, e. 112,
it was authorized to extend its line from Grenville
to Ottawa. By 4-5 Edw. VII, c. 79, the name was
changed to the Central Railway Company of Canada
and authorlty was given to extend its line from Ottawa
to a point on Georgian Bay at or near Midland, and
to construct certain branch lines. Thus it will be
seen that the company had valuable charter privileges
which with honest and efficient management might have
‘been turned into great profit for the shareholders. Sena-
tor Domville, in giving evidence on his own claim
before the undersigned, did not hesitate to characterize
the company as “conceived in sin and born in iniquity.”
I pointed out this serious indictment to Mr. Arm-
.strong, as will appear from the following extract from
the evidence: (D. p. 190). “Q. Although you were
not responsible for the conception of this company in
sin, you had something to do with ushering it into the
world in some way? A. Yes, I Was, a sort of mid-

wife.”

(1) [1913] 10 D.L.R. 541. (2) {1872] L.R. 8 Ch. 149.
- (3) [1900] A. C. 240.
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1921 The first event of importance after the forma-
grEECIY tion of -the company - was the borrowing of 20,000
Acganp . bounds in London, one-half of which was applied on

! account of the purchase of fifty miles of an existing
onie  railway, a purchase which was capriciously abandoned

%};ﬂ&ﬁﬁf’- and the money so paid forfeited to the vendor (See

axo My, Hogg’s evidence in the Domville claim, pp. 101,

ARMSTRONG

o 102). That was the beginning of a long history of
Pummr. wasteful and incompetent management of the affairs
Report of theof the company. It was not until 1911 that the
company succeeded in launching its first bond issue.
On the 18th October, 1911, Mr. Armstrong was
appointed managing director and vice-president of
the company. (Ex. No. 3 on Ref.; and see Proc. on
Ref. pp. 227, 228 and 374.) The road was never in
.operation because it was never physically completed.
The company was never a ‘‘going concern.”” On
May 3rd, 1916, the company filed a scheme of arrange-
ment with its creditors, which was never confirmed
by the court, but was dismissed by an order of
December 6th, 1917. In the month of June, 1917,
Mr. Avmstrong purporting to act on behalf of the
company, proceeded to sell certain steel rails to the
Government of Canada, without the authority of the
trustee for the bondholders, although such rails were
covered by the trust deed of May 5th, 1914. Mr.
Hogg, the solicitor of the company, had advised Mr.
Armstrong that the consent of the trustee for the
bondholders was necessary before the rails were sold
(Ex. R.). The amount received from the government
on the sale of the rails was $93,17049. On or
about the same time (Proc. on Ref., p. 258) there
was certain other property sold to one St. Denis upon
which Mr. Armstrong realized $2,652. (Ex. No. 16).
Certain plant and material belonging to the company,
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but mortgaged to the bondholders under the said trust 1921
deed, were also sold by Mr. Armstrong to the Royal Sg;nggm
Agricultural School, a moribund if not insolvent , v =
institution of which he was president (Proc. on Ref. L™
p. 257) for the sum of $415. The purchase price of Tuz
the rails was paid into the Exchequer Court of Canada Ramwar Co.

OF CANADA

by the Government on the 22nd January, 1918, there , 4~ - -
being a proceeding then before the court wherem the . A%
trustee for the bondholders asked for a salé of the Pusmes.
railway and the appointment of a veceiver of the road R“”ﬁ‘egef‘“’
until the sale became effective. Mr. Armstrong
never paid the moneys he received from the sales
above mentioned into court. He never paid the
moneys over to the company, alleging as a reason
that the company owed him. (Proc. on Ref., p.
255). He did not credit them in his statement of
claim filed, but he is willing to do so now. (Proc. on
. Ref. p. 257). '

Mr. Armstrong became president of the railway
company in 1917. On the 6th December of that
year, Mr. F. Stuart Williamson was duly appointed
interim receiver, and his appointment was made
permanent by the order of this honourable court on
the 9th October, 1918, By the terms of the last-
mentioned order, the undersigned was appointed
refereé for the purpose of making enquiry and report
as to the amount and nature of the clalms of credltors
against the said rallway company.

In response to a public advertisement ’calling upon
creditors of the defendant company to file their claims
before the undersigned, Mr. Armstrong filed the claim
which is now before me for consideration, and it was
contested by the plamtlﬁ" company as hereinbefore
mentioned.
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1921 Mr. Armstrong’s claim is one for salary, travelling
gaanCmy expenses and disbursements as managing director. of
Aarap . the defendant company, down at least to his assump-
Lm.  tion of the position of president of the company in
Tas  1917. The administration of the affairs of the com-

CENTRAL

Ramway Co.pany was irregular from the start, for although it

axp  ganpears (Proe. on Ref., p. 228 and Ex. No. 3) that

ArMSTRONG . . . . k
avp  he was appointed vice-president and managing director

I?fAEN_S_f“;:- on the 18th October, 1911, it seems that he had been
Report of the working in some capacity for the company before
—  that.  Furthermore although Mr. Armstrong was
appointed to the above-mentioned offices in QOctober,
1911, he was not authorized to be paid any salary or
remuneration until 19th September, 1912. On that
date (Ex. No. 4) it was resolved at a meeting of direct-
ors ‘‘that the salary of C. N. Armstrong, as managing
director, be the sum of ten thousand dollars per
annum, to be computed from the 18th October, 1911,
the said salary to be paid from {ime lo tvme as the
board directs.”” Now it must be borne in mind when
considering this resolution that the company was
not at the time a ““going concern.” Is was not proved
- before me by Mr. Armstrong that this meeting was
regularly called or that a quorum was present apart
from Mr. Armstrong himself. (In re Greymouth
Point Elizabeth Ry., etc. (1); In re North Eastern Ins.

Co., Ltd. (2); In re Webster Loose Leaf Filing Co. (3).
Having verified Exhibit No. 4 by reference to the
original I find that. there were five directors only
present of whom Mr. C. N. Armstrong was one.
Now by referring to the by-laws of the defendant
company which were put in in the Domville claim .
as Ex. E, and made part of the evidence in the con-

(1) [1904] 1 Ch. D. 32. (2) [1919] 1. Ch. D, 198,
(3) [1917] 240 Fed. Rep. 779.
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" testation of the present claim, it will be found that the 1921
Board .of Directors must consist of nine, of whom a T=eCry
majority shall form a quorum. There was then no , A
quorum present at the meeting in question if we L™
exclude Mr. Armstrong. Under such circumstances Ts=E
there could be no valid by-law or resolution passed by Rawwar Co.

" OF CANADA,
the Board. See per Rose J. in Cook v. Hinds (1); , AN
per Street J. in Birney v. Toronto Milk Co. (2); Mulvey , A
Dom. Comp. Law, p. 370; Enright v. Heckscher (3). Tuammer.
But even if it were conceded that this meeting of Regors of the
directors was in every respect regular and valid, there
are two features of it that require consideration in
relation to the sufficiency of proof of Mr. Armstrong’s
rights under it. In the first place he has not satisfied
me that the salary was paid ““from time to time as the
board directs.”” On the contrary he seems to have
paid himself whenever he got hold of the company’s
funds. For instance, I have already pointed out
that in connection with the sale by him of property
and plant at McAlpine in the summer of 1917, he
received on his own admission over $3,000 in cash
(Ex. No. 16 and Proc. on Ref., p. 255), When asked
by Mr. Cook why he had not paid it over to the
company, his answer was: ‘“Because I had a claim
against the company, and a heavy one, and I took
what I could get out of that for myself.” To make
. this clear the undersigned asked him: “For arrears of
salary and disbursements made on behalf of the
company?’ - His answer was-‘“Yes.” (Proc. on Ref.

255). -He also cashed certain coupons of bonds in his
possession. (Proc. on Ref., p. 446). B

(1) [1918] 42 O.L.R. 273, at p. 306. (2) [1902] 5 O.L.R. 1, at p. 6
i (3) 240 Fed. Rep. 863. .
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1921 The other feature that requires proof from MTr.

graeCmy Armstrong is that the resolution of directors of the

thavo  10th September, 1912 (Ex. No. 4) was approved by

Agexcy Co.

L. g resolution of the shareholders duly convened. For

cg‘nglﬁn authority setting forth the requirement of the law

Ramwat Co.that to constitute the valid payment of salary to a

AND 3 .
AR G director of a company there must be a resolution

o>  of the shareholders, I need go no further than the clear

Puvmer. gtatement of the principle by the learned referee (now
Report'of thethe Honourable Mr. Justice Audette) in Menister of
Raitlways v. Quebec Southern Ry. Co. (1); affirmed
by Cassels, J., 12 Ex. C.R. at pp. 58, 59, and by the
Supreme Court of Canada, 15th February, 1910.

It should not be overlooked that the action of the
Board of Directors in settling the remuneration to be
paid to Mr. Armstrong for his services was forestalled
by the Executive Committee of the company in a
meeting of that body held on the 27th June, 1912,
Mr. Armstrong himself being in the chair. Ex. No. 6
is a certified copy of the Minutes of the said meeting
of this Committee. Among others it sets out the

following resolution:—

“REsoLVED: That the amount of compensation to
be allowed to C. N. Armstrong for his services to the
company up to October, 1911, and for the balance due
him for disbursements made by him on behalf of the
company, after deducting any sums already paid.to
him, be and it is hereby fixed at fifty thousand dollars,
and that the said sum be paid to C. N. Armstrong out
of the first moneys which the company shall receive,
which can be applied to said payment, and that
pending said payment the sum of seventy-five thousand
dollars in first mortgage bonds of the company shall

(1) [1908] 12 Ex. C.R. 11, at pp. 14, 15 and 16.
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be given to C. N. Armstrong as collateral }security for 192

said payment, it being understood and agreed that TaeCrrr

the Bellevue property at Carillon is to be transferred , apo

: . Agency Co.
and made over to C. N. Armstrong in further considera- _
tion of the payment of ten thousand dollars. CTHE

| T pame
Mr. Raphael dissented.” : - orCawapa.

am AND
MSTRONG
of '

“ResoLvED: That in-accordance with the terms ND
) THE Baip

settlement with C. N. Armstrong the property at prarmee.
Carillon, formerly belonging to the Ottawa River report of the
~ Navigation Company, and known as the Bellevue Referee.
property, as fully described in the deed of transfer

from Charles F. H. Forbes to the Ottawa Riyer
Navigation Company, 6th Augusf:, 1873, be trans-

ferred, made over and assigned to C. N. Armstrong,

in consideration of the payment of the sum of ten
-thousand dollars, to be payable in ten annual instal-

ments of. one thousand dollars each, with interest.

The wharf and all land necessary for the right of way -

for the railway to be reserved by the company. . '

Mr. Raphael dissented.”

. The company not being a ‘“‘going concern” no such
undertaking could be validly made by or on’ behalf _
of the directors. (See per Lindley L.J. in re George *
Newman & Co. (1); Burland v. Earle (2); Mitchell on

Can. Com. Corp., p. 1040. See also my reasons in the

Domville claim.) It may be remarked in passing that

as a result of this benevolent action of the Executive
Committee towards Mr. Armstrong, Senator Campbell

resigned from the Board of Directors. (See Ex: M.)

" His letter is quoted in full later on. Now the Execu-

tive Committee is, as Mr. Cook graphically put it in -

(1) [1895] 1 Ch. D. 674, at p. 686. (2) [1902] A.C. 83 at p. 93.
21799—17
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921 his argument, “a sort of cabinet of the directors,”
s AE“D%‘;‘;H Mr. Armstrong in this instance being one of them.
Aciecr Co. Notwithstanding provision being mgde for i} in the
”_ by-laws (sec. 34) this committee lacked the authority
Tms  of the board of directors so far as administering the

CENTRAL

Rannway Co. 1 3 Y
tacwar Co. affairs of the company is concerned. Mulvey, Domin

AND gon Company Low, p. 26 says: ‘“The affairs of the

ARMBTRONG
AND  company are managed by the board, and all powers

g‘ﬂEE given to the company by the charter are exercised by

Report of the the directors subject to the restrictions provided by the

— Act. * * * The duties of the directors having

the nature of those of a trustee may not be delegated.

It s 1llegal to appoint an execulive commattee to perform

the duties imposed by the Act upon the directors.”

So much for the Executive Committee, and its handsome

treatment of Mr. Armstrong. In this connection it is

interesting to refer to by-law No. 42 of the defendant

. company (see Ex. E in Domville claim) which enacts

that the office of director shall become vacant ‘if he

accepts any other office of profit under the company,

and is or becomes interested directly or indirectly in

any contract with the company.” This throws an
important light upon the facts hereinafter stated.

Returning to Ex. No. 4, Mr. Armstrong attempts

to put the generosity of the board of directors as

therein expressed on a sure foundation by a document

(Ex. C) purporting to be minutes of an adjourned

meeting of shareholders of the Central Railway

Company of Canada, held on the 30th September,

1912. Itisalso worthy of mention that Mr. Armstrong

was one of the four shareholders present, and that he

did not omit to bring many proxies with him. The

first resolution reads: ‘“Resolved: That the minutes

of all meetings of the directors and executive committee

held since the last annual meeting of the shareholders
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be and the same are hereby approved and confirmed.” 1921
The last resolution, too, is ‘not unmindful of Mr. SA%"D%I::S"
* Armstrong, as it reads: ‘“Resolved: That the sale and

_ transfer of the Bellevue property at Carillon to C. N. m
Armstrong be and the same is hereby approved and Caxa
confirmed.” Now, it may be that the maxim “ g 11‘3&‘;3 r Co.
pressto unius est exclusio altervus’” should be apphed AR G
here, asthere is a specific sanction of one only of the , A™
benefits conferred upon Mr. Armstrong by the directors Fravroe.
in Ex. No. 4; but on the other hand it is well to seek R"‘,‘;""{“‘;fef‘“
authority as to the sufficiency of the first resolution

for the purpose of approving the action of the directors

in giving Mr. Armstrong a salary of $10,000 per

annum. It is a blanket resolution, indefinite in its

terms, and giving no assurance that the shareholders

(with the obvious exeception of Mr. Armstrong) had

. their minds directed to the fact that they were dealing

with the managing director’s salary. I asked Mr,
Armstrong (Proc. on Ref., p. 260), whether the minutes

of meetings of directors prior to that date were read

at this meeting of the shareholders, and he could not

gsay that they were. - There is nothing to show on the

face of Exhibit “C’”’ that they were. Now it is to be

noted that Ex. “C” shows the meeting was an adjourned

.one. There was an annual meeting called (Proc. on’

Ref., pp. 456, 457) for September 3, 1912, and it

was adjourned to September 30. There is nothing

before me to show that it was not postponed by the

directors without the shareholders convening, which

would be invalid. (Mulvey: Dom. Company Law, p.

47.) But apart from that the meeting would seem to

have been incompetent to ratify Mr. Armstrong’s

salary, because that item would not come within the

ordinary agenda of an annual meeting, and it was not

2179@—17%

Aemzcr Co.
Lip,
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1921 proved before me that there was any notice to share-

SA’%;;EDCEIPTJSH holders, as required by *sec. 3 of the by-laws of the

rer> .. company, setting out specifically the proposed business.
o See per Fry J. in Huiton v West Cork Ry. Co. (1):—
Tas  ““The notice should set out specifically the proposed

CENTRAL

Ranwway Co. : .
it vy business. It is not necessary that a by-law proposed

A2 b0 be approved or a resolution, should be set out
BMS‘I‘ROI\G '

o2 in extenso. But it is necessary that the gist of it

Puwrrr.  ghould be given. * * * Only such business as 1s

Reportiof th, i i :
eportiof the referred to in the notice may be transacted, and every

- shareholder is entitled to notice.”

Again, “A meeting may be adjourned.
But only such business as the meeting itself was called
to decide may be considered at the adjourned meeting,
unless a further notice is duly given for the considera-
tion of other business.” Mulvey, op. cit. pp. 46, 47;
Birney v. Toronto Milk Co. (2). Mitchell’s Canadian
Commercial Corporations at p. 1031, says: “The
general rule is that unless authorized by the charter, or
by the company’s regulations or memorandum of
association, or by the shareholders at a properly con- .
vened meeting, directors have no right to be paid for
their services, and cannot pay themselves or each
other, or make presents to themselves, out of the
company’s assets.” And see the judgment of Kelly
J. in McDougall, et al. vs. Black Lake Asbestos & Chrome
Co. Limited, et al. (3) Kelly J. says: “Of transactions
intended to be dealt with but not covered by a general
notice of an annual meeting, special notice should be
given. * * * The notice must contain sufficient
statement of the facts which are to be considered by
the corporation at the proposed meeting.

(1) [1883] 23 Ch. D. 654 at p. 659. ©  (2) {1903) 5 0. L. R. 1.
(3) (1920) 47 O.L.R. 328 _
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“There was here a special reason why the attention
of the shareholders should have been drawn to the
nature of the business intended to be transacted 'at
the meeting, viz., the proposal for payment of morieys

to the president of the company personally. Where a -

contract is to be submitted to a meeting for confirma-
tion, and the directors of the company are interested

(pp. 333,334). See Mitchell, op. cit., at p. 1031
“The shareholders in general meeting assemb_led may

., 367
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ARMB’I‘RONG
therein, it has been held that the notice convening ‘the e

meetmg should give particulars as to that interest’” Pramvmrs.

rt nf the
eree.

- Re

vote remuneration to the directors for past services;

but the company must be a going concern. . Remunera-
tion for past services of directors cannot be voted at
an ordinary general meeting unless special notice be
given .of the intention to propose such a resolution.”

-

It is obvious that these last observations obtain as

well against the resolution affecting the Carillon
property in Exhibit No. 4 as against the so-called
blanket resolution. °

It is under these corporate acts of the compaiy,
- over which the shadow of Mr. Armstrong’s dominance

looms largely, that he asserts his 'right to be paid the

~major portion of his claim, i.e., for salary or remunera-

tion from October, 1911, down to January, 1918.°

Let me say here that if my finding in disallowing this
whole claim as against the fund in the receiver’s

hands had to depend on the invalidity of these resolu-

- tions voting him salary or remuneration, I would have
little. difficulty in holding them invalid. The law

does- not favour methods by which company directors -

can make easy money at the expense of shareholders

and creditors. .On the other hand, even conceding for

the sake of argument, that the aforesaid resolutions

- of the executive committee and the directors were

—
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1921 ypegular in all respects, and that there was a proper
SA'I;E”D%;’O’; o ra.tiﬁcation of them by the shareholders, I would have to
Acrer oo, Telect this claim in its entirety because the facts of the
m case conclusively show that instead of the company
cgnﬁu owing Mr. Armstrong anything, Mr. Armstrong owes

Roflgiﬁnfm the company avery considerable sum of money which he

AND 1 1
A o ought, both in good conscience and as a matter of law,

2 torepay to the company. All this will appear later on.
Puwvar.  To return to the items of his statement of claim.
Report of the The claim for salary down to December 31, 1913,
depends for its validity upon the impugned acts of the
- directors and shareholders of the ecompany embodied
in Exhibits “4,” “6” and “C’”’ respectively; I shall not

labour the case further as to those documents.

Mr. Armstrong’s claim for remuneration from.
January, 1918, to September, 1919, “twenty months
at $250 per month,” resolves itself purely into a
question of quantum meruit. At p. 291, Proc- on
Ref., Mr. Cook questions Mr. Armstrong, as follows:
“Q. Now we come to services from the 1st of January,
1918, to the 1st September, 1919, 20 months at $250
per month